PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY PUBLIC AGENDA
Thursday, October 17,2019

Time: 9:00 a.m. - BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ MEETING
Place: 55 International Drive, Pease International Tradeport

Portsmouth, New Hampshire

AGENDA
L Call to Order:
II. Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: September 19, 2019 *
1L Public Comment:
IV. Committee Meetings:
A. Reports:
1. Audit Committee Agenda *
V. Old Business:
A. Approval: _
1. Lonza Biologics, Inc. — Second Freezer Building Concept Plan * (Torr)
VI Finance:
A. Reports:
1. FY 2020 Financial Report for the Two Month Period Ending August 31,2019 *
2. Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending June 30, 2020*
B. Approvals:
1. Certified Annual Financial Statements and the Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal
Awards * (Bohenko)
VIL.  Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:

A. Reports:
I. Right-of-Entry — NH Employment Security use of 360 Corporate Drive and 100 New
Hampshire Avenue for overflow parking *
2. Right-of-Entry —~ NECI use of 360 Corporate Drive for overflow parking *

B. Approvals:
1. Jalbert Leasing, Inc. dba C & J Bus Lines ~ Parking License (4 lots) * (Allard)

2. Lonza Biologics - Parking License for 55 International Drive * (Lamson)
3. VMD Systems Integrators, Inc. — License for space in Airport Terminal * (Levesque)



VIII. Leases:
A. Reports:
1. Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and Speedpro Imaging of
Portsmouth *

IX.  Contracts/Agreements:
A. Reports:
1. Environmental Contract Report regarding Permit Implementation *

B. Approvals:
1. VHB - Transportation Planning and Engineering Services * (Torr)
2. Chadwick Baross, Inc. - Snow Plow / Box Blade * (Allard)
3. Fred C. Church, Inc. - PDA Worker’s Compensation Coverage* (Loughlin)
4. Terminal Expansion Project Cost Update *** (Bohenko)

X. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals

A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Operations
2. Alirport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

(1) Dan Fortnam — Exercise of Option to Consulting Agreement
b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)
c) Noise Line Report *

B. Approvals:
1. Bills for Legal Services * (Bohenko)

2. Manager Airport Administration * (Lamson)

XI. Division of Ports and Harbors:

A. Reports:
1. PDA Port Committee Minutes of April 4, 2019 *
2. Port Authority Council Minutes of June 12, 2019 *
3. Granite State Minerals ~ License Extension — 2" of Four One (1) year Options *
4, Isle of Shoals Steamship Company/City of Portsmouth — Parking Agreement *

B. Approvals:

1. Appledore Marine Engineering Proposal for Seawall Repair at Portsmouth
Commercial Fish Pier * (Levesque)
2. Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc. Contract for Mooring Removal and Re-

installation work in Hampton and Seabrook Harbors * (Loughlin)
XII.  Non-Public Session * (Torr)
XII1.  Adjourn from Non-Public Session/Return to Public Session

XIV. Vote of Confidentiality * (Allard)



XV. New Business:

XVI. Upcoming Meetings:

Golf Committee November 18,2019 @ 8:30 a.m.
Finance Committee November 18, 2019@ 9:00 a.m.
Board of Directors November 21, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m.

All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted.

XVIIL. Directors’ Comments

XVIII. Adjournment

XIX. Press Questions

e Related Materials Attached

ko Related Materials Previously Sent

ot Related Materials will be provided under separate cover
+ Materials to be distributed at Board Meeting

=l Confidential Materials

PABOARDMTG\AGENDAS - Current\Agenda October 17.docx






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Thursday, September 19, 2019
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

MINUTES

Presiding: Kevin H. Smith, Chairman

Present: Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman; Robert A. Allard, Treasurer; Margaret F.
Lamson; Neil Levesque and Franklin G. Torr

Late Arrival: John P. Bohenko arrived to the meeting at approximately 8:25 a.m.

Attending: David R. Mullen, Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Executive Director;

Paul E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director and Alrport Director; Lynn M. Hinchee,
General Counsel; PDA staff members; members of the public.

I Call to Order:

Chairman Smith (“Smith”) called the meeting to order at 8:04 a.m. in the Board
conference room on the Pease International Tradeport at 55 International Drive, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

IL Acceptance of Meeting Minutes: August 22,2019

Director Loughlin moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby accept the minutes of the August 22, 2019 Board
meeting.

Discussion: Director Lamson (“Lamson”) abstained from voting on the minutes as she
was not in attendance at the meeting, but rather attended telephonically.

Director Torr (“Torr”) complimented Raeline on the intuitiveness of the minutes; Lamson
indicated they are outstanding and PDA is lucky to have her; Smith reiterated Lamson
sentiments.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
III.  Public Comment:
There was no public comment.

IV.  Old Business:
A. Approvals:
1. Lonza — (Parking Garage and Iron Parcel)

Director Allard moved and Director Loughlin seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of Lonza Biologics, Inc.'s ("Lonza") revised
conceptual plan to convert one of the parking garages at 70/80 Corporate Drive to a central
utility building and to add four floors (total of seven) to the second parking garage to
replace the lost spaces; all in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the
memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager - Engineering, dated September 10,2019.



Discussion: Lamson complimented Maria with the clarity of the information provided.

Smith welcomed the Lonza representatives Simon Trigg (Trigg) and Mark Caswell
(Caswell), and asked if there was anything they would like to speak to; Trigg indicated that
unless there were any questions they can talk through any changes being proposed.

Executive Director Mullen (“Mullen”) directed the Board to two (2) large plans (ledger
sized hand-outs were provided to the Board members) indicating the change to what has already
been approved. Pointing to two (2) blue buildings on plan and indicated both were supposed to
be four (4) floor parking garages, now the blue building (pointing to the building in the forefront)
has been converted to a utility building to support the entire campus. Mullen further indicated

that PDA staff believed the change was significant enough to warrant the approval from the
Board.

Allard asked if the parking garage was going to be three (3) more stories; Mullen
affirmed and stated it will be seven stories, total.

Mullen indicated that Phase I would consist of the blue areas; Phase II would consist of
the purple areas; and Phase III would consist of the yellow areas. Allard asked when
construction would begin. Mullen asked Lonza representatives for best guess and Caswell
indicated that Lonza is in the process of permitting now and having some struggles with getting
the permits. Caswell indicated that when permits are approved will start construction around the
land itself and then the building will be based on customer need and demand so sometime shortly
thereafter.

Allard asked about completion date, roughly; Mullen indicated that Lonza has some
projection dates. General Counsel Lynn Hinchee (“Hinchee”) indicated that this is a deal that is
[scheduled a lease structure itself anticipated from the date of lease signing of two years and nine
months to occupancy]. It is a long term structure because of not only the permitting required in
advance of construction, but all the inspections that accompany it.

Mullen indicated the anticipated schedule would be in phases with Phase 1 (3 to 5 years
to completion); Phase II (5 to10 years to completion) and Phase II1 (10 to 15 years to
completion). Mullen further stated that Lonza needed to know it would have capacity in order to
support future needs. Mullen indicated that the “iron parcel” encompasses twenty-three (23)
acres, that Lonza also has an option on the PDA parcel which is about ten (10) acres, so when it
is all said and done Lonza would control approximately fifty-four (54) acres.

Loughlin asked if Lonza needed any height variance — assumed this is permitted by
ordinance. Mullen indicated it does and has been reviewed by the City and it has not changed, it
is one hundred twenty (120) feet (Mullen points to a line on the plan). Lonza’s floors are much
taller than conventional floors in order to support its operations; they are thirty foot (30”) stories
instead of ten (10) or twelve (12) foot stories.

Lamson indicated she loves the penthouse indicated on the design.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



Smith asked if there were any additional questions or comments from the Board, none
heard. Smith indicated that the Board has been kept abreast on the permitting process by Mullen
and Hinchee and that it is the goal of the PDA Board to see this project move forward. Smith, as
the Governor’s appointee on the Board, noted the Governor very much wants to see this project
to continue to move forward and that the State is very intent on helping this come to fruition.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote (6 — 0; Director Bohenko had not yet arrived to
the meeting) for; motion carried.

V. Finance:
A. Reports:
1. FY 2020 Financial Report for the Period Ending July 31,2019

Finance Director Irv Canner (“Canner”) indicated that the numbers are very light and
premature where this is only the first month in the new fiscal year; no obvious trends (negative or
positive) at this time. PDA’s auditors, Berry Dunn, completed its work last week after being at
PDA for approximately three and a half days. Now they have the review process (additional
partner review and independent partner review practices) at its offices in Manchester. No audit
review findings at this point. There is an Audit Committee meeting on October 15" and the goal
is to have the certified financials approved and to the State by November 1%,

As seen every July, August and September, PDA shows an impact of the accrual process
(PDA keeps its books open in an effort to capture FY19 invoices). PDA has slow paying/billing
vendors; PDA has an aggressive accrual process that keeps the books open until the early part of
August before the auditors come in. Historically PDA shows underruns in operating expenses
during the first couple of months of the FY.

Given the condition of the Portsmouth Fish Pier there were no fuel sales (now and the
foreseeable future). Not only is it a loss of sales but an avoidance of the cost of fuel.

With respect to fee revenues, golf fees represented Just over 63% and then golf
membership fees. The success of the Golf Course is through golf fees (non-member play) being a
significant portion as PDA moves forward throughout the year.

PDA staffing is at 154 employees as of the end of July of which there are 61 benefited
positions (16 salaried and 45 hourly benefited positions); the number of employees as of today
being 157. Lamson asked where PDA is at with its seasonal employees; Irv indicated 68 seasonal
employees as of the end of July. As of September 19", seasonal employees is 71, but in the
process of ramping that down.

The organizational chart incorporates the IT Director (authorized position) and Assistant
Director of Finance (transitional position) that have been discussed over the last several months.
Both positions are posted and interviews for the Assistant Director of Finance have been
scheduled. Regarding the Airport, Paul Brean’s title has been updated and the Trusted Agent

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19,2019



position has been filled from within. The organization chart shows 61 filled positions and 5 open
positions.

Anticipate that May of next year will need to utilize the Revolving Line of Credit (RLOC)
due to the construction work activity with the terminal and runaway.

Enplanements through end of July are up over 35% (total of 79,748), pay-for-parking and
fuel flowage (which were both incorporated last year) and have contributed to the revenue stream
just over $800,000 for last year. Skyhaven had small activity and projecting an underrun for this
of approximately $57,000 and at this point no emerging trends.

Tradeport showed operating revenue / expenses of $1.1 million dollars.

Director Lamson asked about consumption of electricity for this year. Canner indicated
that an RFP had been put out last year and it comes up for maturity in October. The current rate
18 just under 7.5 cents/kw hour, PDA is planning on rebidding it when maturity comes up. The
PDA consumption continues to be 3.3 million kw hours which remains consistent. PDA is in
constant communication with provider in an effort to obtain the best rate.

With respect to golf the operating revenues were higher than anticipated; the rounds of
golf played is approximately 7% ahead of last year (31,000 rounds) with the growth in the non-
member play. Fiscal year-end numbers for the simulators ($133,000) and Grill 28 ($1.9 million)
ended 6% to 7% above the previous year.

Port Authority is positive through July as operating income of $49,000 is less than
budgeted, but the timing differences affected the port.

* The Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) is a grant which had been received a number of years
ago in the amount of $810,000, dedicated to the fishing industry. With respect to managing it,
PDA received the EDA’s approval for its RLF plan. This is a big step as it has to be reviewed
every five years and PDA has been able to retain the funding relationship PDA has with the bank
(75/25). Meaning when a participant applies for funding 25% would come out of the RLF and
75% comes out of the Provident Bank. (Note: Canner incorrectly stated contribution percentages
as it is 25% funded from bank and 75% from RLF.) Previously there had been discussion that
those ratios might have to change but PDA was successful in getting them to remain.

2 Cash Flow Projections for the Nine Month Period Ending May 31, 2020

Through the end of May the impact of the terminal expansion and runway reconstruction
cost numbers are going to dominate our discussions during the fiscal year. During the next nine
months, looking under use of funds, looking at capital expenditures will total approximately $10.3
million which will be offset by grant money of $1.5 million. The pressure is close to $9 million
dollars on PDA’s cash flow to support the terminal projects. The terminal is underway and
anticipate signing the contract for the runway construction in the next couple of months. Given
that information it is anticipated that cash balances will decrease by approximately 86% in order

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



to fund those projects. Consistent with discussions, come late April / May we will need to utilize
the RLOC.

Division of Ports and Harbors DPH shows consistency (mooring season DPH receives a
significant amount of its revenues); chart further showing a decrease over this period which is
consistent with the cash flow of the Port.

VI Licenses/ROE/Easements/Rights of Way:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval and
Execution of License Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported the following:

A. Reports:
1. Right-of-Entry — NH DES to enter upon the premises located at 360
Corporate Drive for overflow parking

Mr. Mullen indicated that NH DES has been granted a Right of Entry to use the premises
located at 360 Corporate Drive for overflow parking on September 18, 2019 for use as overflow
vehicle parking as part of a joint training exercise with the U.S. Coast Guard.

/25 Right-of-Entry — U.S. Department of State — Active Shooter Training

Mr. Mullen indicated that the U.S. Department of State has been granted a Right of Entry
for the purpose of vehicle parking and command/response post staging, as well as to employ
traffic control measures (which may include road closure) on a portion of International Drive in
the vicinity of 207 International Drive (the National Passport Center), relating to an active
shooter training exercise involving first responder entities, to be conducted within the National
Passport Center at 207 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, and the National Visa
Center, 32 Rochester Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, on September 19, 2019, and for no
other use.

VII. Leases:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements,” Mr. Mullen reported on the following subleases:

A. Reports:
1. Sublease between 231 Corporate Drive, LLC and University of New
Hampshire

Mr. Mullen indicated that 231 Corporate Drive, LLC (f’k/a Kingsbarns, LLC) entered
into a sublease with the University of New Hampshire (“UNH”) for 2,643 square feet within the
leased premises at 231 Corporate Drive, for a period of sixty (60) months, with an effective date
of September 1, 2019. UNH will use the premises for classroom sand any customary accessory
uses. Director Lamson approved the sublease.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19,2019



s Sublease between One New Hampshire Avenue, LL.C and
PrimeLending

Mr. Mullen indicated that One New Hampshire Avenue, LLC entered into a sublease
with PrimeLending (“Prime”) for 1,968 square feet within the leased premises at One New
Hampshire Avenue, for a period of three (3) years, with an effective date of October 1, 2019,
Prime will use the premises for general office and related uses. Director Lamson approved the
sublease.

3. Shaines & McEachern Company Portsmouth — Exercise its second
five (5) year option to extend sublease to September 30, 2025

Mr. Mullen indicated that Shaines & McEachern Company Portsmouth has exercised the
second of four (4) five (5) year options for property located at 282 Corporate Drive to extend its
sublease to September 30, 2025.

VIII. Contracts/Agreements:
In accordance with Article 3.9.1.1 of the PDA Bylaws, Mr. Mullen reported as follows:

A. Reports:
1. aboutGOLF — Purchase of supplies for Golf Simulators

Mr. Mullen indicated that Director John Bohenko authorized the purchase of supplies for
the golf simulator in the amount of $3,192.00. Director Bohenko granted his consent to this
request on August 19, 2019.

NOTE: Director Bohenko arrived to the meeting at approximately 8:25 a.m.

B. Approvals:
1. aboutGOLF — Three (3) year subscription

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to enter into
an agreement with aboutGOLF in a total amount not to exceed $16,500.00 for the purchase
of a three (3) year subscription for the three (3) Pease Golf Course simulators for use at the
Pease Golf Course; all in accordance with the memorandum of Scott DeVito, PGA General
Manager, dated September 5, 2019.

In accordance with the provisions of RSA 12-G:8 VIII, the Board justifies the waiver
of the RFP requirement based on the following reasons:

¢ The aboutGOLF hardware and software is unique to that company; and

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



* Going out to bid for software options would require PDA Golf Course to have
to purchase a new company’s hardware to operate its system.

Note: This motion requires 5 affirmative votes.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by roll call vote (7-0) for; motion carried.
2. 14 Person Passenger Bus - ADA Compliant

Director Lamson moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to enter into an
agreement to purchase a fourteen (14) passenger bus that complies with the Americans with
Disabilities Act (“ADA”) from Alliance Bus Group Inc., College Park, GA (Branch in
Hudson, NH) for a price not to exceed $71,997.00; all in accordance with the memorandum
of Ken Conley - Fleet Manager, dated September 10, 2019,

Discussion: Lamson indicated it is needed; Mullen indicated that the current bus is 18
years old and it was used when PDA received it. Smith indicated that he doesn’t have a problem
with approving the request. However, he asked if any dealership had been approached about
donating a vehicle that would be in compliance. PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport Director Paul
Brean (“Brean”) indicated that PDA did work with local vendors but didn’t ask for a contribution;
however, if he would like to hold off PDA could make some calls. Smith doesn’t want to hold it
as it sounds like bus is needed. Wondered if prior to the money being expended local dealers could
be approached to see if they may have surplus vehicles on the lot -- it would be a tax write-off for
a dealership.

Director Bohenko (“Bohenko™) asked if the State bid list had been reviewed for vans, the
City uses the State bid list for cars. Brean indicated that a 14 passenger was not recognized on the

State bid list.

Lamson indicated that Brean covers every angle; Brean further stated that Ken does a great
job on fleet and values a dollar.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
IX.  Signs:

In accordance with the “Delegation to Building Inspector: Consent and Approval of
Minor Revisions to Existing Signs” Mr. Mullen reported as follows:

A. Reports:
1. Purchase of Optima Bank by Cambridge Trust Bank

Mr. Mullen reported that PDA has approved a minor signage change to replace the Optima

Bank signage on the building, the directional sign and the monument sign at property located at
20 International Drive. This change is a result of the recent purchase of Optima Bank by

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19,2019



Cambridge Trust. Director Loughlin granted his consent to this request on September 3, 2019.

X. Executive Director’s Reports/Approvals:
A. Reports:
1. Golf Course Operations

Golf Course General Manager Scott DeVito (DeVito) indicated that aeration of the greens
has been done and they are fully recovered. A new fairway aerator was brought in at the
beginning of the year so staff is working on preparing the equipment and scheduling aeration of
the tees and fairways. As indicated by Canner the first couple of months of the season the golf
course had record back-to-back months (10,000+ rounds each month) for a total of just under
21,000 rounds for the months of July and August. Still have twelve (12) events (ranging from 40
to 120 players) left with the last being held on October 19", Prepping the applications for season
pass renewals which will go out by the end of the month.

2. Airport Operations
a) Portsmouth International Airport at Pease (PSM)

Brean indicated a robust month at the terminal, roughly 8,500 enplanements for the
month bringing total to roughly 90,000 for the year. Summer destinations panned out well
although Savannah was a little light on its load factor from the reverse market side of things. A
meeting is scheduled in October with Allegiant to emphasize the success of the reverse market in
the summer months and the summer destinations at the airport. Brean is optimistic that PSM
will have another destination to a unique spot next summer.

Fuel flowage was very strong for the month of August (approximately 1.1 million
gallons) primarily based on the heavy operations with the Antonov, Military and Atlas troop
flights.

Revenue parking for August, which is usually quiet, was somewhat strong with
approximately 780 passengers parking their vehicles for more than five (5) days at the airport
terminal. Since January, PSM revenue parking is above forecasted budget.

On the security front, PSM has been awarded an Explosive Trace Detection (EDT) X-ray
machine for the baggage screening facility, currently the PSM TSA team hand checks bags.
Brean indicated that the PSM team has been justifying the need for this piece of equipment for
approximately three years and anticipates having the ETD in place before the heavy season
starts. Bohenko asked the value of the equipment if it were purchased; Brean indicated millions.
Brean further stated that it is in a crate in Texas awaiting shipment here.

Brean spoke with the branch manager for the new car rental concession (Deal Rent-A-
Car) who indicated that 60% of its customers were not planning on booking a vehicle when they
arrived at PSM (were going to either Uber, Lyft or use an offsite car rental company). This was
good news as this indicates this is money that was not getting captured in the terminal, meaning
they are attracting the customer last minute.

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



b) Skyhaven Airport (DAW)

Brean indicated that there isn’t much to report at Skyhaven. He has been in discussions
with some flight schools about utilizing Skyhaven as an inflight cross country training classroom.
This would be for students that come out of other airports and have to go to a cross country
destination and they could be welcomed at Skyhaven to do the inflight briefing.

¢) Noise Line Reports *

There were a total of four (4) noise inquiries in August, 2019. The four (4) inquires were
for rotor-wing aircraft (from two residences - one from Portsmouth, NH and the other from
Kittery Point, ME). The inquiry from Portsmouth was concerning a helicopter doing aerial
photography and the Kittery Point inquiry was that it was flying too low over the harbor.

Bohenko asked if one morning there were F16s at PSM; Brean affirmed. Brean further
indicated that was a squadron seeking shelter from the hurricane down south. They were serving
a mission and came up to Portsmouth and then crossing over to Atlantic. However, there had
been an issue with the aircraft carrier they were destined for so they had to divert back. Brean
stated that usually the Guard is good about providing information to the communities but this
was an emergency so had little notice. Bohenko mentioned it was early morning; Lamson
indicated it was approximately 3 a.m.; Brean stated that the F16s were fueled up for the mission
so they were full of fuel and had to use its afterburners.

Bohenko further questioned about several touch and goes; Brean stated that was for a US
Air Force 747 with blue and white colors. Bohenko asked if it was for training; Brean affirmed.

Lamson asked if Brean would relay to the Colonel at the Guard that it would be nice if
there was communication when training takes place so people would understand; Brean indicated
that the Guard is typically good about getting communications out to the public of scheduled
activity, but he will relay the request.

Smith indicated to Lamson that there were no noise complaints in July (Lamson had not
been in attendance at the July meeting).

B. Approvals:
1. Bill for Legal Services
Director Levesque moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors authorizes the Executive Director to expend funds in the total
amount of $26,635.18 for legal services to the Pease Development Authority.
Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

XI. Division of Ports and Harbors:

Geno J. Marconi (“Marconi), Division Director of the Division of Ports and Harbors

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19,2019



10

(“DPH”), reported on Division activities, and the reports before the Board represent the current
business at the DPH.

A. Reports:
1. Right-of-Entry — Rye Harbor Marine Facility, Charter Boat M/V
Utopia

Marconi indicated that Captain Jack Farrell with the Charter Boat M/V Utopia requested
to enter into a Right-of-Entry for use of the facilities at the Rye Harbor Marine Facility in
association with its charter business from September 6, 2019 to September 30, 2019. Marconi
further indicated that this is a contracted boat that works for Star Island and operates out of the
Portsmouth dock. There was an event coming up and the charter boat out of Rye Harbor that
goes to Star Island couldn’t handle it. In order for the Utopia to go to Rye Harbor (they were
getting paid by the people on the boat, not by Star Island) it was necessary to have them get a
Right-of-Entry and provide a certificate of insurance.

Director Allard asked how the wall (Portsmouth Fish Pier) is coming. Marconi indicated
that it is no longer moving; pilings were installed on an angle and an angle iron was welded to it
which stopped the movement of the wall. When the cooler was built in the 70s it had two doors
in it; in the 80s when the Fishermen’s Coop had the lease of the property they added on to the
building and removed the second door (covered over with plywood) facing towards Peirce
Island. Found a company out in Minnesota and purchased a 10” x 10’ cooler door so the second
door has been opened back up and the cooler door hung. It is an inconvenience to the fishermen
as they have to go around the building to get to the hoist to put the bait on the boat but it is the
safest thing to do. Allard further asked if it is a safe condition; Marconi affirmed. Marconi
indicated where they are working is safe, that they have continued to monitor the hole because
the dirt in the hole (prior to the pilings being put it) had been washing out, it seems a little more
stable now. DPH’s concern now is the meter on the corner of the building.

B. Approvals:
1. Burge Dock — Guide Pile Replacement

Director Allard moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to accept
the proposal from Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors to remove and replace the six
(6) guide pilings at the Burge Wharf, located on the south end of the Market Street Marine
Terminal, in an amount not to exceed $11,500 as an emergency expenditure from the
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund; all in accordance with the Memorandum of
Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 11, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

25 Initial Proposed Schedule of Fees: Commercial Piers and Associated
Facilities

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



11

Director Torr moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of the Initial Proposed Schedule of Fees:
Commercial Piers and Associated Facilities, and authorizes the Division Director to take
any necessary or recommended action in furtherance of this matter; all in accordance with
the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 10,2019,

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
3. Right-of-Entry Extension - Juliet Marine

Director Bohenko moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors at its meeting of May 16, 2019, approved a Right-of-Entry
(ROE) to Juliet Marine Systems, Inc. (“Juliet”) for the use of the facilities at the Market
Street Terminal for the purpose of storage and loading of a vessel; Juliet is now requesting
an extension of the original ROE through April 30, 2020.

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and
consents to the extension of Juliet Marine Systems, Inc.’s Right-of-Entry; all in accordance
with the memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 10, 2019.

Discussion: Director Levesque indicated that the cadets, on the Eagle Tall Ship, were very
impressed by this Ghost boat located at the Market Street Terminal. Marconi indicated that you
can watch how the Ghost boat moves over the water if you Google it, a YouTube video comes up.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

4. Right-of-Entry Extension - Riverside and Pickering Marine
Contractors at Market Street Terminal for Buoy Project

Director Loughlin moved and Director Lamson seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors at its meeting on May 16,2019 was a Right-of-Entry requested
by Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors for use of % (one-half) acre of laydown area
and non-exclusive use of the Barge Dock at the Market Street Terminal for the “Buoy
Project”, Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors is now requesting an extension of the
original Right-of-Entry through December 31, 2019;

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and
consents to the extension of the Riverside & Pickering Marine Contractors Right-of-Entry
to allow more time for completion of their project; all in accordance with the memorandum
of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 10, 2019.

Discussion: Marconi informed the Board that it is the Healy Wave Energy project. This
is an offshore buoy that will be floated to the permitted aquaculture site UNH has south of the Isles
of Shoals; the concept is as the floating buoy goes go up and down with the waves there is a piston
inside that generates electricity. It is an experimental buoy that was developed privately by Healy.
If you drive over the Sarah Long Bridge you see the buoy sitting up about 40 in the air. It is an

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19,2019



12

interesting project which is also affiliated with UNH. Levesque asked what the visual would be;
Marconi indicated that what is seen on the dock is the floating part of the buoy. It sits deep in the
water making it too big to put in the water at the Terminal so it will be placed on a barge, taken
out to the location, picked up and set it in the water. It sits about 35° to 40° up in the air; it is an
experimental offshore energy generator.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
S. Right-of-Entry - Hampton, New England EcoAdventures

Director Levesque moved and Director Allard seconded that the Pease Development
Authority Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director to complete
negotiations and to execute a Right-of-Entry with New England EcoAdventures (“Eco”) for
use of an existing 26’ x 20’ building located at Hampton Harbor Marine Facility for use as
a retail sales building for ticket sales and souvenirs in support of Eco’s charter business; all
in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Geno J.
Marconi, Division Director, dated September 10, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

6. Final Proposal Pda 500 Rules

Director Torr moved and Director Levesque seconded that in accordance with the
provisions of RSA 12-G:42, X(c¢) and pursuant to RSA 541-A regarding “[t|he terms,
conditions, and procedures under which the division shall issue, suspend, revoke, deny, or
approve permits required under this chapter for moorings and state-owned slips”, the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of the filing of the Pda 500
Rules, Moorings and Anchorages, Final Proposal - Annotated Text and authorizes the
Division to file the Final Proposed Rules with the Director of the Legislative Services
pursuant to RSA 541-A:12.

Further, the PDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Division Director to take
any necessary or recommended action in furtherance of this matter, all in accordance with
the Memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director dated September 11, 2019.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.
7. Class 1I Initial Pilot Appointment — Nicholas Robert Dawes

Director Loughlin moved and Director Torr seconded that in accordance with Code of
Administrative Rules PART Pda 305.02 Pilot Requirements for Initial Appointment as
Class I or II Pilot, the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors approves, and
authorizes the Executive Director to approve, the initial pilot appointment application of
Nicolas Robert Dawes as a Class II Pilot, 150 to 10,000 gross tons, for the pilotage area
landward of the line of demarcation including, but not limited to, Portsmouth Harbor and

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019



13

the Piscataqua River up to and including Dover Point, New Hampshire; all in accordance
with the Memorandum of Geno J. Marconi, Division Director, dated September 17, 2019.

Discussion: Marconi apologized for the late item; stated that Portsmouth Pilots has only
two Class A pilots and an apprentice pilot - working his way up. Earlier this week Marconi was
informed that one of the Class I pilots will be having surgery. Captain Dawes has enough hours
for a Class II pilot and so he has submitted his application it has been reviewed to make sure it
meets DPH requirements and the regulations call for this to come before the Board. Captain Dawes
has done a great job and before he started with Portsmouth Pilots as an apprentice, DPH saw how
he handled things on the river and he is talented.

Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote for; motion carried.

XII. New Business:

XIII. Upcoming Meetings:

Port Committee October 03, 2019 @ 8:00 a.m.
Audit Committee October 15,2019 @ 8:00 a.m.
Board of Directors October 17,2019 @ 8:00 a.m.

Residential Housing Commiittee October 17,2019 @ TBD
All Meetings begin at 8:00 a.m. unless otherwise posted.
XIV. Directors’ Comments:
XV. Adjournment:
Director Lamson moved and Director Allard seconded to adjourn the Board meeting.

Discussion: None. Disposition: Resolved by unanimous roll call vote for; motion carried.
Meeting adjourned at 8:55 a.m.

XVI. Press Questions:
There were no questions from the press who attended the meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

PABOARD MINUTES\2019\9-19-19.docx

Pease Development Authority Board of Directors September 19, 2019






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Tuesday, October 15, 2019

AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Time: 8:00 A.M.
Place: 55 International Drive
Pease International Tradeport
Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801
I. Call to Order (John Bohenko)
II.  Acceptance of Committee Meeting Minutes: April 15, 2019 *

ITII.  Public Comment

IV. FY 2019 External Audit (Irv Canner, Renee Bishop, Robert Smalley
and Katherine Balukas)

A. Reports
1. Management Representation Letter *
2. Executive Summary of Audit Engagement *
3. Auditor Required Communication Letter *
B. Approvals (Neil Levesque)* +
1. Certified Financial Statements *
2. Uniform Guidance Audit of Federal Awards *
V. Next Meeting- TBD
VI.  Director’s Comments
VII. Adjournment

VIII. Press Questions

* Related Materials Attached
Proposed Motion






=T
T

INTERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Torr:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of the amendment to Lonza Biologics, Inc.’s (“Lonza”) site plan
for 101 International Drive to allow Lonza to expand its existing freezer
building with a one-story addition of similar construction of approximately
forty-nine hundred (4,900) square feet, all in accordance with the terms
and conditions set forth in the memorandum of Maria J. Stowell, P.E.,

Manager - Engineering, dated October 10, 2019 attached hereto.

NARESOLVES\2019\Lonza Concept (Freezer) 10-17.doex

i TAKING YOU THERE

teRselev.erg






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <+t

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager, Engineering U(k‘«,ﬁb
Date: October 10, 2019

Subject: Freezer Expansion at 101 International Drive (Lonza)

Staff recently met with representatives of Lonza Biologics, Inc. (Lonza) regarding an
expansion of its approximately 4900 square foot freezer building at 101 International
Drive. Lonza constructed the freezer in 2012 and now has a need for additional capacity.
The expansion would be adjacent to the existing freezer located in the rear of Lonza’s
original building and would be of similar size, shape and construction materials.

Attached are a floor plan showing the addition in red and a photo showing the existing
freezer and the proposed expansion area. Because the area is currently paved, there would
be no new impervious surfaces constructed for the building. However, there may be a need
to reconfigure the driveway resulting in an increased pavement area. We will work with
Lonza’s engineers to explore treatment of stormwater runoff for the roof of the new
structure and provide adequate treatment for any new pavement.

We believe that the freezer addition is appropriate for this location. If approved by the
PDA, Lonza will develop plans and apply for Site Review Approval through the
Portsmouth Planning Board.

Please present the attached plans to the PDA Board of Directors and request approval of
the 101 International freezer building addition as conceptually shown.

NAENGINEER \Board Memosi2019'\Lonza Freezer docx

TAKING YOU THERE






LONZAa

PROJECT 5147

ITE 100

721 ARBOR WAY, SU
LUE

BLUE BELL, PA. 19422
9345.01

090CT2019

ASK

DATE;
080CTI018

SITE PLAN

PRELIMINARY
NOT FOR CONSTRUCTION

- 101 INTERNATIONAI DRIVE

A SITE PLAN













6T0Z ‘LT ¥390100
ONILITW S, HOLDIIA 40 AUVO04d

6T0C ‘TE LSNONV DNIAN3
dOId3id HINOW OML FH1 404
130d3d TVIONVYNIH 0202 Ad

ﬂ




(6997E) Z1E ¥ 91€ AWOINT ONLIVHIAO 13N

[54] NOTIVIDFHGI0 LISNBNY-AING 5300
(N Bels 6T4E A4 AL

i 0 SR
ASNESXT ANV (AWOINT)

182 (65) i e FHO CATO0W JINLINYLS

AHYNIWD3Y JONVHNSNY HLTVAH -
b16'Z z9 CoT'Y £91°1 AWODNT SNLLYNILO ¥3
EZEET  (68) 8OE'T [ 14 ) =T -
gacT Z8) 76T 037 (o4 2] WHARLD TIY . o ;

Uy 6°E A HIMOT
. N LOWOM S1S0D ONILIvYdd0  *
z (6 rds SR

o0 Hiya)

o l 8t L SHNTANAS TENCISSIHOH] 5501 -u\u A0 N ddd AR IS0
SHIYS TaME N

Ldirsd ONY Sid "

v (053 ant {9 29%at) SETLTILLA
. (2 290 41T LY SINIWAY
G6CT 17 217 eEy CINV TWRHNE
=, . IINYNRLNTYIA
E7I°E L 79¢ LA 1 SHELITE Yod ONY SONITTNE
) . . , , (58 eINY 77 b ho) i
8L Loz T DEZT SN SHOTAMAS EINNCSHE
SYENTEXA ONLLYHIAO -
Rp—— ———— ey (& LN -y
ZETOT {5E} 60V°E 887 SHANNIATY SNILLVHALO 0 80 A8 HIMOT

“SANNIATH DNLLYHILO0 =

13900 JONVINYA 13sang WY
HYIA HYIA #va 11va
INEWNHND INZHBND 01 UVEA o1 AVIA

SISATYNY 3DNVIYVA 13D5any

(5.000 %

610T ‘TE 1SNONYV
ONIAN3 dOId3id HLINOW OM1 FHL ¥0d
. SASNAdX3 ANV SINNIAIY 40 LNIWILVLS A3LVYAITOSNOD




[G53)) 96T
[}
e ¥
B 0T
AL
FONVIHYA S5O0
IAnane aaudsanyg

57 (E5) 1ora
LT b [
h
85 74
fara R¥y
$902 FINVIHYA
TWNLOY 1asnanyg

TBEE

T4 6 Wi 13N ~HIHLO MY

ASTANYHOIU AW

SET L 4109

ANKNIAIY

HEE £ NOISSIONOD

‘ (MO 10 375)

(75} SIS 139N

. (L ¥PaY 110 375)

6 5 SIONINTY 334

SATLIIOVA

16001 (s1) 56'% £6 JO TV INTY
Lanang HVA 13bang TYILLDY

Wy WEFA 2iwa AL

INTURD ANEUYEND 0L ¥viA Oi W¥ia

{5,000 &}

SIS

agLInang

it 4

SIS

TNV

LU0dAIY NEAYE LIS
MO A0
HOSHYM T44

A3ld HSTS HANDWES HOd

SISATYNY T30

FIVEE O 3y AR Saniaa I a3

6T0Z ‘TE 1SONNY

ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW OML IH1 JOd
SANNIAIY ONILYVYIHO A31LVYAITOSNOD



™~

3]

b

oL

3

13

G

Mg

Jib

NIV AN

ONIETINIDN

TN

138

6I0C 'O ¥IGWILITS 40 St

(SNOLLISOd A3 7TI4) SISATYNY 44V.1S INFHMID

BETL
SI6'T

8¢

A07"1

LaAndng
HYiIA
INFHEMD

i

FONVIHGA
HVIA
ARTANT

0821

bEs

1350

FI¥A 0L

WA

SLHINTEG
FONITHS

569
SATINYIS
TINNOSYITd

AVNIDY
3L¥< Ol

6T0Z ‘TE€ 1SNONVY

ONIAN3 dOId3d HLINOW OML 3H.L Y04
y S1I43N3d ANV S3IDIAY3IS TINNOSHId A3.LYAITOSNOD



1SISSV
NIHay

YAV
217

INVLNNODDY
T1108AVY

NYWNF100
NYSNS

(2) Nty

WALSAS 1T

NOSH3LLYd
FSUC

LNVLNGIODDY
HO¥NgS
ZA0E NOY

(1) BONVNIy
A0 BOLIINIA
ANVLSISSY

ADNVNIY
40
WOLDINIY
YINNYD
AYT

1SISSY MEIWaY

HOLYHIA0

aT1aH0uvY
YNYT
YALSVI UOTIVI
NOTNVH
NIAZN
1SISSY
NIWaY
sioang  ALTNnDIS
Adne  H3DNITION
Ny
istggy  MIunoTs
N 7S
noL
WITIUIHL
Vangug
WILSVIY
aoTIVH
S10HITH Lency
uIDUNwE  LHYUD e
SNOLLYHII0 | DINYHIEY
1Sissy INYLSTSSY
wHEyy AT TMYIDM
VITAL ety
HADYNI
SMOILY Ty HI9YNVI
YALSVIY FIACTGNY ANINAZINDE
mh__www«,wﬁo 10G9YH 33500 V.L3dd0D ATINGD
NOSHEANY LTHAM  JONLLYVMG YANVL
ADVaL
WOLITUTG
LTHOM ADOTONHDL
e NOTLYHHG-Ap
40 Yo103urg
INODUYI
R
¥oLdTuIG
LYOJUTY Ny
WOLITNIG
ALfdaa

NVIYG INve

ININGTNDS 15¥s5v
TN Hxway
NILSOIL 1byd
MIAOY
I3 SISSY
ONVTAHINE) NVIDIYLDTYz
i
G dONSIy
YOSIAYIANG AL
ONENVIID SIELTIIVY
ANVHLYag AOCAMNYD
EXETS IKvVa
SINIWIAYA HOLVH3d0 03dS 540
KOLION T LNINGINO NYhaw
UOLWHI0 nmot
YOLVHIIO 23dS 540
INBRAINGA ANAWdInDa YITITW Lany
1000 HLYOMEOOM 2345 Sdo
g09 VHYa HINONOGIW
E YIGRYS J1dS Sd0
18y AL
. TR . LUVH WAL
B JHEAWAINDI By~
LNTNDINOT 2745 530
SNITIOD SINSOVANVE =
L1008 ag J3dS $dO
YOLYUAJO DISMONLIM
INARATNOL YOLYYAAD D74S Sd0 NYaa
S kot FLiad SAATUONOD
WHOL AGYHD "IN AN -
TNOL GLENLT MISVHO
. IRELY
awm_mwm. $d0 ava
H0Lwu340 HOLHIGO Sooblds
INBRATADH o3 Harog
MOLSUVE NKRAG H1YSCY
YILY
SRE0) ATUOD ¥IDWNVEL
YIDYNYLY
UADVNVIA ALTUNDIS LUOHIY
HONYRILNIVI YYAFLLOG
NNV STV Tag ek
ANVISISSY
EEY]
TEINLO
INTTAVY
TASNNOD
TVEANTS ALNggy
JOSNDINAIG
ANOH.LNY
TESNNOD
TvaaIND
HOLIIYEG FATLNDANG A3HONIH
NITINK aiAvg e
| i

15185y
NIWGY

ANIVINGA
Hing

YANT
WNONIANS
NVH3IgHs
a3gve

HIADYNYIY
Ld3acouqg

SALVIW BiTw

UADYNW R
DNIUAANIDNT
TIERMOLS
VIV

DENYHIW
aToNgY
aava
NYWINO4
SaNnoun
35Levag
IAva
usdns
ISHNOD
15155%
[ NOUVD
S HYAY
4705
vod
WYRYaAC
NEW
0¥4 Vo4 TN
asary weL asaN0d

V3aHI NOLTS

HADYNW I
2 EIER)
ISUNOD
4109
QLiA3Q
L1008



S9CT £42)

5T (@)

3

058 {6E)
139aNE  EINVINYA
HVIA ERERS
INZWAND  INFWNND

60E &b

(i3] (52
£L C
571 05
1anang SONVINVA
UVIHA HYIA
INZUAM ANFHUND
(5000 $)
9

2

LI3oang
E e
01 ¥v3i

rai

ignang
EAL ¥
0L HY3A

!

2]

RLAS L
A1V
OL¥VYIA

35YaT
e 4709

AATIONL LSY00

FUTINYH YW
4109

1Ean-

¥IHIO
TV

AN ~HIAM IO Y

LISV TN X

SIOINYIS
IWNOISSIH0Nd

917

8171
A0
1asana

UVIA
ANTHHND

6aE

135ang
HY3A
INIYUND

(0%}
E)

{013

)
(it}
HONVINVA

HYAL
INIHMND

| =

b N
—

(5

FONVYIHVA
Hvia
ANIEEND

9ot

9 i INY ATt
£7 E
TSSO
b 1159
AWM
e MDA
1anang WLV
EI% 14 ] ALY
DL EVIL 01 HVIA SALLITLL)
B8iT 6EC
4 8 LAN-#IML0 1Y
S R
SASMEd W
1)1 Wl Ndino
21 T
AANYHISRNT
_r.ﬁ.,._ v ..rH“ _
13anang YNV .
Jiva EIRTs INLL VS ISTNIWGY
OL¥YEA 0L HvEA NV 1

6T0C ‘TE 1SNONVY

ONIAN3 dOId3d HLINOW OML JFHL ¥04
S3ASN3dX3 ONILVIIdO YIHLO d3LVAITOSNOD



L

j£:14 (68) 42 §49)

1343 b MWL BAWIL0
ONY IWOONT
HINOWS 1204 § e rat 3 '
LY T 2 A ¥ - ;-‘ L}
40 D A3 833 » (1 1S3UIINT
D TH -uNYY ASNIdX3
SOE : LNGCIACA aTE {15] P LSTHAINT
139ana ETAE]
MEL i 1300ng  ENVINVA WNLOY
UYL EVETS i39ane v
FSNIIXT LSTNIINT RESER Filgh LNAHHMD FLV Of oL
HVIA HVIA

(=000 %

6T0C ‘I€ 1SNONV
ONIAN3 dOI¥3d HLNOW OML 3H1 04
ISNIdX3 (IWODINI) ONILVYIdONON d31vdITOSNOD




(43 TEER

688

TWiGi
AOVHL NOTIUO
SNTEXTTHS

HOLYH

CINM AU ST
SNV DNTATOA A

LAWYV
2OHEVH

SN TYHINED
SHOEHYN

UNY Si¥0d

40 NOISIAIC

MOHDIST INYNTL
SONE TEHENIE
ALTHOHLNY
INSWdOTEAZU
ASYiHd

(5.000F

VIV
SUINITVAINDI OGN Y HEVD

a1t

89%,
gt
7907

BTET
TE 2NV

S0

(zi 6102
OE NN

NOTLISOE 13N W01

ORUIDIHLSHIN

SNOZ IAVHL NDITHOH
NI HOMYH
TN NVIO™ DRIAG AT
0= CELRLLSIH

SLA55Y LIV NI LNGWESIANT 13N
NOLLISOd 130

H340 FNOTSH]
SHOUNGSIY
40 SMOTANT a2d83430

SALLIEVTT VLG

(ere 2900 SALITHEYT L 33aHL0
ALY 5340 7 STISNSd 138

SALLINEYIT INJZENONON
SALITTERVT) LINEHErD T 200

SILLTHEYTI L7 -NOLLHOd LNSHEND
ALTIEIVA D075 SN TOASY

SONSASY GANUVENG

MOLLONHLSNOD -ATavaYd SINAODTY
TIAVAY SINNOD Y

SILLIITTYET INFHEND
SALLIAVI

2609

0EP'T

i

A7)

566
ht

L&

81

H10T
T any

oee's

(1) 6102
0% NN

g3 [ HEASNAd
SADUNOSIN 40
SMOTLIND QaYEII2
BIHSEY TV 0L

TraAlls FE0M) BSIN0MN
8T NOLLNHLSNGD

O U HE ek
GHY SINLOTING 0N

S1ISSY TYLIdVD

SIASSY (D HLSE WIOL

L-in
SATHYATLDHY SN Y

SINT AN QnY HEYD

S1358V GFLOTHASI N

SEAEEY LNHHND L0

STASSY HoMli:

[t

NIy s 3%
SENITAING ANY 45V

S13SSV INTHHMD
Sl3ssv

NOILISOd 13N 40 SINIW3ILVLS A3LVAITOSNOD

CMITAIY LIany TYNYILXT TYNIS O 1930805 (T)



aalLiawens
AINNOWY

62
i
S5

Ti
ot

Viid anda
FONVIVE

{s.000 %}

FAS G

pra s

ELE e

FLVEG 0L FUYHS
UIATI Y Fd

o
e

76€

AI¥4 0L
UBANFINY

[
005’7
ELE

GBS

advmyv
INVHE

L2300¥4
W10

41va
TWAGHddY

NOLLYLD By ddlel MIVIM Ml
A0 FYE - LNFWIDV Y YNOLLNG M0
SHYMLHOS SNV LLRINDAS D804 3050 Hds

11040 o85) NOLIDMULSHOD
ASIVNIVEHO CRY INSWIAY Iy L M

25 GV NOISNVXT ONITN S YNIWHLL Wsd
L2EMOdd AYMINYL SN TWNOT YR UTY -INSd
(19l 5017115 ONINNY I TYNTWHLL Wad

(09 J1v?) N
{1 A0WEY NDY

STHASNOTG
HLSHD s

(85 drv) NOISIO 52-9T AVMNITH WSd

AWYN 1537044

610C 'TE€ 1SNONV 40 SY
SITAVAIIDIY TVINIWNYIAODYILINI 4O AUYVIWWNS



e Tl 73] #a7 i T

€] (7 1 g L0 DN YO AYd
163 AfE 196 A1V NEISHA L9 AYanT
PAEL 993 % T0ET {LNYHE-NON) NOTSKYAXE TWNIWHEL
LHOHHIY HINOWSLHOd
&1-TE-80 BISTOL (AT I ANIS SIUMLIGHNIdNZ ST-08-a0
iV HYEA NI INYd V3 (1) ay FWVN I5310%d
JONVIVE INIWXMND 13K QL ¥34SNYEL AWANINS IDNVYIVE

(s.000 3

SSAAUADOUd NI HIYOM NOILONAULSNOD 40 AAVIWIWNS

oL
TMINAIN 2TONY TYNYILXT TYNL OL 1230905 (1)



ANTHOVI WYELLS SOINHDALaaTA
FONVNILNIV

NOLIVHISINT=OY

163 @) b NIHDLDI ISNCHENTD

AS¥NOD 09

LHOdHIY NIAVHANS

61-1€-80 FEHD DIANIS STUNLIONIAXT  67-08-90
Ly WYIA Wi INVd HYIA (1) 1y FWVN [53roNd
FONYTYE INTEUND 1IN DL H3HSNTHL ANIY D JONVIVE
{s00n &

AOENRLINGD)

SSIUDOUd NI XYOM NOILONYLSNOD 40 AAVHNWNS

L
MITAIY LIGNY TYNNILXT 080 04 1030808 (7]



899°¢ I¥E av) S6E TZEe TVLIOL

¥oe'T 061 [§32) T0¢ FITT

T I1 : ALTRNDAS F0YHDAN
£ £ = £ (AOH) AGNES Tel A0 o
b 67 67 AW HATS BV
(9 Lk , Ly 374 (409 Gy CEINNING ddd
BT’y Iy : 111 w0t OO 39UV - INAWAOY 1d3 IVNOLLIN
(H4G) SHOBUYH ANV S1H0d 40 NOISTATQ

BT-TE-80 IONVHD SITANIS SIUNLIONIINT E1-0E-00

i uvaL W1 N Id HVIA (1) 1w JWVN 1597084
JONY 1Y H INZWRNT 1398 OLWHAENVHL INIHH S FONYIVE

C(s000 )

HAINNTLNGD

SSIUYO0Ud NI XHOM NOILONYULSNOD 40 AUVIWWNS

(4"
TMIIAIH LIGNY TYNYILXT TWNIF OL LIT08NS (1}



el

Had ML

Tel BTH GNY YOE IHL O TADYVHD £9%F Si ANBWAT UMY 40 NOTIYEOTIY ]

HLON

0Z0C A
NI aIve

16 T

a1 ez

HvA
WOsId

v THTHE
MEN A0 UVLS

bl g%
WYIL DNOT J0 I1NAIHIS

{2.000 §)

ALTIIEvYIm
56 g HOIS QanudOv

JUIHSdWYH
zs2 252 AIN 4O FLVIS

WYHDONd

AVO HLTVAH

FIHLLIY LSOd

JHIHSIWVYH

iRy ih M3AN 40 JLVIS

Y05t b

FLON TOHINOD

NOLLNTIOd

Halvm

“HLNOWSIHOd

911 . 9it 40 AL1D

ANa NOQILYO NOLLEGA
INAORY WAL ANIHUND
Wikl DNDT

6T0Z ‘T€ 1SNONV 40 SY
S3LLITIFVIT W31 9NO1



(80E®) 71t

ne's [

~
o>
Mo

BIE 74

IHE T

neaE'T

o

ASDaNd
HvAL
TS5

SONYTHYA
MV
LGN

(5,000 %)

TEL

L)
D
=

6T1S

b

FWOONY
DNILVH3Id0 L3N
NGIIVIDANd3a
ISHAdE =

ANY (AWORNTD)
SRILYESd0ONON

AWOTNT ONLIVEI60

HARIO TV

DNILYHIdO
SINNIATY
SHNILVE40

€£8°/8

TOE'S6

1350
HY=A
WIS

| 140dyIvY HLNOWS1d0d
6102 ‘TE 1SNONVY DNIANI AOo1d3id

27 em——

P —

VLYS INFWINVTINT

IINVIEIVA
UYL

o
™~

=

EAATY
O AV

QLT

ngi

AW
A1YQd
01 HY4

T89'8L LT0T
T1S'69 810T

L8E'EB  6T0T
J1¥a OL U9an

S ——

HAHLO i

I
M

ADYMOH End

OINTARY
AL AW

SINNLAIY
ONILLVAHSO

MDD

HLNOW OML FH1 ¥0d4 SNOILVY3IdO 40 LNIWILVILS



8O0°T] 7¥70 (001 (BRI (ZRa)
{Zi5) g #8) :)) HWOINT

L1074
ORIIVHII0 LEN e . - SN
EFA e E5E % {pot) (66775) {Les) HOOT &
[Aris S af B MNOLLWISEE490 — i (e6T°T) fhi) a0z Ad
ANV M”ﬂ%ﬂﬂ.m 0k 715 {42} (ew) 10T i
WL bﬁmn_ozoz - 5 . . .:s.—qw i
i i { r-| ’ Tad 2 i = P ¥
s g ¥ BNGONT SNELVIGIO WIOL  SGNNG  AVdEN  aNadxd vaEdo MO
47 " it [NVHD 1834 WLIdY) HSVD LiN
15 3 B L1 gr -5 ¥
FOT 607" e 0ToT Ad
I T SAOLAEIS TYNQISSTA0N A EiSE! IO RIOF A
- 2 ¥ SAlmN D 83 AVG HINOW a8
AN WLOL L MVEA LMD 1Nnd 40
8 5 LA SNOTIVE
TN R
b [1:3 i EE ot
SLL-EINGE ony : - . HIHLO Tiy
o £ of SHDTANAS THNNOSHE

£ £ 07 VS TN

SAINEANI )
DNILVHIdO . :...—ZE

T ) [t iz SALL

SINNIATY
e Z oF DRILYYIHO 1390nd IONVIHVA 1309 VROV
NI L AL 319 1iva SAANIADY
WNLOV WOISL NI OL¥VIL  OL #y3IA ONILYHIAO
ALY 0L
HYIA

LIOdUIV NIAVHANS
6T0C ‘TE LSNONV ONIANI AOIy3d !
HLNOW OM.L FHL 04 SNOLLVYIdO 40 INIWILVLS



B65°Z g

s/

SRR ¢

i ({7231

ozt 1

TOT T}

At

9.

tha g {Z%]

13mana SA0OMYTHYA
YA ML
VS AN

{5 e &S
(8,000 "w._

SET

QL9

ol

€9

BT

A35ang
AL

QL uvas

=]

AT
VY
qiva
O ML

AMWCINT
SRYIVH3IH0 13N
HOLIVIDIFE 30
ASNIENT

any (IWODNT}
ONLIVHI4ONON

dWOON:
HNILVYHILO

HAHLO TV

RIS LLOWOH
CIMEE ST L3N

SHLLTTELN

BATLYH W
SNV TTHERAE

ADNYALNTY I

SLT4aN38 CNY

SADTAHAL TARNOSHAG

SISHIdXE
ONIIVHISO

SANNIATA
ONLLYHI40

Y

iR

E=11

5

0ZTOE

fbt Vi
a6 I
o NETSL
1 MIAAVHLNS
1247 W54
&6 L0y
aT0% HMM QLA A

566’8

AZR'R

LASKINH

HVEA

W5

(%) vIi't
f i
(B85
JONYTHYA
HY A AT

LRTH TS

LSOO

04 #y3A

ATAI? SEINISIG A8 SISA TUNY NOLIIWNSNOD HMY

VAV

¥ HAHIG Ty

STV

400 LAY

WINLSY
11¥0 SANNAAIN
54 WYdA ONTIVHIGO

130d3avil

6T0Z ‘TE 1SNONY SNIANI dOIy3d
HINOW OML FHL 304 SNOILYY3IdO 40 INIWILVLS




(489}

08 ZIE i £4

Qi 85E. I3

000

FROON

ONULYHIDO o

GISATTV Y

LiND s8EKIENE

Ll

{2,000 %}

735 ¥z

iN 96

FASTINYHIM:I

SNDOSSE
HOLYT WS

SAIHSH S WIN

3544 105

=3Ma

NOISSIINGD

SANNIAIY
ONiIivy3IdO

Ob6

BRET

Aanang

JudTl 1
aYsA

LS E

0t

bt
FINVTIVA
MY
ANHHND

1174

A95dang
Ilva
O B34

PA 4o
ibs

8

| 1)

(42

]

WOV

liva
0L WA

FWGINI
DNTLVHILA0 (AN
NOTLVIDANd g
ASNIAXT

e (WoDNT)
DNILLYNIJONON

IWOINT ONLIVHIHO

NOLLOWO™d
GNY BNLLER YW

SFLLTILLN

FALLVAELSINIWOY
(R AT

ONNELLN Y
LAV
CINY SEINICYNS

SATAARH Ny
S Szl
53SKIdXT
SHNILVHId0
SANNIAIY
ONLLYAAHO

ISANOD 4709
6T0Z ‘TE 1SNONY ONIANI AOIN3d

HLNOW OML 3Hi 304 SNOLLYY3IdO 40 IN3IW3ILVLS



TEahe il

aIE0e LG S WOOH aNY Q00 77 87 xmm.__..—m _ZQ, Rl i - el wooe Lkl
. . £6L0% HIRW f “ :

OSY'67 FEnovat NOSYIS -SaNToH 310 ; o ]

£98°7TT GRH5TE AT INTWYNHNOL

EOE TF L0 *

259 BIR'G Ob-27 SIAOUD 760E HAGMBWN
- e HIEWIN
WZQEZW: SONNOY 10T HELIIREEY |

3SYNOD /&N

L L L

SIS SOETETT S S6TEET |
RS HEORE L L {NOSY3S) SANNOY YIFHIWNON / HIGWIW 6107

; ANfY
- L RLT G T SAVE) HIYY
D AV
- T1S'607 — ATEE IZEEE 4OFTE AW SANRON
919'%ET
) LY NOSYIS aLk ali
Ze0°51T RIOT |TLT Hl0¢
. \HYNHETs
- RevOE
3607 LHVINVE
- AHVNNYE . .
A ST HALWEDEN
£65°0T7 WIEWIDSA " B : , e
SLEET HAWIAON o ! | ————
> 59 HARWIACH 9 S LA ' ,
\ i e ———
» : T67E 4300
- 957 'bET WIHOLO0 m e L —
o - HIAWE LIS e e e ———
- 1b'9g1 YIAWLAHS AEWEL - . ,
PST6SE pETER 15n9nY 5eA e
; 5 L % A
ZogTIZ$  T0z'802 % e E Lo L
. Y SUNNAATY
07 07 SLOT Ad WOy L ) . . .
0707 34 707 Ad $SO¥D H ce - (NOSY3S) AV 1d 4709 40 SANNOY
8 TIHD ok

6T0C ‘TE 1SNODNVY 40 SY
a1 VLVAa OSNIDIIVIWHIONIE 3SAN0D 4709 AIN



i | 69 B
{5 ] 6 £51 HE!
HIRHY Ud.,-t.l Wi S i BOEEVH
MG HLAHHSLHOG NOLdisivii JAM

88

a5a 7at} SbT

SET T (£7t) [xia

<97 (7 7
gt 6 .
it n.a

<

(s.000 €

k43 ™0
HAMLO Ty

q8Y 541S 13n4

ot
L WHRD /ANy
SNOLLVLSIO3Y
DN

ANNEASY
NOISSIDNOD

STVLASY
AR

SINNIATH
DNLLVHA4O

"

R

ieC™
yo%

b

£

785

1300NH
41v0
0L ¥vss

(#2)

£0!

74
Hbt

1} 2}

bl

~

i

£ek

NNV
ALvO
25 HYEA

AWOINT d0O LN
NOLIVIDANE3d
ASNA4X3

ariy (asoar)
ONTIVHIJONON

FWOINT DNLLVYIAO

T3 WAL T

NOLLDWOY
TNV DML NSYIN

A LLMELSTN WY
CHVY T HEING

AOINVNELLMIV <IN
Wl RV S50

SHENIdXS
ONIIVHAdO

SHNNAATY
ONLLY Y30

(@315n41539NN) IYTHSAWVH MIN 30 ALTHOHLNY 1¥O0d
6T0C ‘TE€ 1SNONV HNIANI AOIY3d

- HLNOW OML JH.L 404 SNOILYY3IdO 40 INIW3ILVIS



o1

511

138ang
v
WIS

(5.000 &)

0¢Z

[(349]

(+11)
7l

.
FONV YA

INTENND

(@3L014153¥) FYIHSAWVYH M3AN 40 ALTHOHLNY 130d

@ (54 9)
i1
& {so1)
(3 871
ol |
135008 WLV
aLva 3Ly
0L WA 0, v

W GINE
DNILVEIdO 13N

NOLLVIDINEIU
IENZIXI

UNY (ZNGONT)
ONLLYNIJONON
SHOONT
ONLLYHIA0

dIHLO 1Y

SHDLAMES
IYNCIES3434d

SILLLLN

AALIVHLSINGAQY
CNY TVHINAS

AN

any

S IANEE AN
S AT TENNOSHIA

SISNIIX3
ONIIVHILD

SATINIAIY
ONILYHIdO

ONIDA3¥a
HOGUYH

1ABanNg
HY=LL
ToO51d

[ iy £
8 &% 4
i
(1) i
j ;
AINYTHYA SI901E WNLDY
MVHA A1V LT

IMAUHNG  OLWVEA 0L uvaA

AWDING
SMILYEIH0 LaN

NOILVIDINAIO

ASNHIXE

ONY (JWODNT}

ONLLYHISONON

FWOINI
ONILYHAMO

HAHLO TV

SOLLOWOYNA
ONY ONLLD YW
SHOIAHAS
TYROTSSHI0

SALLIN

ANLLY R LSINEAOY
ONY YD

AOMEINALLNTYIA
SHLLOHDV
ONY SORITTENH

SAOIAHSS

SASNIAXT
DNLLVHILO

SINNIAIY
ONLIVYIdO

SINOZ 30Vl
NOI

6T0Z ‘1€ 1SNONY DNIANI AOIy3d
HLNOW OML FH.L Y04 SNOILVYIdO 40 LNIWILVLS



FWOINT
SN O3ULSINDAS SN () ONILVYILO 13N
NDILYIOEHA30
HEMNAINS
OGNV (IWOINTY
. HNTIVHIJONON
— . (&) % -3iVH
- cH Eris NOLIVZTILLN ar 1 £ AWOINT ONTLYHHAD
TV LIS _
74 b
HAHIO T
i T BOC |
NOLLOWOMd
66 _ ANY ONLLINHYL
SHOAMES IWNOIEST 0N
£ 258 WHTL ONOT
Lo
T a4 LN SSLLTILR
) T
SNIGNVISING : S SN
SNVO1 ., s
Fa ¢4
QE3Isanhas SLIA3NAE Qe
4 967 SN TYHINE SADIAHAE 1INNOSH S
STONVIVE HEVD SISNIdXA
. . HNILIVHEH0
467-15-80 (1YBI0E-00-50
1V SR IVE ¥ TINVIVE SANNIATY
G 7 ONILYYIJO
NOILYITIONGDIY UNNd HVO T ONIATOATYH ANN3 NvO1
LTl AONYTHTA 13nang LDV ONIATOAIN
YA HYIA ETR L& va
WY AN 0L AIA OL MY

(s.000 &

(OANNLLIOD)

(G31014153¥) IYTHSAWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY LY0d
6T0Z ‘TE LSNONV HONIANI AOIY3d
& HLNOW OML 3HL 304 SNOILVY¥3IdO 40 IN3IW3LVIS

CMITAIY L1Ony TYNNTLINT TYNIS 02 L23caNs ()



567
(2065)

£97
916

6107
L ony

4]

b£572)

TRYTS

89¢
9is'6

(1) 610
T8 NNC

{s.000 ¢)

NOLLISOd 13N TV10OL

QALDTHISTHNN

ANOZ FOVHL NDTFHOH

ONIDAIHA HOEYH

QM NYOT SMTAOT AT

HOH RO

SISV VTSV KT LSIANT 13N
NOILISOd 13N

HEl / NOTSNEY
S530UNO53Y
40 SMOTINT C3yHa43a

SALLNIEY WAOL

SALLTIEVIT L] 23410
ALTTIAYTT 8340 / NOTSNE 13N

SHLLTTIEVIT INIBHNONON
SALLTTHYTT LNIMHMD Y100
SLLEVAYIT LT NOLLYOY §H3HND
ALTTDVE D07 ONEAI0ATY
JAONIATH CTIRIVAND

TIAVAY SINDODDY
TV SINNOIOY

NOLL RSO

SFLLTIAVI] INSEAUND

STLLITIEVIT

MITATY LXANY TYNYILXE TVNIS OL 1230808 (1)

LT

195’

L's ]

618

(1) 81oE
GE NNE

H3d) /20153
SEIYNOSIY A0
SMOT4L00 O3¥HII3d

S1ASSY Vil

(widgrs STV ST
NENGLEDMNELENCD

INE et
SINY SEINGETTNE TINVT

S13SSV W.L1dYD
SIFSSY OELDRLSEY T I0L

13N
S IEVAEDIY S1NN000Y

SINEWAINDE ONY HSVD
S13ASSY UALITHISHY

SAISEY INDHHND TYLOL
S1IASSY #IHLT:

A3m
TAVATEIDIY SINDODOY

SUNEFTPAINDE SGHNY HEY
SIASSY INJFHHND

SLLEIN ONY

SIAMIS ANNGSEI G SATLYEM
NOLIYVIVDSA LS00 A8 Q30330X3
HESE SYH D/ NOLLY WIS AnNESATY

2O A8 00T 6107 DE INNT
HOH ALTTIEYTT NOISNS G370V

183C ONY 5197 _mOx_u_ ] ..E«.,,.:
OV | 7_5_323?_ _mO;n_:P 3
NOTLYDTIS0 | i

(FUTHSIWYH M3IN 40 ALTHOHLAY 1¥0d oNTan1x37) NOTLISOd L3N 40 LNIWILVIS

ALTYOHLNV LIN3IWdOT3IA3IQA ISV



6208 €S NOLLYSOd 13N 19104

T . O9F o5Y H3d0 / NOTSN
, SNOZ 3avaL N ua? SEIUNOSIY 40
SMO1 T3
BNBERIE Hoadl; g 41N0 aFWAUIIIq
CINT NVOYT DNIACTADY . ,
¥ TVLOL
WO GRoTlS 3 TZoit LELN SLAS8Y IViOg
) £ 40 558’8
3 A SLISSY WATIVD NY 1S3ANT L3N
(klr-ors 3390} GO
NOLLISOd 1N 08yt (RO HENOLLONELSNOD
£ts F 3 H9d0 [ NOTENSA EAEINGTNGA
SITUNOSIY SBR SE'R CINY SONTATING SNV
40 SMCTING OIyH
O SACTING OINYadIa S1TSSY TVAIdVD
0Zo7 S987 SALITIIRY WLOL —
£90°F 577 : : QDTSN Lol
g0 46€ SALLTTIAVT] L7 §3HL0 A3N
096'T 96T ALTTIEYYY mmr_;  NOYSN LN SHTEVATEDAY SINNOJSY
SALLTIEVIT ININENONON - SLNTIVAINDS ONY HSVYD
3 nwdz: YH NN e.._.GHEJm M AH QIEHOSHY
5% 055 SHLLTOYT] ANINEND W01 S13SSY QHIOIYISIN

: FOTTUW & 0% T1-M NOITHIW
SHLELTEVI] LT -NOLLEG: IS &y 3 E:m NOISHYdXT Haid T4

. ‘ gesy s i | SUVAA WOSIY 15V NI $1500 103r0Nd
A4 D01 OMiA oA LOSTT SUESY LNIHYF WACL LNIWIAC HIWT :z{ NOLLYDLIAOW WILSAS
INIWIDYNYI 13 1VM WHOLE NI NGO 6T 3

" ]
N
|
-

w17 087 INNIAZY CANUvANG T 85 SI355Y ¥EHIO
€1 e VdsiNnoooy | 047 foz v Sihinooow WAIVD IS L mwﬁ__qﬁa
07 or YAV SINGODOY 2617 600! SINTWAINDI GNY HEYD NOLLYDT ¢
SALLTIIAVIT INTAHND S1ISSY LNIHHND SISATYNY ANV NOTSSNOSTa
8107 (1) 6107 SLLTWEEIT  &LOE (1) 6roz S13SSV
e DNy Q% N IE DNy 08 N

{5,000 ¢,

SANNL A3LOTHISTINN -NOILISOd 13N 40 INIWILVILS
JUIHSdIWVH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY 1¥0d

£

CMITATN LIONY TYNYTIXT TYNIS &1 L330anNs (1}



6102
TE DNV

ve

¥ NOILLISOd L3N Tv¥Ll0L

CRIDTELEFIND

¢ SHOZ JAVHL NDIRHOA

DDIHA HOGHY
(b

OT SNTATTIASY
WO 02UOTHLSIE

S1A6SY IWITIYD i P53ANT 139N
NOLLISOd (3N

NS
SADUNOSTH
40 SMOTENT aFHHE430

e STLITIEYT WAL

SALLTTIEYT THE
ALTTIEYT] 950 / NOTENA4 LN

SILLTTIGVIT INIHUNSNON
SALLTTIAVIT INIHRND 0l

SILLTTEVTT L1 -NOLLHO LNAEHND
ATV D07 OMINTOATY

ANNIAIM JEANYEND

NOLIDMALSNDD 318 Avd SINNODDY
TEeavd SINNODDY

SIALITTIUVIT] INIH S

(r) 6ror SILLTTIGVIT

ag N

{5,000 §

ANOZ 3AVYL NOIFYOd -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNIWILVYILS
FUIHSdWVYH M3N 40 ALTYOHLNY LY0d

CMIIATY LICGNY TYNYILXT TWNIH OL 1230805 (3}

BTOZT
TE BNy

A0 / HOISNA
SAUNOSTY 20
SMOT4LND gauyad3a

£ S194SSY TY 10l

(kExle. S} SEAu
NI NOLDMLSNGD

INWANOE
ONY SSNTITINE 7INYD

S1ISSV TYLIdVD

3 SISV QRDNUSTY WIOL

135
-“.,"m_._ﬂ«.,....—.u.._.m_zm.C.:..m.u.Juf.i.

1 SINITVAINGE ONY HEVD

S13SSY 031019 1S3%

SIIESY NI WLOL
S E LT E

13N
-ATEYATHDIH SIHNANDOY

SAINITAINDE SNY HEYD
S1ISSY INIHHOD

{1)BTI07 51355V

GE NDD

ANAWTHIOY 56T STU0DAS INYNAL
MAN "9TO7 T WHA0ID0 JALLF4

SHOONDA TVLINILOA
UDVRLLY G
QELVEEID07 ONTY




0T 98c

x4
™~

6TIT

TE DY 0L Mo

(5,700 %)

4

{1) syoz

NOXLISOd i3M TY1oL

GRDRLLS YN

v._mI TALIMISEY (=T (3
SIASEY TVLTAYD NI LSIANE 15N
NOILLISOd iIN

HOISNGd

SEADUNDSIY
40 SMOTINT G385

0R8 TEs

SHLLTTEY VLG

SILLTHAVIT LT MM

ATITEYI 8340 / NOISNSd 12
ROL [EVAS

STLLTMEVIT INTHUNDNON

SALLTUAYITT _LNSYEND Twics

VI 17 NOLLEG LHIHEND
AT D07 SNTATOATY
R N HYEND

NOLLOMELENOD -8V Ave SINNOIDY
TIEY AV SINMODDY

SHTITMEYIT ANT8UND

SITLTNIAYLT 6107

e g -
L O

ONIDAIUA YOHYVH -NOILISOd LIN 40 INIWILYIS |

H3d0 ¢ NENSN D
SHIUNOSHY 40
SMO 14000 C38¥II30

S13sSV IVLOL

Griaers 53 SEIINN
NT HOTIOMLLSNGD

S1358V 1V 11dvD

SEASSY TRIDNISTy W0

13N
“SAIEVAIRNEY SINNODOY

SINTTEAINDE GNY HEYD
S1ISSY GRiDINISAH

SLHSSY INTRMEND WLl
SIOSSY 30

=N
-FIEYATIDTH SINNOD IV

SLNITVAINDS ANY HSVD
S1ISSY INFNHND

S1358V

"SNOLLYHIO _LHOd GELOTH LSIUNN
HO FONYNI L HTVIN ONY SHIVE Y 46
SLYEI0Yd W LIdYD 35ENAINTAYN X :

JUIHSdWYH M3N 40 ALTNOHLNY 130d

CMIIATY LIGNY TYNYILXT TUNLS 3.2 A23CRNS (1)



87% ¥OT'T WOLLISOd L34 TVLOL

A3d0 f NOIENEd
_ SFOUNOSIY 40
- - GILOTULSAH N SMO'HLNG AU EIIA0
: - INOZ FAVHE NOTIH0L
- DAYG BOTUYH  TEZE #0CT 51385V V101
LB T ONIATIAEE
MOd cRODUSE T
SLASSY VATV NI LSAANE 13N (ot o SO
. - 2o A WJINGaM: N . B " " :
NUROBIRLSNDS 27 AUAM SI0T TE LSNENY
WOTLISOd L3N LN :m: 1Y SINVAIDLLEVA OMO4N0d NYOT o
s . : CINY STNTOHNE M
z B NOISNHd B ‘€7 T4IM HI0T 0F IN
SHIUNOSTYH SLISSY TYIIdYD 1Y SINVSIDLLHYE GTIOLLH0d NYOT #
40 SMOTHN OIUYIIIC

Srr g ONIONYISING SNYO!
t ¥ SAITETT WIQL  T777% Umwﬁ m._.mmv.{DmFJquui-,{gﬂﬁ ._.,.J,Wm_u_m_:ULn_.rz,,.:...,_.rdiwm _.,....—.—.qﬂ__L.w.—.Dn_
Ymm.

LN QAN SNYOT SO 2O ONYWEO 24U

- \ TIYLNELLOA IAIMOH
L SRVAEISY AINRGOOY OO (N

SALLTIEYI % WAkL0

- = ALTTIEYTT b0 / NOTSNZ L3N R ———
, 441 SLMFIVAINDS ANV 1H5YS G iy ¥
SALLTIAVIT LS HNNONON JALLYTEY SOEKA : TIONYNL A
hhmmmﬂﬂﬂsnzsm ._—_«__._ 23-.5 ﬂ_z_.__.z : ...“._fk_f \rﬂ._L._ﬂ »
¥ ¥ SALLTHEVE T INSHEAD TWLGL B

S - SILATIIEYIT LT -NOLIE0d S aadsr T W2 TATI CEASTAC :
1355V ANIHNT TWLOL NY lel A4 AT SASIAGY W 4

: v e _O.— Du:-: 34 -1H |:...5 vid
= o JONIATE aINEYIND 7 o : t;«utn_&( { 3 31 7_._.4_1 x.unv._.u _L _f M i
. - B daN

NOLIDNHLSHMOS -TTAVAVL SINOCTDY ST ATEDTE SANTDDY

(LSIHETH) Y, 0 ONLIVY. m.z WILLING

b ¥ NEVAYS SINNODDY - : SINFTAINDH ONY HSWD HLIM Ve SOUYAY YO BIGE 2700 MY .
STLLTIEVIT ANINHUND S1ISSY INIJHEMD
Gior (i) 61z SILLFTIBYLY G107 1) Giue siassv
TEHOY  0E NI TEBAY 6 N

(5,000 &

NVOT1 DONIATOAIY -NOILISOd 13N 40 LNJW3ILVIS |
FUTHSdWVH M3IN 40 ALTHOHLNY 130d !

9z

UMITAIYH LIANY TYNNIZIXT TWYNIF OL 1090805 (1)



ISV 3d
6T0Z ‘LT ¥390100 N4
DNILITW S,¥0LDIWIA 40 QUYOd

020¢ ‘0€ aNNc
DNIAN3 AOId3d HINOW ININ
JHL Y04 SNOILDIAC0Ud MO14d HSYD




o0vSs’9 ve9'L TVLOL SS0'T JONVIVE ANN4 ONISOTO

e ! Q3LYNOISIA vad 5559 MOTd HSVD 1IN
975’9 019 QILOTHLISTANN VaAd L
e e 96%°0¢C
6T0Z-0€-90 6T0Z2-0£-60 _
1V IDNVIVE 1V IDNVIvE SIDNVIVE ANN4 TVLOL €9 INWIALL3Y 150d -HN 40 31V1S
917 AINIWIULLTY 1830 WHIL ONOT
163Q dOD wmemremias 1630 ANVY e HSYD QALDTYLSTYNN e
00% 470 -INIWITLLIS NOLLYOLLIT
e L e BT T T B B B 968'¢ (¢# 39Vd 335) INVYO -STINLIANIAXT TVLIAVD
19/°¢ (£#-5# 539Vd 335) INVED-NON -STANLIANIAXT TV LIdVD
0002 $ 40 000 097’8 SISNIJXT ONLLYYIHO
‘ 163d QIOICOUL
g 1 oo0's SANN4 40 s3sn
S50 $ HSYD g
QALDIATOU- ﬂﬂlﬁ
- © 000’ @
- I€T SINNIATY T304 ANY YYONYH LIOJUIV NIAVHANS
- 56/ SINNIATY NOISSIONOD ANV I3 ISUN0D 4109
Ge0'1 ONDIYYA ANY $I34 IDVMOTH T3NS ‘SISYIT -LHOJYIV WSd
G721 13N -(d0D) 334 IDIAYIS TYAIDINNW
11DV Ae NULSH 5 0002 L3N -ONIDNYNIH INVE TWNYILXE
THYMY INYED J1YLS / 20
SNOTID3Cd TuNLNS QUYMOL SILITATLISNS ) 5617 (8# 39Vd 735) STUYMY LNVEO
0159 SINVNIL L¥0dIaviL
SANNd 40 SANINOS
r xr.Ywa
e 019/, JONVYIVE ANNd SNIN3IdO
NOISSNISIa (5,000 $)
INNOWY

020Z ‘0€ ANNC OL 6T0Z ‘T ¥3901D00
(sdo8¥vH aNV S180d 40 NorsiAta ontanxa) AVITAYIAO AUVININNS MO14d HSYD
ALTYOHLNY LN3INWdO13A3A 3ASVad



SS0'T SS0°T €001 89¢'T TO8T £09C 0T0'E £9TY ¢S89 evT'L IDNVIVE ANN4 DNISOT1D

(555"9) 4 (§92) (€£9) (908) (€ow) (£52'1) (685'2) (162) (L9%) MO HSYD L3N
SveTC £€85C (2% TEPT SST¢ 51871 TH0C YELT /T 07T
£9 £9 - - - - - - - - INIWIHILIYE LSO -HN [0 F1VIS
911 S = - - = 911 = = = AINIWIHLLTY 1930 WYTL ONOT
0S€'T - - - - - - 0SE'T - - 334 3DIAYIS TYIIDINNW
(# 39Vd 335)
968°¢ 006 G801 01 0T€ S0¢ S0/ b1g b €5 Q3LV1FY INVUD -TV.LIdVD
(2#-5% S92V 335)
19/°Z 0z8 €oz't 9pE’T 0zL 01/ 0LL 74 L£9 018 LNVIONON -TV1IdVD
09¢'8 008 G58 ST6 STy 008 058 See'T 0S0°1 0v8 SISNIdX3 ONILVYIMO
SANN4 40 3sn
T6T'ST SE9°C 8/8C 8687 6F5'T TP P8T'T 6FTT 0SFT 9ETT
000 0SZ 0SZ'1 = i = - = = . 13N -ONIONYNIH TYNYILXT
€T ST ST b1 b1 vI b1 v1 ST 91 LHOdHIY NIAVHANS
09¢ 0€ 87 43 o€ o€ 0€ 0¢ ¥4 ST WSd -5334 3DVMOTS 13N
gs¢ € ob 02 % Gb O ob € Ge WSd -9NIXIVd 404 Avd
a4 Sk 08 St St 05 St S 08 St 104V HLNOWSLHOd
86/ 071 00T S8 0L 59 59 0s 001 05T 359N0D 4109
G612 029 067 L0Z 042 807 0z - 0€T - (8% 39v4 735) SAYYMVY LNVID
G529’z 0§¢ G/€ 08¢ 0S¢ 743 05¢ 0S¢ Y43 0S¢ 334 IDIANTS TVAIDINAW
0159 0esL 0€L YA S A4 0zL 0zL 0zs ST SLNYNIL 1¥0d3avL
SANN4 40 S3DUNOS
01972 €00T 89CT T08T £097C 010 977 7889 (X2 ¥4 019Z AONYIvd ANNJ DNINIdO
L NNC AV Hdv v EH] NVL d3d AON 150
000 9 (SaNN4 ILOTHLSTHNN)

(SHOGYVH GNV SL0d 40 NOISIAIG FHL ONIANT1OX3) BOI—K =m<u mo l—.zmzm|—-<n—um
£ ALTYOHLNY INIWdO13A3A 3SVYad



IVAOUdY QUVOH ONIANI +x
‘3LON

|

968 006 §80°1 041 01€E S0t 504 1253 vs €S TvioL

424 > e = e = e GeT P S (£ ©4S) IDYNIVYA ANV INVIIXVL
LAOdHIV NIAVHANS
4 - - - b1 = = & = S (59 d1v) LNIWITUOV F1avSANgWITY
S07'C 009 S84 0¢ 0¢ GqT G4s v o4 - NOILDNYISNODIY HE-9T AVMNNY
60T = = S - S S e Y4 08 (85 dIv) NOISIA #E-9T AYMNNY
(W9'1$ -29 dI¥) NOILDNYLSNOD
00¢ 0ST 0ST e = S e e = = ANV NOISIA NOISNYdXT TYNIWATL
(W04 -99 dIv) NOLLDNALSNOD
006 08§81 0sT 08T oSt 0§T 0S87 - - - ANV NDISIA NOISNVAXZE TYNIWYAL
1HOdUIV HLNOWS1LYOd
INIFWIASHNIIWITY LNVED

IVIOL NAL AVIA ddv UV q3d NVT 33a ACN 130

(5,000 $)

(SHOFHVH ANV SLHOd 40 NOISIAIA FHL ONIANTIXT) mmz :-—:HQ Z mmxm l—<|—|HQ<U
ALTYOHLNY LN3IWdOT3IAIA 3SVAd



TVAQYddY ¥v0d ONIANIJ «x
310N

ot - - - - - - 0¢ 0¢ - w3 4007 LSISOTD dOW WOOUHLYE S,NIWOM
01 - - - - - - - 071 - *+ NVIE ANV LSOd -3ON3 TANIA
SZ - - S/ - - - - - - #xdIMOW HONOY AVMYIVA
R

as¥N0d 410D

WINI 5 (i) 4 - = 5 53 < = =
#x SNOLLYDINNWWODIATIL / SHIAYIAS
S¢ - 0T - - - 5T - - - / TYYMLI0S / SUILINIYd / SYILNdWOD
NOLLYYISININAY

O]
N
v
Loy
N
N
o
)
i
13
e
i
|
1

0s - S¢ S¢ - - - - - - #x ONIQTING TYNIWAAL ONIH00Y3Y
0z - - - - - - ST

Zp}
'

xx QUVO LIATFUD WA LSAS 13N

JHOdYUIV NIAVHANS

INIWISAUNGWIIY INVEONON

RLATeXS

=
o
=
P
:
=
g
o
<
:
[t
b2
&
115
s
3
-~
d
[}
g
Z
g
Ol

(s.000 $) {(@3INNILNOD)

(S¥OgYVYH ANV SL1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ IHL ONIAN1ox3) mmﬂ— =|—|HQ z m&xm |—<..—..HQ<U
ALTYOHLNY LIN3IWdO13A3Q 3SYad



IYAOYIdY QdVOd ONIANAd %«
‘310N

01 - - - - - - 5 ) i s+ 3AVYDIN NOLLDANNOD Dva
0z - - - - - - - 0z i s ONLLHOTT 437 TYNIWYAL
T4 s i - i - = > 5¢ = VaY 39Y90YE ONTHOOT TYNINYAL
U i 44 i - - - - > . % SNG NOLLY.LYOdSNVYL ANNOYD
Y4 s - - - - - - - 14 ONINYY YO AVd
S¢ - - - - - - - - 5S¢ NDIS3A NOISNYAXT TYNIW3L
YST'L 008 9901 977’1 00 004 004 004 718 05/ NOISNVAX3 TYNINY3L

JHOdUIV HLNOWSLYOd

(@3INNLLNOD)
INIWIASUNGNITY LINVEDONON

|
|
|
|

Iviol

Z|

nc

>
<
=
o
o
<
-4
<
=
[s]
151
EL
=
<
™
O
s
a
>
=]
&
[~
O
O

:(@aINNILNOD)

(SYOFYVH ANV S1¥0d S0 NOISINIA FH1 ONIANT1IX3) mmﬂ_ N 1IAN3dX3 1V1Id <U
ALTHOHLINY LN3INWdO13A3QA 3SVvad

(5,000 $)



TWAOYddY QYVOg DNIANId #x
‘JLON

ToL'Z (¥ 43 €0C'T 9%E'T (/Y44 otL 0L [ 74 LE9 018 IvioL
=
OIN = - - z - ﬂ - ﬂ o
ST S S = = S = S T4 = xx INFWAINOI NO QQV UOLOVHL
St e = = = e Sk = o S s INFIWIDVIIY 13313 IIDIHIA
FONVNIALINIVIN
orT 0c 0¢ 0¢ 0T [¢}4 ot [}4 01 o1
06 07 0T 0T 01 0T 07 0T 0T 0T o INTWLVIUL I LYMINYOLS
0s 0T 0z 07 0T - = e ok DNTIOLINOW DI44vd L
LAOdIaviL
INFWISUNGIWTTY
INVHONON
IVIOL NAC AV Udv av q3d NVE 33a AON 150
(5000 §) (Q3aNNILINOD)

(SYOGHVH ANV S140d 40 NOISINId JHL BNIAN1IX3) mwm :..—IHQ z m &xm l—<-—..Hm<U
ALTHOHLNY LNIWJOTIAIA ASYId



S6T'¢C 049 06¢ L0L (1744 80T oz 5 0eT - TviolL

0ce > 0¢ 4! = 80T = = 874 = (£-965) IOVYNIVIA ANV INFWIAVI AVMIXY L
1H0dUIV NIAYHANS
(59 d1v)
Gzl = S = A e e = = = INFWIFUOV FTGYSHNGWITY $E-9T AVMNNY
SR0'T 00% T4 09s e = e = = e NOLLDNYLSNODFY #£-9T AVMNNY
. (85 dIv)
06 = S e 01 S 0¢ s 09 e NDISAA HE-9T AYMNNY
(W0'Z$ -99 dIv)
NOILLDNYLSNOD
SET qeT = S = - S = = e ANV NDISAA NOISNYdXT TYNIWYIL
(W9'T1$ -79 dIv)
NOLLDNYLSNOD
0¥S GET GET GET GET - = - e > ANV N9153d NOISNYdX3 TYNIWYTL
LIOdUIV HLNOWS1LYOd

IVIOL NNL AV Hdv YW a4 NVE 33d AON 150

(5,000 $)

(SHO8UVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ FHL ONIANTIXI) mnm<;< |—|z<zw -—n& Hmumﬂ—
ALTIOHLNY LNIWdOT3A3A 3SVad



23a ACH 120 da33 RN RIE Y ) e W §34 YT
U = s o
00’1
JALNVYVND
0ct 31VIS FHL
%I0b A¥YVYD LON S304
00z ¥IHLO
%ET'S — = 40 IZIS WNWINIW
SINIOd SISVE
0ge 0SZ + (O1SSY 1))
9TH4 HINOW 3NO 31VY 1STYIINI
dN-JYVW + I1VYH I1STYTINT (OISSV1D) G1HI HINOW INO IHL ONTGNITL ‘
"SAIAN TVLIdVD
ONINYOM ANV
SINTWIAOUdWI
TV.LIdVD ANNd OL 31S0dynd
0S¥y 0S¢ JOVHIAY
A3LHOIEIM
— e TZ0Z-1E-TT 31va wyalL
o1t 91t
HLNOWSL¥0d
05t 020Z-TE-T0 9T oTT 40 ALD . A EEz:ﬂ.wﬁﬂb«
(30 MNvg
JGYIIVA  2e0z-TETT - - INIAIAOYd 3HL ALITIDVA
- 000°ST L1a34D 40 INNOWY
% TIVY Iiva 6TOT-0E90  BTOC-0E60 &y XTYNY 1930
ISTYIINI  ALTHNLYW v v ONIANYLISING
FONVIVE IDNVIVE INVE (OOTY) 11a3uD
LINIAQIAOQYd IHL 40 H3L137T ONIATOATY

(5,000 $)

SISATVNYV 1930 SNIANVLSLNO ANV SILLITIDVH 1138
ALTYOHLINY INIWdOT13A3IA 3ASVad



T
N
n

ST -]
o~
<

INOZ 4avdL NOIFHO4

96T 0gcC ANN4 NVOT ONIATOAIY
64E €61 ONIDAIYA JOgHYH
*SANNA @310141S3Y
600'T 8T SANN4 @ILOIUISIUNN
6T0C-0E-90 6T0C-0£-60
1V JONVIvVd 1V IONViIve S3ONVIVE ANN4 TV10L
NAL AR MY WM 834 MYC D30 AOM 100
E ‘ - . . wt. - . - . Oom
= : S ! oog
U eI $ HEYD o B R
. OLLTMISIING / -l.l.]/ N I

T —— Looort

SR OSSN | N [ - .WDDMJ
SADNVIVE HSVD QI LOTALSIUNN dI1I3r0dd

NOISSNOSIA

(5,000 $)

=]
-
n

SITT
SL
0cT
X4
9%¢
685

81T

INNOWY

JONVIVE ANNd ONISOTO

MOT4 HSVD 13N

INIWIHILTY 1SOd -HN 40 31VIS

YIHLO ANV STANLIANIdXT TV.LIdYD

INIWIFINOOUd 13

SASNAdX3 ONILVYIdO

SLI43N3d ANV SIDIAYFS TINNOSHId
SANNd 40 s3sn

JOVHIVHM / SNOLLVYLSIOY
SNOISS3IONOD ANV S334 ONIIVd
5334 ONTHOOW

SAVS T13Nd

STVINIA ALTTIOVA

SANNd 4O S3AUNOS

JONV1vd ANNd ONIN3IdO

(5,000 $)

0202 ‘0€ ANNC OL 6T0C ‘T YI40LD0
(sannd a3Loraiszy on1an1ox3) AMITAYIAO AUYVININNS MO1d HSY)D

0t

SHOSIVH ANV SLH0d 40 NOISIAId



671G 61S 08% 8P9 7oz 806 888 €G58 /S0 SCTT ADNYIVE ONN4 ONISOTD
0z

(€99) (19) (89) (¥5) (902) S¢ (+02) (89) (£8) MOT4 HSVD 13N
8€6'T VAv4 6T 671 TI¢E 067 08T 86C [7as 76T
8¢ 8¢ - - - S = S = = INIWIALLIY 1SOd -HN 40 ILVLS
(133 - o1 - - 01 - - 0T - AIHLO ANV STANLIANIEXA TVY.LIdYD
o€ - i 0T - > 01 s > 0T SADIAYIS TYNOISSIHOUd
SOT ST 01 01 01 ST 01 01 01 ST S3LLTTIOV4 ANY SONIQTING
ozt €T vI €1 b1 bl b1 €1 14 €1 IALLVYLSININGY ANY TYHINTD
ovt 9T ST 9T LT 91 91 ST ST b1 SILLITLLN
092 0¢ 0¢ 0z Y4 o€ o€ 0z o€ S LINIWFINDOY 13N
ST 11 STT 011 74 501 00T 074 56 00T SLI4INIE GNY SADIANIS TANNOSHId
SANNA 40 3sn
STT 93T Erai ST S0T 0T¢ ST¢C %6 s [
0s ob 01 > = s - - 5 - SANNIAIY NOISSIONOD
S¢ - - T4 - s 14 - - Y4 39VIYYHM / SNOLLYYLSIOTS
08 0¢ 0z 0T - i i > 0T 0T 5334 ONDIIV
S€T i = - ST 0zt 001 > i - 5334 ONRIOOW
9t 6¢C 67 Y4 Y4 S¢ 14 6¢ 6¢ o€ SIS Tand
685 9 L9 59 59 59 59 59 59 59 STVLNTY ALTTIOVS
SANN4 40 SIDYNOS
8TT 085 8%9 (4174 806 888 €68 [S0T STIT T8I ADNVIVE ANNd DNINIdO
IVIOL NNL AV Udv qVNW 834 NVL pEL] AON 3o
0009 (SaNNd GILOTHLSTHNN)

MOTd HSVYD 40 LINIW3L1VIS
SUHOHYUVH ANV S1L30d 40 NOISIAIQ



(4}

09T 091 9¢T 7T POt £0T T6T 06T TZT TT¢ IONVIVE aNnd ONISOTD
(g€) 124 (%) €1 1 (87) T 61 (ov) 8T MOT4 HSYD LaN
9T E g E Z b4 Z E S E
oSt - 0s = - 0s - = 0S - (50492) -93IHIO 1Y
- - - - - - - - - - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIZ0Ud
- - - - . . - = - - SALLITILN
9 - z - - z - - z - IALLYHLSINIWNGY ANV TwHINTD
8 - z - z - z - Z - SILLITIDVA ANY SONIATING
- - - - - - - - - - S1T43INIE ANV SIDIAYIS TAINNOSYId
SANN4 40 asn
TIET ¥ T T < T 5 [ ¥T 8T
- - - - - - - - - - ONIANNH INVYO
i€ b € ¢ 3 ¥ £ b b ¢ 5334 3OVMOTH 13N
0€ - 0T - - 0T - - 0T - SNOLLYYLSIDTY
(Y4 1Y4 - 0T - 0T - ST - g1 $334 39VSN ¥3ld
SANNA 40 SADUNOCTS
£6T 9cT LLT 9T £€9T 16T 06T LT TT¢ £6T AONVYIVE ANNd ONINIJO-
TvI0L NAC AVIN ddv UVl L{EE] NVL 23a AON 100 -
(5000 § (Sann+4 @i1o14.1s3y)

AdNNd ONIDAIYA YOFUVH ~-MOTd HSVYD 40 LINJWILVILS

SUYOFUVH ANV SLHO0d 40 NOISIAIC



|

Ol 4 )
N [s¢]
L Lol

o~
™

n o

€T
T0t

|
|
|

i
o™
Q|
(o]
(=
o
(=]
Ll

<l
2
o

o

N

|
|
|

™~
o~
o~
[=4
(=1
(o]
7]
N
e
un
™

4]
w
('™

o

86

LN
i

154

[~
m
o

|

fom
(=)

JONVIVE ANNS DNISOTD

MO HSVYD 1IN

U3IHLO TV

S3DINGAS TYNOISSIH0Ud

SHLLIILN

JALLVALISININGY ANV Tvd3INTD
SATLTTIOVL GNV SONIAIING
SLI43N38 ANV SIDIAYIS TINNOSYId

d32NSST SNYOT M3N
SANNd 40 asn

JONVIVE ANNA -FWODNI LSTHYFUINI
SNVOT-ZWOONI LSTUIINI

SINAWAYATY NVOT
SANNL 40 SAUNO0S

FONYVIVE GNNd DNINIJO

(5,000 $)

(SaNnNn+ GILoryLISTY)
ANNd NVYO1 DNIATOAIY -MO1d HSYD 40 ININWIALVIS

SUYOGUVH ANV SLU0d 40 NOISIAIAQ



ol
&l
=
=
&l
i
i
-l
-
i
i
~}
oy

JONVIVE dNNd DNISOTD

9 - = S = (2) - - 8 = MOT4 HSYD 13aN

W z M z z .N. - z N z

= = = = = - - - - - AIHLO TV
- = = = = = = = = - SIDIAYIS TYNOISSIH0Yd
. , , - - - - . S3LLIIILN
9 = z - - [4 = - 4 = JALLYHLSINIWAY ANV T¥H3INID

- - - - - - SALLIMIOV4 ANV SONIATING
- - - - - - - - - - S1I43NZ8 ANV SIDIAAGFS TINNOSYAd

SANN4d 40 3asn

o

L}

o

[en]

|
t

- - - - - - - - - - YIHLO TV
(4! - 4 - - - - - 01 - STVLNIY ALTTIOVS

SANN4 40 S3IDUNOS

A0NVIVd ANNd ONIN3IdO

M|
=
ol
=
ol
l
A
A
A
o]
™|

wioL NNC AVIA ddv HYIW EEE] NV J3a AON 150

(50009 (SanNn-4 @3LDI1¥LISTY)
ANN4d INOZ 3AVIL NOIFUO04 ~MO1d HSYD 40 INIWILVIS

vt SYOGAYVH ANV S1¥0d 40 NOISIAIQ



=0

TE

1Y

B

Vi

l %?%f‘@i;ggw e

T

o]
z

o
> m

c<

—|E =
L P4
o%l>
F R I
-=<
~m
<z >
=1 =

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

In accordance with the recommendation of the Pease Development
Authority Audit Committee, the Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board
of Directors accepts receipt of the Certified Annual Financial Statements
for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2019 and the Uniform Guidance
Audit of Federal Awards for the year ended June 30, 2019, both attached
/n draft form;, all as otherwise prepared and submitted by PDA’s
independent auditor Berry, Dunn, McNeill and Parker, LLC.

Whereas the final Annual Financial Statement is subject to receipt of
an audit letter from the law firm of Kutak Rock and the receipt of the final
actuarial report as prepared by Segal Consulting for the State of New
Hampshire, the Board of Directors further authorizes the Executive Director
to forward the Certified Financial Statements to the State of New Hampshire
when final for inclusion in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.

N:A\RESOLVES\ 201 9\Audit - Certified Financial Statements 10-17.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Financial Statements,
Management’s Discussion and Analysis,
and Supplementary Information

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
With Independent Auditor’s Report

DRAFT OCTOBER 9, 2019

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)

Board of Directors 1
Financial Highlights 2
Independent Auditor’s Report 3-4
Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition

and Results of Operations 5-15
Audited Financial Statements:

Statements of Net Position 16

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position 17

Statements of Cash Flows 18-19

Notes to the Financial Statements 20-47

Required Supplementary Information 48-51



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Kevin H. Smith, Chairman
Appointed by the New Hampshire State Governor and Executive Council

Peter J. Loughlin, Vice Chairman
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth and Town of Newington

Robert A. Allard, Treasurer
Appointed by the New Hampshire Speaker of the House

John P. Bohenko
Appointed by the City of Portsmouth

Margaret F. Lamson
Appointed by the Town of Newington

Neil Levesque
Appointed by the New Hampshire Senate President

Franklin G. Torr
Appointed by Strafford County Legislative Delegation

David R. Mullen
Executive Director and Secretary
Hired by the Pease Development Authority Board of Directors

1 | g



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS (UNAUDITED)
($ in Thousands)

2015 2016 2017 2018 . 2019
Consolidated
Revenues
Tradeport $ 7,826 $ 8,028 $ 8,264 $ 8,361 $ 8,723
Ports and Harbors 2,762 2,474 2,495 2,702 2,869
Golf Course 2,197 2,420 2,472 2,693 2,672
Aviation 1,117 1,237 1,237 1,267 2,006
Total $13,902 $.14,159 $.14,468 $.15,023 $ 16,270
UNRESTRICTED CASH AND » Debt outstanding has been
CASH EQUIVALENTS significantly reduced reflecting
lower non-grant related capital
expenditure requirements
$9.000 across all business units:
$7.000 June 30 | Amount
2015 $ 3,345
$5,000 | 2016 465
2017 349
$3,000 i o 2018 233
2019 116
$1,000 L2 o L : : .
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 > Capital assets excluding
accumulated depreciation, primarily
OPERATING EXPENSES due to third party grant funding and
(EXCLUDING DEPRECIATION) renovations to the golf course,
Portsmouth International Airport
$15,000 and Skyhaven Airport have
= continued to increase during
$12,000 - B the past several fiscal years:
$9,000 -+ ' June 30 | Amount
" 2015 $ 159,556
$6,000 - o 2016 161,023
[ 2017 164,071
$3,000 T ¥ Y T : 2018 170,624
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2019 173,770
> Net cash provided by operating
e activities has stabilized during
the past several fiscal years.
$6,500 June 30 | Amount
2015 $ 2,748
35,000 - 2016 4,221
2017 3,382
$3,500 2018 3,189
2019 3,182
$2,000
$500

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

2]



I! Berry! unn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Pease Development Authority (PDA), a
component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the years ended June 30, 2019 and
2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the

financial position of PDA as of June 30, 2019 and 2018, and the changes in its net position and its
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors of
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that Management’s Discussion and Analysis on
pages 5 to 15 and the required supplementary information on pages 48 to 51 be presented to
supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in
an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
auditing standards, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements.
The financial highlights section on page 2 is presented for the purpose of additional analysis and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. The financial highlights section has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and,
accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on it.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
xx, 2019 on our consideration of PDA’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards
in considering PDA’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Bangor, Maine
October xx, 2019

4%



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED)

This report identifies the Pease Development Authority’s ("PDA”") financial position and describes
PDA’s financial activities over the past three fiscal years. This section of PDA’s annual financial report
is known as “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
("MD&A") and presents our discussion and analysis of PDA’s consolidated financial performance
during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2019, 2018 and 2017.

The MD&A is an analysis of the financial condition and operating results of PDA and is intended to
introduce the basic financial statements and notes to those statements. For governmental entities,
an MD&A must be presented in every financial report that includes basic financial statements
prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
It is intended to provide an objective and easily readable analysis of PDA’s financial activities based
on currently known facts, decisions, or conditions. This MD&A should be read in conjunction with
PDA’s financial statements and accompanying notes.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report consists of three parts: a) Management’s discussion and analysis; b) the basic
audited financial statements which include notes explaining some of the information in the financial
statements and provide detailed data; and c) required supplementary information.

PDA is a self-supporting entity and follows enterprise fund reporting; accordingly, the financial
statements are presented using the accrual basis of accounting. The component unit financial
statements offer short and long-term financial information about the activities and operations of PDA.
These statements are presented in a manner similar to a private business.

The statements of net position show the financial position of PDA at the end of each fiscal year and
include all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources. The
total net position is the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources and liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources. Over time, an increase in net position is one indicator of an
institution’s financial health.

The statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position report total operating revenues,
operating expenses, nonoperating income (expense), contributed capital and the change in net
position for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The statements of cash flows summarize transactions involving cash and cash equivalents during
each fiscal year. The statements provide an additional tool to assess the financial health of the
institution and its ability to generate future cash flows to meet its obligations.

Change in Accounting Principle

As disclosed in Note 3 to the basic financial statements, in 2018 PDA adopted new accounting
guidance, Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The changes made to the
basic financial statements to comply with the new accounting standards have been reported as an
adjustment as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2018. Because it was not practical for
PDA to determine the amounts of all deferred inflows of resources and outflows of resources related
to the pension plan as of June 30, 2017, the beginning balances of deferred inflows of resources and
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions have not been reported. The impact of the
adoption of the new accounting standard as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2018 was
an increase in long-term liabilities of $10,083,117, an increase in deferred outflows of resources of
$222,092 and a decrease in unrestricted net position of $9,861,025. Tables within the MD&A
containing historical information prior to 2018, do not reflect the restatement.

5|1Fzge



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Current Assets

Current assets are those assets that are expected to be used (sold or consumed) within a year, unlike
non-current assets. Current assets are reflected on the statement of net position and are listed in
order of decreasing liquidity. The current asset position of a company is important, both for assessing
its financial strength and for gauging its operational efficiency.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Current Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 7,549 $ 6,134 $ 1,415 23.1
Accounts Receivable - Net 1,184 2,058 (874) (42.5)
Other Current Assets 586 500 86 17.2
Total Current Assets $ 9,319 $ 8,692 $ 627 7.2

PDA’s current assets increased by $627 thousand or 7.2% primarily due to the increases in cash and
cash equivalents which were offset by a decrease in accounts receivable associated with grant related
capital projects. The primary reason for the increase in cash and cash equivalents was associated
with reduced non-grant related construction activities as well as an increase in accounts payable and
accrued expenses at year-end. Receivables for grant related capital projects were reflective of fiscal
year end construction activities primarily in support of the planned terminal expansion at Portsmouth
International Airport (PSM). Accounts receivable included an allowance for doubtful accounts of
approximately 0.5% and 0.2% of total accounts receivable at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Comparison of 2018 to 2017
Changes in Current Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,134 $ 4,032 $ 2,102 52.1
Accounts Receivable - Net 2,058 1,324 734 55.4
Other Current Assets 500 536 (36) (6.7)
Total Current Assets $ 8,692 $ 5892 $ 2.800 47.5

PDA’s current assets increased by $2.8 million or 47.5% primarily due to the increases in cash and
cash equivalents as well as accounts receivable associated with grant related capital projects. The
primary reason for the increase in cash and cash equivalents was associated with reduced non-grant
related construction activities as well as an increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses at
year-end. Receivables for grant related capital projects were reflective of fiscal year end construction
activities primarily in support of the planned terminal expansion at PSM. Accounts receivable included
an allowance for doubtful accounts of approximately 0.2% and 0.4% of total accounts receivable at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

6|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Restricted Assets

Restricted assets represent amounts that are subject to externally imposed restrictions on their use
by creditors, grantors, laws, regulations, or through constitutional restrictions or enabling legislation.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 579 $ 489 $ 90 18.4
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,012 1,151 (139) (12.1)
Accounts Receivable Other - Net 5 2 3 150.0
Total Restricted Assets $ 1,596 ¢ 1,642 $ (46) (2.8)

Total restricted assets decreased by approximately $46 thousand or 2.8% primarily due to the
decrease in loans receivable balances associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund. Total assets
associated with the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of approximately $1.2
million at June 30, 2019 and 2018. There were 22 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2019 and
26 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2018. Offsetting this decrease was the authorized funding
provided by the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund to support various repairs and
renovations associated with the Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) operations at the Hampton
Harbor, Rye Harbor and the Portsmouth Fish Pier.

Comparison of 2018 to 2017
Changes in Restricted Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 489 § 695 % (206) (29.6)
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund Receivable 1,151 1,073 78 7.3
Accounts Receivable Other 2 4 (2) (50.0)
Total Restricted Assets $ 1,642 % 1,772 $ (130) (7.3)

Total restricted assets decreased by approximately $0.1 million or 7.3% primarily due to the decrease
in cash and cash equivalents. The primary reason for this decrease was expenditures associated with
the authorized funding provided by the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund to support
various repairs and renovations associated with the Division of Ports and Harbors (DPH) operations
at the Hampton Harbor, Rye Harbor and the Portsmouth Fish Pier. Total assets associated with the
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund had a composite valuation of approximately $1.2 million and $1.1 million
at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. There were 26 individual loans outstanding at June 30,
2018 and 27 individual loans outstanding at June 30, 2017.

AR



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets

PDA independently develops and maintains the Tradeport. Through the DPH, PDA maintains and
develops New Hampshire’s ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers. Capital expenditures typically
extend the useful life of an asset and can be financed through internal funds, grant related funding

or access to the capital markets.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Changes in Capital Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

- 2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Land $ 7,521 §% 7,521  $ - -
Facilities Improvements 147,438 146,365 1,073 0.7
Equipment 15,491 14,710 781 5.3
Construction in Process 3,320 2,027 1,293 63.8
Gross Capital Assets 173,770 170,623 3,147 1.8
Accumulated Depreciation (109,203) (103,567) (5,636) (5.4)
Total Capital Assets $ __ 64567 $ _ 67,056 $ (2,489) (3.7)

PDA's capital acquisitions totaled approximately $3.1 million in 2019 primarily in support of either
federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects included runway reconstruction
and terminal expansion activities at PSM. Additional funds were expended in support of equipment
needs and various infrastructure improvements at the DPH including the functional replacement of
the Barge Dock. Approximately $1.6 million of the total capital expenditures were either grant funded
or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $32.8 million and $2.4 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018 respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2019 included $24.3 million for
the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $4.1 million for the PSM Terminal Expansion and $3.9
million for the DPH Functional Replacement of the Barge Dock.

Comparison of 2018 to 2017
Changes in Capital Assets

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Land $ 7,521 % 7,521 §$ - -
Facilities Improvements 146,365 141,327 5,038 3.6
Equipment 14,710 13,919 791 5.7
Construction in Process 2,027 1,304 723 55.4
Gross Capital Assets 170,623 164,071 6,552 4.0
Accumulated Depreciation (103,567) (98,400) (5,167) (5.3)
Total Capital Assets $ 67,056 $ 65,671 $ 1,385 2.1

81



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Capital Assets (concluded)

PDA’s capital acquisitions totaled approximately $7.3 million in 2018 primarily in support of either
federal or state funded projects. The more significant capital projects included runway reconstruction
activities at PSM and DAW as well as the planned terminal expansion at PSM. Additional funds were
expended in support of various infrastructure improvements at both the DAW and the Pease
Tradeport. Approximately $6.3 million of the total capital expenditures were associated with either
federal or state funded projects.

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $2.4 million and $4.4 million at June 30, 2018 and 2017 respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2018 included $1.1 million for the
PSM Terminal Expansion and $0.6 million for the PSM Runway Reconstruction project.

Long-Term Liabilities
Comparison of 2019 to 2018

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)

Other Postemployment Benefits $ 7,292 $ 8,239 % (947) (11.5)

Net Pension Liability 4,384 4,986 (602) (12.1)

Retiree Health Benefit Program 273 364 (91) (25.0)

State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252 252 - -

Compensated Absences - Net 95 96 (1) (1.0)
City of Portsmouth - Waste Water Treatment

Facility - 116 (116) (100.0)

Total Long-Term Liabilities $ __12,296 $ 14,053 $ __(1,757) (12.5)

The PDA decreased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$1.8 million or 12.5%. The more significant decreases were associated with the changes in the Net
Pension Liability and Other Postemployment Benefits which was reflective of the overall 8.9%
investment performance return on plan assets which was greater than the targeted performance
benchmark of 7.25%. During the fiscal year, a total of $116 thousand of total long-term debt was
retired as associated with the PDA’s outstanding obligation to the City of Portsmouth. At the end of
the 2019 fiscal year, PDA’s overall cost of capital was 4.5%.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Liabilities (concluded)
Comparison of 2018 to 2017

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Other Postemployment Benefits $ 8,239 ¢ - $ 8,239 100.0
Net Pension Liability 4,986 5,490 (504) (9.2)
Retiree Health Benefit Program 364 ) 364 100.0
State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252 252 - -
City of Portsmouth - Waste Water Treatment
Facility 116 233 (117) (50.2)
Compensated Absences - Net 96 105 (9 (8.6)
Total Long-Term Liabilities $ 14,053 ¢ 6,080 $_ 7,973 131.1

The PDA increased its total noncurrent liabilities outstanding during the fiscal year by approximately
$8.0 million or 131%. The primary reason for the increase is the liability associated with the adoption
of GASB Statement No. 75 on postemployment benefits as a cumulative effect adjustment as of July
1, 2017. The more significant decrease was associated with the change in the net pension liability,
which reflected the overall 13.50% investment performance return on plan assets which was greater
than the targeted performance benchmark of 7.25%. During the fiscal year, a total of $0.1 million of
total long-term debt was retired as associated with the PDA’s outstanding obligation to the City of
Portsmouth. At the end of the 2018 fiscal year, PDA’s overall cost of capital was 4.5%.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between assets and liabilities. Net investment in capital assets
consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of
debt and adding back any unspent proceeds.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018
Statements of Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 9,319 $ 8,692 $ 627 7.2
Restricted Assets 1,596 1,642 (46) (2.8)
Capital Assets 64,567 67,056 (2,489) (3.7)
Total Assets 75,482 77,390 (1,908) (2.5)
Deferred Qutflows of Resources 1,564 1,753 (189) (10.8)
Current Liabilities 3,309 4,904 (1,595) (32.5)
Noncurrent Liabilities 12,296 14,053 (1,757) (12.5)
Total Liabilities 15,605 18,957 (3,352) (17.7)
Deferred Inflows of Resources 3,221 2,612 609 23.3
Net Investment in Capital Assets 63,931 64,400 (469) (0.7)
Restricted Net Position 1,342 1,388 (46) (3.3)
Unrestricted Net Position (7.054) (8,213) 1,159 14.1
Total Net Position $_ 58,219 $ 57,575 $ $644 1.1

10|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Net Position (concluded)

PDA’s total assets decreased $1.9 million or 2.5% primarily due to the decrease in capital assets
which reflects depreciation expense being greater than additions to construction in process.
Restricted assets are primarily represented by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an
approximate value of $1.2 million at June 30, 2019 and 2018.

The $3.4 million decrease, or 17.7% in total liabilities, was primarily due to decreases in the Net
Pension Liability, Other Postemployment Benefits and Accounts Payable for Capital Assets. During
the fiscal year, the Net Pension Liability was reduced by $602 thousand while Other Postemployment
Benefits were reduced by $0.9 million with both reductions associated with the investment returns
of plan assets being in excess of targeted benchmarks and changes to assumptions.

Comparison of 2018 to 2017
Statements of Net Position

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase

2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)
Current Assets $ 8,692 $ 5,892 $ 2,800 47.5
Restricted Assets 1,642 1,772 (130) (7.3)
Capital Assets 67,056 65,671 1,385 2.1
Total Assets 77,390 73,335 4,055 5.5
Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,753 1,722 31 1.8
Current Liabilities 4,904 3,168 1,736 54.8
Noncurrent Liabilities 14,053 6,080 7,973 131.1
Total Liabilities 18,957 9,248 9,709 105.0
Deferred Inflows of Resources 2,612 209 2,403 1,150.0
Net Investment in Capital Assets 64,400 64,435 (35) (0.1)
Restricted Net Position 1,388 1,517 (129) (8.5)
Unrestricted Net Position (8,213) (352) (7,861) (2,233.2)
Total Net Position $ 57,575 $_65,600 $__(8,025) —(12.2)

PDA’s total assets increased $4.1 million or 5.5% primarily due to the increase in current assets,
which was attributable to the increase in cash and cash equivalents. Restricted assets are primarily
represented by the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund, which had an approximate value of $1.2 million at
June 30, 2018 and 2017.

The increase in deferred outflows of resources related to the pension plan and the other
postemployment benefits and increase in deferred inflows of resources are reflective of the overall
change in PDA’s net pension liability and the other postemployment benefits liability.

PDA’s total liabilities increased by $9.7 million or 105% primarily due to the implementation of GASB
75, which required recording other postemployment benefits liabilities at year end.

PDA’s net position decreased by $8.0 million or 12.2%. This decrease is primarily due to the recording
of the other postemployment benefits liability as of July 1, 2017.

11 |5



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position

PDA charges various types of fees for the rental or usage of its land and facilities.

Comparison of 2019 to 2018

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenue

Rental of Facilities

Fee Revenues

Fuel Sales

Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses

Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation

Building and Facilities Maintenance
Professional Services

Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Loss on Disposition of Assets
Interest Expense

Interest Income

Net Non-operating Income (Expense)
Loss Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as
Previously stated

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting
Principle

Net Position at the Beginning of the Year, as
Restated

Net Position at End of Year

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2019 2018 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 9,792 $ 9,468 % 324 3.4
4,261 3,327 934 28.1
879 838 41 4.9
1,338 1,390 (52) (3.7)
16,270 15,023 1,247 8.3
6,243 7,502 (1,259) (16.8)
5,636 5,836 (200) (3.4)
1,660 1,623 37 2.3
1,658 834 824 99.0
2,669 2,617 52 1.9
17,866 18,412 (546) (3.0)
(1,596) (3,389) 1,793 52.9
S (29) 29 100.0
(8) (13) 5 (38.5)
57 23 34 147.8
49 (19) 68 357.9
(1,547) (3,408) 1,861 54.6
2,191 5,244 (3.053) (58.2)
644 1,836 (1,192) (64.9)
57,575 65,600 (8,025) (12.2)
- (9,861) 9,861 100.0
57.575 55,739 1,836 3.3
$___ 58219 $__57.575 $ 644 1.1

12 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)
Comparison of 2019 to 2018 (concluded)

Total operating revenues increased by $1.2 million or 8.3% primarily due to the adoption of pay for
parking and fuel flowage fees at PSM. Additional increases were associated with registrations and
wharfage and dockage activities at DPH as well has facility rentals at the International Tradeport.

Total operating expenses decreased by approximately $0.5 million, or 3.0%. The net change in
operating expenses was primarily comprised of $1.3 million in reduced personnel services and
benefits due to lower pension and postemployment costs which were offset by $0.8 million in a
litigation settlement with the Conservation Law Foundation.

Net non-operating expense decreased by approximately $68 thousand due to interest income
increases associated with increases in cash and cash equivalents. In addition, the PDA did not have
to secure any external borrowings to offset capital expenditures or the need for increased working
capital levels. The ongoing reduction in interest expenses is reflective of PDA’s ability to internally
fund capital project related activities.

The decrease in contributed capital of $3.1 million, or 58.2%, reflects decreased grant related
construction projects at PSM and the DAW during the current fiscal year. During the year ended June
30, 2019, a total of $3.1 million was spent on the purchase of capital assets of which approximately
$1.6 million were either grant funded or supported by the State for purposes of PDA-DPH.

13|55



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONTINUED)

Change in Net Position (continued)

Comparison of 2018 to 2017

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating Revenue

Rental of Facilities

Fee Revenues

Fuel Sales

Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues
Operating Expenses

Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation

Building and Facilities Maintenance
Professional Services

Other

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Loss on Disposition of Assets -
Interest Expense

Interest Income

Net Non-operating Expense
Loss Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital

Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as
Previously stated

Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting

Principle

Net Position at the Beginning of the Year, as

Restated
Net Position at End of Year

June 30, June 30, $ Increase % Increase
2018 2017 (Decrease) (Decrease)
$ 9,468 $ 9,588 $ (120) (1.3)
3,327 3,040 287 9.4
838 684 154 22.5
1,390 1,156 234 20.2
15,023 14,468 555 3.8
7,502 6,894 608 8.8
5,836 5,965 (129) (2.2)
1,623 1,379 244 17.7
834 729 104 14.3
2,617 2,333 284 12.2
18,412 17,300 i,111 6.4
(3,389) (2,832) (557) (19.7)
(29) = (29) (100.0)
(13) (18) 5 (27.8)
23 7 16 228.6
(19) (11) (8) 72.7
(3,408) (2,843) (565) (19.9)
5,244 2,388 2,856 119.6
1,836 (455) 2,291 503.5
65,600 66,055 (455) 0.7)
(9,861) = (9.861) (100.0)
55,739 66,055 (10,316) (15.6)
$__b57,575 $__65,600 $ (8.025) (12.2)

14 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS (UNAUDITED) (CONCLUDED)

Change in Net Position (concluded)
Comparison of 2018 to 2017 (concluded)

Total operating revenues increased by $555 thousand or 3.8% primarily due to increases in fee
revenues which consist of golf course operations and concession revenues associated with the Grill
28 restaurant. To a lesser extent the increases in fuel sales at the PDA-DPH of 22.5% also contributed
to the overall escalation in revenue streams.

Total operating expenses increased by approximately $1.1 million or 6.4% primarily due to the
escalation in employee benefits and building and facilities maintenance costs. The current year
employee benefit costs increase was primarily related to the recognition of retiree benefit health care
costs which were partially offset by lower pension expenses.

Net non-operating expense increased by approximately $8 thousand due to the loss on disposition
of retired capital assets. To a lesser extent, these costs were offset by interest income earned on
cash and cash equivalents. The ongoing reduction in interest expenses is reflective of PDA’s ability
to internally fund capital project related activities.

The increase in contributed capital of $2.9 million reflects increased grant related construction
projects at PSM and DAW. The cumulative effect of the change in accounting principle refers to the
adoption of GASB Statement No. 75 on postemployment benefits. See Note 3 for further discussion.
During the year ended June 30, 2018, a total of $7.3 million was spent on the purchase of capital
assets of which approximately $6.3 million were either grant funded or supported by the State for
purposes of PDA-DPH.

Contacting the PDA’s Leadership Team

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of PDA’s finances and to demonstrate
PDA's accountability for the grants that it receives. If you have questions about this report or need
additional financial information, please contact David Mullen, Executive Director, at 55 International
Drive Portsmouth, NH 03801 via email at 21dh pea s or by telephone at
603.433.6088. Visit the PDA website at: www.peasedev.ora.

Other members of the PDA’s Leadership Team, effective July 1, 2019, include:

Paul Brean
Deputy Director and Airport Director

Irv Canner, C.P.A.
Director of Finance

Scott DeVito
Golf Course Generai Manager

% >k Xk Kk

Lynn Hinchee
General Counsel

Captain Geno Marconi
Director- Division of Ports and Harbors

Maria Stowell, P.E.
Engineering Manager

15|I—;':



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2019 and 2018

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounts Receivable - Net
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Loans and Accounts Receivable - Net
Total Restricted Assets

Capital Assets
Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits
Pension

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Accounts Payable for Capital Assets
Unearned Revenues
Current Portion of Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Other Postemployment Benefits
Net Pension Liability
Other Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Other Postemployment Benefits
Pension

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted For:
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance
Foreign Trade Zone
Unrestricted
Total Net Position

2019 2018
$ 7,548,974 $ 6,133,688
1,183,811 2,058,191
586,287 499,932
9,319,072 8,691,811
579,004 489,215
1,016,689 1,153,148
1,595,693 1,642,363
64,567,106 67,056,228
75,481,871 77,390,402
677,926 597,314
885,913 1,155,745
1,563,839 1,753,059
2,099,945 1,592,467
519,725 2,423,247
573,312 680,991
116,290 207,214
3,309,272 4,903,919
7,291,881 8,238,717
4,384,392 4,986,400
619,865 827,908
12,296,138 14,053,025
15,605,410 18,956,944
2,593,514 2,314,460
627,495 297,321
3,221,009 2,611,781
63,931,091 64,400,401
1,203,959 1,197,831
133,695 180,031
4,307 10,105
(7,053,761) (8,213,632)
$ 58,219,291 $ 57,574,736

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

16 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Operating Revenues
Rental of Facilities
Fee Revenues:

Golf Course Operations

Mooring, Dockage, Pier Usage and Boat Registrations

All Other
Total Fee Revenues
Fuel Sales
Concession and Other Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Personnel Services and Benefits
Depreciation
Building and Facilities Maintenance
Professional Services
General and Administrative
Utilities
All Other
Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Interest Income
Interest Expense
Loss on Disposition of Capital Assets
Total Nonoperating Income (Expense)
Loss Before Contributed Capital
Contributed Capital
Change in Net Position

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as previously stated
Cumulative Effect of Change in Accounting Principle

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as restated

Net Position at End of Year

2019 2018
9,792,325 9,467,725
2,056,393 2,018,938
1,396,540 1,166,502

807,666 142,119
4,260,599 3,327,559
878,918 837,731
1,338,341 1,390,465
16,270,183 15,023,480
6,243,243 7,502,468
5,635,999 5,836,369
1,660,233 1,622,793
1,657,838 833,145
785,076 833,528
738,461 713,453
1,145,335 1,070,877
17,866,185 18,412,633
(1,596,002) (3,389,153)
57,587 22,905
(8,021) (13,213)

- (28,641)

49,566 (18,949)
(1,546,436) (3,408,102)
2,190,991 5,243,787
644,555 1,835,685
57,574,736 65,600,076
5 (9,861,025)
57,574,736 55,739,051
58,219,291 57,574,736

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

17



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

Cash Received from Customers
Cash Payments to Personnel for Services and Benefits
Cash Payments to Suppliers of Goods and Services

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Cash Flows From Capital and Related
Financing Activities

Contributed Capital Received

Acquisition of Capital Assets

Interest Paid on Capital Debt

Repayment of Long-Term Liabilities
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related

Financing Activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Interest Income Received

Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

2019 2018
17,117,760  $ 14,327,226
(6,807,861) (6,421,372)
(7,128,379) (4,716,448)

3,181,520 3,189,406
3,440,678 4,527,371
(5,050,399) (5,714,379)

(8,021) (13,213)
(116,290) (116,290)
(1,734,032) (1,316,511)
57,587 22,905
1,505,075 1,895,800
6,622,903 4,727,103
8,127,978  $ 6,622,903

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

18 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONCLUDED)
For the Years Ended June 30, 2019 and 2018

Reconciliation of Operating Loss to Net Cash

Provided by Operating Activities

Operating Loss

Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Loss to

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Depreciation
Change in Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Compensated Absences - Net

Changes in Operating Assets, Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Accounts Receivable
Other Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources - OPEB
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pension
Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
Unearned Revenues
Retiree Health Benefit Program
Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)
Net Pension Liability
Deferred Inflows of Resources - OPEB
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pension

Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities

Reconciliation of Noncash Activity:
Contributed Capital Income

Less: Accounts Receivable as of End of Year
Add: Accounts Receivable as of Prior Year End

Contributed Capital Received

Acquisition of Capital Assets
Less: Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses
as of End of Year
Transfer of Capitalized Project to Expense

Add: Payments on Short-Term Trade Accounts to Finance

Acquisitions of Capital Assets

Payments for the Acquisition of Capital Assets

2019 2018
$ (1,596,002) $ (3,389,153)
5,635,999 5,836,369
s 1,500
(830) (9,799)
(238,848) (96,223)
(86,355) 36,565
(80,612) (390,000)
269,832 566,470
507,478 127,421
(107,679) (17,807)
(181,847) 454,619
(946,836) (1,844,400)
(602,008) (503,577)
279,054 2,329,238
330,174 88,183
$ 3,181,520 $ 3,189,406
$ 2,190,991  $ 5,243,787
(253,729) (1,503,416)
1,503,416 787,000
$ 3,440,678  $ 4,527,371
$ 3,146,877 % 7,250,912
(519,725) (2,423,247)
- (1,150)
2,423,247 887,864
$ 5,050,399  $ 5,714,379

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2019 and 2018

1.

Reporting Entity

The Pease Development Authority ("PDA”), a component unit of the State of New Hampshire
(the “State”), is the successor entity to the Pease Redevelopment Commission (“"PRC"). The PRC
was created on March 21, 1989 by an act of the General Court of the State. The mandate of the
PRC was to prepare a comprehensive plan for the conversion and redevelopment of Pease Air
Force Base. The guiding principles of the plan were job creation, fiscal viability, economic
development, and environmental quality.

Effective June 1, 1990, the PRC was dissolved and PDA was established as its successor with the
goals of converting and redeveloping the Pease International Tradeport (“Tradeport”). PDA is a
component unit of the State and is discretely presented in the Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report of the State.

PDA is a body corporate and politic with a governing body of seven members. The Governor and
State legislative leadership appoint four members and the City of Portsmouth ("COP”) and the
Town of Newington appoint three members.

Pursuant to Chapter 290, Laws of 2001, the New Hampshire State Port Authority (“Port”), a
former agency of the primary State government, was transferred to PDA effective July 1, 2001.
In doing so, the State authorized the transfer of functions, powers and duties of the Port to PDA,
acting through the Division of Ports and Harbors ("PDA-DPH”). The PDA-DPH is charged with the
responsibility to: 1) plan for the maintenance and development of the ports, harbors and
navigable tidal rivers of the State; 2) foster and stimulate commerce and the shipment of freight;
3) aid in the development of salt water fisheries and associated industries; 4) cooperate with
any federal agencies or departments in planning the maintenance, development, and use of the
State ports, harbors, and navigable tidal rivers; and 5) plan, develop, maintain, use and operate
land transportation facilities within a 15 mile radius of the PDA-DPH headquarters in Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

As a result of the transfer of the Port to PDA, the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund
was transferred to PDA. This fund was set up for the purposes of initiating and implementing
harbor dredging projects and maintaining public piers. On July 1, 2001, also as a result of the
transfer of the Port to the PDA, the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was transferred to the PDA.
The Revolving Loan Fishery Fund was established in July 1994 by the Port through a Federal
Economic Development Administration grant in the amount of $810,000. The grant funds and
related interest earned thereon provide a revolving loan fund to offer direct assistance to the
fishing industry and to aid in the creation of economic opportunities within the industry.

Pursuant to Chapter 356, Laws of 2008, House Bill 65 was enacted by the State Legislature on
July 11, 2008. The bill: 1) provides that service of non-classified employees of PDA shall be
credited as continuous State service for all purposes; 2) makes PDA fund a nonlapsing fund for
the benefit of PDA-DPH; 3) requires a biennial report of the PDA-DPH; and 4) repeals provisions
relative to coordination with the Department of Resources and Economic Development, reports
on economic development programs and the Harbor Management Fund.

20 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

1. Reporting Entity (concluded)

On May 12, 2008, the State, through House Bill 1168-FN-LOCAL, passed legislation that required
the New Hampshire Department of Transportation ("NHDOT"”) to negotiate a lease, which
became effective November 1, 2008, with PDA for the operation of Skyhaven Airport ("DAW”)
located in Rochester, New Hampshire. With the passage of Chapter 113, Laws of 2009, enacted
onJune 22, 2009, the NHDOT was directed to convey ownership of DAW to PDA. The law required
that PDA accept ownership of, manage and operate DAW, and act as the official Airport owner,
operator, and sponsor. PDA accepted this transfer of ownership, from and after July 1, 2009
with no liability relative to any regulatory matters or causes of action arising prior to November
1, 2008.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements of PDA were prepared in accordance with U.S. Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles (*U.S. GAAP”) and as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (“GASB”), which is the primary standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. PDA uses enterprise fund reporting,
which uses the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, include cash which is
either held in demand deposit or short-term money market accounts, and highly liquid savings
deposits and investments with original maturities less than three months from the date acquired.

PDA maintains its cash in bank deposit accounts which, at times, may exceed federally insured
limits. PDA has not experienced any losses in such accounts. Management believes it is not
exposed to any significant risk on cash and cash equivalents.

Loans and Accounts Receivable

Loans and accounts receivable are carried at cost, less an allowance for doubtful accounts.
Receivable balances also include outstanding loans from the Revolving Loan Fishery Fund,
including principal plus accrued interest. Management provides an allowance for doubtful
accounts based on an analysis of accounts that are delinquent based on payment terms.
Accounts are written off when deemed uncollectible.

Capital Assets

Land, equipment, and buildings and facilities improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation is
computed using a straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which is
principally five to thirty-five years. Capital asset acquisitions that equal or exceed $5,000 are
capitalized. The cost of maintenance and repairs is charged against income as incurred, while
significant renewals and betterments are capitalized. Capital assets are depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following useful lives:

Capital Asset | Years
Buildings 35
Facilities Improvements 20
Equipment 5

21 |Fzgs



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Compensated Absences

Employees are granted sick and vacation leave in varying amounts. Upon retirement,
termination, or death, certain employees are compensated for unused sick and vacation leave
(subject to certain limitations) at their then current rates of pay. The liability for vacation leave
is based on the amount earned but not used; for sick leave, it is an estimated amount based on
the amount accumulated at the balance sheet date that would be paid upon retirement. The
liability for sick leave is reflected within noncurrent liabilities while vacation leave is included in
accounts payable and accrued expenses. The calculation is based on the salary rates in effect as
of the date of the statements of net position.

Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues include advance greens fees for the golf course, which are based upon a
percentage allocation of the total days the course expects to operate. In addition, unearned
revenues are recorded for mooring permits for the harbors and tidal waters and are based on
the expiration date of the permit. Rental income received in advance is also classified as
unearned revenues.

Net Pension Liability

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the New Hampshire Retirement System (“NHRS”) and additions to/deductions
from the NHRS's fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis as it is reported
by the NHRS.

Other Postemplovyment Benefits

For the purposes of measuring the net liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to other postemployment benefits (OPEB), and OPEB expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the NHRS OPEB Plan and the State of New
Hampshire OPEB Plan (“the State OPEB Plan”) have been determined on the same basis as they
are reported by NHRS and the State OPEB Plan.

Net Position
Net position is presented in the following categories:

e Net investment in capital assets represents capital assets, net of long-and
short-term debt that relates to the purchase of those assets.

o Restricted for specific purpose represents amounts that are expendable but
whose use is subject to an externally imposed restriction.

e Unrestricted represents the remaining balance of net position after the above
net position categories have been determined.

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net position
are available, management applies unrestricted net position first, uniess a determination is made
to use restricted net position. PDA's policy concerning which to apply first varies with the
intended use and legal requirements. Management typically makes this decision on a
transactional basis at the incurrence of the expenditure.

22 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

2.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (concluded)

Revenue Recoanition

Income from rental of facilities is recognized over the term of the lease net of provisions for
uncollectible accounts. Various other revenues are recorded when earned which is generally
when the related services are performed.

Operating and Nonoperating Income and Expenses

PDA distinguishes between operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items in the
preparation of its financial statements. PDA’s principal operating revenues result from charges
to tenants for the lease or license of property, providing services, and delivering goods.

Operating expenses for PDA include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting these definitions are
reported as nonoperating income and expenses.

Contributed Cabpital and Grants

Federal grants, received on a reimbursement basis, are recorded as contributed capital when
the related expenditures are capital related. Non-capital related grants are recognized as grant
revenue on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net position as other
miscellaneous revenues.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements
and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Change in Accounting Principle

During the year ended June 30, 2018, PDA adopted new accounting guidance, GASB Statement
No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions.
The changes made to the basic financial statements to comply with the new accounting standard
have been reported as an adjustment as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2018.
Because it was not practical for PDA to determine the amounts of all deferred inflows of resources
and outflows of resources related to the NHRS OPEB Plan and the State OPEB Plan as of June
30, 2017, the beginning balances of deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of
resources related to pensions have not been reported. The impact of the adoption of the new
accounting standards as of the beginning of the year ended June 30, 2018 was $9,861,025
and is reported as a cumulative effect of change in accounting principle.

23| - »



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

4. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, PDA’s deposits may not be
returned to it. Revised Statue Annotated (RSA) 12-G: 8 (XIII) empowers PDA to invest and
reinvest its funds and take and hold property as security for the payment of funds so invested.
PDA’s investment policy is more restrictive than applicable New Hampshire law in that it restricts
investments to the following: New Hampshire public deposit investment pool, federal agency
securities, repurchase agreements, commercial paper, money market funds, and certificates of
deposit. PDA’s policy does not explicitly address custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2019 and 2018, substantially all of PDA’s cash and equivalents were insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and the Depositors Insurance Fund.

5, Current Accounts Receivable - Net

Current accounts receivable - net was represented by the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Tenants $ 936,582 $ 561,275
Intergovernmental 253,729 1,503,416
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts (6,500) (6,500)
$ 1,183,811 $ 2,058,191

6. Other Current Assetls

Other current assets was represented by the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Inventories $ 410,260 $ 354,442
Prepaid Insurance 143,930 121,230
All Other 32,097 24,260

$ 586,287 $ 499,932

7. Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents was represented by the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance $ 379,084 $ 430,682
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund 195,613 48,428
Foreign Trade Zone 4,307 10,105
$ 579,004 $ 489,215




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

8. Restricted Loans and Accounts Receivable

Restricted loans and accounts receivable was represented by the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Revolving Loan Fishery Fund
Due Within One Year $ 155,736 $ 141,695
Due in More Than One Year 856,648 1,009,853
Tenants : 4,305 1,600

$ 1,016,689 $ 1,153,148

9. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2018 Additions Disposals Transfers 2019
Land $ 7,520,786 $ - $ - 3% - % 7,520,786
Buildings and
Facilities
Improvements 146,365,495 - - 1,072,283 147,437,778
Equipment 14,710,627 - = 780,879 15,491,506
Construction in
Process 2,026,638 3,146,877 & (1,853,162) 3,320,353
170,623,546 3,146,877 - - 173,770,423
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (103,567,318) (5,635,999) & = (109,203,317)
$ 67,056,228 $(2,489,122) $ - $ - $ 64,567,106

25| 7=



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

9. Capital Assets (concluded)

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2017 Additions Disposals Transfers 2018
Land $ 7,520,786 $ = $ - ¢ - $ 7,520,786
Buildings and
Facilities
Improvements 141,327,370 - (294,967) 5,333,092 146,365,495
Equipment 13,919,027 - (402,204) 1,193,804 14,710,627
Construction in
Process 1,303,772 7,250,912 - (6,528,046) 2,026,638
164,070,955 7,250,912 (697,171) (1,150) 170,623,546
Less Accumulated
Depreciation (98,399,479) (5,836,369) 668,530 - (103,567,318)
$ 65,671,476 $ 1,414,543 $ (28,641) $ (1,150) $ 67,056,228

10. Unearned Revenues

Unearned revenues (which are recognized when cash, receivables or other assets are recorded
prior to their being earned) consisted of the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Mooring Permits $ 257,935 $ 255,999
Golf Course Membership Fees 235,794 223,609
All Other 79,583 201,383
$ 573,312 $ 680,991

Mooring permits and golf course membership fees are collected primarily during the months of
January through March and amortized ratably over the corresponding seasons.

26 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

11.

12,

13.

Revolving Line of Credit Facility

PDA currently has a $15,000,000 unsecured Revolving Line of Credit Facility ("RLOC") secured
through The Provident Bank, which matures December 31, 2022. The terms of the RLOC provide
that a) the loan shall bear interest at a per annum rate equal to the thirty (30) day Federal
Home Loan Bank rate plus 250 basis points; and b) PDA shall maintain various covenants that
are to be reported on periodically. The proceeds of any draw on the RLOC are to be used for
general working capital purposes of PDA and cash flow needs for capital projects. There were no
amounts outstanding on this RLOC as of June 30, 2019 and 2018.

Due to City of Portsmouth ~ Waste Water Treatment Facility

In December 2000, the State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program’s debt outstanding
of $6,586,836 was assigned to COP. A supplemental loan agreement was entered into between
the State Water Pollution Control Revolving Fund program and COP in order to finance the
construction of the wastewater treatment plant upgrade. In conjunction with the assignment of
the debt to COP, a similar portion of the leasehold improvement for the wastewater treatment
facility was also transferred to COP. PDA agreed to pay an amount totaling $2,457,002 to COP.
Annual payments plus interest at 4.464% are payable through 2020. Amounts totaling
$116,290 and $232,580 were outstanding at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively.

Debt service requirements at June 30, 2019 are as follows:

Total
$ 121,482

Interest
$ 5,192

Year
2020

Principal
$ 116,290

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2019 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2018 Additions Reductions 2019 Year
Other Postemployment
Benefits $ 8,238,717 S $ (946,836) $7,291,881 ¢ -
Net Pension Liability 4,986,400 (602,008) 4,384,392 -
Retiree Health Benefit
Program 454,619 (181,847) 272,772 -
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 S 252,250 -
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water
Treatment Facility 232,580 (116,290) 116,290 116,290
Compensated
Absences- Net
95,673 (830) 94,843 -
$ 14,260,239 $ $(1,847,811) $12,412,428 $ 116,290

27 |72y



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

13. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (concluded)

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance Due in
June 30, June 30, One
2017 Additions Reductions 2018 Year
Other Postemployment
Benefits $ S 10,505,717 $(1,812,000) $ 8,238,717 $ -
Net Pension Liability 5,489,977 - (503,577) 4,986,400 S
Retiree Health Benefit
Program S 454,619 S 454,619 90,924
State of New Hampshire
Account Payable 252,250 - - 252,250 -
City of Portsmouth -
Waste Water
Treatment Facility 348,870 - (116,290) 232,580 116,290
Compensated
Absences- Net
105,472 - (9,799) 95,673 =
$ 6,196,569 $ 10,505,336 $ (2,441,666) $ 14,260,239 $ 207,214

14. Other Noncurrent Liabilities

Other noncurrent liabilities were represented by the following at June 30:

2019 2018
Retiree Health Benefit Program $ 272,772 $ 363,695
State of New Hampshire Account Payable 252,250 252,250
Compensated Absences- Net 94,843 95,673
City of Portsmouth- Waste Water
Treatment Facility S 116,290
$ 619,865 $ 827,908

15. Rental of Facilities

PDA has leasing arrangements with various parties for the rental of land, buildings, and airplane
hangars. Rentals are generally based upon set rental fees with additional payments based upon
gallons of fuel sold or dispensed, ramp parking fees per aircraft, and concession fees based upon
a stated percentage of car rentals. Lease arrangements are primarily for periods ranging from
one to forty-two years. These leases meet the criteria for classification as operating leases. PDA-
DPH has leases, licenses, and other arrangements with various parties for the use of land,

warehouse, and storage facilities.

28 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

15,

16.

17.

Rental of Facilities (concluded)

At June 30, 2019, the projected minimum future revenue from noncancelable rental agreements
is approximately:

Year Amount
2020 $ 9,693,000
2021 8,845,000
2022 7,965,000
2023 7,108,000
2024 6,780,000
Thereafter 74,757,000
$ 115,148,000

Municipal Service Fees

Effective July 1, 1998, PDA entered into an amended municipal services agreement with COP
and the Town of Newington to provide various municipal services, including police, fire, and
public works at the Tradeport. This agreement specifies that PDA, through its tenant’s payments,
shall pay COP a fee for the cost of services equal to the amount that would have been paid
annually as ad valorem taxes excluding any school tax component in respect to such property
within the Airport District. COP is responsible for service costs owed to the Town of Newington,
This agreement excludes, as part of the allocated area, the space occupied by PDA and any
space for public use in the PSM Terminal. The agreement includes completed facilities other than
PDA’s golf course or airport terminals within the Airport District operated by PDA for public or
other use. This agreement shall continue to be in force until one of the parties terminates the
agreement in writing.

Any tenant located outside the Airport District, unless otherwise exempt from taxation, shall pay
to COP a payment in lieu of taxes in accordance with the provisions of the New Hampshire law.

Airport Joint Use Agreement

The Department of the Air Force and PDA are parties to an Airport Joint Use Agreement
("“Agreement”) regarding the required use of the airport facilities at the Tradeport by the New
Hampshire Air National Guard as well as for other occasional government aircraft. Subject to
the terms and conditions of the Agreement, the federal government has the use of the airport
facilities in common with other users of the airport together with all necessary and conventional
rights of ingress and egress to and from the related facilities located at the airport.

The federal government is responsible for the functions detailed in the Agreement, including,
but not limited to, the following: air traffic control services, aircraft fire protection and crash
rescue. PDA is responsible for certain services and functions, including, but not limited to, the
following: maintenance of certain facilities, utilities, and other related services in connection
with maintaining an airport facility in accordance with Federal Aviation Administration
requirements. The current Agreement, which expired on September 30, 2018 is currently under
review by both parties.

29 | Va0 s



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

18.

19.

Risk Management

PDA is exposed to various risks of loss at the Tradeport and DAW related to torts; theft of,
damage to and destruction of assets; and natural disaster for which the PDA carries insurance.

PDA has a comprehensive airport liability insurance policy that will provide coverage generally
up to $25,000,000 for each occurrence and in the aggregate in any one annual period of
insurance. Other insurance coverage includes automotive, crime, employment practices, fire,
general liability, pollution, theft, and workers’ compensation. There have been no significant
changes in insurance coverage during the past fiscal year. Settlements did not exceed coverage
amounts during fiscal years 2019 and 2018.

In addition to purchasing insurance coverages, PDA maintains a risk transfer program. The PDA’s
agreements and leases include requirements to provide insurance coverage and coverage
provisions, which include: 1) naming PDA as an additional insured; 2) naming PDA as loss payee
on property coverage; 3) a waiver of subrogation; and 4) providing that such coverages be
primary and non-contributing with respect to coverage PDA maintains.

Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Plan Description

PDA participates in the NHRS, which, as governed by RSA 100-A, is a cost-sharing multiple-
employer contributory public employee defined benefit pension plan qualified under section
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (“Code”) and funded through a trust, which is exempt from
tax under Code section 501(a). NHRS is a contributory, defined benefit plan providing service,
disability, death and vested retirement benefits to members and their beneficiaries. NHRS retired
members receive a lifetime pension. Substantially all full-time state employees, public school
teachers and administrators, permanent firefighters and permanent police officers within the
State are eligible to participate in NHRS. RSA 100-A specifies the benefit terms provided to the
members of NHRS.

Although benefits are funded by member contributions, employer contributions and trust fund
assets, NHRS computes benefits on the basis of members’ Average Final Compensation ("AFC")
and years of creditable service. Unlike a defined contribution plan, NHRS benefits provided to
members are not dependent upon the amount of contributions paid into NHRS or the investment
return on trust assets.

To qualify for a normal service retirement, members must have attained the age of 60 years
old. However, a member who commenced service on or after July 1, 2011 shall not receive a
service retirement allowance until attaining the age of 65. The member may receive a reduced
allowance after age 60 if the member has at least 30 years of creditable service. The allowance
shall be reduced based on a formula, for each month by which the date on which benefits
commence precedes the month after which the member attains 65 years of age, by %4 of one
percent.

For members retiring prior to the age of 65, the yearly pension amount is 1.67% of AFC,
multiplied by years of creditable service. For members retiring at 65 or older, the yearly pension
amount is 1.52% of AFC, multiplied by years of creditable service. For members vested prior to
January 1, 2012, AFC is based on the highest three years of creditable service. For members
not vested prior to January 1, 2012, or hired on or after July 1, 2011, AFC is based on a member’s
highest five years of creditable service. At age 65, the yearly pension amount is recalculated
with an appropriate graduated reduction based on years and months of creditable service that
the member has at the time of retirement.

30| -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

19. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Contributions Reauired and Made

The Retirement Plan is financed by contributions from the members, PDA, and investment
earnings. Contributions required to cover that amount of cost not met by the members’
contributions are determined by a biennial actuarial valuation by the Retirement Plan’s actuary.
By statute, the Board of Trustees of NHRS administers the plan and is responsible for the
certification of employer and member contribution rates.

Commencing July 1, 2011, all Group I employees are responsible to accrue contributions at
7.00% while Group II (Police) employees accrue contributions at a rate of 11.55%. In terms of
the employer share of contributions made to the Retirement Plan, the pension contribution rate
for Group I employees was 11.08% for the two-year period ending June 30, 2019. Effective July
1, 2019, the employer share was decreased to 10.88% and will remain fixed through June 30,
2021. For Group II employees, effective July 1, 2017, the contribution rate was 25.33% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased
to 24.77% and will remain fixed though June 30, 2021.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, contributions to NHRS were $439,882 and
$452,516, respectively.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $4,384,392 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2017 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. PDA'’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018, PDA's
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.0911%.

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported a liability of $4,986,400 for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June
30, 2016 and a measurement date of June 30, 2017. The net pension liability was rolled forward
from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017. PDA’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
a projection of PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017, PDA’s
proportion of the net pension liability was 0.1014%.

31 | =R



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

19. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, PDA recognized pension expense of $437,862 and
$603,592, respectively.

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Net differences between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan
investments $ = $ 101,459
Changes in assumptions 303,422 S
Differences between expected and actual
experience 34,995 35,501
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of
contributions 107,614 490,535
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date
439,882 =
$ 885,913 $ 627,495

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources

Net differences between projected and actual

investment earnings on pension plan

investments $ - $ 63,504
Changes in assumptions 500,700 -
Differences between expected and actual
experience 11,306 63,463
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of

contributions 191,223 170,354
Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 452,516

$ 1,155,745 $ 297,321

32 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

19. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions (concluded)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability
in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ended Amount
June 30

2020 $ 106,946
2021 9,289
2022 (205,378)
2023 (92,321)

$ (181,464)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total pension liability at June 30, 2019 was determined by a roll forward of the
actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply
to 2017 measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry-Age Normal

Amortization method Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Remaining amortization period 21 years beginning July 1, 2018 (30 years beginning
July 1, 2009)

Asset Valuation Method 5 Year smoothed market for funding purposes;
20% corridor

Investment Rate of Return 7.25% net of investment expenses, including inflation

Salary Rate Increase 5.60% average, including inflation

Price Inflation 2.50%

Wage Inflation 3.25%

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 employee generational mortality tables for males
and females, adjusted for mortality improvements using Scale MP-2015, based on the last
experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 valuation were based on the results of the
most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2010 - June 30,
2015.

33 I £ -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

19. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (continued)

Long-Term Rates of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations and the geometric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Asset Class Allocation Allocation 2018 2017
2018 2017
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50% 4.25% 4.25%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 4.50 4.50
Total Domestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 13.00 4.50 4.50
Emerging International Equities 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.25
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 4.50 5.00 0.50 0.75
Short Duration 2.50 2.00 (0.25) (0.25)
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 11.00 11.00 1.80 2.11
Absolute Return Fixed Income 7.00 7.00 1.14 1.26
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 5.00 5.00 6.25 6.25
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4,25 4.75
Opportunistic 5.00 5.00 2.15 2.84
15.00 15.00
Real Estate 10.00 10.00 3.25 3.25
100.00% 100.00%

34|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

19. Defined Benefit Pension Plan (concluded)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at rates equal to
the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. For
purposes of the projection, member contributions and employer service cost contributions are
projected based on the expected payroll of current members only. Employer contributions are
determined based on the pension plan’s actuarial funding policy and as required by RSA 100-
A:16. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the
long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $ 5,833,470 $ 4,384,392 $ 3,170,021

Pension Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS’ website at https://www.nhrs.ord.

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at current market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date accounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

Changes in Assumption for Purposes of Contribution Rates

On July 1, 2016, the Board of Trustees of NHRS announced a change to adopt revised actuarial
assumptions based on the results of a five-year experience study conducted by the retirement
systems consulting actuary. Included in these changes was the lowering of the assumed rate of
return from 7.75% to 7.25%. This rate will be used to set employer contribution rates for fiscal
years 2019 and 2020.

3507 ¢



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

20. Other Postemployment Benefits ~ New Hampshire Retirement System
Plan Description

In addition to providing pension benefits, NHRS administers a cost-sharing multiple-employer
defined postemployment medical subsidy healthcare plan designated in statute (RSA 100-A:52,
RSA 100-A:52a and RSA 100-A:52-b) by membership type. The membership types are Group
1I Police Officer and Firefighters, Group I Teachers, Group I Political Subdivision Employees and
Group I State Employees. The NHRS OPEB Plan provides a medical insurance subsidy to qualified
retired members. The medical subsidy is a payment made by NHRS to the former employer or
their insurance administrator toward the cost of health insurance for a qualified retiree, his/her
qualified spouse, and his/her certifiably dependent children with a disability who are living in the
household and being cared for by the retiree. Under specific conditions, the qualified
beneficiaries of members who die while in service may also be eligible for the medical subsidy.
For qualified retirees not eligible for Medicare the subsidy amounts were $375.56 for a single-
person plan and $751.12 for a two-person plan. For those qualified retirees eligible for Medicare,
the amounts were $236.84 for a single-person plan and $473.68 for a two-person plan. There
have been no increases in the monthly maximum subsidy amounts since July 1, 2007. The plan
is closed to new entrants.

Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or before June 30, 2003 and have
10 years of service may become eligible for these benefits if they reach normal retirement age
while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic basis rather than a lump
sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires State Group I employees
hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of State service in order to qualify for health
coverage benefits. These and similar benefits for active employees are authorized by RSA 21-1:
30 and provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk Management Fund (the “Fund”),
which is the State’s self-insurance fund implemented in October 2003 for active State employees
and retirees.

Contributions Reauired and Made

The State Legislature has indicated it plans to only partially fund (on a pay-as-you-go basis) the
annual required contribution ("ARC"), an actuarially determined rate.

Plan members are not required to contribute to the OPEB Plans. PDA makes annual contributions
to the OPEB Plans equal to the amount required by RSA 100-a: 52. For all Group I employees,
effective July 1, 2017 the annual contribution rate was decreased from 1.64% to 1.07% and
remained fixed through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased
to 1.05% and will remain fixed through June 30, 2021. For Group II employees, effective July
1, 2017 the annual contribution rate was increased from 3.84% to 4.10% and remained fixed
through June 30, 2019. Effective July 1, 2019, the contribution rate decreased to 3.66% and
will remain fixed through June 30, 2021.

PDA’s contributions to NHRS for the OPEB Plans for the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018
were $45,758 and $45,795, respectively, which were equal to its ARC.

36| -



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

20. Other Postemployment Benefits — New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
“—__————l—_—_—___
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $384,676 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2017 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018. PDA’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2018 PDA's
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0.0840%.

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported a liability of $432,717 for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability. The net OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30,
2016 and a measurement date of June 30, 2017. The net OPEB liability was rolled forward from
June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017. PDA’s proportion of the net OPEB liability was based on a
projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to NHRS relative to the projected
contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30, 2017 PDA’s
proportion of the net OPEB liability was 0.0946%.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, PDA recognized OPEB expense of $1,485 and
$32,649, respectively.

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between project and actual investment
earnings on OPEB plan investments $ 2,258 $ -
Net difference between Projected and actual
investment earnings on OPEB plan investments
- 1,222
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions s 10,334
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
45,758 -
$ 48,016 $ 11,556

37 | 524



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

20. Other Postemployment Benefits - New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Net differences between project and actual investment
earnings on OPEB plan investments $ = $ 1,365
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and share of contributions = 2,095
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date
41,314 -
$ 41,314 $ 3,460

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability
in the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30

2020 $ (8,457)
2021 (381)
2022 (381)
2023 (79)
2024 =

$ (9,298)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2017 measurements:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Investment Rate of Return
Salary Rate Increase

Price Inflation

Wage Inflation

Healthcare cost trend rates
Aging factors

Entry-Age Normal

Level Percentage-of-Payroll, Closed

Not applicable, under satisfactory funding

7.25% net of investment expenses, including inflation
5.60% average, including inflation

2.50% per year

3.25% per year

Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends
Not applicable, given the benefits are fixed stipends

38 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

20. Other Postemployment Benefits ~ New Hampshire Retirement System (continued)

Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 healthy annuitant and employee generational
mortality tables for males and females, adjusted for mortality improvements using Scale MP-
2015, based on the last experience study.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of the
most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2010 - June 30,
2015.

Long-Term Rates of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was selected from a best
estimate range determined using the building block approach. Under this method, an expected
future real return range is calculated separately for each asset class. These ranges are combined
to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return net of investment expenses by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding
expected inflation.

Following is a table presenting target allocations and the geometric real rates of return for each

asset class:
Weighted Average
Long-Term Expected
Real Rate of Return
Target Target
Allocation Allocation
Asset Class 2018 2017 2018 2017
Large Cap Equities 22.50% 22.50% 4.25% 4.25%
Small/Mid Cap Equities 7.50 7.50 4.50 4.50
Total Domestic Equity 30.00 30.00
International Equities (Unhedged) 13.00 13.00 4.50 4,50
Emerging International Equities 7.00 7.00 6.00 6.25
Total International Equity 20.00 20.00
Core Bonds 4.50 5.00 0.50 0.75
Short Duration 2.50 2.00 (0.25) (0.25)
Global Multi-Sector Fixed Income 11.00 11.00 1.80 2.11
Absolute Return Fixed Income 7.00 7.00 1.14 1.26
Total Fixed Income 25.00 25.00
Private Equity 5.00 5.00 6.25 6.25
Private Debt 5.00 5.00 4.25 4.75
Opportunistic 5.00 5.00 2.15 2.84
15.00 15.00
Real Estate . 10.00 10.00 3.25 3.25
100.00% 100.00%

39|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

20. Other Postemployment Benefits - New Hampshire Retirement System (concluded)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 7.25%. The projection of cash
flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made
at the current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made under the current
statute by RSA 100-A:16. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments to current plan
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the collective total OPEB
liability.

Sensitivity Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 7.25%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(6.25%) (7.25%) (8.25%)
PDA'’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 400,373 $ 384,676 $ 340,708

OPEB Plan Fiduciarv Net Position

Detailed information about the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued NHRS annual report available from NHRS’ website at https://www.nhrs.org.

The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis used by NHRS.
NHRS’s financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Both plan
member and employer contributions are recognized in the period in which contributions are
legally due. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the plan. Investments are reported at fair value. Investments in both domestic and
non-U.S. securities are valued at current market prices and expressed in U.S. dollars. NHRS
uses a trade-date accounting basis for these investments. Investments in non-registered
commingled funds are valued at net asset value as a practical expedient to estimate fair value.

40 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

21. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire

Plan Description

RSA 21-1:30 specifies that the State provide certain health care benefits for retired employees
and their spouses through a single-employer (primary government and component units)
defined benefit plan. These benefits include group hospitalization, hospital medical care, surgical
care, and other medical care. Substantially all of the State’s employees who were hired on or
before June 30, 2003 and have 10 years of service may become eligible for these benefits if they
reach normal retirement age while working for the State and receive their pensions on a periodic
basis rather than in a lump sum. During fiscal year 2004, legislation was passed that requires
State Group I employees hired on or after July 1, 2003 to have 20 years of state service in order
to qualify for retiree health benefits. During fiscal year 2011, legislation was passed that requires
Group II employees to have 20 years of State service to qualify for retiree health benefits.
Additionally, during fiscal year 2012, legislation was passed requiring Group I employees hired
after July 1, 2011 to have 25 years of State service and increasing Group I and II employees
hired after July 1, 2011. These and similar benefits for active employees and retirees are
authorized by RSA 21-1:30 and provided through the Employee and Retiree Benefit Risk
Management Fund which is the State’s self-insurance internal service fund. The state OPEB Plan
funds the cost of medical and prescription drug claims by charging actuarially developed working
rates to State agencies for participating employees, retirees, and eligible spouses. An additional
major source of funding for retiree benefits is from the NHRS medical subsidy payment described
in Note 20. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75. The State administers the plan. It does not issue a separate stand-alone
financial report.

Contributions Reauired and Made

The State Legislature has indicated it currently plans to only fund the plan to cover benefit
payments (on a pay-as-you-go basis). PDA’s contributions to the State for the OPEB Plans for
the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018 were $115,910 and $181,000, respectively which were
equal to PDA’s share of benefit payments.

OPEB Liabilities. OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred

Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported a liability of $6,907,205 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2016 and a measurement date of June 30, 2018. The OPEB liability was rolled
forward from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2018. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was
based on a projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to the State relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30,
2018, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB Plan’s liability was 0.3616%.

41 | R



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

21, Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported a liability of $7,806,000 for its proportionate share of the State
OPEB Plan liability. The OPEB liability is based on an actuarial valuation performed as of
December 31, 2016 and a measurement date of June 30, 2017. The OPEB liability was rolled
forward from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2017. PDA’s proportion of the OPEB liability was
based on a projection of the PDA’s long-term share of contributions to the State relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers as actuarially determined. At June 30,
2017, PDA’s proportion of the State OPEB Plan’s liability was 0.3501%.

For the years ended June 30, 2019 and 2018, PDA recognized OPEB expense (credit) of
$(585,837) and $563,619, respectively.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB _Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2019, PDA reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ s $ 2,540,487
Differences between expected and actual experience - 41,471

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 514,000 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 115,910 S
$ 629,910 $ 2,581,958

At June 30, 2018, PDA reported deferred outfiows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred

Outfiows of Inflows of

Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ S $ 2,288,000
Differences between expected and actual experience S 23,000

Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contributions and share of contributions 375,000 -
Contributions subsequent to the measurement date 181,000 -
$ 556,000 $ 2,311,000

42 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

21. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB (concluded)

Amounts reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from PDA contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the OPEB liability in
the year ending June 30, 2020. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year Ended Amount
June 30

2020 $ (491,030)
2021 (491,030)
2022 (491,030)
2023 (491,031)
2024 (103,837)

($2,067,958)

Actuarial Assumptions

The collective total OPEB liability was determined by a roll forward of the actuarial valuation as
of December 31, 2016, using the following actuarial assumptions, which apply to 2018

measurements:

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal

Amortization method Level percent of payroll, open

Remaining amortization period 30 years

Investment Rate of Return Not applicable as there are no invested assets

Salary Rate Increase - Group I 13.25% decreasing over 9 years to an ultimate leve| of
3.75%

Salary Rate Increase — Group II 25.5% decreasing over 8 years to an ultimate level of
4.25%

Discount rate 3.87% as of June 30, 2018 and 3.58% as of June 30,
2017

Price Inflation 3.25% per year

Wage Inflation 3.25% per year

Heath care trend rates are based on the following:

s Medical
o Under 65: 7.4% for one year then (2.4%) for the following year and then 4.5%
per year
o Over 65: 1.4% for one year then (8.2%) for the following year, then (12.2%) for
the next year and then 4.5% per year

e Prescription Druas
o Under 65: 12.8% for one year, (7.89%) for the following year, then 8.5%
decreasing by .5% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5% per year
o Over 65: -6.1% for one year, 4.8% the following year, then 8.5% decreasing by
.5% each year to an ultimate level of 4.5% per year




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018
21. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (continued)

Actuarial Assumptions (continued):

¢ Contributions
o Retiree contributions are expected to increase with a blended medical and
prescription drug trend. First year trends reflect known changes in costs.

Mortality rates were based on the following:

+ Pre-retirement Mortality Rates — Healthy: RP-2014 Employee Mortality Table projected
generationally for males and females with Scale MP-2015

e Postretirement Mortality Rates:
o Healthy: RP-2014 Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally for
males and females with Scale MP-2015
o Disabled: RP-2014 Disabled Annuitant Mortality Table projected generationally for
males and females with Scale MP-2015

Mortality Rates (continued)

o The following scale factors for each member classification are applied to all mortality

tables:
Group I Group II - Police Group II - Fire
Scale - Male 116% 99% 100%
Scale - Female 124% 106% 101%

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2018 and 2017 valuations were based on the
results of the most recent actuarial experience study, which was for the period of July 1, 2010
to June 30, 2015.

Effective January 1, 2019, the State implemented a Medicare Advantage plan which is
anticipated to reduce the overall plan liability in the year of implementation.

Discount Rate
Because the State OPEB Plan is not funded, the discount rate is based on the yield or index rate
for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average rate of AA/Aa or

higher as shown in the Bond Buyer 20-Bond General Obligation Index. This determination is in
accordance with GASB Statement No. 75.

44|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

21. Other Postemployment Benefits — The State of New Hampshire (concluded)

Changes in Assumptions (concluded)

The trend assumptions were revised from the 2016 measurements to the 2018 measurements
to reflect current and future expectations. In addition, the discount rate used to measure the
total OPEB liability was increased from 3.58% as of June 30, 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2018.

Sensitivity Analvsis

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
discount rate of 3.87%, as well as what PDA’s proportionate share of the OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one-percentage-point lower or one-
percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
(2.87%) (3.87%) (4.87%)
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 7,783,409 $ 6,907,205 $ 5,931,847

The following presents PDA’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability calculated using the
current trend rates, as well as what PDA'’s proportionate share of the QOPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower or 1-
percentage-point higher than the current rates:

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rates 1% Increase
PDA’s Proportionate Share of the
Net OPEB Liability
$ 5,685,253 $ 6,907,205 $ 8,181,674

45 | v e



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

22. Commitments and Contingencies

Subsurface Investigation

During site subsurface investigations conducted at the Market Street Terminal (performed, in
part, to support storm water system improvements), the PDA-DPH'’s environmental consultant
found several areas of subsurface soils contaminated with significant levels of the heavy metal
mercury. Initial investigations reveal that this contamination is most likely associated with a
commercial wood preservation process that was located on a portion of the site and probably
operated on the site sometime after 1875 and terminated operations before the State acquired
title to the property in the 1960’s and prior to July 1, 2001 when PDA-DPH operations were
transferred from the State to the PDA. The completed study has been submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services and management is awaiting its review and
comment. As of June 30, 2019, no liability has been recorded for future pollution remediation
obligations, as the amount of any such liability is not reasonably determinable.

Grant Administration
PDA receives federal grants, which are subject to review and audit by the grantor agencies.
Although these audits could result in expenditure disallowances under the terms of the grants,

it is believed that any required reimbursements would not have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Construction Contracts

PDA had commitments under construction contracts associated with federal grants totaling
approximately $32,803,000 and $2,387,000 at June 30, 2019 and 2018, respectively. The more
significant commitments under construction contracts at June 30, 2019 included $24,316,000
for the PSM Runway Reconstruction project, $3,929,000 for the DPH Functional Replacement of
the Barge Dock and $4,084,000 for the PSM Terminal Expansion.

Litigation

From time to time, PDA is involved in pending or threatened lawsuits encountered in the normal
course of business. Management of PDA believes that the ultimate outcome of these matters, to
the extent not covered by insurance, will not have a material impact on PDA’s financial position
or operations.

46 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)
June 30, 2019 and 2018

22. Commitments and Contingencies (concluded)

Settlement Agreement- Conservation Law Foundation

On November 10, 2016, in an action brought under the Citizen Suit provision of the Clean Water
Act ("CWA"), the Conservation Law Foundation ("CLF") filed a complaint in the United States
District Court for the District of New Hampshire (the “court”) against PDA, its Executive Director,
and Board Members, alleging certain violations of the CWA’s permitting requirements. The
matter is captioned Conservation Law Foundation, Inc. v. Pease Development Authority. et al.,
Civil Action No. 1:16-cv-00493-SM. In particular, the Complaint alleged PDA failed to obtain and
comply with a Small Municipal Separate Storm Sewer System (Small MS4) permit and the
associated permit requirements. CLF’s Compliant sought injunctive relief and civil penalties.

On January 11, 2019, the Court issued a Joint Notice of Settlement. Elements of the Settlement,
which became effective March 9, 2019 (the “Effective Date”), require that the PDA shall;

1. Design and implement various measures concerning the PDA small MS4 including:

* Submit an application for and supplementary information related to a NPDES
Permit, renewal, or modification, for coverage of discharges subject to the Smali
MS4 permitting program;

e Design and implement:
> A public education and outreach program;
> An illicit discharge detection and elimination system;
> A construction and post-construction runoff and control programs;
> A pollution prevention and good housekeeping program; and

* Provide annual reporting to the CLF.

2. Within five years of the Effective Date, remove a minimum of five acres of Impervious
Surface, as defined.

3. Pay to CLF $800,000 as full and complete satisfaction of CLF’s claim for attorneys’ fees

and costs incurred or to be incurred, including any future attorneys’ fees and costs related
to the implementation or monitoring of compliance with the Settlement.

47 |



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

Schedule of Collective Net Pension Liabilitv

The following information is as of June 30:

2017

o 2018
Employer Proportion
of the Collective Net
Pension Liability

.0.0911%  0.1014%

Employer’s
Proportionate Share
of the Collective Net
Pension Liability

..$4,384,392

2016

0.1032%

$4,986,400  $5,489,977

2015

10.1074%

$4,255,991

Employer’s
Covered-Employee

Payroll

o ) $3,765,000  $3,803,000
Employer’s
Proportionate Share
of the Collective Net
Pension Liability as
a % of the
Employer's
Covered-Employee
Payroll .
Plan Fiduciary Net
Position as a % of
the Total Pension

Liability

.. 116.45%  131.12%

64.73%  62.66 %

Schedule of Emplovetr Contributions

The following information is for the years ended June 30:

... 2019 2018 2017
Required
Employer
Contribution
Actual Employer
Contributions
Excess /
(Deficiency) of
Employer
Contributions
Employer’s
Covered
Employee
Payroll
Employer
Contribution as
a % of the
Employer’s
Covered-
Employee
Payroll

...$439,882  $452,516  $ 413,003

$439,882  $452,516  § 413,003

$3,735,000  $3,765,000 $3,803,000

11.78%  12.02 % 10.86 %

$3,848,000

. 142.67%

58.30 %

.$417,908

$ 417,908

$3,848,000

$3,430,000

2016

10.86 %

124.08%

65.47 %

2015
$ 360,425

$ 360,425

- $3,430,000

10.51 %

2014

0.0982%

$3,687,154

$3,029,000

- 121.73%

66.32 %

2013

0.0967%

$4,163,828

$2,843,000

2014

$ 318,681 _

...$318,681

$3,029,000

10.52 %

Schedules are intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

48 | -

146.45%

. 99.81%

2013

$241,055

$241,055

$2,843,000

8.48 %



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONCLUDED) (UNAUDITED)

Notes to the Reauired Supplementary Information

Valuation Date:

Notes:

June 30, 2009 for determining the Fiscal Year 2013 contributions
June 30, 2011 for determining the Fiscal Year 2014 contributions
June 30, 2013 for determining the Fiscal Year 2015 contributions
June 30, 2014 for determining the Fiscal Year 2016 contributions
June 30, 2015 for determining the Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2016 for determining the Net Pension Liability
June 30, 2017 for determining the Net Pension Liability

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2017 to June
30, 2018 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2016 to June
30, 2017 reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual
benefit payments, refunds, and administrative expenses for the plan
year.

The roll-forward of the total pension liability from June 30, 2015 to June
30, 2016 reflects expected service cost and interest reduced by actual
benefit payments.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2012-2013 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2014-2015 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2011 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2016-2017 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2013 actuarial valuation.

Actuarial determined contribution rates for the 2018-2019 biennium were
determined based on the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.

49 |



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Schedule of Collective Net Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) Liability

(NHRS OPEB PLAN)

The following information is as of June 30:
- - - 2018
Employer Proportion of the
_Collective Net OPEB Liability
Employer’s Proportlonate Share of

the Collective Net OPEB Liability
Employer’s Covered-Employee

Payroll

Employers Proportlonate Share of

the Collective Net OPEB Liability as

a % of the Employer’s Covered-
Employee Payrof
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a %

of the Total OPEB Liability

10.0840%
$384,676

 $2,311,755

16.64 %

7.53%

0.0946%

$432,717

$2,523,561

17.15 %

7.91%

 0.0961%
$465,117

1$2,499,949

18.61 %

5.21%

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

Schedule of Emplover Contributions

The following information is for the years ended June 30:

2019
Required Employer Contrlbutlon $45,758
Actual Employer Contributions - ~ $45,758
Excess / (Deficiency) of Employer
Contributions % S
Employer’s C Covered Employee Payroll $2,369,549
Employer Contribution as a % of the
Employer’s Covered-Employee Payrolf 1.93%

2018

$45,795
$45,795

$ -
$2,311,755

1.98 %

2017
$56,092
$56,092

%

$2,523,561

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available,

Notes to the Required Supplementary Information

Notes:

2016

$
$
$
$2,¢

2.22%

55,827
55,827

99 949

2.24 %

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2017 to June 30, 2018 reflects

expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and

administrative expenses for the plan year.

The roll-forward of the total OPEB liability from June 30, 2016 to June 30, 2017 reflects
expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and

administrative expenses for the plan year.

50|



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED) (UNAUDITED)
June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013

Schedule of Collective Net Other Postemplovimment Benefits (OPEB) Liability
(STATE OPEB PLAN)

The following information is as of June 30:

. . 2018 2017 2016
Employer Proportion of the Collective Net
OPEB Liability _ 0.3616%  0.3501%  0.3345%
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the
Collective Net OPEB Liability ~$6,907,205 $7,806,000  $9,618,388
_Employer’s Covered-Employee Payroll  $3,765,000  $3,803,000  $3,848,000
Employer’s Proportionate Share of the
Collective Net OPEB Liability as a % of the
Employer’s Covered-Employee Payroll ~ 183.46 % 205.26 % - 249.96 %
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a % of the
Total OPEB Liability ) N 0.00 % 0.00 % - 0.00 %

Schedule is intended to show 10 years. Additional years will be added as they become available.

Notes to the Reauired Subplementary Information

There are no assets accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria in GASB 75 paragraph 4 to
pay related benefits.

Changes of assumptions: Changes in assumptions reflect trend assumption revisions to
reflect current experience and future expectations. The discount rate increased from 3.58% as
of June 30, 2017 to 3.87% as of June 30, 2018. The discount rate increased from 2.85% as
of June 30, 2016 to 3.58% as of June 30, 2017.

Notes: The roli-forward of the total OPEB liability from December 31, 2016 to June 30, 2018
reflects expected service and interest costs reduced by actual benefit payments, refunds, and
administrative expenses for the plan year.

KK K

51 |



Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Reports Required by Government Auditing
Standards and Uniform Guidance

Year Ended June 30, 2019

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

REPORTS REQUIRED BY GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
AND UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Year Ended June 30, 2019

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page(s)
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 1-2
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program; Report
on Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of
Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 3-5
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 6
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 7
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs:
Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results 8
Section II.  Findings Relating to the Financial Statements Which are
Required to be Reported in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards 9
Section III. Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards 9

Summary of Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 10



l' BerryDunn

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL
CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

We have audited, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States, the financial statements of Pease Development Authority (PDA), a
component unit of the State of New Hampshire, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered PDA’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control. Accordingly, we
do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of PDA’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist
that have not been identified. However, as described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs, we did identify a deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a material
weakness.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of PDA’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected
on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged with governance. We consider the deficiency described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as finding 2019-001 to be a material weakness.

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether PDA's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion
on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

PDA’s Response to Finding

PDA’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of
findings and questioned costs. PDA's response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied
in the audit of the financial statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
PDA’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering PDA’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Bangor, Maine
REPORT DATE



.|_ . BerryDunr

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE
FOR THE MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM; REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER COMPLIANCE; AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL
AWARDS REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on Compliance for the Major Federal Program

We have audited Pease Development Authority’s (PDA) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements described in the Office of Management and Budget Compliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2019,
PDA’s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for PDA's major federal program based on
our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our audit of
compliance in accordance with U.S generally accepted auditing standards; the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major
federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about PDA’s
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for the major
federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of PDA’s compliance.

berrydunn.com



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, PDA complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the
year ended June 30, 2019.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of PDA is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing
our audit of compliance, we considered PDA's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program to determine
the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on compliance for the major federal program and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an
opinion on the effectiveness of PDA's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such
that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.



Board of Directors
Pease Development Authority
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform
Guidance

We have audited the basic financial statements of PDA as of and for the year ended June 30, 2019,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise PDA’s basic financial
statements. We issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE, which contained an unmodified
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an
opinion on the basic financial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal
awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is
not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with U.S. generalily accepted
auditing standards. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in
all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

Bangor, Maine
REPORT DATE



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Federal Grant/Pass-Through
Grantor/Program Title

U.S. Department of Commerce:

Direct:
Economic Adjustment Assistance:
01-19-63007

Total U.S. Department of Commerce

U.S. Department of Homeland Security:

Direct:
Port Security Grant Program

Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security

U.S. Department of Transportation:

Direct:

Airport Improvement Program:
3-33-0016-058-2017
3-33-0016-060-2017
3-33-0016-061-2017

Passed-Through State of New Hampshire:

New Hampshire Department of Transportation:

Airport Improvement Program:
SPG-15-07-2016
SPG-15-08-2017

Total CFDA 20.106 and U.S. Department of
Transportation

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards

See accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards.

6

Federal
CFDA Number

Total
Federal
Expenditures

11.307

97.056

20.106
20.106
20.106

20.106
20.106

$ 1,239,196

1,239,196

23,325
23,325

308,452
102,660
37,402

23,444
514

472,472

$ 1,734,993



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the Schedule) includes the
federal grant activity of Pease Development Authority (PDA) during the year ended June 30,
2019. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title
2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the
Schedule presents only a portion of the operations of PDA, it is not intended to, and does not,
present the net position, changes in net position or cash flows of PDA.

Summary of Sianificant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such
expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in Office of Management
and Budget Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal Governments, for
federal agreements entered into before December 26, 2014, and the Uniform Guidance for
federal agreements entered into on or after December 26, 2014, wherein certain types of
expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement. Pass-through entity
identifying numbers are presented where available.

PDA has not elected to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate.

Calculation of Economic Adiustment Assistance Grant Expenditures

Economic Adjustment Assistance grant expenditures reported in the Schedule have been
calculated as follows:

Balance of revolving loan fund loans outstanding $ 1,012,384
Cash and cash equivalent balances 195,613
Administrative expenses paid out during the fiscal year 31,199

$_1,239,196



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section I. Summary of Auditor’s Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? X __yes no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? yes X__ none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X __no
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified not considered to
be material weaknesses? yes X ___ none reported

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with Uniform Guidance? yes X __no

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Proaram or Cluster

11.307 U.S. Department of Commerce:
Economic Adjustment Assistance

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between
Type A and Type B programs: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X ___yes no



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

Section II Findinas Relating to the Financial Statements Which are Reauired to be

Reported in Accordance with Government Auditina Standard

Finding Number:

Criteria:

Condition Found:

Cause and Effect:

Recommendation:

Views of a Responsible
Official and Corrective
Action Plan:

2019-001

PDA is responsible for designing, implementing and maintaining
effective internal controls over financial reporting that provide
reasonable assurance that internal controls will prevent misstatements
or detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis, intentional or
unintentional, from occurring.

In our audit procedures in the area of capital assets we noted an
addition to construction in process that was recorded in fiscal year 2019
for services rendered in fiscal year 2018. The invoice related to a
project paid for directly by the state, and therefore when it was
recorded by PDA in 2019, it was recorded as an asset and capital
contribution revenue.

The condition identified related to the cut-off surrounding revenue and
capital assets for expenditures reimbursed by the state. The result of
the cut-off error was that capital contribution revenue and capital
assets were understated in 2018 and capital contribution revenue was
overstated in 2019.

We recommend that the finance team develop a more effective review
procedure to ensure these type of transactions are recorded in the
correct period in the future.

Management agrees with the finding. See attached Corrective Action
Plan.

Section III. Findings and Questioned Costs for the Maior Federal Proaram

None noted.




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
(A Component Unit of the State of New Hampshire)

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

Year Ended June 30, 2019

NONE

10



m
>
m

e
> m

o |
e
z

c<

=™ %
T |z
o09|»
—Am

< Z >
=]

Schedule of Findings and Questions Costs
Views of Responsible Officials and Planned Corrective Actions
Year Ended June 30, 2019

Finding 2019-001

We concur with the finding as the invoice in question was dated July 5, 2018 for services
performed during the period June 5 through July 2, 2018. Our current internal control procedures
require the review of all invoices for fiscal year-end accrual by both the Senior Accountant and
the Director of Finance. On a historical basis, our fiscal year-end accrual process has been
comprehensive with no exceptions noted through the external audit review. That said, we will
develop and implement a corrective action plan to ensure that all future fiscal year-end accruals
are complete and accurate.

This corrective action plan will be completed no later than November 1, 2019.

Responsible Party: Irving Canner, CPA
Director of Finance

Phone: 603.766.9282.

r PR

- i M

b i L7
~A/2)

4 __a' ’r, -/’ N

N

TAKING YOU THERE






Y

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL S5 interviglional Drive,

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

September 24, 2019

VIA Email: Kathryn.a.lapierre@nhes.nh.gov

NH Employment Security

ATIN: Kathryn A. LaPierre, Bureau Operations Specialist
45 South Fruit Street

Concord, NH 03301

Re:  Right of Entry — 360 Corporate Drive Parking Lot & 100 New Hampshire
Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Ms. LaPierre:

This letter will authorize the NH Employment Security (“NHES”) and/or its agents and
contractors to enter upon the premises located at 360 Corporate Drive and 100 New Hampshire
Avenue, as shown in the attached Exhibit A (the “Premises”) on September 24, 2019 for use as
overflow vehicle parking as part of a Job Fair being held at the Great Bay Community College
from 11:00 a.m. t0 4:00 p.m. This Right of Entry will expire at the close of business on September
24, 2019, unless otherwise extended by agreement of NHES and Pease Development Authority.

This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

l. NHES’s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that its
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risks of loss
or damage to property and injury or death to persons by reason of or incident to its entry or the
entry by any of its employees, agents or contractors upon the premises and/or the exercise of any
of the authorities granted herein. NHES expressly waives all claims against the Pease
Development Authority (“PDA”) for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or
occurring as a consequence of NHES’s use of the Premises or the conduct of activities or the
performance of responsibilities under this authorization.

2. NHES’s agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the
Premises. NHES acknowledges and agrees that, except as otherwise set forth herein, no legal
rights or interests shall arise with respect to the Premises.

3. NHES’s agreement herein that the Premises will be used on an “as is” condition.

TAKING YOU THERE



Kathryn A. LaPierre

NH Employment Security
* September 24, 2019

Page 2

4, NHES’s agreement to leave the Premises in the same or better condition as existed
at the commencement of the term of this ROE.

Please indicate by your signature below NHES’s consent and return the same to me,

Very truly yours,

avid R. Mullen
Executive Director

DRM/rao

Agreed and accepted thisﬁday of ;Eﬁ@@ﬂ'@[( , 2019

NH LO INT SECURITY
By: 25" il e, 4 D0vﬂ;, COM}J’JI'aAC.\

Duly authorized
Print Name:__Cictoof  (gten§
Print Title: Dqﬂb CoomeSC8i0aen

PAROENH Employment Securily ROE - 360 Comporte Drive Job Fair 9-24-19.docx



Kathryn A. LaPierre

NH Employment Security
September 24, 2019

Page 3

EXHIBIT “A”

Potential Staging Area at 360 Corporate Dr DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: B/819  SCALE: 1"=100's
P:% -~ PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 5S INTERNATICHAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

e
s e B 4o o



Kathryn A. LaPierre

NH Employment Security
September 24, 2019

Page 4

I-'q'

PR '*wf,rrfwrg }’ oo ]
“ﬂﬁ;{"‘"‘* ,yf&f}% ::?; -85 ACRES TI

Potential Parking/Staging Areas DESIGNED BY: MRM  DATE: 82113 SCALE: 1"=200":

F‘;J PEASE DEYELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIGNAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, HH 23801

e




.
AS

INTERNATIO
DEVELOPME
AUTHORIT

-
Zzm

October 3, 2019

VIA Email: JQuental@NECLcom
Jordyn Quental

NECI

260 Forbes Blvd.

Mansfield, MA 02048

Re:  Right of Entry — 360 Corporate Drive Parking Lot, Pease International
Tradeport, Portsmouth, NH

Dear Ms. Quental:

This letter will authorize NECI and/or its agents and contractors to enter upon the premises
located at 360 Corporate Drive, as shown in the attached Exhibit A (the “Premises) on October
16,2019 from 3:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m. and October 17,2019 from 2:00 p.m. to 7:041 p.m. for use as
overflow vehicle parking as part of an Open House being held at 200 International Drive, Suite
290. This Right of Entry will expire on October 17, 2019 at 7:00 p.m., unless otherwise extended
by agreement of NEC[ and Pease Development Authority.

This authorization is conditioned upon the following:

i. NECT’s agreement herein that any use of the Premises is at its sole risk and that jts
signature below constitutes its agreement to assume full responsibility for any and all risk of loss
or damage 1o property and ijury or death to persons by reason of or incident 10 its eniry or the
entry by any of its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees upon the Premises and/or the exercise
of any of the authuditios giawicd heiein, NECI expressiy waives ail claims agamnst the Pease
Development Authority for any such loss, damage, personai injury or death caused by or occurring
as a consequence of NECI's and its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or
the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this authorization. NECI
further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmiess, and defend the Pease Development Authority, its
officers, board members, agents and employees, from and against all suits, claims, demands or
actions, liabilities, judgements, costs and attorney’s fees arising out of or related to NECY's, and
its employees, agents, patrons, or invitees use of the Premises or any activities conducted or
undertaken in connection with or pursuant to this authorization.

2. NECI understands and acknowledges that this Right of Entry: (a) allows only
temporary use of the Premises; (b) is granted on a non-exclusive basis; and (¢) may be revoked at
will by PDA or terminated at will and that PDA need not state a reason for any such revocation or

TAKING YOU THERE



Page Two
October 3, 2019

Re:  Right of Entry — 360 Corporate Drive Parking Lot, Pease International Tradeport,
Portsmouth, NH

termination.  The use of the Premises shal} be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance
and shall not cause disruption to other Alrport activities.

3. NECI, and/or any agent of NECI, providing to the Pease Development Authority
satisfactory evidence of comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than Two
Million Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence, naming the Pease Development Authority as an
additional insured; automobile liability insurance in the amount of One Million Dollars
($1,000,000.00), and evidence of workers compensation coverage to statutory limits.

Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision
that no act or omission of any employee, officer or agent of NECI which would otherwise result
in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shali affect or limit the obligation of
the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained; (ii) provide that the insurer shall
have no right of subrogation against Pease Development Authority; and (iit) a provision that any
liability insurance coverage required to be carried shall be primary and non-contributing with
respect to any insurance catried by PDA. It is the intent of NECI that such policies will not be
cancclled.  Should a policy cancellation oceur, PDA will be advised in accordance with policy
provisions.

4. NECI’s agreement that all vehicles parked at the Premises will be driven to and
from the Premises by its patrons to scif-park vehicles on the Premises. NECI's Surther
agreement to take such steps as may be required to ensure that vehicles are not left on the
Premises in excess of the term limits of this Right of Entry and to assume fulf responsibility for
the removal of velicle(s) left on the Premises.

5. NECT agrees the vehicles may only be parked in the Premises. PDA has the right,
in its sole discretion, to terminate all of or any portion of the Premises used for vehicle parking as
a priority for Pease operations.

6. NECI accepts the Premises as-is.  PDA shall not be responsible for damages to
property or injuries to persons which may arise from or be attributable or incident to the condition
or state or repair of the Premises, or the use and oceupation thereof, or for damages to the property
or injuries to the person of NECI’s patrons, officers, agents, servants or employees, or others who
may be on the Premises at its invitation.

7. NECUs agreement to restore the Premises to the same or better conditions existing
prior to the commencement of this Right of Entry.



Page Three

Oclober 3, 2019

Re:  Right of Entry - 360 Corporate Drive Parking Lot, Pease International Tradeport,
Portsmouth, NH

8. NECI's agreement herein that this letter of authorization does not constitute a grant
of an exclusive interest in the Premises, an option to lease the Premises or an offer to lease the
Premises.

Please indicate by your signature below NECI’s consent to the terms and conditions of
this Right of Entry and return the sane to me for countersignature.

David R. Mullen
Executive Director

DRMfrao

Agreed and accepted this _7_ day of _ Qctober , 2019

NECI

By: / Ww
(/

Dyly authorized /
Print Name: <3, 7an /['?’afll?c

Print Title: Eg‘g:ﬁ[v;‘ Agn[ﬁ@'

P ROBEWNECT ROE - 380 Corporate Dinve 10-16 & 10-17 doex



EXHIBIT “A”

Potential Staging Area at 360 Corporate Dr DELIGHED BY MRM DATE /13 3CALE: 17=100's

&a—}- PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY S5 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, KH 83801

=




MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
approves of and authorizes the Executive Director to execute a License with
Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C & J Bus Lines (“C & J") of Portsmouth, NH for
the purpose of satellite parking of C & J customer vehicles. The License is
effective from November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2020: all in
accordance with the License attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\20191Jalbert (C & J) License 10-17.docx

U TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
LICENSE

This LICENSE is made by and between the PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 55
International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (“Licensor” or "PDA") and JALBERT LEASING,
INC., d/b/a C&J BUS LINES, with a principal place of business located at 185 Grafton Drive,
Portsmouth, New Hampshire ("Licensee"). PDA and Licensee may be referred to jointly as the
"Parties".

RECITALS

A. PDA is an agency of the State of New Hampshire established pursuant to RSA ch.
12-G, "Pease Development Authority," and is authorized to enter into this License pursuant to the
provisions contained therein. Licensee is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of
New Hampshire.

B. This License is subject and subordinate to all agreements between PDA and the
United States of America or the United States Air Force including, but not limited to, the Federal
Facilities Agreement (“FFA”) and the Quitclaim Deeds recorded at the Rockingham County
Registry of Deeds (collectively referred to as the “Deed”) dated October 15, 2003 and September
16, 2005 granted by the United States of America (the “Government”), acting by and through the
United States Air Force (“Air Force”) to PDA, all as hereinafter defined. The Parties acknowledge
that the Deed imposes certain requirements on Licensee which are addressed in the terms and
conditions of this License. By acceptance of this License the Licensee hereby acknowledges that
it must abide by and conform to those terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Deed as
set forth herein.

C. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required
under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act 0f 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq. has been entered into by the Air Force, the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that this
FFA also imposes certain requirements upon PDA and Licensee which are addressed in the terms
and conditions of this License. A copy of the FFA is attached to the Deed. Recording information
is set forth in Exhibit 1. The term “FFA” shall include any amendments to said document.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, PDA and Licensee hereby
agree as follows:

PDA grants to Licensee, for a period beginning on November 1, 2019 through October 31 ,

2020, a non-exclusive License to use four (4) designated parking areas, all as otherwise referenced
in paragraph 21 herein and as designated on Exhibit A ("Licensed Premises"), attached hereto and

-1-



made a part of this License. PDA retains the right to reduce or adjust the designated parking areas
based on the need of PDA operations, subject to an equitable adjustment to the License Fee. PDA
retains the right to temporarily use the Licensed Premises with advanced notice to and coordination
with the Licensee.

Licensee may use the Licensed Premises for valet parking of customer vehicles and for no
other uses without the prior express written consent of the PDA. Licensee expressly represents
and agrees that its customers shall not be allowed to self-park vehicles on the Licensed Premises.

This License shall terminate on October 31, 2020 unless the Board of Directors of Pease
Development Authority expressly approves an extension of the License beyond said date.

Licensee is strictly prohibited from storing any “Hazardous Substances” (as that term is
defined in Exhibit B attached hereto) on the Licensed Premises. Subject to PDA advanced written
approval, Licensee may erect signage to designate the parking area reserved for its use (subject to
the retained rights of the PDA). Licensee may also utilize parking passes to identify vehicles which
are authorized to utilize the Licensed Premises. PDA will cooperate with Licensee in any
reasonable action which may be required to ensure that the use of the Licensed Premises is reserved
for Licensee’s use. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall be solely responsible for towing
unauthorized vehicles from the Licensed Premises and further agrees that PDA shall incur no
liability or financial responsibility associated with the towing of any such unauthorized vehicle.

This License is granted subject to these additional conditions:

I. The use, occupation and maintenance of the Licensed Premises shall be: (a) on a
triple net basis without cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the general supervision and
approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA may reasonably
prescribe from time to time.

2. Licensee acknowledges that it has inspected the condition of the Licensed Premises
and that said Licensed Premises are in good and tenantable condition for the use contemplated in
this License. Licensee accepts the Licensed Premises on an "as is," "where is" condition
without any representation, warranty or obligation on the part of the PDA to make any
alterations, repairs, or improvements or as to the use or occupancy which may be made
thereon. PDA shall not be responsible for any latent or other defect or change in condition in said
Licensed Premises.

3. Licensee understands and acknowledges that this License: (a) allows only
temporary use of the facilities; and (b) may be terminated as provided in Paragraph 12, and that
PDA need not state a reason for any such termination. Licensee's use of the Licensed Premises
shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other
Airport activities.

4, Licensee will, at all times, protect, repair and maintain the Licensed Premises in

-2



good order and condition at its expense and without cost or expense to PDA. The Licensee shall
during its occupancy of the Licensed Premises pick-up and secure any and all trash or debris
observed on the Licensed Premises. All trash and debris shall be removed from the Licensed
Premises on a regular basis.

5. Licensee shall, at its own expense, promptly repair or replace to the satisfaction of
the PDA any PDA or State of New Hampshire property damaged or destroyed by Licensee or its
invitees incident to the exercise of the privileges granted herein.

6. No addition, alteration, change, or improvement (including erection of signage) to
the Licensed Premises shall be made without the prior written consent of PDA, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. PDA reserves the right to impose conditions on
any such work to the extent such conditions are consistent with applicable governmental
regulations, codes, standards or other requirements, including fire, safety and building codes and
Land Use Controls promulgated by PDA, applicable provisions of the FFA and the Deed.

7. Licensee will at all times during the existence of this License, promptly observe
and comply, at its sole cost and expense, with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the
protection and enhancement of environmental quality, pollution control and abatement, safe
drinking water, and solid and hazardous waste. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall be
permitted, upon five (5) days’ notice, to terminate this License without any further cost or
obligation if it determines (in its sole discretion) that compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations or standards would be unduly burdensome or expensive.

a. Responsibility for compliance with such laws, rules, regulations and
standards rests exclusively with Licensee. PDA assumes no enforcement or supervisory
responsibility except for matters committed to its jurisdiction. Licensee shall assume
responsibility for and pay all costs relating to: (i) any modification required to meet applicable
federal, state and local standards or compliance with other applicable laws, regulations, or
standards; or (ii) associated with compliance, defense of enforcement actions or suits, payment of
fines, penalties, or other sanctions and remedial costs.

b. This condition does not constitute a waiver of Federal Supremacy or State
or federal sovereign immunity. Only laws and regulations applicable to the Licensed Premises
under the Constitution and statutes of the United States and State of New Hampshire are covered
by this condition.

8. PDA or any other agency of the State of New Hampshire, their officers, agents,
employees, and contractors may enter upon the Licensed Premises, upon reasonable prior notice
and at mutually agreeable times, to inspect the Licensed Premises for compliance with
environmental, safety and occupational health laws and regulations, whether or not PDA is
responsible for enforcing them and Licensee shall have no claim on account of such entries against
PDA, the State of New Hampshire or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof when

-3



made in accordance with this Agreement.

a. Licensee acknowledges that Pease has been identified as a National Priority
List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response Compensation and Liability
Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. Licensee acknowledges that PDA has provided it with a
copy of the FFA entered into by the EPA, NHDES, and the Air Force on April 24, 1991 and
Modification No. 1 thereto, effective March 18, 1993 and agrees that it will comply with the terms
of the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the Licensed Premises and that should any
conflict arise between the terms of the FFA or the provisions of this License, the terms of the FFA
will take precedence.

b. The Air Force, the EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees,
contractors, and subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to Licensee, to enter upon
the Licensed Premises to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary drilling,
testpitting, borings, and any other response or remedial action related to the Pease Air Force Base
Installation Restoration Program (IRP) or FFA. These inspections, surveys or other response or
remedial actions will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with a representative designated by
Licensee. Licensee agrees to comply with the provisions of any health or safety plan implemented
by any person during the course of such response or remedial action. Licensee shall have no claim
on account of such entries against the United States or the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent, employee, or contractor thereof except for any intentional or negligent act or omission or
breach of this Agreement by PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors and
subcontractors.

c. [Reserved]
d. [Reserved]

9. PDA shall not be responsible for damage to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the exercise of the privileges granted under this
License (including the condition or state of repair of the Licensed Premises and its use and
occupation by Licensee and its invitees), or for damage to the property of Licensee, or for damage
to the property or injuries to the person of Licensee's officers, employees, servants, agents,
contractors, or others who may be on the Licensed Premises at their invitation or the invitation of
any one of them, arising from governmental activities on the Licensed Premises, except to the
extent arising out of any intentional or negligent act or omission or breach of this Agreement by
PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors.

a. Subject to the foregoing, Licensee agrees to assume all risks of loss or
damage to the Licensed Premises including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other
property and bodily injury or death to persons by reason of the exercise of the privileges granted
herein, and will settle and pay any claims arising out of the use and occupancy of the Licensed
Premises. Subject to the foregoing, Licensee expressly waives all claims against PDA and the
State of New Hampshire, for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or

_4-



occurring by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Licensed Premises or as a
consequence of the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this License.

b. Licensee agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend (with
counsel acceptable to the PDA) the PDA and the State of New Hampshire (the "State") including,
their officers, employees, and agents from and against all suits, claims, or actions of any sort
resulting from, related to or arising out of Licensee’s negligence, intentional act or breach of this
Agreement and any costs, expenses, liabilities, fines, or penalties resulting from discharges,
emissions, spills, releases, storage, disposal of any substance or matter resulting from Licensee’s
use of the Licensed Premises under this License. This provision shall survive the expiration or
termination of this License and Licensee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever PDA or the
State incur costs or liabilities for Licensee's actions of the types described herein.

c. Licensee shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Licensed Premises,
including any, improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from its use and
occupancy of the Licensed Premises.

d. During the entire period this License shall be in effect, Licensee at its
expense will carry and maintain comprehensive general liability coverage on an occurrence basis
for any and all claims and liability, including without limitation bodily injury, death and property
damage insurance occurring on, in or about the Licensed Premises arising in connection with
Licensee’s use of the Premises (limits of liability shall not be less than Four Million ($4,000,000)
per occurrence; workers' compensation and employee's liability insurance in such amounts and
form which meet all applicable labor laws of the State of New Hampshire, as amended from time
to time, and which specifically covers the persons and risks involved in this License; automobile
liability insurance coverage to a limit of not less than One Million dollars ($1 ,000,000) per incident
for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, for any loss, damage, personal injury or death
caused by or occurring by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Licensed
Premises or as a consequence of the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities
under this License.

€. [Reserved]

f. All policies or certificates issued by the respective insurers shall: (i) name
the PDA as an additional insured (excepting workers compensation); (ii)provide that any losses
shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of the PDA or any other
person, provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA; (iii) provide that
the policies shall not be canceled without first providing PDA with thirty (30) days advance written
notice, except in cases involving the non-payment of a premium, in which case ten (10) days shall
be acceptable; (iv) provide that Licensee’s coverages shall be primary and non-contributing with
respect to any insurance policy carried by PDA and otherwise be reasonably satisfactory to the
PDA in all other respects. In no circumstances will the Licensee be entitled to assign to any third
party rights of action which licensee may have against PDA. Licensee shall deliver or cause to be
delivered to PDA a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance required by the License prior

-5-



to occupancy of the Licensed Premises.

10.  On or before the date of expiration of this License, or within two (2) business days
after its termination, Licensee shall vacate the Licensed Premises, remove all its personal property
therefrom, remove any vehicles from the Licensed Premises, and restore and return the Licensed
Premises to PDA, clean and in the same or better condition than their condition at the
commencement of the term of this License, reasonable wear and tear excepted. If Licensee shall
fail or neglect to remove all vehicles from the Licensed Premises and to restore the Premises, then
at the option of PDA, PDA may remove the vehicles and restore the Premises at the expense of
Licensee, and no claim for damage against PDA or its officers, employees, or agents shall be
created by or made on account of such removal and restoration work.

11.  This License is effective only insofar as the rights of PDA in the property involved
are concerned, and Licensee shall obtain such permission as may be necessary on account of any
other existing rights. Licensee acknowledges that PDA is subject to certain restrictions on the use
of the Licensed Premises in accordance with the FFA and the Deed. Notwithstanding any other
provisions of this License, Licensee shall also comply with and be subject to the restrictions in the
Deed and FFA to the extent applicable to the Licensed Premises or to any rights granted to
Licensee under this License in the same manner and to the same extent as PDA is obligated under
the Deed and FFA.

12.  This License may be terminated by either party without cause on sixty (60) days
written notice to the other party for Lots 1, 2, and 4, and on thirty (30) days written notice to the
other party for Lot 3, and if such notice shall be so given this License shall terminate on the sixtieth
(60th) or thirtieth (30) day following the date of such notice. PDA may terminate this License for
cause for any material breach of the terms of this License, including, but not limited to, the failure
to pay the License fee or such other charges as may be assessed in connection with the use of the
Premises in accordance with this License, by PDA providing fifteen (15) days written notice to the
Licensee and if such notice shall be so given and such breach is not cured, this License shall
terminate on the fifteenth (15th) day following the date of such notice.

13. This License shall not be transferred or assigned.

14. No notice, order, direction, determination, requirement, consent and/or approval
under this License shall be of any effect unless it is in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to
this License shall be sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; addressed, if
to PDA:

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Attn: Executive Director

and if to Licensee to: Jalbert Leasing, Inc. d/b/a C&J Bus Lines
185 Grafton Drive

-6-



Portsmouth, NH.03801
Attn: :r o Les

or at such other address or addresses as PDA or Licensee may from time to time designate by
notice given by certified mail. Every notice, demand, request or communication hereunder sent
by mail shall be deemed to have been given or served as of the third (3rd) business day following
the date of such mailing.

15.  [Reserved]

16. Licensee shall not discriminate against any person or persons or exclude any
persons from participation in Licensee's operations, program, or activities conducted on the
Licensed Premises because of race, color, age, sex, handicap, national origin or religion. Licensee,
by acceptance of this License, hereby gives assurance that the provisions of Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000(d)); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 US.C. §
6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794) and the Department of
Defense Directive 5500.11, May 27, 1971, as amended 32 CFR pt 300) will be complied with.

17. This License shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Hampshire and may only be modified or amended by mutual agreement of the parties
in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the respective parties hereto.

18.  This License may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

19. This License is subject and subordinate to any agreements heretofore or hereafter
made between PDA and the United States or the Air Force, the execution of which is required to
enable or permit transfer of rights or property to PDA for airport purposes or expenditure of federal
grant funds for airport improvement, maintenance or development, including, without limitation,
the Deed and FFA. Licensee shall abide by requirements of any agreement between PDA and the
United States or the Air Force applicable to the Licensed Premises or Licensee's activities at the
Airport and shall consent to amendments and modifications of this License if required by such
agreements or as a condition of PDA's entry into such agreements.

20.  The rights of Licensee under this License shall be subordinate to PDA's rights to
manage the Airport and other common areas and roadways, which rights shall include, without
limitation, the right to impose, reasonable rules and regulations relating to use of the Airport
common areas and roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the designation
and use of all airfield facilities and parking areas, entrances, exits, roadways and other areas of the
Airport, to the extent all of the foregoing are not part of the Licensed Premises.

Licensee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations
which apply to the conduct of the use contemplated, including rules and regulations promulgated

-7 -



by PDA. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that although Licensee’s License to the Licensed
Premises 1s exclusive, the uses authorized herein are not granted on an exclusive basis as to the
Airport as a whole and that PDA may enter into licenses, leases or other agreements with tenants
and/or other users of the Airport in other areas thereof for similar, identical or competing uses.

21.  Licensee shall pay PDA, on a monthly basis, a License Fee of:

Lot1 Durham/Aviation 0.93 acres $1,181.57/mo.
Lot 2 47 Durham Street 0.94 acres $1,194.27/mo.
Lot 3 Hampton Street South 0.90 acres $1,143.45/mo.
Lot 4 Hampton Street North 0.89 acres $1.130.75/mo.

TOTAL: $4,650.04/mo.

The License Fee shall be payable in each case on the first (1st) day of each month without offset
in lawful money of the United States at the office of PDA, or at such other address as PDA may
hereafter designate. The first monthly payment shall be made in advance on or before the
commencement date of this License Agreement. The License Fee for any fractional portion of a
calendar month at the beginning or end of the term of this License shall be a similar fraction of the
License Fee due for an entire month.

22. [Reserved]

23.  In addition to the License Fee required to be paid to the PDA, the Licensee shall
also pay to the PDA, as additional rent, a municipal services fee in accordance with the Municipal
Services Agreement by and between the City of Portsmouth, the Town of Newington, and the
PDA, effective July 1, 1998. This fee is for fire, police, and roadway services provided by or on
behalf of the PDA and will be subject to increases each year only to the extent the cost of providing
such services increases. The municipal services fee shall be paid quarterly in advance at the time
and in the fashion provided for the payment of the License Fee. To the extent the Licensed
Premises are subject to municipal taxation, and provided such municipal taxation includes the costs
of provision of fire, police, and roadway services, the Licensee may offset against any fee paid to
PDA the portion of such municipal taxes as are attributable to fire, police, and roadway services,
and the PDA shall have no further obligation to provide such services. For so long as municipal
taxes are imposed against the Licensed Premises, or on the Licensee for all three of fire, police,
and roadway services, and PDA either has no obligation to provide such services, or ceases to
provide such services, the municipal services fee required to be paid under this License shall
terminate.

24.  Paving and Striping. Licensee may not pave or stripe any of the Licensed Premises
without the express written consent of the PDA, which may withhold its consent for any reason,
or no reason at all.

25. Snow Removal. Licensee will be responsible for snow removal and associated
sanding and salting services of the Licensed Premises. Licensee or any contractor of the Licensee

-8-



shall also obtain certification by the New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services as a
Commercial Salt Applicator. Certification includes the successful completion of the Green SnoPro
training program. All personnel employed in snow removal operations shall be familiar with salt
reduction measures.

26.  Each party hereto warrants to the other that it has no dealings with any real estate
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this License.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 1o day of October 2019,
by authority of the Pease Development Authority.

Pease Development Authority

By: A ;&‘VQ

David R. Mullen, Executive Director

This License, together with all terms and conditions thereof, is hereby accepted and
executed by Licensee, Jalbert Leasing, Inc., this |0 day of October, 2019

Jalbert Leasing, Inc.

C}Q) W
By: ,L/L /
Du %Aﬂm@%’(/
dlimie Lesnaade

(Print Name)

Titee N ce Pvesudendt




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

On this \D day of Oﬁ\"obu/ , 2019, before me,
QO\&L\‘N, A oNg |\ a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
David R. Mullen personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence)
to be the Executive Director of the Pease Development Authority and on oath stated that he was

authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the

uses and purposes set forth herein.
“Aadin A-Oile, 8

Not(ary Public in and for said County and State
Aaclin A. ONel Printed Name: e line A ORNe L

¢ the Peace/Notary Public My commission expires: goi vlaz
Justice @

piration: October 11, 2022

Ex

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF Rock\va
[y

On this (O day of @) Aol - , 2019, before me,
Sosan Rociur |l aNotary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
Toamie ) ecnte < personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence) to be the Vice Prosicdeont of Jalbert Leasing, Inc. and on oath stated that
he/she was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free and

voluntary act for the uses and purposes set fom

b’Notar\}/f Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name: SOSav 1Kock well

My commission expires:_7/22 /2020

PAC&TROFWarkig License CJ (10-2019 12 months) docx ”Hm""m“\\\\\

-10 -



EXHIBIT 1
QUITCLAIM DEEDS
and

FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT

The FFA is incorporated into the Deeds which are on record at the
Rockingham County Registry of Deeds

October 15, 2003 Quitclaim Deed @ Book 4227 Page 001

September 16, 2005 Quitclaim Deed @ Book 4564 Page 985

-11 -



EXHIBIT A

LICENSED PREMISES

C8.J Trailways Satellite Parking at 42 Durham Street DesiGHen av: mRM DATE: 111917 SCALE:17=50°

)-%::—:; PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIOMAL DRIVE, PORTSHOUTH, NH 03K01

o g v ey

-12-



-

UESIGNATER PARK

Satellite Parking for C&J DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 10/1018  SCALE: 1"=60'%
»‘;*;. = PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

P e SacliT eumam 1 iy

-13-



Satellite Parking for C&J DESIGNED BY: MRM DATE: 11/9/17 SCALE: 1"=100'

A’;'-:': PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 55 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE, PORTSMOUTH, NH 03801

angraarcad sl s3laee Eubingd

-14-



EXHIBIT B

As used in this License, the term "Hazardous Substances" means any hazardous or toxic
substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, which is or becomes regulated by any
local governmental authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government.
The term "Hazardous Substances" includes, without limitation, any material or substance which
is (i) defined as a "hazardous waste," under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a
"hazardous substance" under New Hampshire RSA ch. 147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other
petroleum product, (iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous substance pursuant to
Part He. P 1905 ("Hazardous Waste Rules") of the New Hampshire Code of Administrative
Rules, (vi) designated as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the Federal Water
Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §1317, (vii) defined as a "hazardous waste" pursuant to Section
1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq. (42
U.S.C. §6903), or (viii) defined as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 101 of the
Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et
seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601) and (ix) so defined in the regulations adopted and publications
promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, or as such laws or regulations may be further
amended, modified or supplemented (collectively "Hazardous Substance Laws").

As used in this License, the terms "release" and "storage" shall have the meanings

provided in RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided
in RSA 147-A:2.

-15-






z
—
m

lw)
> M
c<
M=
7|z
o°>>
o~
oW
<2l
| r—lll

MOTION

Director Lamson:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to execute
Amendment No. 8 to the Parking License Agreement with Lonza Biologics,
Inc. for parking spaces located at 55 International Drive. The License
Amendment is extended from November 1, 2019 through October 31,
2020; all in accordance with License Agreement Amendment No. 8,

attached hereto.

N;\RESOLVES\2019\Lonza Parking - 55 Intl Dr 10-17.docx

" TAKING YOU THERE






License Agreement Amendment No. 8§
Licensor: Pease Development Authority (“PDA” or “Licensor™)
Licensee: Lonza Biologics, Inc. (“Lonza” or “Licensee”™)
Licensed Premises:  Parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH

License Date: October 31, 2011

This License Agreement Amendment No. 8 made effective November 1, 2019, by and
between PDA and Licensee:

WHEREAS, Licensee desires to extend its License, as amended, through October 3 1,2020
for the continued use of the parking area adjacent to 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, NH (the
“Premises”);

WHEREAS, PDA has agreed to extend the term of the License through October 31, 2020;

NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is
acknowledged, the Parties agree to amend the License as follows:

1. The term of the License is extended for one (1) year from November 1, 2019
through October 31, 2020.

2. Licensee shall pay a License Fee of Nine Hundred Thirty and no/100 Dollars
($930.00) per month.

3. All other terms and conditions of the License shall remain in full force and effect
and continue to be binding upon the Parties.

Date: , 2019 Date: , 2019
Lonza Biologics, Inc. Pease Development Authority
By:

Duly Authorized David R. Mullen

Executive Director

(Print Name)
Title:

PALONZAParking\Parking License Amd 9 docx






z
—
m

N/
™

(e}
4

oi-
> m

c<
M=
= b4
ol b
|-
=
-z
- m
<Z >
= |-

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to complete negotiations and to execute
a License with VMD Systems Integrators, Inc. for a period of three (3) years
effective November 1, 2019 through October 31, 2022, for the use of
designated office space (utilizing a break room, an office, locker rooms
and an on-site training room) at the airport terminal. This agreement will
allow the airport to meet the TSA requirements to provide designated areas
to store security sensitive information, conduct recurrent training and
support employee work breaks; all in accordance with the same terms and
conditions set forth in the Memorandum from Paul E. Brean, Airport
Director, dated October 2, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\VMD License 10-17.docx

"V TAKING YOU THERE

dev.org






z
™

A
T

55 International Drive Porismouth, NE 03801

o
z

U_
> m
c<
=M%
T |z

o0%|>
< |-
]

-=Z
= m
<Z|n
el ol

Memorandum

To:  David R. Mullen, Executive Director e

From: Paul E. Brean, Deputy Director & PSM Airport Director /Q_\C\;,%
Date: 10/2/2019

Subj: License Agreement VMD Systems Integrators, Inc.

VMD Systems Integrators, Inc. (“VMD?”) is the Transportation Security Administration’s
(“I'SA”) security screening contractor for passenger and baggage screening at
Portsmouth International Airport at Pease. The Pease Development Authority (“PDA”)
seeks approval of the Board of Directors at the October 17, 2019, meeting to enter into a
License Agreement with VMD for the use of designated office space (utilizing a break
room, an office, locker rooms and an on-site training room) at the airport terminal. This
agreement will allow the airport to meet the TSA requirements to provide designated
areas to store security sensitive information, conduct recurrent training and support
employee work breaks. This agreement will commence on November 1, 2019, and run
for three (3) years through October 31, 2022.

PABOARDMTG\2015\VMD Board Memo10-17-19.docx

427-G433 WWW L L8RS LGEY.0IG






PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
LICENSE

This LICENSE is made by and between the PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY, 55
International Drive, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (“Licensor” or "PDA") and VMD SYSTEMS
INTEGRATORS, INC. with a principal place of business located at 11440 Commerce Park Drive,
Suite 400, Reston, Virginia 20191 ("Licensee"). PDA and Licensee may be referred to jointly as
the "Parties".

RECITALS

A. PDA is an agency of the State of New Hampshire established pursuant to RSA ch.
12-G, "Pease Development Authority," and is authorized to enter into this License pursuant to the
provisions contained therein. Licensee is a corporation organized under the laws of the State of
New Hampshire.

B. This License is subject and subordinate to all agreements between PDA and the
United States of America or the United States Air Force including, but not limited to, the Federal
Facilities Agreement (“FFA”) and the Quitclaim Deeds recorded at the Rockingham County
Registry of Deeds (collectively referred to as the “Deed”) dated October 15, 2003 and September
16,2005 granted by the United States of America (the “Government”), acting by and through the
United States Air Force (“Air Force”) to PDA, all as hereinafter defined. The Parties acknowledge
that the Deed imposes certain requirements on Licensee which are addressed in the terms and
conditions of this License. By acceptance of this License the Licensee hereby acknowledges that
it must abide by and conform to those terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Deed as
set forth herein.

C. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required
under Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability
Act 0f 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq. has been entered into by the Air Force, the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that this
FFA also imposes certain requirements upon PDA and Licensee which are addressed in the terms
and conditions of this License. A copy of the FFA is attached to the Deed. Recording information
is set forth in Exhibit 1. The term “FFA” shall include any amendments to said document.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other
valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, PDA and Licensee hereby
agree as follows:

PDA grants to Licensee, for a period beginning on November 1, 2019 through October 31,
2022, to enter upon designated portions of the Air Passenger Terminal Building at Portsmouth
International Airport at Pease for the purpose of utilizing a break room, an office, locker rooms (in
conjunction with Federal entities), and an on-site training room, and for no other use, as designated
on Exhibit A ("Licensed Premises"), attached hereto and made a part of this License. PDA retains



the right to reduce or adjust the Licensed Premises based on the need of PDA operations, subject
to an equitable adjustment to the License Fee. PDA retains the right to temporarily use the
Licensed Premises with advanced notice to and coordination with the Licensee.

This License shall terminate on October 31, 2022 unless the Board of Directors of Pease
Development Authority expressly approves an extension of the License beyond said date.

Licensee is strictly prohibited from storing any “Hazardous Substances” (as that term is
defined in Exhibit B attached hereto) on the Licensed Premises. PDA will cooperate with
Licensee in any reasonable action which may be required to ensure that the use of the Licensed
Premises is reserved for Licensee’s use.

This License is granted subject to these additional conditions:

1. The use, occupation and maintenance of the Licensed Premises shall be: (a) except
as otherwise set forth herein, without cost or expense to the PDA; (b) subject to the general
supervision and approval of the PDA; and (c) subject to such rules and regulations as the PDA
may reasonably prescribe from time to time.

2. Licensee acknowledges that it has inspected the condition of the Licensed Premises
and that said Licensed Premises are in good and tenantable condition for the use contemplated in
this License. Licensee accepts the Licensed Premises on an "as is," '"where is'" condition
without any representation, warranty or obligation on the part of the PDA to make any
alterations, repairs, or improvements or as to the use or occupancy which may be made
thereon. PDA shall not be responsible for any latent or other defect or change in condition in said
Licensed Premises.

3. Licensee understands and acknowledges that this License: (a) allows only
temporary use of the facilities; and (b) may be terminated as provided in Paragraph 12, and that
PDA need not state a reason for any such termination. Licensee's use of the Licensed Premises
shall be orderly and efficient, shall not constitute a nuisance and shall not cause disruption to other
Airport activities.

4. Licensee will, at all times, protect, repair and maintain the Licensed Premises in
good order and condition at its expense and without cost or expense to PDA. The Licensee shall
during its occupancy of the Licensed Premises pick-up and secure any and all trash or debris
observed on the Licensed Premises and place in appropriate receptacles.

5. Licensee shall, at its own expense, promptly repair or replace to the satisfaction of
the PDA any PDA or State of New Hampshire property damaged or destroyed by Licensee or its
invitees incident to the exercise of the privileges granted herein.

6. No addition, alteration, change, or improvement (including erection of signage) to
the Licensed Premises shall be made without the prior written consent of PDA, which consent
shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. PDA reserves the right to impose conditions on
any such work to the extent such conditions are consistent with applicable governmental



regulations, codes, standards or other requirements, including fire, safety and building codes and
Land Use Controls promulgated by PDA, applicable provisions of the FFA and the Deed.

7. Licensee will at all times during the existence of this License, promptly observe
and comply, at its sole cost and expense, with the provisions of all applicable federal, state and
local laws, rules, regulations and standards, and in particular those provisions concerning the
protection and enhancement of environmental quality, pollution control and abatement, safe
drinking water, and solid and hazardous waste. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Licensee shall be
permitted, upon five (5) days’ notice, to terminate this License without any further cost or
obligation if it determines (in its sole discretion) that compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations or standards would be unduly burdensome or expensive.

a. Responsibility for compliance with such laws, rules, regulations and
standards rests exclusively with Licensee. PDA assumes no enforcement or supervisory
responsibility except for matters committed to its jurisdiction. Licensee shall assume
responsibility for and pay all costs relating to: (i) any modification required to meet applicable
federal, state and local standards or compliance with other applicable laws, regulations, or
standards; or (ii) associated with compliance, defense of enforcement actions or suits, payment of
fines, penalties, or other sanctions and remedial costs.

b. This condition does not constitute a waiver of Federal Supremacy or State
or federal sovereign immunity. Only laws and regulations applicable to the Licensed Premises
under the Constitution and statutes of the United States and State of New Hampshire are covered
by this condition.

8. PDA or any other agency of the State of New Hampshire, their officers, agents,
employees, and contractors may enter upon the Licensed Premises, upon reasonable prior notice
and at mutually agreeable times, to inspect the Licensed Premises for compliance with
environmental, safety and occupational health laws and regulations, whether or not PDA is
responsible for enforcing them and Licensee shall have no claim on account of such entries against
PDA, the State of New Hampshire or any officer, agent, employee, or contractor thereof when
made in accordance with this Agreement.

a. Lessor and Lessee acknowledge that the Airport has been identified as a
National Priority List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act (CERCLA), as amended (42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq.). Lessee
acknowledges that Lessor has provided it with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement
(“FFA”) entered into by EPA, and the Air Force on April 24, 1991, and Modification No. 1
thereto, effective March 18, 1993, and Lessee agrees that it will comply with and be bound by
the terms of the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the Leased Premises and that
should any conflict arise between the terms of the FFA and the provisions of this Lease, the
terms of the FFA will take precedence. The Lessee further agrees that the Lessor assumes no
liability to the Lessee or any sublessee(s) or assignee(s) of Lessee should implementation of the
FFA interfere with their use of the Leased Premises. The Lessee and its sublessee(s) and
assignee(s) shall have no claim on account of any such interference against the Lessor, Air
Force, EPA, State, NHDES, or any officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof, other than for



abatement of rent.

Pursuant to its obligations under Federal law, the Air Force has provided and Lessee
acknowledges receipt of the "Notices and Covenants Related to Section 120(h)(3) of CERCLA,
as amended.” The notice and a description of remedial action by the Air Force are set forth in
Paragraph VI of the Deed.

b. The Air Force, the EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees,
contractors, and subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to Licensee, to enter upon
the Licensed Premises to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary drilling,
testpitting, borings, and any other response or remedial action related to the Pease Air Force Base
Installation Restoration Program (IRP) or FFA. These inspections, surveys or other response or
remedial actions will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with a representative designated by
Licensee. Licensee agrees to comply with the provisions of any health or safety plan implemented
by any person during the course of such response or remedial action. Licensee shall have no claim
on account of such entries against the United States or the State of New Hampshire or any officer,
agent, employee, or contractor thereof except for any intentional or negligent act or omission or
breach of this Agreement by PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors and
subcontractors.

C. [Reserved]
d. [Reserved]

9. PDA shall not be responsible for damage to property or injuries to persons which
may arise from or be attributable or incident to the exercise of the privileges granted under this
License (including the condition or state of repair of the Licensed Premises and its use and
occupation by Licensee and its invitees), or for damage to the property of Licensee, or for damage
to the property or injuries to the person of Licensee's officers, employees, servants, agents,
contractors, or others who may be on the Licensed Premises at their invitation or the invitation of
any one of them, arising from governmental activities on the Licensed Premises, except to the
extent arising out of any intentional or negligent act or omission or breach of this Agreement by
PDA or any of PDA's officers, agents, employees, contractors and subcontractors.

a. Subject to the foregoing, Licensee agrees to assume all risks of loss or
damage to the Licensed Premises including any building(s), improvements, fixtures or other
property and bodily injury or death to persons by reason of the exercise of the privileges granted
herein, and will settle and pay any claims arising out of the use and occupancy of the Licensed
Premises. Subject to the foregoing, Licensee expressly waives all claims against PDA and the
State of New Hampshire, for any such loss, damage, personal injury or death caused by or
occurring by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Licensed Premises or as a
consequence of the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities under this License.

b. Licensee agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless, and defend (with
counsel acceptable to the PDA) the PDA and the State of New Hampshire (the "State") including,
their officers, employees, and agents from and against all suits, claims, or actions of any sort



resulting from, related to or arising out of Licensee’s negligence, intentional act or breach of this
Agreement and any costs, expenses, liabilities, fines, or penalties resulting from discharges,
emissions, spills, releases, storage, disposal of any substance or matter resulting from Licensee’s
use of the Licensed Premises under this License. This provision shall survive the expiration or
termination of this License and Licensee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever PDA or the
State incur costs or liabilities for Licensee's actions of the types described herein.

c. Licensee shall bear all risk of loss or damage to the Licensed Premises,
including any, improvements, fixtures or other property thereon, arising from its use and
occupancy of the Licensed Premises.

d. During the entire period this License shall be in effect, Licensee at its
expense will carry and maintain comprehensive general liability coverage on an occurrence basis
for any and all claims and liability, including without limitation bodily injury, death and property
damage insurance occurring on, in or about the Licensed Premises arising in connection with
Licensee’s use of the Premises, limits of liability shall not be less than Four Million ($4,000,000)
per occurrence; workers' compensation and employee's liability insurance in such amounts and
form which meet all applicable labor laws of the State of New Hampshire, as amended from time
to time, and which specifically covers the persons and risks involved in this License; automobile
liability insurance coverage to a limit of not less than One Million dollars ($1,000,000) per incident
for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles, for any loss. damage, personal injury or death
caused by or occurring by reason of or incident to the possession and/or use of the Licensed
Premises or as a consequence of the conduct of activities or the performance of responsibilities
under this License.

e. [Reserved]

£ All policies or certificates issued by the respective insurers shall: (i) name
the PDA as an additional insured (excepting workers compensation); (ii)provide that any losses
shall be payable notwithstanding any act or failure to act or negligence of the PDA or any other
person, provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA; (iii) provide that
the policies shall not be canceled without first providing PDA with thirty (30) days advance written
notice, except in cases involving the non-payment of a premium, in which case ten (10) days shall
be acceptable; (iv) provide that Licensee’s coverages shall be primary and non-contributing with
respect to any insurance policy carried by PDA and otherwise be reasonably satisfactory to the
PDA in all other respects. In no circumstances will the Licensee be entitled to assign to any third
party rights of action which licensee may have against PDA. Licensee shall deliver or cause to be
delivered to PDA a certificate of insurance evidencing the insurance required by the License prior
to occupancy of the Licensed Premises.

10. On or before the date of expiration of this License, or within two (2) business days
after its termination, Licensee shall vacate the Licensed Premises, remove all its personal property
therefrom, and restore and return the Licensed Premises to PDA, clean and in the same or better
condition than their condition at the commencement of the term of this License, reasonable wear
and tear excepted. If Licensee shall fail or neglect to restore the Premises, then at the option of
PDA, PDA may restore the Premises at the expense of Licensee, and no claim for damage against



PDA or its officers, employees, or agents shall be created by or made on account of such restoration
work.

11.  This License is effective only insofar as the rights of PDA in the property involved
are concerned, and Licensee shall obtain such permission as may be necessary on account of any
other existing rights. Licensee acknowledges that PDA is subject to certain restrictions on the use
of the Licensed Premises in accordance with the FFA and the Deed. Notwithstanding any other
provisions of this License, Licensee shall also comply with and be subject to the restrictions in the
Deed and FFA to the extent applicable to the Licensed Premises or to any rights granted to
Licensee under this License in the same manner and to the same extent as PDA is obligated under
the Deed and FFA.

12.  This License may be terminated by either party without cause on sixty (60) days
written notice to the other party, and if such notice shall be so given this License shall terminate
on the sixtieth (60th) following the date of such notice. PDA may terminate this License for cause
for any material breach of the terms of this License, by PDA providing fifteen (15) days written
notice to the Licensee and if such notice shall be so given and such breach is not cured, this License
shall terminate on the fifteenth (15th) day following the date of such notice.

13. This License shall not be transferred or assigned.

14. No notice, order, direction, determination, requirement, consent and/or approval
under this License shall be of any effect unless it is in writing. All notices to be given pursuant to
this License shall be sent by certified mail, postage prepaid, return receipt requested; addressed, if
to PDA:

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Attn:  Executive Director

and if to Licensee to: VMD Systems Integrators, Inc.
11440 Commerce Park Drive — Suite 400
Reston, VA 20191
Attn:

or at such other address or addresses as PDA or Licensee may from time to time designate by
notice given by certified mail. Every notice, demand, request or communication hereunder sent
by mail shall be deemed to have been given or served as of the third (3rd) business day following
the date of such mailing.

15. [Reserved]
16. Licensee shall not discriminate against any person or persons or exclude any

persons from participation in Licensee's operations, program, or activities conducted on the
Licensed Premises because of race, color, age, sex, handicap, national origin, ancestry, or religion.



Licensee, by acceptance of this License, hereby gives assurance that the provisions of Title VI of
the Civil Rights Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000(d)); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42
U.S.C. § 6102); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended (29 U.S.C. § 794) and the Department
of Defense Directive 5500.11, May 27, 1971, as amended 32 CFR pt 300) will be complied with.

17. This License shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the
State of New Hampshire and may only be modified or amended by mutual agreement of the parties
in writing signed by a duly authorized representative of each of the respective parties hereto.

18. This License may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be
deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.

19. This License is subject and subordinate to any agreements heretofore or hereafter
made between PDA and the United States or the Air Force, the execution of which is required to
enable or permit transfer of rights or property to PDA for airport purposes or expenditure of federal
grant funds for airport improvement, maintenance or development, including, without limitation,
the Deed and FFA. Licensee shall abide by requirements of any agreement between PDA and the
United States or the Air Force applicable to the Licensed Premises or Licensee's activities at the
Airport and shall consent to amendments and modifications of this License if required by such
agreements or as a condition of PDA's entry into such agreements.

20. The rights of Licensee under this License shall be subordinate to PDA's rights to
manage the Airport and other common areas and roadways, which rights shall include, without
limitation, the right to impose, reasonable rules and regulations relating to use of the Airport
common areas and roadways and the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the designation
and use of all airfield facilities and parking areas, entrances, exits, roadways and other areas of the
Airport, to the extent all of the foregoing are not part of the Licensed Premises.

Licensee shall comply with all federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations
which apply to the conduct of the use contemplated, including rules and regulations promulgated
by PDA. Licensee acknowledges and agrees that although Licensee’s License to the Licensed
Premises is exclusive, the uses authorized herein are not granted on an exclusive basis as to the
Alrport as a whole and that PDA may enter into licenses, leases or other agreements with tenants
and/or other users of the Airport in other areas thereof for similar, identical or competing uses.

21. Janitoria] Services - PDA will provide janitorial services to the Licensed Premises.
Such services shall include sweeping, vacuuming, floor waxing and trash removal.

22. Maintenance and Utilities - PDA shall furnish utility services for lighting, heating
and air conditioning of the Licensed Premises.

23. The Air Passenger Terminal Building and areas behind the Portsmouth
International Airport security fence are part of the Airport Security Identification Display Area
(“SIDA”). VMD personnel will, to the extent as may be required, obtain security badges in order
to gain access to and remain in the SIDA. While in the SIDA, escort procedures per the
requirements of the Portsmouth International Airport at Pease Security Program (if applicable)
must be met. Prior to accessing the SIDA, VMD personnel must undergo verification of their

7



employment history for the past ten (10) years, attend a training class that is offered no more than
once every two weeks. Information regarding SIDA requirements can be obtained by calling the
Airport Management Department at (603) 433-6536, Monday through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00
p.m. No representative, employee or agent of the VMD will be allowed in the SIDA without
authorized escorts unless such individuals have been issued security badges pursuant to the Pease
International Tradeport Security Program. No administrative processing fee will be assessed in
connection with issuing security badges to VMD personnel. However, PDA reserves the right to
assess a fee for lost or unreturned badges.

24,  PDA reserves the right to relocate the Licensed Premises to alternate facilities
within the Air Passenger Terminal Building if such becomes necessary due to Air Passenger
Terminal Building expansion plans or other business reasons. In the event relocation becomes
necessary, PDA agrees it will make a good faith effort to provide the VMD with comparable
facilities to the ones being occupied and utilized in connection with this Right of Entry.

25. Modification - This Agreement may be modified upon the mutual consent of the
both parties.
26. Other Provisions - Nothing in this Agreement is intended to conflict with current

law or provisions or the directives of VMD or the PDA. If a term of this Agreement is inconsistent
with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the remaining terms and conditions of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

217. Additional Responsibilities:

VMD.

A. Notify PDA in advance of future space needs including amount of space,
duration and activity to take place within that space.

B. Vacate the Licensed Premises in a timely manner upon request of the
PDA.

PDA.

A. Allow VMD to occupy the Licensed Premises and the use thereof at no cost
to VMD.

B. Notity VMD in writing if PDA wishes VMD to either vacate or pay rent for
the Licensed Premises. Such notice shall be given in accordance with
Section 14 of this Agreement.

28.  Each party hereto warrants to the other that it has no dealings with any real estate
broker or agent in connection with the negotiation of this License.



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this day of October 2019,
by authority of the Pease Development Authority.

Pease Development Authority

By:

David R. Mullen, Executive Director

This License, together with all terms and conditions thereof, is hereby accepted and
executed by Licensee, VMD Systems Integrators, Inc., this day of October, 2019.

VMD Systems Integrators, Inc.

By:

Duly Authorized

(Print Name)

Title:




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM

On this day of , 2019, before me,
a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
David R. Mullen personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence)
to be the Executive Director of the Pease Development Authority and on oath stated that he was
authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and voluntary act for the
uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF
On this day of , 2019, Dbefore me,

a Notary Public in and for said County and State, personally appeared
personally known to me (or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory
evidence) to be the of VMD Systems Integrators, Inc. and on oath
stated that he/she was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his/her free
and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State
Printed Name:
My commission expires:

PATERMINAL\WYMD Systems\VMD License Agr.docx

10



EXHIBIT 1
QUITCLAIM DEEDS
and

FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT

The FFA is incorporated into the Deeds which are on record at the
Rockingham County Registry of Deeds

October 15, 2003 Quitclaim Deed @ Book 4227 Page 001

September 16, 2005 Quitclaim Deed @ Book 4564 Page 985

11



=
=)
7t

1

SATLILE

e
il
s
s
O
=

2f 3

Trmin

"

PRW

EXHIBIT A

LICENSED PREMISES

[prag

Slaiveect

wlarhitpdanl
e

12

L L

[T

Froderal Cuevwn aress -

Pt Anzas -



Exhibit A

LICENSED PREMISES

SIT O RTINS U Tate. 15

e fame wia pup g entes

ALIHOHINY IHI WSO IIAND 3% o

R A UL

Wl dtan

PRk SLAATHD MY

MM ) ey B UGG « W) 3000 e sy - U927 S

P o
u_ e p_._..

— ‘..w

S
ok

=¥ s
Ay I bR,

13



EXHIBIT B

As used in this Lease, the term “Hazardous or Regulated Substances” means any
hazardous or toxic substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, or per- or
polyfluoroalkyl substance, including without limitation perfluorinated compounds and their
precursors, (collectively, “PFAS”), that is or becomes regulated by any local governmental
authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government. The term “Hazardous
or Regulated Substances” includes, without limitation, any material or substance which is (i)
defined as a “hazardous waste,” under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a
“hazardous substance” under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other
petroleum product, (iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous waste pursuant to Parts
Env-Hw 100 or Env-Hw 400 (“Hazardous Waste Rules™) of the New Hampshire Code of
Administrative Rules, (vi) designated as a “hazardous substance™ pursuant to Section 311 of the
Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. §1317), (vii) defined as a “hazardous waste”
pursuant to Section 1004 of the Federal Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C.
§86901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903), or (viii) defined as a “hazardous substance” pursuant to
Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42
U.S.C. §§9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601), (ix) defined as “perfluorinated compounds” or
“precursor” to a perfluorinated compound pursuant to New Hampshire RSA ch. 125-C, and (x)
so defined in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws,
or as such laws or regulations may be further amended, modified or supplemented.

As used in this Lease, the terms “release” and “storage” shall have the meanings provided

in RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal” shall have the meaning provided in RSA
147-A? as amended

14



S/
T

INTERNATIONAL  5gnig viral D i Et
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: Pease Development Authority Board of Directors
From: David R. Mullen, Executive Director <y 7
Date: October 9, 2019
Re: Sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership and Speedpro Imaging of

Portsmouth

In accordance with the Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-
sublease Agreements adopted by the Board on August 8, 1996, I am pleased to report that PDA
has approved of a sublease between 222 International, Limited Partnership (“222ILP”) and
Speedpro Imaging of Portsmouth (“Speedpro”) for 7,437 square feet at 222 New Hampshire
Avenue for a period of ten (10) years, effective November 1, 2019. Speedpro will use the premises
for general office, warehouse and related uses.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Subleases provides that:

“A Sublease Agreement subject to this delegation of authority shall not be consented to,
approved or executed unless all of the following conditions are met:

l. The use of the Subleased Premises associated with the sublease is permitted
under the original sublease;

2. The sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original
Lease;

3. The original Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to
perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original
Lease; and

4. The proposed Sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.”

Conditions one through three have been met. As to condition four, PDA relies on 222ILP’s
continued primary liability for payment of rent and other obligations pursuant to the PDA/200ILP

Sublease.

The Delegation to Executive Director: Consent, Approval of Sub-sublease Agreements
also requires the consent of one member of the PDA Board of Directors. In this instance, Director
Allard was consulted and granted her consent.

PATWOINTLI222 International\Board memos\Speedpro Imaging of Portsmouth, doex

Y TAKING YOU THERE

oy e

NWw.peaseaov, org






NOTICE OF CONSENT

This NOTICE OF CONSENT (“Notice”™) is given by the PEASE DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY (“Lessor”) to 222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP (“Lessee™).
Lessor and Lessee may be referred to jointly as the “Parties.”

RECITALS

A. The Parties entered into a Lease for 222 International Drive at Pease International
Tradeport on September 7, 1999 (the “Lease”) and amended by Lease Amendment No. 1 effective
April 1, 2000 to include 195 New Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire.

B. Section 19.3 of the Lease states that Lessor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent
to sublease if:

1. the use of the subleased Premises associated with the Lease is permitted under
the original Lease;

2. the sublease is consistent with the terms and conditions of the original Lease;

3. Lessee remains primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and to perform all other
obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease; and

4. the proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible.

C. Lessee has requested authorization to sublease approximately 7,437 square feet (Suite
#135) within the Leased Premises at 222 International Drive to Speedpro Imaging of Portsmouth
(“Speedpro”), is duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of New Hampshire, and is
qualified to do business in the State of New Hampshire.

D. The proposed sublease to Speedpro is for general office, warehouse and related uses
and for no other uses.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

L. Lessor hereby authorizes Lessee to execute the sublease, attached hereto as Exhibit A, with
Speedpro for approximately 7,437 square feet within the Leased Premises.

2. Upon execution of the sublease with Speedpro, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of
the executed sublease, copies of all required insurance certificates and a certificate of good standing
from the State of New Hampshire for Speedpro.

3. Lessee hereby agrees that occupancy shall be subject to the issuance of a Certificate of
Occupancy as may be required in accordance with PDA Zoning Regulations, Section 315.03(a).



4, Lessee hereby agrees and affirms that it shall remain primarily liable to Lessor to pay rent and
to perform all other obligations to be performed by Lessee under the original Lease.

—
This Notice of Consent is executed, effective this 2 ﬂl/day of Eloben_, 2019 by the
Pease Development Authority.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

By: %—A\

Its: __ Executive Director

AGREED AND ACCEPTED
222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP
/o ’3 ‘ {4 By:
Date its: W onan~"
U )
PATWOINTLA222 | iwnel\Cotuent'Speedpro Imaging of Pontsmouth Consent docx




EXHIBIT A

SUBLEASED PREMISES






SUBLEASE
BETWEEN
222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED PARTNERSHIP

AS
"SUBLESSOR"

AND

SPEEDPRO IMAGING OF PORTSMOUTH

AS
"SUBLESSEE"

222 INTERNATIONAL DRIVE
SUITE # 135
PORTSMOUTH, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03801

DATED AS OF SEPTEMBER __ , 2019



ARTICLE

SUBLEASE ........
RECITALS .........

ARTICLE 1.
ARTICLE 2.
ARTICLE 3.
ARTICLE 4.
ARTICLE 5.
ARTICLE 6.
ARTICLE 7.
ARTICLE 8.
ARTICLE 9.

ARTICLE 10.
ARTICLE 11.
ARTICLE 12.
ARTICLE 13.
ARTICLE 14.

ARTICLE 15.

ARTICLE 16

ARTICLE 17.
ARTICLE 18.
ARTICLE 19.
ARTICLE 20.
ARTICLE 21.
ARTICLE 22.
ARTICLE 23.
ARTICLE 24.
ARTICLE 25.
ARTICLE 26.
ARTICLE 27.
ARTICLE 28.
ARTICLE 29.
ARTICLE 30.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE
............................................................................................................................. 4
............................................................................................................................. 5

PREMISES ... oottt s 7
CONDITION OF SUBLEASED PREMISES ......cooiiiiin 8
0 B e B e e e P A B SR 9
BASIC RENT ..ottt 10
LI B O 0 (0 e e R e TSRO 13
SURRENDER OF SUBLEASED PREMISES ..., 14
INSURANCE ...ttt 15
USE OF SUBLEASED PREMISES ...t 18
D S e R e e S T A GO0 20
ALTERATIONS = SIGNS ..ottt 21
RIGHT OF SUBLESSOR TO INSPECT AND REPAIR .......c..ccccoeinen 23
GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY SUBLESSEE .......ccccooiiiiiins 24
UTILITIES .ottt s 25
INSTALLATION AND ALTERATIONS BY SUBLESSEE, REPAIRS
AND SERVICES TO BE FURNISHED BY SUBLESSOR.........c..cco.. 26
ACCESS TO PREMISES ..ot 30
DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION ....cccoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceie e 31
EMINENT DOMAIN ....ooiiiiiiiiiiiiiii it 32
DEFAULTS oottt 32
SUBORDINATION TO MORTGAGES ......cooioiiiiiii 34
CERTIFICATE oot 34
DELEGATION - ASSIGNMENT- SUBLEASES-MORTGAGE ............ 35
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION ..o 36
HOLDING OVER ..ottt 40
WAIVERS oottt 40
QUIET ENJOYMENT ..ottt 42
FAILURE OF PERFORMANCE ........ccccooiiiiiiiiiiiii 42
INTERPRETATION. .. oottt 42
NOTICES. ..o e 43

DISPUTES AND LITIGATION. ... ..o 43

MISCELLANEOUS . ... e 45



EXHIBITS TO SUBLEASE

Exhibit

1 - PRIMARY SUBLEASE

2 - (INTENTIONALLY OMITTED)

3 - QUITCLAIM DEED OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA ACTING BY
AND THROUGH THE US AIR FORCE.

4 - FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT

5 - PLANS DESIGNATING THE
SUBLEASED PREMISES

6 - ALTERATIONS

7 - LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS

8 - CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

9 - FAA REQUIREMENTS

10 - SUBORDINATION AND NON-DISTURBANCE AGREEMENT

11 - RULES AND REGULATIONS

12 - OPERATING EXPENSES



SUBLEASE

THIS SUBLEASE ("Sublease") is made by and between 222 International, Limited
Partnership, ("Sublessor") and Franklin Exeter, Inc dba Coastal Speedpro, ("Sublessee").
(Sublessor and Sublessee may be referred to jointly as the "Parties.")

SUMMARY OF BASIC LEASE PROVISIONS AND RECITALS

Summary of Basic Lease Provisions and Recitals

The Summary of Basic Lease Provisions and Recitals contains the basis of this sublease
between Sublessor and Sublessee named below. Articles, Sections and Paragraphs of the
Sublease define and expand the Basic Terms, and are to be read in conjunction with the Basic
Terms.

1. Date of Lease: September _ , 2019
2. Sublessor: 222 International, Limited Partnership

3. Property Manager: CPManagement, Inc., 11 Court Street, Suite 100, Exeter, NH 03833

4. Sublessee: Speedpro Imaging of Portsmouth
5. Property: The property is comprised of the building; and the land parcel on which it is
located known as 222 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, including the

parking lot and other improvements (the “Building”).

6. Subleased Premises: 7,437 square feet of the Building shown on Exhibit #5.

7. Lease Term: Ten (10) years estimated to begin on November 1, 2019 (“Term
Commencement Date”) or such other date as specified in Article 3 of this Sublease and
ending ten (10) full years thereafter.

Options to Extend: None.

8. Permitted Uses: General office and light industrial use which must conform to the light
industrial /manufacturing uses authorized by the Pease Development Authority.

9. Sublessee’s Guarantees: Not applicable.

10. Initial Security Deposit:

11.  Parking: Four spaces per 1,000 rentable square feet. Visitor and handicapped parking
spaces are so marked.



12. Base Rent:

13. Other Periodic Payments : As described under Article 4.

14. Sublessee’s Prorata Share: 11.89 % of Building’s 62,545 rentable square feet.

15. Initial Public Liability Insurance: $2,000,000 minimum Commercial General Liability
coverage - $1,000,000 in automobile coverage and Worker’s Compensation coverage at
statutory minimum levels.

RECITALS

A. 222 International, Limited Partnership, entered into a Sublease dated September 7,
1999 with the Pease Development Authority (“PDA”), an agency of the State of New Hampshire
established pursuant to RSA ch 12-G for premises located at the Pease International Tradeport in
Portsmouth, New Hampshire described as follows: The premises shown on a Plan entitled
“Subdivision Plan of Land at 222 International Drive at Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth,
New Hampshire” recorded in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds as Plan #D-28060, a
copy of which Sublease is attached hereto as Exhibit 1 (the “Primary Sublease”). The Primary
Sublease is subject and subordinate to all agreements made between PDA and the United States of
America or the United States Air Force including, but not limited to, the Federal Facilities
Agreement (“FFA”), and the Quitclaim Deed (the “Deed™) dated October 15, 2003 granted by the
United States of America (the “Government”), acting by and through the United States Air Force
(“Air Force”) to PDA, all as hereinafter defined.

B. PDA has acquired fee title to a portion of the former Pease Air Force Base by
Deed recorded at the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds at Book 4227, Page 0001. The
Parties acknowledge that the Deed imposes certain requirements on PDA, the Sublessor and
Sublessee which are addressed in the terms and conditions of the Deed. By the acceptance of
this Sublease the Sublessee hereby acknowledges that it must abide by and conform to those
terms, conditions and restrictions set forth in the Deed as the same may be applicable to this
Sublease and Sublessee’s tenancy.

C. The Parties acknowledge that a Federal Facilities Agreement ("FFA") required under
Section 120 of the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of
1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq. has been entered into by the Air Force, the New
Hampshire Department of Environmental Services ("NHDES") and the United States
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA") regarding certain contamination at Pease and that this
FFA also imposes certain conditions upon Sublessor and Sublessee which are addressed in the
terms and conditions of the FFA and Deed. The term FFA shall include any amendments to said
document. A copy of the FFA is attached as Exhibit 4 of this Sublease.

D. Sublessor is 222 International, Limited Partnership and is duly organized and
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware with a principal place of business at One New

5



Hampshire Avenue, Pease International Tradeport, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, and is qualified
to do business in the State of New Hampshire.

E. Sublessee is Speedpro Imaging of Portsmouth and is duly organized and existing under
the laws of the State of New Hampshire with a principal place of business at 222 International
Drive, Suite 135, Portsmouth, New Hampshire, and is qualified to do business in the State of New
Hampshire.

F. Manager: C.P. Management, Inc., 11 Court Street, Suite 100, Exeter, NH 03833

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the covenants herein contained and other

valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, Sublessor and Sublessee
hereby agree as follows:

ARTICLE 1.
PREMISES

1.1.  Description of Subleased Premises

Sublessor, for and in consideration of the rents and covenants herein specified to be paid
and performed by Sublessee, hereby leases to Sublessee, and Sublessee hereby hires from
Sublessor, the premises described generally below and more particularly on the plans attached as
Exhibit 5 (the "Subleased Premises" or the "Premises"): consisting of approximately 7.437 square
feet and located at 222 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire..

Excluded from the Subleased Premises are property or other rights obtained
by a utility supplier from PDA pursuant to a sublease or other agreement in
connection with the provision of utility lines and or utility services at the
Airport.

Appurtenant Rights and Reservations. (a) Sublessee shall have, as appurtenant to the
Premises, the non-exclusive right to use, and permit its invitees to use in common with others, public
or common lobbies, hallways, and common walkways necessary for access to the Building, and if
the portion of the Premises on any floor includes less than the entire floor, the common toilets,
corridors and elevator lobby of such floor; but Sublessee shall have no other appurtenant rights and
all such rights shall always be subject to reasonable rules and regulations from time to time
established by Sublessor pursuant to Section 14.7 and to the right of Sublessor to designate and
change from time to time areas and facilities so to be used.

(b) Excepted and excluded from the Premises are the ceiling, floor, perimeter walls and
exterior windows, except the inner surfaces thereof, but the entry doors (and related glass and finish
work) to the Premises are a part thereof; and Sublessee agrees that Sublessor shall have the right to

6



place in the Premises (but in such manner as to reduce to a minimum interference with Sublessee's
use of the Premises) interior storm windows, subcontrol devices (by way of illustration, an electric
sub panel, etc.), utility lines, pipes, equipment and the like, in, over and upon the Premises.
Sublessee shall install and maintain, as Sublessor may require, proper access panels in any hung
ceilings or walls as may be installed by Sublessee in the Premises to afford access to any facilities
above the ceiling or within or behind the walls.

1.2.  Easements - Rights-of-Way

This Sublease is subject to existing easements and rights-of-way of record, the Utility
Sublease and License Agreement dated July 31, 1992 by and between PDA and Public Service
Company of New Hampshire ("PSNH"), the utility Sublease and License Agreement dated May
10, 1995 by PDA and New England Telephone and Telegraph Company ("NETEL"); (iii) the
Wastewater Disposal and Water Service Facilities Sublease and License Agreement dated as of
January 1, 1993 and amended July 1, 1998 by and between PDA and the City of Portsmouth
(“COP”) and (iv) the Pipeline Easement and Transfer Agreement dated August 12, 1998 by and
between PDA, Portland Natural Gas Transmission System and Maritime & Northeast Pipeline,
L.L.C. and such other agreements as PDA shall reasonably require for the provision of utilities
and the operation, maintenance and repair of the Airport.

The Government reserves for the use and benefit of the public, an avigation easement and
aright of way for the free and unobstructed passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of
the Airport, together with the right to cause in such airspace such sound, vibrations, fumes, dust,
fuel particles, and all other effects as may be caused by the operation of aircraft, now known or
hereafter used, for the navigation through or flight in the said airspace, and for use of said airspace
for landing on, taking off from, or operating on the Airport.

1.3. Access

Sublessee shall have in common with other Airport tenants and authorized Airport users
the right to use the entrances, exits and roadways designated by PDA for common use at the
Airport, subordinate, however, to PDA’s rights to manage the common areas and roadways, which
rights of PDA shall include, without limitation, the right to impose reasonable rules and
regulations, and to add, delete, alter, or otherwise modify the designation and use of all parking
areas, entrances, exits, roadways and other areas of the Airport.

The rights of Sublessee under this Section 1.3 shall be subordinate to PDA’s rights, to
manage the common areas and roadways which rights shall include, without limitation, the right
to impose reasonable rules and regulations relating to use of the common reas and roadways and
the right to add, delete, alter or otherwise modify the designation and use of all parking areas,
entrances, exits, roadways and other areas of the Airport, provided, however, that during the term
of this Sublease, Sublessee shall have reasonable access the Premises.

The Government reserves a no cost right of access for purposes of environmental
investigation, response or other corrective action, as required by CERCLA Section 12(h)(A)(ii),
the FFA, and as otherwise set forth in Article 22 of this Sublease.

7



ARTICLE 2.

CONDITION OF SUBLEASED PREMISES

2.1.  As of August 27, 2019, the parties hereto shall have agreed upon the basic specifications
and layout of the Sublessee’s fit up improvements as shown in Exhibit 6. Final detailed
construction drawings (“CD’s”) have yet to be produced. After full execution of this Sublease the
Sublessor will commence the production of CD’s such that the Improvements can be built. The
CD’s shall be approved in a timely manner by both parties. All improvements will be completed
using building standard finishes and specifications. Any changes or modifications to the agreed
upon specifications resulting an increase in cost, such increase shall be paid by Sublessee prior to
the Term Commencement Date. The Sublessor warrants that all permits and approvals necessary
to the construction of the premises will be obtained and that certificates of occupancy shall be
obtained prior to the Sublessee occupancy of the subleased premises.

2.2. Sublessee hereby acknowledges and agrees to accept the Premises on the Commencement Date
in its then "as is" condition without representation or warranty of Sublessor of any kind, either
express or implied. Sublessor hereby extends to the Sublessee the benefit of any warranties given
by any contractor or subcontractor of the Sublessor, as shall pertain to the subleased premises.

2.3. Sublessee acknowledges to the extent it performs any Alterations (as defined in Section 10.1)
or other improvements at the Subleased Premises, it will be responsible for assuring that such
Alterations or other improvements comply with Article 10 and PDA Land Use Controls, as
hereinafter defined, and for obtaining any required building permits or certificates of occupancy with
respect to such Alterations or other improvements.

ARTICLE 3.
TERM

3.1.  This Sublease shall be for a base term of Ten (10) year(s) ("Base Term") which term shall
commence on or about November 1, 2019, (Term Commencement Date") and shall expire at
midnight on the day which is ten (10) full years year(s) from the Term Commencement Date,
unless terminated earlier or extended in accordance with the provisions of this Sublease. The Term
Commencement date shall be the earlier of substantial completion of improvements to the
Subleased Premises or 120 days from full lease execution. The parties will memorialize the Term
Commencement Date in a Term Commencement Agreement.

3.2.  Unless the context clearly indicates otherwise when used in this Sublease the phrase "term
of this Sublease" shall mean the Base Term plus any duly exercised allowable extensions thereof.

3.3. In the event the Primary Sublease is terminated for any reason whatsoever, this Sublease
will automatically terminate on that same date.



ARTICLE 4.

BASIC RENT

EEN

1
2 Security Deposit

NN

Upon the execution of this lease, the Sublessee shall pay the sum of as a security deposit
for the performance by the Sublessee of its obligations hereunder. If Sublessee defaults with
respect to any provision of this Sublease, including but not limited to the provisions relating to the
payment of Rent, Sublessor may use, apply, or retain all or any part of this security deposit for the
payment of any rent or other sum in default, or for the payment of any other amount that Sublessor
may spend or become obligated to spend by reason of Sublessee’s default, or to compensate
Sublessor for any other loss or damage that Sublessor may suffer by reason of Sublessee’s default.
[fany portion of said deposit is so used or applied, Sublessee shall within ten (10) days after written
demand therefor deposit cash with Sublessor in an amount sufficient to restore the security deposit
to its original amount and Sublessee’s failure to do so shall be a material breach of this Sublease.
Sublessor shall not be required to keep this security deposit separate from Sublessor’s general
funds, and Sublessee shall not be entitled to interest on such deposit. If Sublessee shall fully and
faithfully perform every provision of this Sublease to be performed by it, the security deposit or
any balance thereof shall be returned to Sublessee (or at Sublessor's’ option, to the last assignee of
Sublessee’s interest hereunder) at the expiration of the Sublease term.

4.3.  Basic Rent due under Section 4.1 shall commence upon the Term Commencement Date.
The annual Basic Rent shall be payable in each case in equal monthly installments of one twelfth
thereof in advance on the first day of each month without offset in lawful money of the United
States at the office of Sublessor at the Airport or at such other address as Sublessor may hereafter
designate. In addition, Sublessee agrees to pay when due, such other amounts that may be required
to be paid as additional rent. Sublessee's rent obligation for any fractional portion of a calendar
month at the beginning or end of the term of this Sublease shall be a similar fraction of the rental
due for an entire month.

4.4.  As of each Adjustment Date (as hereinafter defined), the Basic Rent shall be adjusted as
provided in Section 4.4 to reflect changes in the Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers
applicable to the Boston area (all items 1982 - 1984 = 100) published by the United States
Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (the "Index").

On the first day following the expiration of the first year of the term of this Sublease and
on the first day of each subsequent year (individually an "Adjustment Date" and collectively the
"Adjustment Dates"), Basic Rent shall be subject to adjustment for the remainder of the term of
this Sublease as follows:

(1) For the first annual adjustment (commencing on the first day following the
expiration of the first year of the term of this Sublease), the basis for computing such
adjustment shall be the Index most recently published prior to the beginning of the first

9



year of the term ("Beginning Index"). If the Index most recently published prior to the first
Adjustment Date ("Extension Index") has increased over the Beginning Index, the Basic
Rent for the one-year period commencing as of such first Adjustment Date shall be the
result obtained by multiplying the annual Basic Rent in effect on the day of the Adjustment
Date (i.e. the annual rental for year one by a fraction, the numerator of which is the
Extension Index and the denominator of which is the Beginning Index.)

) For all subsequent annual adjustments, the rent shall be adjusted in the
same manner as that for the first annual adjustment provided; however, that the rental base
shall be the rental in effect just prior to the then applicable Adjustment Date, the Extension
Index for the preceding period shall be the Beginning Index and the Extension Index shall
be the index most recently published prior to the then applicable Adjustment Date. On
each Adjustment Date, the Parties shall execute an acknowledgment reflecting the new
rent. Failure to execute such an acknowledgment shall not affect either the validity of this
Sublease or the effective date of any adjustment to the rent hereunder.

3) If for any Adjustment Date the Index most recently published following the
Adjustment Date has not increased over, or has decreased from, the Beginning Index for
that period, no escalation in rent shall be required on that Adjustment Date, and the rent
shall remain at its then current rate until the next Adjustment Date.

If the Index is changed in any manner, including without limitation, a change in the base
year, the Index shall be converted in accordance with the conversion factor published by the United
States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics. If the Index is discontinued or revised
during the term of this Sublease, such other government index or computation with which it is
replaced shall be used in order to obtain substantially the same result as would be obtained if the
Index had not been discontinued or revised. If'the Parties shall be unable to agree upon a successor
index, the Parties shall refer the choice of a successor index to arbitration in accordance with the
rules of the American Arbitration Association. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the annual
adjustment shall be capped at 3%

4.5. OPERATING EXPENSES

4.5  ADDITIONAL RENT. Sublessee agrees to pay to Sublessor as Additional Rent the
Operating Expenses, Utility Expenses and Taxes as defined in this Section 4.5.

4.5.1 Definitions. For the purpose of this Article, the following terms shall have the following
respective meanings:

(1) Operating Year: Each calendar year in which any part of the Term of this Sublease
shall fall.

(i1) Operating Expenses: The aggregate costs or expenses reasonably incurred by
Sublessor with respect to the operation, administration, insuring, cleaning, repair,
maintenance and management of the Property (but specifically excluding Utility
Expenses) all as set forth in Exhibit 12 annexed hereto, provided that, if during any

10



(iii)

(iv)

)

portion of the Operating Year for which Operating Expenses are be computed, less
than all of the Premises Rentable Area was occupied by Sublessee or if Sublessor
is not supplying all sublessees with the services being supplied hereunder, actual
Operating Expenses incurred shall be reasonably extrapolated by Sublessor on an
item by item basis to the estimated Operating Expenses that would have been
incurred if the Premises were fully occupied for such Year and such services were
being supplied to all sublessees, and such extrapolated amount shall, for the
purposes hereof, be deemed to be the Operating Expenses for such Year.

Utility Expenses: The aggregate costs or expenses reasonably incurred by
Sublessor with respect to supplying electricity (other than electricity supplied to
those portions of the Premises leased to sublessees), oil, steam, gas, water and sewer
and other utilities supplied to the Property and not paid or directly by sublessees,
provided that, if during any portion of the Operating Year for which Utility
Expenses are be computed, less than all Building Rentable Area was occupied by
sublessees or if Sublessor is not supplying all sublessees with the utilities being
supplied hereunder, actual utility expenses incurred shall be reasonably
extrapolated by Sublessor on an item by item basis to the estimated Utility Expenses
that would have bee incurred if the Premises were fully occupied for such Year and
such utilities were being supplied to all sublessees, and such extrapolated amount
shall, or the purposes hereof, be deemed to be the Utility Expenses for such Year.

Taxes: “Taxes” shall mean all real estate taxes, special assessments and betterment
assessments assessed with respect to the Premises for any Tax Year.

Land Rent: The rent charged to and paid by Sublessor to the PDA, or any successor
authority, under the Primary Sublease assessed with respect to the Premises for any
Operating Year.

4.5.2 Sublessee’s Payments. Sublessee shall pay as Additional Rent to Sublessor in accordance

with the schedule set forth in Section 4.5.3 during the Initial Term hereof and on the same schedule
applicable to Base Rent under Section 4.3, an amount equal to the total amount of Sublessor’s
Operating Expenses, Utility Expenses, Land Rent and Taxes or each Operating Year Multiplied
by the Sublessee’s Pro Rata Share.

4.5.3 Estimated Expenses.

(a)

Estimated Expense Payments. Sublessor shall present prior to the beginning of
each calendar year during the term of this Sublease, a reasonable estimation of
Sublessor’s Pro Rata Share of Operating Expenses, Utility Expenses, Land Rent
and Taxes allocable to the Subleased Premises; Sublessee shall pay in each ensuing
calendar month one-twelfth (1/12) of the amount of such Sublessor’s estimated
expenses allocable to the Subleased Premises. A final reconciliation shall be made
by Sublessor at the end of each calendar year by applying the amount of such
interim payments to the amounts otherwise due upon presentation of the annual
statement rendered to Sublessee after each Operating Year.

11



(b)  Records. Sublessor agrees to keep in its principal office true and accurate records
of such Operating Expenses. Sublessee shall have the right for a period of six
months following receipt of any statement rendered under Section 4.5.3 (a) to
examine the records on which such statement is based. In the event of any dispute
with respect to any amount due under either Section 4.5, either party may refer to
the dispute to arbitration pursuant to Article 29 hereof.

ARTICLE 5

IMPOSITIONS

5.1.  During the term of this Sublease, Sublessor shall pay when due, all taxes, charges, excises,
license and permit fees, assessments, and other governmental charges, general and special,
ordinary and extraordinary, unforeseen, as well as foreseen, of any kind and nature whatsoever,
which during the term of this Sublease are assessed or imposed upon or become due and payable
or a lien upon the land and buildings of which the Subleased Premises are a part.

5.2 Abatement. If Sublessor shall receive any tax refund or reimbursement of Taxes or sum in
lieu thereof with respect to any Tax Year which is not due to vacancies in the Building, then out of
any balance remaining thereof after deducting Sublessor's expenses reasonably incurred in obtaining
such refund, Sublessor shall, provided there does not then exist a Default of Sublessee, credit an
amount equal to such refund or reimbursement or sum in lieu thereof (exclusive of any interest)
multiplied by the Pro Rata Share against the obligations of Sublessee next falling due under this
Article IV or if no such amounts are due, refund the balance to the Sublessee upon receipt.

ARTICLE 6.

SURRENDER OF SUBLEASED PREMISES

6.1.  On the expiration or termination of this Sublease, Sublessee shall surrender to Sublessor
the Subleased Premises, including all improvements and fixtures therein whether leased to or
otherwise owned by Sublessee, broom clean and in good order, condition and repair, reasonable
wear and tear excepted, together with all alterations, decorations, additions and improvements that
may have been made in, to or on the Subleased Premises, except that Sublessee shall be allowed
to remove its personal property or any improvements made by Sublessee at its sole expense that
can be removed without damage to any buildings, facilities or other improvements to the Subleased
Premises. The Subleased Premises, including the improvements and fixtures therein, shall be
delivered free and clear of all subtenancies, liens and encumbrances, other than those, if any,
permitted hereby or otherwise created or consented to by Sublessor, and, if requested to do so,
Sublessee shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to Sublessor such instruments of further
assurance as in the opinion of Sublessor are necessary or desirable to confirm or perfect Sublessor's
right, title and interest in and to the Subleased Premises including said improvements and fixtures.
On or before the end of the Sublease term, Sublessee shall remove all of Sublessee's personal and
other property allowed to be removed hereunder, and all such property not removed shall be
deemed abandoned by Sublessee and may be utilized or disposed of by Sublessor without any
liability to Sublessee. Sublessee's obligation under this Article 6 shall survive the expiration or

12



termination of this Sublease.
ARTICLE 7.

INSURANCE

7.1.Public Liability Insurance. Sublessee agrees to maintain in full force from the date upon which
Sublessee first enters the Premises for any reason, throughout the Term of this Sublease, and
thereafter so long as Sublessee is in occupancy of any part of the Premises, a policy of general
liability and property damage insurance (including broad form contractual liability, independent
contractor's hazard and completed operations coverage) under which Sublessor, Manager (and such
other persons as are in privy of estate with Sublessor as may be set out in notice from time to time)
and Sublessee are named as additional insureds, and under which the insurer agrees to defend,
indemnify and hold Sublessor, Manager, and those in privity of estate with Sublessor, harmless from
and against all cost, expense and/or liability arising out of or based upon any and all claims,
accidents, injuries and damages set forth in Article 12. Each such policy shall be non-cancelable and
non-amendable with respect to Sublessor, Manager and Sublessor's said designees without thirty
(30) days' prior notice to Sublessor and shall be as follows:

(1) Comprehensive general liability insurance to a limit of not less than

two million ($2,000,000) dollars, endorsed for products and completed operations
liability insurance, on an “occurrence basis” against claims for “personal injury”,
including without limitation, bodily injury, death or property damages, occurring
upon, in or about the land and buildings of which the Subleased Premises are a part
as required pursuant to the Primary Sublease.

(2) Worker’s compensation and employer’s liability insurance in an amount and
form which meets all applicable requirements of the labor laws of the State of New
Hampshire, as amended from time to time, and which specifically covers the persons
and risks involved in this Sublease.

3) Automobile liability insurance in amounts approved from time to time by
Sublessor, but not less than one million ($1,000,000) dollars combined single limit
for owned, hired and non-owned automobiles.

7.2.  All policies of insurance required to be carried under this Article shall be effected under
valid and enforceable policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required
under this Sublease, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to
transact such insurance coverage in the State of New Hampshire, and which have been approved
in writing by Sublessor, which approval shall not be withheld unreasonably. Except for
workman’s compensation coverage, all such policies of insurance shall be for the mutual benefit
of Sublessor, PDA, and Sublessee as named additional insureds. Upon the execution of this
Sublease (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) days prior to the expiration date of each policy
furnished pursuant to this Article) the original of each policy required to be furnished pursuant to
this Article (or, with the consent of Sublessor, which consent shall not be unreasonably withheld,

13



in the case of comprehensive general liability insurance and products liability insurance, a
certificate of the insurer reasonably satisfactory to Sublessor) bearing a notation evidencing the
payment of the premium or accompanied by other evidence reasonably satisfactory to Sublessor
of such payment, shall be delivered by Sublessee to Sublessor.

7.3.  All policies of insurance shall provide for loss thereunder to be adjusted and payable to
Sublessor or Sublessee in accordance with the terms of this Sublease.

7.4.  Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall to the extent obtainable
contain (i) a provision that no act or omission of Sublessee, or any employee, officer or agent of
Sublessee, which would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein
provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any
loss sustained, and (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to Sublessor and PDA and (iii)
provide that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against the PDA.

7.5.  All policies of insurance required to be maintained by Sublessee shall have attached thereto
the Lender's Loss Payable Endorsement, or its equivalent, or a loss payable clause acceptable to
Sublessor, for the benefit of any Mortgagee, but the right of any Mortgagee to the payment of
insurance proceeds shall at all times be subject to the provisions of this Sublease with respect to
the application of the proceeds of such insurance.

7.6.  Sublessee shall observe and comply with the requirements of all policies of insurance at
any time in force with respect to the Subleased Premises and Sublessee shall also perform and
satisfy the requirements of the companies writing such policies so that at all times companies of
good standing reasonably satisfactory to Sublessor shall be willing to write or to continue such
insurance. Sublessee shall, in the event of any violations or attempted violations of the provisions
of this Section 7.6 by a subtenant, take steps, immediately upon knowledge of such violation or
attempted violation, to remedy or prevent the same as the case may be.

7.7.  Any insurance provided for in this Sublease may be effected by a policy or policies of
blanket insurance or may be continued in such form until otherwise required by Sublessor;
provided, however, that the amount of the total insurance allocated to the Subleased Premises shall
be such as to furnish in protection the equivalent of separate policies in the amounts herein
required, and provided further that in all other respects, any such policy or policies shall comply
with the other provisions of this Sublease. In any such case it shall not be necessary to deliver the
original of any such blanket policy to Sublessor, but Sublessee shall deliver to Sublessor and to
any Mortgagee a certificate or duplicate of such policy in form and content acceptable to Sublessor.

7.8.  Sublessee’s Risk. To the maximum extent this agreement may be made effective according
to law, Sublessee agrees to use and occupy the Premises and to use such other portions of the
Property as Sublessee is herein given the right to use at Sublessee's own risk; and Sublessor shall
have no responsibility or liability for any loss of or damage to Sublessee's Removable Property or
for any inconvenience, annoyance, interruption or injury to business arising from Sublessor's making
any repairs or changes which Sublessor is permitted by this Sublease or required by law to make in
or to any portion of the Premises or other sections of the Property, or in or to the fixtures, equipment
or appurtenances thereof, except where the Sublessor is grossly negligent in making such repairs.
Sublessee shall carry “all-risk” property insurance on a “replacement cost” basis (including so-called

14



improvements and betterments), or be self insured (with respect to the Sublessee’s removal
property), and provide a mutual waiver of subrogation for both parties. The provisions of this Section
shall be applicable from and after the execution of this Sublease and until the end of the Term of this
Sublease, and during such further period as Sublessee may use or be in occupancy of any part of the
Premises or of the Building.

7.9.  Injury Caused By Third Parties. To the maximum extent this agreement may be made
effective according to law, Sublessee agrees that Sublessor shall not be responsible or liable to
Sublessee, or to those claiming by, through or under Sublessee, for any loss or damage that may be
occasioned by or through the acts or omissions of persons occupying adjoining premises or any part
of the premises adjacent to or connecting with the Premises or any part of the Property or otherwise.
The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or any earlier termination of this Sublease.

ARTICLE 8.

USE OF SUBLEASED PREMISES

8.1.  The sole purpose for which Sublessee may use the Subleased Premises is for general office,
warehouse and related uses and for no other uses without Sublessor's and PDA's prior written
consent. Sublessee shall not use, or permit to be used, the Subleased Premises for any other
purpose without the prior express written consent of Sublessor and PDA. Sublessor's and PDA's
consent shall be subject to the execution of an appropriate agreement which shall include a
provision requiring the payment of established fees and charges that may be applicable to any such
additional uses consented to by Sublessor and PDA. Sublessee is prohibited from any use of the
Subleased Premises not specifically granted in this Section 8.1.

8.2.  Sublessee recognizes that the uses authorized in Section 8.1 are not granted on an exclusive
basis and that Sublessor and PDA may enter into subleases or other agreements with other tenants
or users at areas of the building in which the Subleased Premises are a part or other areas of the
Airport for similar, identical, or competing uses. No provision of this Sublease shall be construed
as granting or authorizing the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308 of
the Federal Aviation Act as the same may be amended from time to time.

8.3.  Sublessee agrees that it will keep the Premises in a neat, clean and orderly condition in
accordance the provisions of Chapters 300 through 500 of the Pease Development Authority
Zoning Requirements, Site Plan Review Regulations and Subdivision Regulations (collectively
the "Land Use Controls") and such other rules and regulations from time to time promulgated,
provided that Sublessee shall not be bound by any such rules and regulations until such time as it
receives a copy thereof. Sublessor agrees to cause trash receptacles to be emptied and trash
removed at Sublessor's sole cost and expense.

8.4.  Sublessee warrants that it holds all certificates, permits, licenses or other entitlements
required by federal, state or local laws in order to allow Sublessee to conduct the permitted uses
hereunder, and that the same are and will be kept current, valid and complete. Sublessee further
warrants that it shall at all times abide by and conform with all terms of the same and that it shall
give immediate notice to Sublessor of any additions, renewals, amendments, suspensions or
revocations. In the use and occupation of the Subleased Premises and the conduct of such business
thereon, Sublessee, at its sole cost and expense, shall promptly comply with all present and future

15



laws, ordinances, orders, rules, regulations and requirements of all federal, state and municipal
governments, courts, departments, commissions and boards, any national, state or local Board of
Fire Underwriters, or any other body exercising functions similar to those of any of the foregoing.

8.5.  Sublessee shall have the right to contest by appropriate proceedings diligently conducted
in good faith, without cost or expense to Sublessor, the validity or application of any law,
ordinance, order, rule, regulation or requirement of the nature referred to in this Article. If
compliance with any such law, ordinance, order, rule, regulation or requirement may be delayed
on the basis of an order from a court of competent jurisdiction pending the prosecution of any such
proceeding without the incurrence of any lien, charge or liability of any kind against the Subleased
Premises or Sublessee's interest therein and without subjecting Sublessor to any liability, civil or
criminal, for failure so to comply therewith, Sublessee may delay compliance therewith consistent
with such court order. Even if such lien, charge or civil liability would be incurred by reason of
any such delay, Sublessee may, with the prior written consent of Sublessor, contest as aforesaid
and delay as aforesaid, provided that such contest or delay does not subject Sublessor to criminal
liability, damages or expense and provided that Sublessee: (i) furnishes to Sublessor security,
reasonably satisfactory to Sublessor, against any loss or injury by reason of such contest or delay;
and (ii) prosecutes the contest with due diligence.

Sublessor and PDA shall not be required to join in any proceedings referred to in this
Section unless the provisions of any applicable laws, rules or regulations at the time in effect shall
require that such proceedings be brought by and/or in the name of Sublessor and/or PDA and
Sublessor and/or PDA determines that such action is in its best interests, in which event Sublessor
and/or PDA shall join in the proceedings, or permit the same to be brought in its name, if Sublessee
shall pay all expenses in connection therewith.

8.6.Responsibility for compliance with all Federal, State and local laws as required by this Article
rests exclusively with the Sublessee. Sublessor assumes no enforcement or supervisory
responsibility except with respect to matters committed to its jurisdiction and authority.

8.7.  Sublessee's use of the Subleased Premises shall be orderly and efficient and shall not
cause any disruptions to other Airport activities or other tenants in the building in which the
Subleased Premises are a part. Sublessee shall not cause or maintain any nuisance on the
Subleased Premises. Sublessee shall conduct all of its activities hereunder in an environmentally
responsible manner.

8.8.  Sublessee shall have the right to obtain supplies or services from suppliers, vendors or
contractors of its own choice at the Subleased Premises, provided that PDA in the Primary
Sublease reserved the right to prohibit persons from engaging in "aeronautical activities" (as
defined in Advisory Circular AC 150/5190-2A of the Federal Aviation Administration) or the
provision of ground transportation services at the Airport except in accordance with concession
contracts or operating agreements entered into between PDA and said persons.

8.9. Intentionally omitted.

8.10. Sublessee agrees to conform to the following provisions during the Term of this Sublease: (i)
Sublessee shall cause all freight to be delivered to or removed from the Building and the Premises
in accordance with reasonable rules and regulations established by Sublessor therefor; (ii) Sublessee

16



will not place on the exterior of the Premises (including both interior and exterior surfaces of doors
and interior surfaces of windows) or on any part of the Building outside the Premises, any signs,
symbol, advertisements or the like visible to public view outside of the Premises. Sublessor will not
unreasonably withhold consent for signs or lettering on the entry doors to the Premises provided
such signs conform to building standards adopted by Sublessor and Sublessee has submitted a sketch
of the sign to be placed on such entry doors. (iii) Sublessee shall not perform any act or carry on any
practice which may injure the Premises, or any other part of the Building, or cause offensive odors
or loud noise or constitute a nuisance or menace to any other Sublessee or sublessees or other persons
in the Building; (iv) Sublessee shall, at its sole cost and expense: (x) in its use of the Premises, the
Building or the Land, comply with the requirements of all applicable governmental laws, rules and
regulations including, without limitation, the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990, as amended
(the "ADA") and (y) In the event of any Sublessee’s work or improvements, pay for and perform
any work necessary to bring the Premises, the Building or the Land into compliance with the ADA
which work is required due to the Sublessee's use of the Premises, the Building or the Land for retail
purposes; and (v) Sublessee shall continuously throughout the Term of this Sublease occupy the
Premises for the Permitted Uses and for no other purposes. The Sublessor hereby certifies that the
initial construction of the building and Sublessor’s fit up of the leased premises conform to all ADA

requirements.

ARTICLE 9

LIENS

9.1.  During the term of this Sublease, Sublessee shall not permit to remain, and shall promptly
discharge, at its cost and expense, all liens, encumbrances and charges upon the Subleased
Premises or any part thereof; provided, that the existence of any mechanics', laborers',
materialmen's, suppliers’ or vendors' liens or rights thereto shall not constitute a violation of this
Atrticle if payment is not yet due under the applicable contract. Sublessee shall, however, have the
right to contest with due diligence the validity or amount of any lien or claimed lien, if Sublessee
shall give to Sublessor such security as Sublessor may reasonably require to insure payment
thereof and prevent any sale, foreclosure or forfeiture of Sublessee's interest in the Subleased
Premises or any portion thereof by reason of such nonpayment. On final determination of the lien
or claim for lien, Sublessee shall immediately pay any judgment rendered with all proper costs and
charges and shall have the lien released or judgment satisfied at Sublessee's own expense, and if
Sublessee shall fail to do so, Sublessor may at its option pay any such final judgment and clear the
Subleased Premises therefrom. If Sublessee shall fail to contest with due diligence the validity or
amount of any such lien or claimed lien, or to give Sublessor security as hereinabove provided,
Sublessor may, but shall not be required to, contest the validity or amount of any such lien or
claimed lien or settle or compromise the same without inquiring into the validity of the claim or
the reasonableness of the amount thereof.

9.2.  Should any lien be filed against the Subleased Premises or the building in which the
Subleased Premises are a part, or should any action of any character affecting the title thereto be
commenced, Sublessee shall give to Sublessor written notice thereof as soon as notice of such lien
or action comes to the knowledge of Sublessee.

ARTICLE 10
17



ALTERATIONS — SIGNS

10.1.Sublessee shall not place or construct any improvements, changes, structures, alterations or
additions (cumulatively referred to in this Article as “Alterations”) in, to, or upon the Subleased
Premises without Sublessor’s and PDA’s written consent. Unless Sublessee is subject to an earlier
notice requirement under the PDA’s land use controls or other applicable requirements with
respect to the information required under this section, any request for Sublessor’s and PDA’s
consent shall be made upon sixty (60) days written notice and shall be accompanied by preliminary
engineering or architectural plans or, if consented to by Sublessor and PDA, working drawings. If
Sublessor and PDA each grants its consent, all such work shall be done at Sublessee’s sole cost
and expense, subject, in all cases, to the following covenants:

(1) All work and Alterations shall be done in compliance with all applicable
governmental regulations, codes, standards or other requirements, including
fire, safety and building codes and Land Use Regulations promulgated by
PDA and with the provisions of Article 22 of this Sublease. This obligation
shall include compliance with all applicable provisions of the FFA (as defined
in Article 22), including obligations imposed upon Sublessor in respect to
construction and construction related work.

(2) All Alterations shall be of such a character as not to materially reduce the
value and usefulness of any of the buildings or other improvements below
their value and usefulness immediately before such Alteration. All work
performed hereunder shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner,
shall conform to drawings and specifications approved by Sublessor and PDA
and shall not be disruptive of the overall operation of the Airport. All
contractors engaged by Sublessee to perform such work shall employ labor
that can work in harmony with all elements of labor at the Airport.

(3) During the period of construction of any alteration, Sublessee or any
contractor, subcontractor or sublessee of Sublessee shall maintain or cause to
be maintained the following insurance:

(1) The comprehensive general liability and automobile
insurance provided for in Article 7 and shall be maintained
for the limits specified thereunder and shall provide
coverage for the mutual benefit of Sublessor, PDA, and
Sublessee as named or additional insured (as is appropriate)
in connection with any Alteration permitted pursuant to this
Article 10.

(ii)  Fire and any other applicable insurance provided for
in Article 7 which if not then covered under the provisions
of existing policies shall be covered by special endorsement
thereto in respect to any Alteration, including all materials
and equipment therefor incorporated in, on, or about the
Subleased Premises ( including excavations, foundations,

18



and footings) under broad form all risk builder’s risk
completed value form or equivalent thereof; and

(i)~ Worker’s compensation insurance covering all persons
employed in connections with the work and with respect to
whom death or bodily injury claims could be asserted against
PDA, Sublessor, Sublessee or the Subleased Premises, with
statutory limits as then required under the laws of the State
of New Hampshire.

(4) Sublessee shall provide Sublessor and PDA with MYLAR as-built drawings
when any Alteration authorized hereunder is completed.

10.2.Sublessee may erect and maintain suitable signs only with the Subleased Premises and upon
receiving the prior written approval of Sublessor and PDA. Sublessee shall submit drawings of
proposed signs and information on the number, size, type, and location, all of which Sublessor and
PDA may review for harmony and conformity with the overall structure and architectural and
aesthetic setting of the building in which the Subleased Premises are a part and the Airport as well
as with PDA’s own land use control regulations and may approve or disapprove accordingly.

10.3.Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sublease, the right of Sublessee to place or
construct Alterations in, to, or upon the Subleased Premises shall be subject to Paragraph VII. B

of the Deed.

10.4.In addition to the requirements to provide notice to Sublessor and PDA under this Article 10
in respect to any Alteration, Sublessee shall also provide notice to Air Force, EPA and NHDES in
the same manner and to the extent required of PDA under the Deed and/or the FFA.

10.5. The Sublessor, its sublessees and assignees shall not conduct any excavation, digging,
drilling or other disturbance of areas denoted as “Use Restriction Zones” on Exhibit C of the Deed.

ARTICLE 11

RIGHT OF SUBLESSOR TO INSPECT AND REPAIR

11.1. Sublessee will permit Sublessor and/or PDA and their authorized agents and
representatives to enter the Subleased Premises at all reasonable times and upon reasonable notice
for the purpose of: (i) inspecting the same; and (ii) making any necessary repairs and performing
any other work that may be necessary by reason of Sublessee's failure to comply with the terms of
this Sublease within ten (10) days after written notice from Sublessor, unless an emergency
situation (as determined in Sublessor's and/or PDA’s sole discretion) requires earlier action by
Sublessor. Nothing herein shall imply any duty upon the part of Sublessor and/or PDA to do any
such work and performance thereof by Sublessor and/or PDA shall not constitute a waiver of
Sublessee's default in failing to perform the same. Sublessor and/or PDA may during the progress
of such work keep and store in or on the Subleased Premises all necessary materials, tools, supplies
and equipment. Sublessor and/or PDA shall not be liable for inconvenience, annoyance,
disturbance, loss of business or other damage of Sublessee by reason of making such repairs or the

19



performance of any such work, on or account of bringing materials, tools, supplies or equipment
into or through the Subleased Premises during the course thereof and the obligations of Sublessee
under this Sublease shall not be affected thereby. Nothing herein shall limit the provisions of
Article 8 of the Primary Sublease.

11.2. Sublessee acknowledges that from time to time PDA may undertake construction, repair
or other activities related to the operation, maintenance and repair of the Airport which will require
temporary accommodation by Sublessee. Sublessee agrees to accommodate PDA in such matters,
even though Sublessee's own activities may be inconvenienced or partially impaired, and
Sublessee agrees that no liability shall attach to PDA, its members, employees or agents by reason
of such inconvenience or impairment, unless such activities of PDA hereunder are performed in a
negligent manner.

11.3. Sublessee shall allow PDA and any agency of the United States, its officers, agents,
employees and contractors to enter upon the Subleased Premises for any purposes not inconsistent
with Sublessee's quiet use and enjoyment, inctuding but not limited to the purpose of inspection.
Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, in the event the Government (or any other agency having
a right of entry under the Deed an/or the FFA determines that immediate entry is required for
safety, environmental, operations or security purposes they may effect such entry without prior
notice. The Sublessee shall have no claim against PDA or against the United States or any officer,
agent, employee or contractor thereof on account of any such entries.

ARTICLE 12

GENERAL INDEMNIFICATION BY SUBLESSEE

12.1. In addition to any other obligation of Sublessee under this Sublease to indemnify, defend and
hold harmless Sublessor, it principals, agents and employees, etc., Sublessee agrees to indemnify,
defend and hold harmless Sublessor against and from any and all claims, judgments, damages,
penalties, fines, assessments, costs and expenses, liabilities and losses (including, without
limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss or restriction on the use of
the Premises, sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees, consultants’ fees and experts' fees)
resulting or arising during the term of this Sublease:

) from any condition of the Premises resulting from the use of the Premises
by the Sublessee;

2) from any breach or default on the part of Sublessee in the performance of
any covenant or agreement on the part of Sublessee to be performed pursuant to the terms
of this Sublease, or from any act or omission of Sublessee, or any of its agents, contractors,
servants, employees, sublessees, licensees or invitees; or

3) from any accident, injury, loss or damage whatsoever caused by any act or
omissions of Sublessee, or any of its agents, contractors, servants, employees, sublessees,
licensees or invitees, to any person or property occurring during the term of this Sublease,
on or about the Subleased Premises (including ramp and parking areas), or upon the land,
streets, curbs or parking areas adjacent thereto.

20



In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against Sublessor by reason of any
matter for which Sublessee has hereby agreed to indemnify, defend, or hold harmless Sublessor,
Sublessee, upon notice from Sublessor, covenants to resist or defend such action or proceeding
with counsel acceptable to Sublessor.

12.2. The term "Person" as used in this Article shall include individuals, corporations,
partnerships, governmental units and any other legal entity entitled to bring a claim, action or other
demand or proceeding on its own behalf or on behalf of any other entity.

12.3. The Sublessee also expressly waives any claims against PDA and the State of New
Hampshire and further agrees to indemnify, save, hold harmless and defend PDA and the State of
New Hampshire to the same extent required of the Sublessor under the Primary Sublease.

ARTICLE 13
UTILITIES

13.1.  Sublessor shall bring or shall cause utility lines to be brought to the Subleased Premises at
the points existing as of the Term Commencement Date or such other points as may be designated
by Sublessor (in consultation with Sublessee). The utility lines shall have the capacities existing
as of the Term Commencement Date which Sublessee acknowledges are sufficient to enable
Sublessee to obtain for the Subleased Premises, as of the date of commencement of Sublessee's
activities, sufficient water, electricity, telephone and sewer service. Sublessee shall not at any time
overburden or exceed the capacity of the mains, feeders, ducts, conduits, or other facilities by
which such utilities are supplied to, distributed in or serve the Subleased Premises. If Sublessee
desires to install any equipment which shall require additional utility facilities or utility facilities
of a greater capacity than the facilities provided by Sublessor, such installation shall be subject to
Sublessor's and PDA’s prior written approval of Sublessee's plans and specifications therefor,
which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. If such installation is approved by Sublessor
and PDA and if Sublessor and PDA agrees to provide any additional facilities to accommodate
Sublessee's installation, Sublessee agrees to pay Sublessor and/or PDA, in advance and on demand,
the cost for providing such additional utility facilities or utility facilities of greater capacity.

PDA under the Primary Sublease also reserved the right to run such utility lines as it deems
necessary in connection with the development of the Airport to, from, or through the Subleased
Premises, provided, however, that PDA in exercising such reserved right shall provide reasonable
prior notice and the opportunity to confer with PDA and shall exercise reasonable efforts to avoid
or minimize interference with use of the Subleased Premises.

PDA under the Primary Sublease, at its sole discretion, shall have the right from time to
time, to alter the method and source of supply of the above enumerated utilities to the Subleased
Premises and Sublessee agrees to execute and deliver to PDA such documentation as may be
required to effect such alteration. Sublessee agrees to pay all charges for the above enumerated
utilities supplied by Sublessor, public utility or public authority, or any other person, firm or
corporation which are separately metered to the Subleased Premises.

PDA under the Primary Sublease, shall have the option to supply any of the above-

21



enumerated utilities to the Subleased Premises. If PDA shall elect to supply any of such utilities
to the Subleased Premises, Sublessee will purchase its requirements for such services tendered by
PDA, and Sublessee will pay PDA, within ten (10) days after mailing by PDA to Sublessee of
statements therefor, at the applicable rates determined by PDA from time to time which PDA
agrees shall not be in excess of the public utility rates for the same service, if applicable, to other
aviation tenants at the Airport. If PDA so elects to supply any of such utilities, Sublessee shall
execute and deliver to PDA, within ten (10) days after request therefor, any documentation
reasonably required by PDA to effect such change in the method of furnishing of such utilities.

13.2. Sublessor shall be responsible for providing any meters or other devices for the
measurement of utilities supplied to the Subleased Premises. Sublessee shall be solely responsible
for and promptly pay, as and when the same become due and payable, all charges for water, sewer,
electricity, gas, telephone and any other utility used or consumed in the Subleased Premises and
supplied by PDA, any public utility or authority or any other person, firm or corporation which are
separately metered to the Subleased Premises.

13.3. All work and construction under this Article shall comply with the provisions of Article 10
of this Sublease applicable to construction work.

ARTICLE 14

INSTALLATION AND ALTERATIONS BY SUBLESSEE. REPAIRS AND SERVICES TO BE
FURNISHED BY SUBLESSOR.

14.1. Installation and Alterations by Sublessee, etc. Sublessee shall make no alterations,
additions (including, for the purposes hereof, wall-to-wall carpeting), or improvements in or to the
Premises without Sublessor's prior written consent. Any such alterations, additions or improvements
shall (i) be in accordance with complete plans and specifications prepared by Sublessee and
approved in advance by Sublessor; (ii) be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and in
compliance with all applicable laws; (iii) be performed and completed in the manner required herein;
(iv) be made at Sublessee’s sole expense and at such times as Sublessor may from time to time
designate; and (v) become a part of the Premises and the property of Sublessor. It is agreed and
understood that Sublessor shall have the right to review and approve all changes to any plans which
Sublessor shall have approved pursuant to this Section. It is also agreed and understood that
Sublessor shall not be deemed to be unreasonable in denying its consent to alterations, additions and
improvements to the Premises which affect "Base Building Systems" (as said term is hereafter
defined). As used herein, the term "Base Building Systems" shall mean (i) any mechanical, electrical
or plumbing system or component of the Building (including the Premises) (ii) the exterior of the
Building (iii) the Building HVAC distribution system (iii) any fire safety prevention/suppression
system and (iv) any structural element or component of the Building.

14.2. All articles of personal property and all business fixtures, machinery and equipment and
furniture owned or installed by Sublessee solely at its expense in the Premises (** Sublessee 's
Removable Property") shall remain the property of Sublessee and may be removed by Sublessee at
any time prior to the expiration of this Sublease, provided that Sublessee, at its expense, shall repair
any damage to the Building caused by such removal.

22



14.3. All of the Sublessee’s alterations, additions and installation of furnishings shall be coordinated
with any work being performed by Sublessor and in such manner as to maintain harmonious labor
relations and not damage the Property or interfere with Building construction or operation and,
except for installation of furnishings, shall be performed by Sublessor's general contractor or, at
Sublessor’s election, by contractors or workmen first approved by Sublessor. Installation and moving
of furnishings, equipment and the like shall be performed only with labor compatible with that being
employed by Sublessor for work in or to the Building and not to employ or permit the use of any
labor or otherwise take any action which might result in a labor dispute involving personnel
providing services in the Building. Except for work by Sublessor's general contractor, Sublessee
before its work is started shall: secure all licenses and permits necessary therefor.

14.4. In connection with the performance of any alterations, improvements, changes or additions to
the Premises as contemplated by Article IV or Section 5.2 of this Sublease, in the event that any such
improvement, alteration, change or addition to the Premises to be performed by Sublessee (the
Sublessee’s Work") affects so-called "Base Building Systems" and to the extent that such Work is
not performed by Sublessor or a general contractor employed directly by Sublessor, Sublessee
hereby agrees to use the services of a construction management firm designated by Sublessor to
oversee, coordinate and review all aspects of any such Work. The cost and expense of the services
of such construction manager shall be borne by Sublessee but only to the extent that such costs and
expenses are comparable to and competitive with the costs and expenses charged by other firms
engaged in construction management and oversight services in the general geographic location of
the Building for services of a similar scope and type.

14.5.  Sublessor Repairs. (a) Except as otherwise provided in this Sublease, Sublessor agrees to
keep in good order, condition and repair the roof, public areas, exterior walls (including exterior
glass) and structure of the Building (including plumbing, mechanical and electrical systems installed
by Sublessor but excluding any systems installed specifically for Sublessee's benefit or used
exclusively by Sublessee) and the HVAC system serving the Premises, all insofar as they affect the
Premises, except that Sublessor shall in no event be responsible to Sublessee for the condition of
glass in the Premises or for the doors (or related glass and finish work) leading to the Premises, or
for any condition in the Premises or the Building caused by any act or neglect of Sublessee, its agents,
employees, invitees or contractors. Sublessor shall not be responsible to make any improvements or
repairs to the Building other than as expressly in this Section, unless expressly provided otherwise
in this Sublease. All costs and expenses incurred by Sublessor in performing its obligations under
this Section shall be included in Operating Expenses.

14.6. Any services which Sublessor is required to furnish pursuant to the provisions of this Sublease
may, at Sublessor's option be furnished from time to time, in whole or in part, by employees of
Sublessor or by the Manager of the Property or by one or more third persons and Sublessor further
reserves the right to require Sublessee to enter into agreements with such persons in form and content
approved by Sublessor for the furnishing of such services. Sublessor shall cause the paved portions
of the Property to be kept reasonably free and clear of snow, ice and refuse and shall cause the
landscaped areas of the Property to be maintained in a reasonably attractive appearance.

14.7. Sublessee’s Agreement (a) Sublessee will keep neat and clean and maintain in good order,
condition and repair the Premises and every part thereof, excepting only those repairs for which
Sublessor is responsible under the terms of this Sublease, and reasonable wear and tear of the

23



Premises, and damage by fire or other casualty and as a consequence of the exercise of the power
of eminent domain; and shall surrender the Premises, at the end of the Term, in such condition.
Sublessee shall continually during the Term of this Sublease maintain the Premises in accordance
with all laws, codes and ordinances from time to time in effect and all directions, rules and
regulations of the proper officers of governmental agencies having jurisdiction, and shall, at
Sublessee’s own expense, obtain all permits, licenses and the like required by applicable law.
Sublessee shall be responsible for the cost of repairs which may be necessary by reason of damage
to the Building caused by any act or neglect of Sublessee or its agents, employees, contractors or
invitees (including any damage by fire or any other casualty arising therefrom).

(b) If repairs are required to be made by Sublessee pursuant to the terms hereof, Sublessor may
demand that Sublessee make the same forthwith, and if Sublessee refuses or neglects to commence
such repairs and complete the same with reasonable dispatch after such demand, Sublessor may (but
shall not be required to do so) make or cause such repairs to be made (the provisions of Section 14.18
being applicable to the costs thereof) and shall not be responsible to Sublessee for any loss or damage
that may accrue to Sublessee's stock or business by reason thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
Sublessor may elect to take action hereunder immediately and without notice to Sublessee if
Sublessor reasonably believes an emergency to exist.

14.8. Floor Load - Heavy Machinery. (a) Sublessee shall not place a load upon any floor in the
Premises exceeding the floor load per square foot of area which such floor was designed to carry
and which is allowed by law. Sublessor reserves the right to prescribe the weight and position of all
business machines and mechanical equipment, including safes, which shall be placed so as to
distribute the weight. Business machines and mechanical equipment shall be placed and maintained
by Sublessee at Sublessee's expense in settings sufficient, in Sublessor's judgment, to absorb and
prevent vibration, noise and annoyance. Sublessee shall not move any safe, heavy machinery, heavy
equipment, freight, bulky matter or fixtures into or out of the Building without Sublessor's prior
consent, which consent may include a requirement to provide insurance, naming Sublessor as an
insured, in such amounts as Sublessor may deem reasonable.

(b) If such safe, machinery, equipment, freight, bulky matter or fixtures requires special handling,
Sublessee agrees to employ only persons holding a Master Rigger's License to do such work, and
that all work in connection therewith shall comply with applicable laws and regulations. Any such
moving shall be at the sole risk and hazard of Sublessee, and Sublessee will exonerate, indemnity
and save Sublessor harmless against and from any liability, loss, injury, claim or suit resulting
directly or indirectly from such moving.

14.9  Electricity. (a) Sublessor shall permit Sublessor's existing wires, pipes, risers, conduits and
other electrical equipment of Sublessor to be used for the purpose of providing electrical service to
the Premises. All electrical service to the premises will be separately metered and paid directly by
the Sublessee. Sublessee covenants and agrees that its electrical usage and consumption will not
disproportionately “siphon off” electrical service necessary for other sublessees of the Building and
that its total connected load will not exceed the maximum load from time to time permitted by
applicable governmental regulations nor the design criteria of the existing Building electrical
capacity. Sublessor shall not in any way be liable or responsible to Sublessee for any loss or damage
or expense which Sublessee may sustain or incur if, during the Term of this Sublease, either the
quantity or character of electric current is changed or electric current is no longer available or
suitable for Sublessee's requirements due to a factor or cause beyond Sublessor's control. Sublessee

24



shall purchase and install all lamps, tubes, bulbs, starters and ballasts. Sublessee shall pay all charges
for electricity, HVAC, gas and other utilities used or consumed in the Premises. Sublessee shall bear
the cost of repair and maintenance of any electric or gas meter used or to be installed in (or serving)
the Premises.

(b) In order to insure that the foregoing requirements are not exceeded and to avert possible adverse
affect on the Building's electrical system, Sublessee shall not, without Sublessor's prior consent,
connect any fixtures, appliances or equipment to the Building's electrical distribution system which
operates on a voltage in excess of 120 volts nominal. If Sublessor shall consent to the connection of
any such fixtures, appliances or equipment, all additional risers or other electrical facilities or
equipment required therefor shall be provided by Sublessor and the cost thereof shall be paid by
Sublessee upon Sublessor's demand as Additional Rent. From time to time during the Term of this
Sublease, Sublessor shall have the right to have an electrical consultant selected by Sublessor make
a survey of Sublessee's electric usage, the result of which shall be conclusive and binding upon
Sublessor and Sublessee. In the event that such survey shows that Sublessee has exceeded the
requirements set forth in paragraph (a), in addition to any other rights Sublessor may have hereunder,
Sublessee shall, upon demand, reimburse Sublessor for the costs of such survey.

14.10. All work, repairs, alterations or modifications undertaken pursuant to this Article 14 shall be
subject to the provisions of Article 10 of this Sublease

ARTICLE 15

ACCESS TO PREMISES

Sublessor and its agents shall have the right to enter upon the Subleased Premises, or any
part thereof, without charge, at all reasonable times, and upon reasonable notice, and in case of
emergency at any time, to inspect the same, to show the Subleased Premises to perspective
purchasers or tenants, to make or facilitate any repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements to
the Subleased Premises. Nothing in this Article contained shall obligate Sublessor to make any
repairs, alterations, additions or improvements. Sublessee shall not be entitled to any abatement
or reduction of rent or damages by reason of any of the foregoing. No forcible entry shall be made
by Sublessor unless such entry shall be reasonably necessary to prevent serious injury, loss, or
damage to persons or property. Sublessor shall repair any damage to property of Sublessee, or
anyone claiming under Sublessee, caused by or resulting from Sublessor’s making any such
repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements, except only such damage as shall result from the
making of such repairs, alterations, additions, or improvements, which Sublessor shall make as a
result of the default, fault, or negligence of Sublessee, or anyone claiming under Sublessee. For
the period commencing six (6) months prior to the expiration of the term of this Sublease,
Sublessor may maintain “For Rent” signs on the front or any part of the exterior of the Subleased
Premises.

ARTICLE 16

DAMAGE OR DESTRUCTION

25



16.1. Sublessor’s Right of Termination. If the Premises or the Building are substantially damaged
by fire or casualty (the term "substantially damaged" meaning damage of such a character that the
same cannot, in ordinary course, reasonably be expected to be repaired within sixty (60) days from
the time the repair work would commence), or if any part of the Building is taken by any exercise of
the right of eminent domain, then Sublessor shall have the right to terminate this Sublease (even if
Sublessor's entire interest in the Premises may have been divested) by giving notice of Sublessor’s
election so to do within 90 days after the occurrence of such casualty or the effective date of such
taking, whereupon this Sublease shall terminate thirty (30) days after the date of such notice with the
same force and effect as if such date were the date originally established as the expiration date hereof.

16.2 . Restoration. If this Sublease shall not be terminated pursuant to Section 16.1, Sublessor shall
thercafter use due diligence to restore the Premises (excluding any alterations, additions or
improvements made by Sublessee) to proper condition for Sublessee's use and occupation, provided
that Sublessor's obligation shall be limited to the amount of insurance proceeds available therefor.
If, for any reason, such restoration shall not be substantially completed within six months after the
expiration of the 90 day period referred to in Section 16.1 (which six-month period may be extended
for such periods of time as Sublessor is prevented from proceeding with or completing such
restoration for any cause beyond Sublessor's reasonable control, but in no event for more than an
additional three months), Sublessee shall have the right to terminate this Sublease by giving notice
to Sublessor thereof within thirty (30) days after the expiration of such period (as so extended). Upon
the giving of such notice, this Sublease shall cease and come to an end without further liability or
obligation on the part of either party unless, within such 30-day period, Sublessor substantially
completes such restoration. Such right of termination shall be Sublessee's sole and exclusive remedy
at law or in equity for Sublessor's failure so to complete such restoration. During the period of such
restoration, if the Sublessee shall not have reasonable use and occupancy of the premises, the rent
shall be abated during that period or portion thereof.

ARTICLE 17

EMINENT DOMAIN

17.1. TIfafter the execution of the Sublease and prior to the expiration of the term of this Sublease,
the whole of the Subleased Premises shall be taken under the power of eminent domain, then the
term of this Sublease shall cease as of the time when Sublessor shall be divested of its title in the
Subleased Premises, and minimum rent shall be apportioned and adjusted as of the time of
termination.

17.2. Ifonly a part of the Subleased Premises shall be taken under the power of eminent domain,
then if as a result thereof the Subleased Premises shall not be reasonably adequate for the operation
of the business conducted in the Subleased Premises prior to the taking, Sublessor or Sublessee
may, at its election, terminate the term of this Sublease by giving the other notice of the exercise
of its election within twenty (20) days after it shall receive notice of such taking, and the
termination shall be effective as of the time that Sublessee is dispossessed, and base rent shall be
apportioned and adjusted as of the time of termination. If only a part of the Subleased Premises
shall be taken under the power of eminent domain, and if the term of this Sublease shall not be
terminated as aforesaid, then the term of this Sublease shall continue in full force and effect, and
Sublessor shall, within a reasonable time after possession is required for public use, repair and

26



rebuild what may remain of the leased Premises so as to put the same into condition for use and
occupancy by Sublessee, and a just proportion of the base rent according to the nature and extent
of the injury to the Subleased Premises shall be abated for the balance of the term of this Sublease
and in addition business interruption and/or relocation aware are to be paid out of the taking shall
be the property of and shall be paid to the Sublessee.

17.3. Sublessor reserves to itself, and Sublessee assigns to Sublessor, all rights to damages
accruing on account of any taking under the power of eminent domain or by reason of any act of
any public or quasi public authority for which damages are payable. Sublessee agrees to execute
such instruments of assignment as may be reasonably required by Sublessor in any proceeding for
the recovery of damages that may be recovered in such proceeding. It is agreed and understood,
however, the Sublessor does not reserve to itself, and Sublessee does not assign to Sublessor, any
damages payable for movable trade fixtures installed by Sublessee or anybody claiming under
Sublessee at its own cost and expense.

ARTICLE 18
DEFAULT

18.1.  If Sublessee shall default in the payment of rent or other payments required of Sublessee,
and if Sublessee shall fail to cure said default within seven (7) business days after receipt of written
notice of said default from Sublessor; or if Sublessee shall default in the performance or
observance of any other agreement or condition on its part to be performed or observed, and if
Sublessee shall fail to cure said default within fifteen (15) business days after receipt of written
notice of said default from Sublessor; or if any person shall levy upon, or take this leasehold
interest or any part hereof, upon execution, attachment, or their process of law; or if Sublessee
shall make an assignment of its property for the benefit of creditors; or if Sublessee shall file
voluntary bankruptcy; or if any bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings shall be commenced by
Sublessee or an involuntary bankruptcy shall be filed against the Sublessee which remains
undischarged for a period of 60 days, or if a receiver, trustee, or assignee shall be appointed for
the whole or any part of the Sublessee’s property, then in any of said cases, Sublessor lawfully
may upon seven days notice or if such notice shall adversely affect the rights of the Sublessor in
any bankruptcy or receivership, then immediately, or at any time thereafter, and without further
notice of demand, enter into and upon the Subleased Premises, or any part hereof in the name of
the whole, and hold the Subleased Premises as if this Sublease had not been made, and expel
Sublessee and those claiming under it, and remove its or their property without being taken or
deemed to be guilty of any manner of trespass (or Sublessor may send written notice to Sublessee
of the termination of this Sublease, and upon entry as aforesaid (or in the event that Sublessor shall
sent to Sublessee notice of termination as above provided, on the fifth (5) day next following the
date of the sending of the notice), the term of this Sublease shall terminate. Sublessee hereby
expressly waives any and all rights of redemption granted by or under any present or future laws
in the event of Sublessee being evicted or dispossessed for any cause, or in the event Sublessor
terminates this Sublease as provided in this Article. The Sublessee shall be liable for a 5% late fee
applicable to any amounts due under this Sublease, from the due date of such payment.

18.2. In the case of such termination, Sublessee will indemnify Sublessor each month against all
loss of rent, and all obligations which Sublessor may incur by reasons of any such termination,
between the time of termination and the expiration of the term of this Sublease; or at the election

27



of Sublessor, exercised at the time of the termination or at any time thereafter, Sublessee will
indemnify Sublessor, each month until the exercise of the election, against all loss of rent and other
obligations which Sublessor may incur by reason of such termination, during the period between
the time of the termination and the exercise of the election, and upon the exercise of the election
Sublessee will pay to Sublessor as damages such amount as at the time of the exercise of the
election represents the amount by which the rental value of the leased Premises for the period from
the exercise of the election until the expiration of the term shall be less than the amount of rent and
other payments provided herein to be paid by Sublessee to Sublessor during said period. It is
understood and agreed that at the time of the termination, or at any time thereafter, the Sublessor
shall diligently perform the legal obligation to relet the premises for a term which may expire after
the expiration of the term of this Sublease, without releasing Sublessee from any liability
whatsoever, only for the term of this Sublease, but not for the longer re-let term. The Sublessee
shall be liable for any expenses incurred by Sublessor in connection with obtaining possession of
the Subleased Premises, with removing from the Subleased Premises property of Sublessee and
persons claiming under it (including warehouse charges), with putting the Subleased Premises into
a condition reletting similar to its condition at the commencement of this lease, reasonable wear
and tear excepted, and with any reletting, including, but without limitation, reasonable attorneys’
fees and brokers’ fees, and that any monies collected from any reletting shall be applied first to the
foregoing expenses and then to the payment of rent and all other payments due from Sublessee to
Sublessor. The Sublessor shall, commensurate with any demand for payment of any of the above
as to expenses or rent, provide the Sublessee with an itemization of all such items as a condition
to the Sublessee’s obligations to make payment.

ARTICLE 19

SUBORDINATION TO MORTGAGES

Sublessee agrees that upon the request of Sublessor it will subordinate this Sublease and
the lien hereof to the lien of any present or future mortgage or mortgages upon the Subleased
Premises, any property of which the Subleased Premises are a part, or upon any ground lease of
such property or upon any part thereof, irrespective of the time of execution or time of recording
of any sub mortgage or mortgages. Sublessee agrees that it will, upon the request of Sublessor,
execute, acknowledge and deliver any and all instruments deemed by Sublessor necessary or
desirable to give effect or notice of such subordination. Sublessee also agrees that if it shall fail at
any time to execute, acknowledge, or deliver any instrument requested by Sublessor under this
Article, Sublessor may, only after seven (7) days notice to the Sublessee, in addition to any other
remedies available to it, execute, acknowledge, and deliver such instrument as the attorney in fact
of Sublessee and in Sublessee’s name, and Sublessee hereby makes, constitutes, and irrevocably
appoints Sublessor as its attorney in fact for that purpose. The word “mortgage” as used herein
includes mortgages, deeds of trust, or other similar instruments and modifications, consolidations,
extensions, renewals, replacements and substitutes thereof. At the request of the holder of any
mortgage upon the Subleased Premises or any property of which the Subleased Premises is a part
may subordinate the lien of such mortgage to this Sublease, thereby making this Sublease superior
to such mortgage, by recording in the Rockingham County Registry of Deeds, a Notice of
Subordination or other document of like effect, executed unilateralty by such mortgage. Whether
the lien of any mortgage are a part shall be superior or subordinate to this Sublease and the lien
hereof, Sublessee agrees that , if requested by Sublessor or the holder of such mortgage, it will
attorn to the holder of such mortgage or anyone claiming under such holder and their respective

28



successors and assigns in the event of foreclosure of or similar action taken under such mortgage.

ARTICLE 20

CERTIFICATE

Within ten (10) days after written request therefor by Sublessor, Sublessee agrees to deliver
to Sublessor or to any mortgagee a certificate stating (if such be the case) that Sublessee has entered
into occupancy of the Subleased Premises in accordance with the provisions of this Sublease, that
this Sublease is in full force and effect (if such be the case), that Sublessor has performed the
construction required of Sublessor, and any other information reasonably requested.

ARTICLE 21

DELEGATION. ASSIGNMENT. SUBLEASES, MORTGAGE

21.1.  Delegation. Sublessee shall not have the right to delegate any of its responsibilities or
obligations under this Sublease.

21.2.  Assignment. Sublessee may, without the approval of Sublessor, assign its rights under this
Sublease to a related corporation as long as Sublessee retains at least fifty-one percent (51%)
controlling interest in such related corporation. All other assignments shall be subject to approval
of Sublessor and PDA, which approval shall not be withheld unreasonably.

21.3. Subleases. Sublessee may not enter into any sublease of the Subleased Premises without
Sublessor's prior written approval. Any request for Sublessor's approval shall be made at least
forty-five (45) days prior to the commencement of such tenancy and shall provide detailed
information concerning the identity and financial condition of the proposed sublessee and the terms
and conditions of the proposed sublease. Sublessor shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to
such sublease if: (1) the use of the Subleased Premises associated with any sublease(s) is permitted
under Article 8, (2) the sublease(s) are consistent with the terms and conditions of this Sublease
and the Primary Sublease; provided, however, that Sublessee may rent the subleased area at rentals
deemed appropriate by Sublessee, (3) Sublessee remains primarily liable to Sublessor to pay rent
and to perform all other obligations to be performed by Sublessee under this Sublease, (4) the
proposed sublessee is financially and operationally responsible and (5) PDA has given its approval
to the proposed sublease. [In the event the rent for the Subleased Premises exceeds the rental
charged to Sublessee under Article 4, Sublessee shall remit sixty percent (60%) of such excess to
Sublessor upon receipt by Sublessee; provided, however, that any rental received by Sublessee
during a period in which no rental is due to Sublessor shall be paid in its entirety to Sublessor.]

21.4. Continuing Liability of Sublessee. No subletting, assignment or transfer, whether
Sublessor's consent is required or otherwise given hereunder, shall release Sublessee's obligations
or alter the primary liability of Sublessee to pay the rent and to perform all other obligations to be
performed by Sublessee hereunder. The acceptance of rent by Sublessor from any other person
shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Sublessor of any provision hereof. Consent to one
assignment or subletting shall not be deemed consent to any subsequent assignment or subletting.
If any assignee of Sublessee or any successor of Sublessee defaults in the performance of any of

29



the terms hereof, Sublessor may proceed directly against Sublessee without the necessity of
exhausting remedies against such assignee or successor. If Sublessee assigns this Sublease, or
sublets all or a portion of the Subleased Premises, or requests the consent of Sublessor to any
assignment or subletting, or if Sublessee requests the consent of Sublessor for any act that
Sublessee proposes to do, then Sublessee shall pay Sublessor's reasonable processing fee and
reimburse Sublessor for all reasonable attorneys' fees incurred in connection therewith. Any
assignment or subletting of the Subleased Premises that is not in compliance with the provisions
of this Article XXI shall be void and shall, at the option of Sublessor, terminate this Sublease.

21.5. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sublease, any assignment or sublease shall
comply with the provision of Article XXII including the notice requirements of Condition 10.8 of
the FFA (as that term is defined in Section 22.8) and the terms and conditions of the Primary
Sublease.

21.6. Mortgages. Except as otherwise expressly agreed to by PDA in writing, Sublessee shall not
have the right to engage in any financing or other transaction creating any mortgage upon the
Subleased Premises. Any approval of PDA shall be expressly subject to the provisions of the
Primary Sublease and any applicable terms and conditions of the Deed.

ARTICLE 22

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

22.1. Sublessee and any sublessee or assignee of Sublessee shall comply with all federal, state,
and local laws, regulations, and standards that are or may become applicable to Sublessee's or
Sublessee's or assignee's activities at the Subleased Premises, including but not limited to, the
applicable environmental laws and regulations identified in Exhibit 7, as amended from time to
time.

22.2. Sublessee and any sublessee or assignee of Sublessee shall be solely responsible for
obtaining at their cost and expense any environmental permits required for their operations under
this Sublease or any sublease or assignment, independent of any existing Airport permits.

22.3. Sublessee shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Sublessor, PDA and the Air Force
against and from all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses, liabilities
and losses (including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, damages for the loss
or restriction on the use of the Premises, and sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys' fees,
consultants' fees and experts' fees), resulting or arising from discharges, emissions, spills, releases,
storage, or disposal of any Hazardous Substances, or any other action by the Sublessee, or any
sublessee or assignee of the Sublessee, giving rise to Sublessor or PDA or Air Force liability, civil
or criminal, or responsibility under federal, state or local environmental laws.

This indemnification of Sublessor and PDA and the Air Force by Sublessee includes,
without limitation, any and all claims, judgment, damages, penalties, fines, costs and expenses,
liabilities and losses incurred by Sublessor or PDA or the Air Force in connection with any
investigation of site conditions, or any remedial or removal action or other site restoration work
required by any federal, state or local governmental unit or other person for or pertaining to any

30



discharges, emissions, spills, releases, storage or disposal of Hazardous Substances arising or
resulting from any act or omission of the Sublessee or any sublessee or assignee of the Sublessee
at the Subleased Premises after the Occupancy Date. "Occupancy Date" as used herein shall mean
the earlier of the first day of Sublessee's occupancy or use of the Subleased Premises or the date
of execution of this Sublease. "Occupancy" or "Use" shall mean any activity or presence including
preparation and construction in or upon the Subleased Premises.

The provisions of this Section shall survive the expiration or termination of the Sublease,
and the Sublessee's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever the Sublessor or the Air Force
incurs costs or liabilities for the Sublessee's actions of the types described in this Article.

22.4. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sublease, Sublessee and its sublessees and
assignees do not assume any liability or responsibility for environmental impacts and damage
caused by the use by the Air Force of Hazardous Substances on any portion of the Airport,
including the Subleased Premises. The Sublessee and its sublessees and assignees have no
obligation to undertake the defense, remediation and cleanup, including the liability and
responsibility for the costs of damages, penalties, legal and investigative services solely arising
out of any claim or action in existence now, or which may be brought in the future by any person,
including governmental units against the Air Force, because of any use of, or release from, any
portion of the Airport (including the Subleased Premises) of any Hazardous Substances prior to
the Occupancy Date.

22.5. Asused in this Sublease, the term "Hazardous Substances" means any hazardous or toxic
substance, material or waste, oil or petroleum product, which is or becomes regulated by any local
governmental authority, the State of New Hampshire or the United States Government. The term
"Hazardous Substances" includes, without limitation, any material or substance which is (i)
defined as a "hazardous waste," under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-A, (ii) defined as a "hazardous
substance” under New Hampshire RSA ch.147-B, (iii) oil, gasoline or other petroleum product,
(iv) asbestos, (v) listed under or defined as hazardous substance pursuant to Part Hc. P 1905
("Hazardous Waste Rules") of the New Hampshire Code of Administrative Rules, (vi) designated
as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 311 of the Federal Water Pollution Control Act (33
U.S.C. §1317, (vii) defined as a "hazardous waste" pursuant to Section 1004 of the Federal
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 U.S.C. §6901 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §6903), or (viii)
defined as a "hazardous substance" pursuant to Section 101 of the Comprehensive Environmental
Response, Compensation and Liability Act, 42 U.S.C. §9601 et seq. (42 U.S.C. §9601) and (ix) so
defined in the regulations adopted and publications promulgated pursuant to any of such laws, or
as such laws or regulations may be further amended, modified or supplemented (collectively
"Hazardous Substance Laws").

As used in this Sublease, the terms "release" and "storage” shall have the meanings
provided in RSA 147-B:2, as amended, and the term "disposal" shall have the meaning provided
in RSA 147-A:2.

22.6. Sublessor's rights under this Sublease and PDA’s rights under the Primary Sublease
specifically include the right for Sublessor and PDA to inspect the Subleased Premises and any
buildings or other facilities thereon for compliance with environmental, safety, and occupational
health laws and regulations, whether or not the Sublessor or PDA is responsible for enforcing
them. Such inspections are without prejudice to the right of duly constituted enforcement officials

31



to make such inspections.

22.7. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Sublease and pursuant to the Primary Sublease,
PDA is not responsible for any removal or containment of asbestos. If Sublessee and any sublessee
or assignee intend to make any improvements or repairs that require the removal of asbestos, an
appropriate asbestos disposal plan must be incorporated in the plans and specifications. The
asbestos disposal plan shall identify the proposed disposal site for the asbestos. In addition, non-
friable asbestos which becomes friable through or as a consequence of the activities of Sublessee
will be abated by Sublessee at its sole cost and expense. The Sublessor hereby certifies that the
leased premises and the building containing the leased premises are free of any asbestos materials.

22.8. Sublessor and Sublessee acknowledge that the Airport has been identified as a National
Priority List (NPL) Site under the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and
Liability Act (CERCLA) of 1980, as amended. Sublessee acknowledges that Sublessor has
provided it with a copy of the Pease Federal Facility Agreement ("FFA") entered into by EPA, and
the Air Force on April 24, 1991, and Modification No. 1 thereto, effective March 18, 1993, agrees
that it will comply with the terms of the FFA to the extent the same may be applicable to the
Subleased Premises and that should any conflict arise between the terms of the FFA and the
provisions of this Sublease, the terms of the FFA will take precedence. The Sublessee further
agrees that the Sublessor and PDA assume no liability to the Sublessee or any sublessee or assignee
of Sublessee should implementation of the FFA interfere with their use of the Subleased Premises.
The Sublessee and its sublessee(s) and assignee(s) shall have no claim on account of any such
interference against the Sublessor, or PDA or any officer, agent, employee or contractor thereof,
other than a claim to Sublessor for abatement of rent.

Pursuant to its obligations under Federal law, the Parties hereto acknowledge receipt of the
"Notices and Covenants Related to Section 120(h)(3) of CERCLA, as amended. The notice and a
description of remedial action by the Air Force are set forth in Paragraph VI of the Deed.

22.9. The Air Force, EPA, and NHDES and their officers, agents, employees, contractors, and
subcontractors have the right, upon reasonable notice to the Sublessee and any sublessee or
assignee, to enter upon the Subleased Premises for the purposes enumerated in this subparagraph
and for such other purposes consistent with the FFA:

N to conduct investigations and surveys, including, where necessary, drilling,
testpitting, borings and other activities related to the Pease Installation Restoration Program
("IRP") or the FFA (the term IRP as used herein refers to the broad Department of Defense-
wide program to identify, investigate and clean ups contaminated areas on military
installations as described in the Department of Defense Instruction Number 4715.7;

2) to inspect field activities of the Air Force and its contractors and
subcontractors in implementing the IRP or the FFA;

3) to conduct any test or survey required by the EPA or NHDES relating to the
implementation of the FFA or environmental conditions at the Subleased Premises or to
verify any data submitted to the EPA or NHDES by the Air Force relating to such
conditions;

32



(4)  to construct, operate, maintain or undertake any other response or remedial
action as required or necessary under the IRP or the FFA, including, but not limited to
monitoring wells, pumping wells and treatment facilities.

22.10. Sublessee and its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of any
health or safety plan in effect under the IRP or the FFA during the course of any of the above
described response or remedial actions. Any inspection, survey, investigation, or other response
or remedial action will, to the extent practicable, be coordinated with representatives designated
by the Sublessee and any sublessee or assignee. Sublessee and any sublessee or assignee shall
have no claim on account of such entries against the State as defined in FFA or any officer, agent,
employee, contractor, or subcontractor thereof.

Sublessor and its sublessees and assignees agree to comply with the provisions of the
"Environmental Use Restrictive Covenants" set forth in Paragraph VI.B of the Deed. It is the
intent of the Air Force and the PDA that the Environmental Use Restrictions bind Sublessor and
its sublessees and assignees, and that the Air Force reserves to itself the enforcement of this
restrictive covenant against Sublessor and its sublessees hereunder.

22.11. Sublessee further agrees that in the event of any authorized sublease or assignment of the
Subleased Premises, it shall provide to the Air Force, EPA and NHDES by certified mail a copy
of the agreement of sublease or assignment of the Subleased Premises within fourteen (14) days
after the effective date of such transaction. Sublessee may delete the financial terms and any other
proprietary information from any sublease or assignment submitted to the above mentioned

entities.

22.12. The Airport air emissions offsets and Air Force accumulation points for hazardous and
other wastes will not be made available to Sublessee. Sublessee shall be responsible for obtaining
from some other source(s) any air pollution credits that may be required to offset emissions
resulting from its activities under the Sublease.

22.13. Any permit required under Hazardous Substance Laws for the management of Hazardous
Substances stored or generated by Sublessee or any sublessee or assignee of Sublessee shall be
obtained by Sublessee or its sublessees or assignee and shall be limited to generation and
transportation. Any violation of this requirement shall be deemed a material breach of this
Sublease. Sublessee shall provide at its own expense such hazardous waste storage facilities,
complying with all laws and regulations, as it needs for management of its hazardous waste.

22.14. Sublessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Sublessee whose operations utilize Hazardous
Substances, shall have a completed and approved plan for responding to Hazardous Substances
spills prior to commencement of operations on the Subleased Premises. Such plan shall comply
with changes in site conditions or applicable requirements and shall be updated from time to time,
as may be required to comply with changes in site conditions or applicable requirements and shall
be approved by agencies having regulatory jurisdiction over such plan. Such plan shall be
independent of, but not inconsistent with, any plan or other standard of PDA applicable to the
Airport and except for initial fire response and/or spill containment, shall not rely on use of the
Airport or Sublessor personnel or equipment. Should the Sublessor provide any personnel or

33



equipment, whether for initial fire response and/or spill containment or otherwise, on request of
the Sublessee, or because the Sublessee was not, in the opinion of Sublessor, conducting timely
cleanup actions, the Sublessee agrees to reimburse the Sublessor for its costs.

22.15. Sublessee, and any sublessee or assignee of Sublessee, must maintain and make available
to PDA, the Air Force, EPA and NHDES all records, inspections logs, and manifests that tract the
generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as all other
records required by applicable laws and requirements. PDA and the Air Force reserve the right to
inspect the Subleased Premises and Sublessee’s, its sublessee’s or assignee’s records for
compliance with Federal, State, local laws, regulations, and other requirements relating to the
generation, handling, storage, treatment and disposal of hazardous waste, as well as the discharge
or release of hazardous substances. Violations may be reported by PDA and the Air Force to
appropriate regulatory agencies, as required by applicable law. The Sublessee, its sublessees or
assignees shall be liable for the payment of any fines and penalties or costs which may accrue to
the United States of America or PDA as a result of the actions of Sublessee, its sublessees or
assignees, respectively.

22.16 Prior to the storage, mixing, or application of any pesticide, as that term is defined under
the Federal Insecticide, Fungicide, and Rodenticide Act, the Sublessee, its sublessees and
assignees shall prepare a plan for storage, mixing and application of pesticides (“Pesticide
Management Plan”). The Pesticide Management Plan shall be sufficient to meet all applicable
Federal, State and local pesticide requirements. The Sublessee, its sublessees and assignees shall
store, mix and apply all pesticides within the Subleased Premises only in strict compliance with
the Pesticide Management Plan. The pesticides will only be applied by a licensed applicator.

22.17 The Sublessee, its sublessees and assignees must notify the Sublessor and the Site Manager
of its intent to possess, store, or use any licensed or licensable source or byproduct materials, as
those terms are defined under the Atomic Energy Act and its implementing regulations; of
Sublessee’s, its sublessees and assignees intent to possess, use or store radium; and of Sublessee’s,
its sublessees and assignees intent to possess or use any equipment producing ionizing radiation
and subject to specific licensing requirements or other individual regulations, at lease sixty (60)
days prior to the entry of such materials or equipment upon the Airport. Upon notification, the
Sublessor and the Site Manager may impose such requirements, including prohibition of
possession, use, or storage, as deemed necessary to adequately protect health and human
environment. Thercafter, the Sublessee must notify the Sublessor and the Site Manager of the
presence of all licensed or licensable source or other byproduct materials, of the presence of all
radium, and of the presence of all equipment producing ionizing radiation and subject to specific
licensing requirements or other individual regulation; provided, however, that the Sublessee, its
sublessees and assignees need not make either of the above notifications to the Sublessor and the
Site Manager with respect to source and byproduct material which is exempt from regulation under
the Atomic Energy Act. The Sublessee shall not, under any circumstances, use, own, possess or
allow the presence of special nuclear material on the Subleased Premises.

ARTICLE 23

34



HOLDING OVER

Holding Over. Any holding over by Sublessee after the expiration of the Term of this
Sublease shall be treated as a daily tenancy at sufferance at a rate equal to the then fair rental value
of the Subleased Premises but in no event less twice the sum of (i) Basic Rent and (ii) Additional
Rent in effect on the expiration date. Sublessee shall also pay to Sublessor all damages, direct and/or
indirect (including any loss of a Sublessee or rental income), sustained by reason of any such holding
over. Otherwise, such holding over shall be on the terms and conditions set forth in this Sublease as
far as applicable. The Sublessor may, but shall not be required to, and only on written notice to
Sublessee after the expiration of the Term hereof, elect to treat such holding over as an extension of
the Term of this Sublease for a period of up to one (1) year, as designated by Sublessor, such
extension to be on the terms and conditions set forth in this Section.

ARTICLE 24

WAIVERS

Failure of Sublessor to complain of any act or omission on the part of Sublessee, no matter
how long the same may continue, shall not be deemed to be a waiver by Sublessor of any of its
rights hereunder. No waiver by Sublessor at any time, express or implied, or any breach of any
provision of this Sublease shall be deemed a waiver of a breach of any other provision of this
Sublease or a consent of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. If any action
by Sublessce shall require Sublessor’s consent or approval, Sublessor’s consent to or approval of
such action on any one occasion shall not be deemed a consent to or approval of said action on any
subsequent occasion or a consent to or approval of any other action on the same or any subsequent
occasion. No payment by Sublessee or acceptance by Sublessor of a lesser amount than shall be
due from Sublessee to Sublessor shall be deemed to be anything but payment on account, and the
acceptance by Sublessor of a check for a lesser amount with an endorsement or statement thereon,
or upon letter accompanying said check that said lesser amount is payment in full, shall not be
deemed an accord and satisfaction, and Sublessor may accept said check without prejudice to
recover the balance due or pursue any other remedy. Any and all rights and remedies which
Sublessor may have under this Sublease or by operation of law, either at law or in equity, upon
any breach, shall be distinct, separate and cumulative, and shall not be deemed inconsistent with
each other; and no one of them, whether exercised by Sublessor or not, shall be deemed to be in
exclusion of any other; and any two or more of all such rights and remedies may be exercised at

the same time.

ARTICLE 25

QUIET ENJOYMENT

Sublessor agrees that upon Sublessee’s paying the rent and performing and observing the
agreements, conditions and other provisions on its part to be performed and observed, Sublessee
shall and may peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the Subleased Premises during the term
of this Sublease without any manner of hindrance or molestation from Sublessor or anyone
claiming under Sublessor, subject, however, to the terms of this Sublease and any instruments

35



having a prior lien.
ARTICLE 26

FAILURE OF PERFORMANCE

If Sublessee shall default in the performance or observance of any agreement or condition
of this Sublease contained on its part to be performed or observed, other than an obligation to pay
money, and shall not cure such default within fifteen (15) days after written notice from Sublessor
specifying the default (or shall not within said period commence to cure such default and thereafter
prosecute the curing of such default to completion with due diligence), Sublessor may, at its option,
without waiving any claim for damages for breach of agreement, at any time thereafter cure such
default for the account of Sublessee, and any amount paid or any contractual liability incurred by
Sublessor in so doing shall be deemed paid or incurred for the account f Sublessee, and Sublessee
agrees to reimburse Sublessor therefor or save Sublessor harmless therefrom; provided that
Sublessor may cure any such default as aforesaid prior to the expiration of said waiting period after
notice to Sublessee, if the curing of such default prior to the expiration of said waiting period is
reasonably necessary to protect the real estate or Sublessor’s interest therein, or to prevent injury
or damage to persons or property. If Sublessee shall fail to reimburse Sublessor upon demand for
any amount paid for the account of Sublessee hereunder, said amount, plus interest therefrom from
the date of Sublessor’s demand at the Lease Interest Rate, shall be added to and become due as a
part of the next payment of rent due hereunder.

ARTICLE 27

INTERPRETATIONS

27.1. This instrument contains the entire and only agreement between the parties, and no oral
statements or representations or prior written matter not contained in this instrument shall have
any force or effect. This Sublease shall not be modified in any way except by a writing subscribed
by both parties.

27.2. Wherever in this Sublease it is provided that the consent or approval of either party must
be obtained in order to authorize any act or course of conduct by the other party, the party whose
consent or approval is necessary may grant or withhold said consent or approval, except where
expressly provided to the contrary in this Sublease, at its sole and absolute discretion and with or
without explanation of the reason or reasons for granting or withholding the same.

27.3. Inthe event of a breach of this Sublease by either party, the prevailing party shall be entitled
to reasonable attorneys fees and costs.

7.4 . This Sublease shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Hampshire.

ARTICLE 28

NOTICES



All notices and other communications authorized or required hereunder shall be in
writing and shall be given by mailing the same certified or registered mail, return receipt requested,
postage prepaid, or first class mail, postage prepaid or by mailing the same by Express Mail or by
having the same delivered by a commercial delivery service to the following address:

If to Sublessor: 222 International, Limited Partnership
c/o CPManagement, Inc.
11 Court Street, Suite 100
Exeter, NH 03833

Ifto Sublessee: Speedpro Imaging of Porsmouth
Attn:
222 International Drive, Suite 135
Portsmouth, NH 03801

ARTICLE 29

DISPUTES AND LITIGATION

29.1. Except as provided below: In the event of a dispute between the parties, it shall be a
condition precedent to the initiation of any formal litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction
that the parties shall have meet face to face in a good faith effort to resolve the dispute directly
between them. In the event that they are unsuccessful, each party agrees to submit the dispute to
alternative dispute resolution, initially by mediation, and the parties shall equally share the expense
of such mediation.

In the event that mediation is unsuccessful, the parties shall then submit the dispute to
arbitration (binding if the parties agree) in accordance with the Rules of the American Arbitration
Association. In the event that arbitration fails, and provided that the parties have participated in
the alternative dispute resolution, provisions hereof in good faith, the aggrieved party may then
commence litigation.

29.2. The foregoing alternative dispute resolution provisions shall not apply in the event that

either party reasonably requires immediate ex parte and/or injunctive relief from a Court of
competent jurisdiction.

ARTICLE 30

MISCELLANEOUS

30.1.Any actions or proceedings with respect to any matters arising under or growing out of this
Sublease shall be instituted and prosecuted only in the courts located in the State of New
Hampshire. Nothing contained in this Article or any other provision of this Sublease shall be
deemed to constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State of New Hampshire, which
immunity is hereby reserved to PDA and to the State of New Hampshire.

37



30.2. Sublessee shall faithfully observe and comply with such rules and regulations as the PDA
may adopt for the operation of the Airport and such rules and regulations as Sublessor may adopt
for the operation of the building and lot of which the Subleased Premises are a part, which rules
and regulations are reasonable and nondiscriminatory as well as all modifications thereof and
additions thereto. PDA shall not be responsible to Sublessee for the violation or nonperformance
by any other Sublessee of the PDA of such airport rules and regulations, and Sublessor shall not
be responsible to Sublessee for the violation or nonperformance by any other Sublessee of
Sublessor of any of such rules and regulations pertaining to the building and the lot of which the
Subleased Premises are a part.

30.3. Sublessee agrees to conform to such additional provisions required, from time to time, by
the FAA ("FAA Requirements") or its successor with respect to the operation of the Airport, or a
portion thereof. The current FAA Requirements are attached hereto as Exhibit 9 and incorporated
herein by reference.

30.4. This Sublease is subject and subordinate to any agreements heretofore or hereafter made
between PDA and the United States or the Air Force, the execution of which is required to enable
or permit transfer of rights or property to PDA for airport purposes or expenditure of federal grant
funds for airport improvement, maintenance or development, including, without limitation, the
Quitclaim Deed dated October 15, 2003 and the FFA. Sublessee shall abide by requirements of
any agreement between PDA and the United States or the Air Force applicable to the Subleased
Premises or Sublessee's activities at the Airport and shall consent to amendments and
modifications of this Sublease if required by such agreements or as a condition of PDA’s entry
into such agreements.

This Sublease is further subject and subordinate to the Primary Sublease between PDA and
Sublessor, and Sublessee shall abide by the provisions of the Primary Sublease applicable to the
Subleased Premises or Sublessee’s activities at the Airport and shall consent to amendments and
modifications of this Sublease if required by the Primary Sublease.

30.5. Sublessee acknowledges that PDA, in its sole discretion, shall determine and may from time
to time change the routes of surface ingress and egress connecting the Subleased Premises. PDA
also reserves the right to further develop the Airport, or such portion of the Airport as is owned or
controlled by PDA, as it sees fit, regardless of the desires or views of Sublessee and without
interference or hindrance.

30.6. The Sublessee herein covenants by and for itself, its heirs, executors, administrators, and
assigns, and all persons claiming under or through it, that this Sublease is made and accepted upon
and subject to the following conditions:

That there shall be no discrimination against or segregation of any person or group of
persons, on account of race, color, creed, national origin, or ancestry, in the leasing, subleasing,
transferring, use, occupancy, tenure, or enjoyment of the Premises herein leased nor shall the
Sublessee, or any person claiming under or through it, establish or permit any such practice or
practices of discrimination or segregation with reference to the selection, location, number, use, or
occupancy, of tenants, lessees, sublessees, subtenants, or vendees in the Subleased Premises herein
leased.

38



30.7. All obligations of Sublessee to indemnify, defend and hold harmless Sublessor, PDA and
the Air Force and to make any monetary payment to Sublessor, PDA and the Air Force shall
survive the termination or expiration of this Sublease.

30.8. Sublessor’s Liability. (a) With respect to any services or utilities to be furnished by
Sublessor to Sublessee, Sublessor shall in no event be liable for failure to furnish the same when
prevented from doing so by force, major strike, lockout, breakdown, accident, order or regulation of
or by any governmental authority, or failure of supply, or inability by the exercise of reasonable
diligence to obtain supplies, parts or employees necessary to furnish such services, or because of war
or other emergency, or for any cause beyond Sublessor's reasonable control, or for any cause due to
any act or neglect of Sublessee or Sublessee's servants, agents, employees, licensees or any person
claiming by, through or under Sublessee; nor shall any such failure give rise to any claim in
Sublessee's favor that Sublessee has been evicted, either constructively or actually, partially or
wholly.

(b) In no event shall Sublessor ever be liable to Sublessee for any loss of business or any other
indirect or consequential damages suffered by Sublessee from whatever cause.

(¢) With respect to any repairs or restoration which are required or permitted to be made by
Sublessor, the same may be made during normal business hours and Sublessor shall have no liability
for damages to Sublessee for inconvenience, annoyance or interruption of business arising therefrom.

30.9. Rules and Regulations. Sublessee shall abide by rules and regulations set forth in Exhibit 11
attached hereto and those rules and regulations from time to time established by Sublessor, it being
agreed that such rules and regulations will be established and applied by Sublessor in a
non-discriminatory fashion, such that all rules and regulations shall be generally applicable to other
sublessees of the Building of similar nature to the Sublessee named herein. Sublessor agrees to use
reasonable efforts to insure that any such rules and regulations are uniformly enforced, but Sublessor
shall not be liable to Sublessee for violation of the same by any other Sublessee or occupant of the
Building, or persons having business with them. In the event that there shall be any conflict between
such rules and regulations and the provisions of this Sublease, the provisions of this Sublease shall
control.

30.10. Additional Charges. If Sublessee shall fail to pay when due any sums under this Sublease
designated or payable as an additional charge, Sublessor shall have the same rights and remedies as
Sublessor has hereunder for failure to pay Basic Rent.

30.11. Brokerage. Sublessee warrants and represents that Sublessee has dealt with no broker in
connection with the consummation of this Sublease other than _ (None) (the
Broker") and, in the event of any brokerage claims against Sublessor predicated upon prior dealings
with Sublessee, Sublessee agrees to defend the same and indemnify Sublessor against any such claim
(except any claim by the Broker).

30.12. Early Termination. Sublessee shall have a one-time right to terminate this Sublease
effective as of 11:59 p.m. on the last day of the 61 month of the Initial Term (the “Early
Termination Date”), provided that (a) Sublessee provides Sublessor with written notice of its

39



election to terminate no later than nine (9) months prior to the Early Termination Date, and (b)
Sublessee pays to Sublessor, on or before the Early Termination Date, a “Termination Fee” of in
good funds.  If Sublessee fails to timely exercise its termination right in accordance with this
Section, this Sublease shall continue in full force and effect, and Sublessee shall have no further
rights to exercise the termination right. In the event of any such termination, Sublessee shall
remain liable for any obligations or expenses arising or accruing hereunder prior to the Early
Termination Date.

31.12 Existing Lease. The parties acknowledge that this Sublease is contingent upon the early

termination of the existing lease between Sublessor and Sublessee for the Subleased Premises at
195 New Hampshire, Suite 100 Sublease dated November 10, 2010.

40



EXECUTION

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Sublessor and Sublessee have executed this Sublease effective
asof the __ day of ,20 .

222 INTERNATIONAL, LIMITED

PARTNERSHIP
By:
Its: Co-Manager

"Sublessor"

SPEEDPRO IMAGING OF PORTSMOUTH

By:
Its:
"Sublessee"
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
I SS.

COUNTY OF [ 1
On this ___ day of , 20, before me, . a Notary Public in and for
said County and State, personally appeared . personally known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the Co-Manager of 222 International.

Limited Partnership , and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged
it to be his free and voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State

STATE OF [ ]

: ss.
COUNTY OF [ ]
On this __ day of , 20, before me, . @ Notary Public in and for
said County and State, personally appeared [ 1, personally known to me (or
proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the [ Jof [ ]

and on oath stated that he was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it to be his free and
voluntary act for the uses and purposes set forth herein.

Notary Public in and for said County and State

41



EXHIBIT 1

PRIMARY SUBLEASE

42



EXHIBIT 2

(INTENTIONALLY OMITTED)

43



EXHIBIT 3

QUITCLAIM DEED OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

ACTING BY AND THROUGH THE US AIR FORCE

44



EXHIBIT 4

FEDERAL FACILITIES AGREEMENT

45



EXHIBIT 5

PLANS DESIGNATING THE SUBLEASED PREMISES

Two-Twenty-Two
International Drive

Tenant Profile

GSA |

3.161 RSF Ste. 105

PC

Merrimack

Connection/

Services

16,013 RSF
Ste 125

[

AVID
expansion
8200 RSF
Ste 195

1

KAT
Impl.
4,042

RSF

Ste

185

Proposed Speed pm.l_
7,437 RSF

Ste 135
r—

OnBrand 24 Expansion
Approx. 3,652 RSF Ste. 136

OnBrand24

[' Conway
Alpha .. er
1,231 080 A 1S

Ane——

NH DES
11,340 RSF 3.363 RSF Ste 145
Sl Teken
Ste 165
1.213 RSF
I | Pre 198
Holliday SPA d160
[ 1,231 R&F

46



EXHIBIT 6

ALTERATIONS

[ Ra i 4d
dcedg Juedep

WL FLAN

i
awA

=3
——r
o

i o
Do

47

O.MM




Air Quality:

EXHIBIT 7

LIST OF ENVIRONMENTAL LAWS AND REGULATIONS

(2)

(b)
(©

(d)

Hazardous Materials: (a)

(b)

(©)
(d)
(e)

Hazardous Waste: (a)

Water Quality:

(b)

(©)
(d)

(a)

(b)

(c)
(d)

(e)

Clean Air Act & Amendments, 42 U.S.C.
7401-7642

40 CFR Parts 50-52, 61, 62, 65-67, 81

RSA ch. 125-C, Air Pollution Control, and
rules adopted thereunder

RSA ch. 125-H, Air Toxic Control Act, and
rules adopted thereunder

Hazardous Materials Transportation Act',

49 U.S.C. 1801-1813, and Department of
Transportation Regulations thereunder
Emergency Planning and Community Right-
To-Know Act, 42 U.S.C. 11001-11050

49 CFR Parts 100-179

40 CFR Part 302

RSA ch. 277-A, Toxic Substances in the
Workplace, and rules adopted thereunder

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act
(RCRA) of 1976 and RCRA Amendments of
1984, 42 U.S.C. 6901-69911i

Comprehensive Environmental Response,,
Compensation, and Liability Act

(CERCLA) of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C.
9601-9675

40 CFR Parts 260-271, 300, 302

RSA ch. 147-A, Hazardous Waste
Management and rules adopted thereunder

Federal Water Pollution Control Act
(Clean Water Act) and Amendments, 33
U.S.C. 1251-1387

Safe Drinking Water Act, as amended, 42
U.S.C. 300£-3005-26

40 CFR Title 100-143, 401 and 403
RSA ch. 146-A, Oil Spillage in Public
Waters, and rules adopted thereunder
RSA ch. 485, New Hampshire Safe
Drinking Water Act, and rules adopted
thereunder

RSA ch. 485-A, Pollution and Waste
Disposal, and rules adopted thereunder

48



EXHIBIT 8

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

TO BE PROVIDED BY SUBLESSEE

49



EXHIBIT 9

SUBLEASE PROVISIONS REQUIRED BY
THE FEDERAL AVIATION ADMINISTRATION

1. Sublessee, for himself, his heirs, personal representatives, successors in interest, and assigns, as a
part of the consideration hereof, does hereby agree that in the event facilities are constructed, maintained,
or otherwise operated on the Subleased Premises, for a purpose for which a United States Department of
Transportation ("DOT") program or activity is extended or for another purpose involving the provision of
similar services or benefits, Sublessee shall maintain and operate such facilities and services in compliance
with all other requirements imposed pursuant to Title 49, Code of Federal Regulations, DOT, Subtitle A,
Office of the Secretary, Part 21, Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs of the Department of
Transportation Effectuation of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulations may be
amended.

2. Sublessee, for himself, his personal representative, successors in interest, and assigns, as a part of
the consideration hereof, does hereby agree that: (i) no person on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subjected to
discrimination in the use of said facilities; (ii) that in the construction of any improvements on, over, or
under such land and the furnishing of services thereon, no person on the grounds of race, color, or national
origin shall be excluded from participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be excluded from
participation in, denied the benefits of, or otherwise be subject to discrimination; and (iii) that the
Sublessee shall use the premises in compliance with all other requirements imposed by or pursuant to Title
49, Code of Federal Regulations, Department of Transportation, Subtitle A, Office of the Secretary, Part
21, Nondiscrimination in Federally-Assisted Programs of the Department of Transportation Effectuation
of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and as said Regulation may be amended.

3. That in the event of breach of any of the above nondiscrimination covenants, Sublessor shall have
the right to terminate the Sublease, and to reenter and repossess said land and the facilities thereon, and
hold the same as if said lease, had never been made or issued. This provision does not become effective
until the procedures of 49 CFR Part 21 are allowed and completed including expiration of appeal rights.

4. Sublessee shall furnish its accommodations and/or services on a fair, equal and not unjustly
discriminatory basis to all users thereof and it shall charge fair, reasonable and not unjustly discriminatory
prices for each unit or service; PROVIDED THAT the Sublessee may be allowed to make reasonable and
nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other similar type of price reductions to volume purchasers.

5. Non-compliance with Provision 4 above shall constitute a material breach thereof and in the event
of such noncompliance Sublessor shall have the right to terminate this Sublease, and the estate hereby
created without liability therefore or at the election of the Sublessor or the United States either or both of
Sublessor or the United States shall have the right to judicially enforce provisions.

6. Sublessee agrees that it shall insert the above five provisions in any lease agreement, by which
said Sublessee grants a right or privilege to any person, firm or corporation to render accommodations
and/or services to the public on the Subleased Premises.

7. Sublessee assures that it will undertake an affirmative action program as required by 14 CFR Part

50



152, Subpart E, to insure that no person shall on the grounds of race, creed, color, national origin, or sex
be excluded from participating in any employment activities covered in 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E.
Sublessee assures that no person shall be excluded on these grounds from participating in or receiving the
services or benefits of any program or activity covered by this subpart. Sublessee assures that it will
require that its covered suborganizations provide assurance to the Sublessor, that they similarly will
undertake affirmative action programs and that they will require assurances from their suborganizations,
as required by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same effect.

8. Sublessor reserves the right to further develop or improve the landing area of the airport as it sees
fit, regardless of the desires or view of the Sublessee and without interference or hindrance.

9. Sublessor reserves the right, but shall not be obligated to the Sublessee to maintain and keep in
repair the landing area of the airport and all publicly-owned facilities of the airport, together with the right
to direct and control all activities of the Sublessee in this regard.

10.  This Sublease shall be subordinate to the provisions and requirements of any existing or future
agreement between the Sublessor and the United States, relative to the development, operation or
maintenance of the airport.

I1. There is hereby reserved to Sublessor, its successors and assigns, for the use and benefit of the
public, a right of flight for the passage of aircraft in the airspace above the surface of the Subleased
Premises. This public right of flight shall include the right to cause in said airspace any noise inherent in
the operation of any aircraft used for navigation or flight through the said airspace or landing at, taking
off from or operation on the airport.

12. Sublessee agrees to comply with the notification and review requirements covered in Part 77 of
the Federal Aviation Regulations in the event future construction of building is planned for the Subleased
Premises, or in the event of any planned modification or alteration of any present or future building or
structure situated on Subleased Premises.

13. Sublessee, by accepting this Sublease expressly agrees for itself, its successors and assigns that it
shall not erect nor permit the erection of any structure or object nor permit the growth of any tree on the
land leased hereunder above the mean sea level elevation of | ] feet. In the event the aforesaid
covenants are breached, Sublessor reserves the right to enter upon the Premises and to remove the
offending structure or object and cut the offending tree, all of which shall be at the expense of the

Sublessee.

14. Sublessee, by accepting this Sublease, agrees for itself, its successors and assigns that it will not
make use of the Subleased Premises in any manner which might interfere with the landing and taking off
of aircraft from the airport or otherwise constitute a hazard. In the event the aforesaid covenant is
breached, Sublessor reserves the right to enter upon the Subleased Premises, and cause the abatement of
such interference at the expense of the Sublessee.

15. It is understood and agreed that nothing herein contained shall be construed to grant or authorize
the granting of an exclusive right within the meaning of Section 308a of the Federal Aviation Act of 1958

(49 U.S C. 1349a).

16.  This Sublease and all the provisions hereof shall be subject to whatever right the United States

51



Government now has or in the future may have or acquire, affecting the control, operation, regulation and
taking over of said airport or the exclusive or non-exclusive use of the airport by the United States during
the time of war or national emergency.

52



EXHIBIT 10

SUBORDINATION, NON-DISTURBANCE
AND ATTORNMENT AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT made as of the day of July, 2011 between People’s United
Bank , of 325 State Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801 (“Lender”), and , with a mailing
address of (“Tenant”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, Tenant has entered into a lease dated (said lease, as heretofore or
hereafter amended, modified or supplemented, is hereinafter called the “Lease”), between 222
International LP (“Landlord™), as landlord, and Tenant, as tenant, with respect to certain space
leased by Landlord (the “Demised Premises”) known by its address 222 International Drive,
Suite ____, Pease International Tradeport in Portsmouth, NH (the “Premises™); and,

WHEREAS, Lender has entered into a financing arrangement with Landlord, in which the
obligations of Landlord are secured by a certain Mortgage, Security Agreement and Financing
Statement, and an Assignment of Leases and Rents, from Landlord to Lender (collectively the
“Mortgage”), which Mortgage encumbers the Premises and Landlord's interest in the Lease;

and,

WHEREAS, the financing is contingent on Lender obtaining Subordination Agreements
from all the Tenants on the Premises; and

WHEREAS, Lender and Tenant desire to enter into this Agreement upon the terms,
covenants and conditions contained herein.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises and the agreements of the parties
contained herein, the parties agree as follows:

1. The Lease is and shall be at all times and in all respects subordinate to the lien of the
Mortgage, and/or all future mortgages to Lender and to all advances made and/or hereafter to be
secured by the Mortgage and to all renewals, modifications, consolidations, substitutions,
additions and extensions of the Mortgage.

2. Provided that Tenant complies with this Agreement, and if Tenant shall not be in
default under the Lease beyond any applicable grace or cure period as of the date Lender
commences a foreclosure action against Landlord, or at any time thereafter: (a) Tenant shall not
be named as a party defendant in any action or proceeding to enforce the Mortgage, unless such
Joinder shall be required under applicable law, nor shall the Lease be cut off or terminated nor
Tenant’s possession thereunder be disturbed in any such action or proceeding, and (b) subject to
the provisions of Section 4 of this Agreement, Lender will recognize the Lease and Tenant’s
rights thereunder.

53



3. Upon any foreclosure of the Mortgage or other acquisition of the Premises, Tenant
shall attorn to Lender or any other party acquiring the Premises or so succeeding to Landlord's
rights (collectively, the “Successor Landlord”) and shall recognize the Successor Landlord as its
landlord under the Lease. Said attornment shall be effective and self-operative without the
execution on the part of any party of any further instrument. Without limiting the foregoing,
Tenant waives the provisions of, and any rights under, any statute or rule of law, now or
hereafter in effect, which might otherwise give, or purport to give, any right or election to
terminate or otherwise adversely affect the Lease and the obligations of Tenant thereunder as a
result of said foreclosure or other acquisition.

4, Upon said attornment, the Lease shall continue as a direct lease between the
Successor Landlord and Tenant upon all terms, covenants and conditions thereof as are then
applicable except that the Successor Landlord shall not be (a) liable for any damages then
accrued as the result of any previous act or omission of Landlord or any prior landlord under the
Lease, (b) subject to any offsets or defenses that Tenant then has against Landlord or any prior
landlord, (c) bound by any amendment or modification of the Lease hereafter executed, or the
obligations of the parties thereto, unless said amendment or modification shall have been
consented to by the successor Landlord or Lender, or (d) bound by any prepayment of more than
one (1) month's rent or other charges under the Lease, unless such payment shall have been made
in accordance with the terms of the Lease or shall have been expressly approved in writing by
Lender.

5. Tenant, from and after the date hereof, shall send to Lender a copy of any notice of
default or termination sent under the Lease to Landlord at the same time such notice is sent to
Landlord under the Lease. Such notices shall be delivered to Lender at the following address:

People’s United Bank

325 State Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801
Attention: Karen J. Maneen

6.  Tenant acknowledges notice that Landlord's interest under the Lease and the rent and
all other sums due thereunder have been assigned to Lender as part of the security for repayment
of the Note secured by the Mortgage. In the event that Lender notifies Tenant of a default under
the Mortgage and demands that Tenant pay its rent and all other sums due under the Lease to
Lender, Tenant agrees that it shall pay its rent and all other sums due under the Lease to Lender.

Landlord joins in the execution hereof for the purpose of consenting to the provisions of
this Section.

7. This Agreement may not be amended, modified, supplemented or terminated unless
in writing and duly executed by the party against whom the same is sought to be asserted and

constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.

8.  This Agreement shall bind and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.

54



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Agreement as of the
day and year first above-written.

LENDER:
People’s United Bank

Witness: By:
Its:
TENANT:
Witness By:
Its:
STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF ROCKINGHAM
This instrument was acknowledged before me on ,20_ by
as of People’s United Bank.

Signature of notarial officer

Title and rank:
My Commission Expires:

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
COUNTY OF
This instrument was acknowledged before me on ,20 by
as of

Signature of notarial officer

Title and rank:
My Commission Expires:

55



EXHIBIT 11
RULES AND REGULATIONS

Except as specifically provided in the Sublease to which these Rules and Regulations are attached,
no sign, placard, picture, advertisement, name or notice shall be installed or displayed on any part
of the outside or inside of the building or Project without the prior written consent of Sublessor.
Sublessor shall have the right to remove, at Sublessee’s expense and without notice, any sign
installed or displayed in violation of this rule. All approved signs or lettering on doors and walls
shall be printed, painted, affixed or inscribed at the expense of Sublessee by a person approved by
Sublessor.

If Sublessor objects in writing to any curtains, blinds, shades, screens or hanging plants or other
similar objects attached to or used in connection with any window or door of the Premises, or
placed on any windowsill, which is visible from the exterior of the Premises, Sublessee shall
immediately discontinue such use. Sublessee shall not place anything against or near glass
partitions or doors or windows, which may appear unsightly from outside the Premises.

Sublessee shall not obstruct any sidewalks, halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators, escalators
or stairways of the Project. The halls, passages, exits, entrances, shopping malls, elevators,
escalators and stairways are not open to the general public, but are open, subject to reasonable
regulations, to Sublessee’s business invitees. Sublessor shall in all cases retain the right to control
and prevent access thereto of all persons whose presence in the judgment of Sublessor would be
prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation and interest of the Project and its Sublessees:
provided that nothing herein contained shall be construed to prevent such access to persons with
whom any Sublessee normally deals in the ordinary course of its business, unless such persons are
engaged in illegal or unlawful activities. No Sublessee and no employee or invitee of any Sublessee
shall go upon the roof(s) of the Project.

The directory of the building or Project, if any, will be provided exclusively for the display of the
name and location of Sublessees only and Sublessor reserves the right to exclude any other names
therefrom.

Sublessor will furnish Sublessee, free of charge, with two keys to each door lock in the Premises.
Sublessor may make reasonable charge for any additional keys. Sublessee shall not make or have
made additional keys, and Sublessee shall not alter any lock or install a new additional lock or bolt
on any door of its Premises. Sublessee, upon the termination of its tenancy, shall deliver to
Sublessor the keys of all doors which have been furnished to Sublessee, and in the event of loss of
any keys so furnished, shall pay Sublessor therefor.

If Sublessee requires telegraphic, telephonic, burglar alarm or similar services, it shall first obtain,
and comply with, Sublessor’s instructions in their installation.

No deliveries shall be made which impede or interfere with other Sublessees or the operation of the
building.

Sublessee shall not place a load upon any floor of the Premises, which exceeds the load per square

foot, which such floor was designed to carry and which is allowed by law. Sublessor shall have

the right to prescribe the weight, size and position of all equipment; materials, furniture or other

property brought into the building. Heavy objects shall, if necessary by Sublessor, stand on such

platforms as determined by Sublessor to be necessary to properly distribute the weight, which

platforms shall be provided at Sublessee’s expense. Business machines and mechanical equipment
56



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

belonging to Sublessee, which cause noise or vibration that may be transmitted to the structure of
the building or to any space therein to such a degree as to be objectionable to Sublessor or to any
Sublessees in the building, shall be placed and maintained by Sublessee, at Sublessee’s expense,
on vibration eliminators or other devices sufficient to eliminate noise or vibration. The persons
employed to move such equipment in or out of the building must be acceptable to Sublessor.
Sublessor will not be responsible for loss of, or damage to, any such equipment or other property
from any cause, and all damage done to the building by maintaining or moving such equipment or
other property shall be repaired at the expense of Sublessee.

Sublessee shall not use or keep in the Premises any kerosene, gasoline or inflammable or
combustible fluid or material other than those limited quantities necessary for the operation or
maintenance of office equipment. Sublessee shall not use or permit to be used in the Premises any
foul or noxious gas or substance, or permit or allow the Premises to be occupied or used in a manner
offensive or objectionable to Sublessor or other occupants of the building by reason of noise, odors
or vibrations, nor shall Sublessee bring into or keep in or about the Premises any birds or animals.

Sublessee shall not use any method of heating or air conditioning other than that supplied by
Sublessor.

Sublessor reserves the right, exercisable without notice and without liability to Sublessee, to change
the name and street address of the building.

Sublessee shall close and lock the doors of its Premises and entirely shut off all water faucets or
other apparatus, and electricity, gas or air outlets before Sublessee and its employees leave the
Premises. Sublessee shall be responsible for any damage or injuries sustained by other Sublessees
or occupants of the building or by Sublessor for noncompliance with this rule.

The toilet rooms, toilets, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatus shall not be used for any purpose
other than that for which they were constructed and no foreign substance of any kind whatsoever
shall be thrown therein. The expense of any breakage, stoppage or damage resulting from the
violation of this rule shall be borne by the Sublessee who, or whose employees or invitees shall
have caused it.

Sublessee shall not sell, or permit the sale at retail of newspapers, magazines, periodicals, theater
tickets or any other goods or merchandise to the general public in or on the Premises. Sublessee
shall not make nay room-to-room solicitation of business from other Sublessees in the Project.
Sublessee shall not use the Premises for any business or activity other than that specifically
provided for in Sublessee’s Sublease.

Sublessee shall not install any radio or television antenna, loudspeaker or other devices on the
roof(s) or exterior walls of the building or Project. Sublessee shall not interfere with radio or
television broadcasting or reception from or in the Project or elsewhere.

Sublessee shall not mark, drive nails, screw or drill into the partitions, woodwork or plaster or in
any way deface the Premises or any part thereof, except in accordance with the provisions of the
Sublease pertaining to alterations. Pictures, artwork and bulletin boards may be hung provided
proper materials are used. Sublessor reserves the right to direct electricians as to where and how
telephones and telegraph wires are to be introduced to the Premises. Sublessee shall not cut or bore
holes for wires. Sublessee shall not affix any floor covering to the floor of the Premises in any
manner except as approved by Sublessor. Sublessee shall repair any damage resulting from
noncompliance with this rule.

Sublessee shall not install, maintain or operate upon the Premises any vending machines without
57



18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

the written consent of Sublessor.

Canvassing, soliciting and distribution of handbills or any other written material and peddling in
the Project are prohibited, and Sublessee shall cooperate to prevent such activities.

Sublessor reserves the right to exclude or expel from the Project any person whom, in Sublessor’s
judgement, is intoxicated or under the influence of liquor or drugs or who is in violation of any of
the Rules and Regulations of the Building.

No cooking shall be done or permitted on the Premises without Sublessor’s consent, except that
use by Sublessee of Underwriters’ Laboratory approved equipment for brewing coffee, tea, hot
chocolate and similar beverages or use of microwave ovens for employee use shall be permitted,
provided that such equipment and use is in accordance with all applicable, federal, state, county
and city laws, codes, ordinances, rules and regulations.

Without the written consent of Sublessor, Sublessee shall not use the name of the building or Project
in connection with or in promoting or advertising the business of Sublessee except as Sublessee’s
address.

Sublessee shall comply with all safety, fire protection and evacuation procedures and regulations
established by Sublessor or any governmental agency.

Sublessee assumes any and all responsibility for protecting its Premises from theft, robbery and
pilferage, which includes keeping doors locked and other means of entry to the Premises closed.

Sublessee’s requirements will be attended to only upon appropriate application to the Project
management office by an authorized individual. Employees of Sublessor shall not perform any
work or do anything outside of their regular duties unless under special instructions from Sublessor,
and no employee of Sublessor will admit any person (Sublessee or otherwise) to any office without
specific instructions from Sublessor.

Sublessor may waive any one or more of these Rules and Regulations for the benefit of Sublessee
or any other Sublessee, but no such waiver by Sublessor shall be construed as a waiver of such
Rules and Regulations in favor of Sublessee or any other Sublessee, nor prevent Sublessor from
thereafter enforcing any such Rules and Regulations against any or all of the Sublessees of the
Project.

These Rules and Regulations are in addition to, and shall not be construed to in any way modify or
amend in whole or in part, the terms, covenants, agreements and conditions of the Sublease.

Sublessor reserves the right to make such other and reasonable Rules and Regulations as, in its
judgment, may from time to time be needed for safety and security, for care and cleanliness of the
Project and for the preservation of good order therein. Sublessee agrees to abide by all such Rules
and Regulations herein above stated and any additional rules and regulations which are adopted.

Sublessee shall be responsible for the observance of all the foregoing rules by Sublessee’s
employees, agents, clients, customers, invitees and guests.

58



EXHIBIT 12

59






QuickStart Page 2 of 3

Business Information

Business Details

SPEEDPRO IMAGING OF

Business Name; PORTSMOUTH Business ID: 762164
Business Type: Trade Name Business Status: Active
. LastR [ X
Expiration Date: 1/3/2022 ast Renewa Not Available
Date:
. Creati .
Business Creation 01/03/2017 Name in S?ate Not Available
Date; of Formation:
Date of Format.mﬁ in 09/14/2013
Jurisdiction:
Principal Office 195 New Hampshire Ave, Suite Mailing Address: 195 New Hampshire Ave, Suite
Address: 100, Portsmouth, NH, 03801, 100, Portsmouth, NH, 03801,
USA USA
Business Email: michael@coastalspeedpro.com Phone #: NONE
Notification Email: NONE Fiscal Yea;i;‘g NONE

Principal Purpose

S.No NAICS Code NAICS Subcode

o] ial Printi tSc d
1 Manufacturing Commercial Printing (except Screen an
Books)
2 Manufacturing Sign Manufacturing
Page 1 of 1, records 1 to 2 of 2

Trade Name Information

Business Name Business ID Business Status

Trade Name Owned By

Name Title Address

Franklin Exeter, Inc. Not In Good Standing

(/online/BusinessInquire/TradeNamelnformation? Business
businessID=515042)

https://quickstart.s0s.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/Businessinformation?businessID~=587... 8/ 5/2019



QuickStart ’ Page 3 of 3

Trademark Information

Trademark

Trademark Name Business Address Mailing Address
Number

No records to view.

Filing History Address History View All Other Addresses

Businesses Linked to Registered Agent Return to Search Back

NH Department of State, 107 North Main St. Room 204, Concurd, NH 03307 - Contact Us
{/online/Home/ContactUS)

Version 2.1 © 2014 PCC Technology Group, LLC, All Rights Raserved,

https://quickstart.sos.nh.gov/online/BusinessInquire/Businessinformation?businessID=587...  8/15/2019



MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director W

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager U A
Date: October 4, 2019

Subject: Environmental Contract Report

Please report to the Board the following expenditures related to the CLF settlement and PDA’s
pending ms4 application:

1. Ransom - $2,967.50 for preparation of information needed for the permit application.

2. Ransom - $§1,237.50 to review proposed stormwater treatment for new impervious surfaces
and confirm that advanced treatment is being provided.

3. Ransom - $901.80 for baseline stormwater sampling. This amount is in addition to the $5,318
reported in May. The additional amount is to cover multiple mobilizations when the

anticipated storm events did not produce the required rainfall amount to allow sampling.

All work is in conformance with the terms of Ransom’s on-call agreement.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\Report Ransom Expenses.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

MOTION

Director Torr:

The PDA Board of Directors hereby authorizes the Executive Director
to enter into a contract with Vanasse Hangen, Brustlin, Inc. (“VHB") to
provide transportation planning and engineering services to Pease
Development Authority for three (3) years with two (2) one (1) year options
to extend, subject to the approval of the Executive Director: all in
accordance with the memorandum from Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Engineering
Manager, dated October 3, 2019 attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\VHB 10-17.docx

37 TAKING YOU THERE







Y

7‘\' *
I %? I

PEASE

INTERNATIONAL

D

AR
MEMORANDUM

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director A

From: Maria Stowell, P.E., Engineering Manager,i‘»&;;t\._’\v/

Date: October 3, 2019

Subject: Transportation Planning and Engineering Services

Advertisements seeking firms interested in providing on-call Transportation Planning and
Engineering services were recently placed. In response, we received Statements of
Qualifications from two firms. An evaluation Committee consisting of the Chair of the
Transportation Committee Director Lamson, Michael Mates, and me reviewed the submittals
and are recommending that VHB be awarded the work.

In arriving at this recommendation, the committee used an evaluation matrix ranking such
items as work experience, regional knowledge, personnel, and on call experience. While both
firms are experienced and employ skilled and dedicated professionals, we believe that VHB's
experience and knowledge are best suited to PDA’s needs.

VHB has been the PDA's on call transportation engineer since 1998. Over that period staff
has been pleased with the quality and timeliness of their work. In addition, VHB has the most
regional experience. Most importantly, VHB has always provided PDA with exceptional
service.

At the next PDA Board meeting please seek approval to enter into a contract with VHB to
provide transportation planning and engineering services for a period of three years with the
option to extend for two one-year periods.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\2019\WVHB Selection docx

" TAKING YOU THERE






z
-~
m

lw)
> M

c<
M=
ol P4
o%|>
P
-=
- m
<z >
= K

MOTION

Director Allard:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to enter into a contract with Chadwick -
Baross Inc. of Concord, NH, for the purchase of one (1) twenty-six (26)
foot (Artic) sectional pusher plow in an amount not to exceed
$24,950.00; all in accordance with the memorandum from Ken Conley -
Fleet Manager, dated October 8, 2019 attached hereto.

NARESOLVES\2019\Pusher Plow (26") 10-17.docx

TAKING YOU THERE

L Mooy
K b






_ -
PEASE

MAINTENANCE 7 Lee Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801
DEPARTMENT

Memorandum

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ?’\/
From: Ken Conley-Fleet Manager Vo { =
Date: 10/8/19 )

Subj: Sectional Pusher Plow

This is a request to purchase a twenty-six (26) ft. sectional pusher plow (Arctic Plow)
from Chadwick-Baross Inc., Sheep Davis Road, Concord NH for a price not to exceed
$24,950.00. A request for bid was advertised in September with the bid openings taking place
September 16, 2019. The sectional pusher plow is funded in the FY2020 Portsmouth
International Airport capital schedule. The primary use of this attachment is to couple on to a
bucket loader allowing bulk snow removal on ramps and taxiways at Portsmouth International
Airport. This sectional design incorporates suspensions allowing the ten (10), thirty inch (30)
sections to move independently of each other for greater contact to the uneven ramp surfaces.
This increases the blades scraping ability and lessens the need for follow up passes and the need
for costly deicing material to combat left over snow pack. Pease has two of these plows already
in operation for 5 and 7 years where the sectional designs benefits have been thoroughly tested
against the old style solid box plow.

A total of two (2) bids were received and all responses met the minimum specifications:

Chadwick-Baross Inc., Sheep Davis Road, NH $24,950.00
(Branch in Concord, NH)

Bearegard Equipment, Concord, NH $26,900.00

Based on Chadwick-Baross Inc. submitting the lowest qualified bid, please request
authorization from the PDA Board of Directors, to enter into an agreement to purchase one (1)
261t (Arctic) sectional pusher plow from Chadwick-Baross Inc., for a price not to exceed
$24,950.

PABOARDM TG\ZO T M\arctie plow memo,docx

0 000 TAKING YOU THERE

ph: 603-334-6015  fax: 603-433-5798  www.peasedev.org






MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to accept and bind Workers Compensation insurance
coverage for the Pease Development Authority to be provided by MEMIC
and brokered by Fred C. Church Insurance, Inc. (“Church”) for the period of
12/31/19 through 12/31/20 in the projected amount of $62,189.00: all
in accordance with the Insurance Proposal prepared by Church and the
memorandum of Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel, dated
October 8, 2019, attached hereto.

N:\RESOLVES\2019\Church WC Ins 10-17.docx

" TAKING YOU THERE






v

—
A

TERNATIONAL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY
MEMORANDUM
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director W‘/ )
From: Anthony I. Blenkinsop, Deputy General Counsel'___b‘éf ﬁ
Re: Workers Compensation Coverage Renewal
Date: October 8, 2019

At the December 14, 2017, meeting of the Board, you were authorized to enter into an agreement
with Fred C. Church Insurance, Inc. to provide Workers Compensation coverage to the PDA for a
period of three (3) years to include two (2) one (1) year options to extend at your sole discretion.
Such coverage does not extend to employees of the Division of Ports and Harbors who have been
historically covered, and continued to be covered, by the State of New Hampshire’s self-insured
Workers Compensation program.

Attached you will find a proposal in the amount of $62,189.00 for the upcoming renewal period
of 12/31/19 through 12/31/20. Also please find three loss history charts which reflect the fact that
PDA’s experience modification factor decreased from 1.08 to .90 for the upcoming renewal period.
The projected premium of $62,189.00 is a decrease of over 11% from last year’s premium of
$70,129.00. In addition to the experience modification going down over 16% (1.08 to .90), Fred
C. Church Insurance, Inc. was able to keep PDA’s various credits and take advantage of the lower
state rates to achieve the reduction in premium, even with PDA’s payroll estimates increasing for
the renewal period. Please see page 5 of the attachment for a comparison of the premium
breakdown from last year and for this upcoming year.

Overall this is an acceptable renewal proposal with a solid insurance carrier (MEMIC/AM Best
Rating A IX). While PDA had experienced a momentary bump in its experience modification
factor heading into last year’s renewal, PDA’s safety culture and its commendable loss history
have played a significant role in reversing that bump and keeping premiums at reasonable levels.
Finally, please note that as the policy is subject to audit the premium may adjust up or down
slightly from the projected amount.

At the October 17, 2019, meeting of the Board, please seek authority to bind Workers
Compensation coverage through Fred C. Church Insurance, Inc. in the projected amount of
$62,189.00 for the forthcoming policy period of 12/31/19 through 12/31/20.

PABOARDMTG\2019VFred C. Church WC Renewal Memo 2019 .docx

TAKING YOU THERE







o
Fred C. Church

I NS UR A NCE

Insurance Proposal

for

Pease Development Authority
and Skyhaven Airport

October 7, 2019

Presented by:

Jeff Olsen
Wendy Radwan



Table of Contents

Table of Contents

.................................................................................................................................... 2
N TR A=t T TYU L=t K OO PP PSPPSR PPN 3
N YTV s Bl ol a1 OO P P PP PP 3
W OTKEI'S COMPENSETION .. ttitie it e e eiee ittt bbb e b e et n et s 4
WC Premium DEVEIOPIMENT . ..ottt et s 5
Expereince Modification Worksheet ..........cciiiiiiiiiiiii s 6

Pease Development Authority and 2 October 7, 2019

Skyhaven Airport
Fred C. Church, Inc.



Named Insureds

Insured

Interest

Pease Development Authority and Skyhaven Airport

First Named Insured

Premium Summary

Description of Coverage 2018-2019 2019-2020 Insurer AM Best
Premium Premium
Worker's Compensation $70,129 $62,189 MEMIC Indemnity AlIX

Payment Options

Policy

Direct or Agency Billed

# of Installments

Workers Compensation

Direct Bill

Annual

This document is a summary of coverage only; the policies contain additions, exclusions, and/or limitations that
are not shown here,

Please refer to the policy or contact Fred C. Church, Inc. for complete coverage details

Pease Development Authority and
Skyhaven Airport
Fred C. Church, Inc.

October7, 2019




Worker's Compensation

MEMIC Indemnity Company Insurance Company

3102800857 Policy Number
12/31/2019 to 12/31/2020 Policy Term

Coverages
Description Limit
Workers Compensation: Statutory Benefit Included
Employers Liability: Each Accident $500,000
Employers Liability: Disease — Policy Limit $500,000
Employers Liability: Disease — Each Employee $500,000

Other States Insurance: See policy for complete list

Remarks

Foreign Coverage - Foreign Coverage:

"Employees of the Named Insured"

"Any Country"

"NH" Workers Compensation Law

Excess Repatriation Expenses: $100,000 each employee
$100,000 each accident

Employers Liability:

$500,000 B! by Accident

$500,000 Bl by Disease, Each Employee

$500,000 Bl by Disease, Policy Limit

Other States (All States MEMIC is currently licensed with) - AL, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, DC, FL, GA, HL ID, IL, IN,
1A, KS, KY, LA, ME, MD, MI, MN, MS, MO, MT, NE, NV, NJ, NM, NY, NC, OK, OR, PA, RI, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA,

WV, Wi

Voluntary Compensation & Employers Liability Endorsement

12/31/19 Experience Mod - .90

Pease Development Authority and 4
Skyhaven Airport
Fred C. Church, Inc.

October 7, 2019




WC Premium Development

Carrier: MEMIC

Year: 2018-2019

Carrier: MEMIC

Year: 2018-2020

Estimated Estimated Estimated Estimated

State Class Description  Payrolt Rate Premium State Description  Payroll Rate Premium
NH Aviation $1,800,000 | 4.5500 $81,900| [NH Aviation 51,950,000 |  4.4700 $87,165
[ Clericat 51,400,000 0.1600 $2,240 Clerical 51,398,000 0.1500 52,097

Country Club | $vo0,000 | 2.2600 $15,820 Country Club | $725,000 | 2.2100 316,023

Property Property

Manager S0 1.2800 $0 Manager $0 1.2300 50

Bldgs. - Bldgs. -

Operation by Operation by

Owner 50 3 9100 50 Quwner 50 3.8800 $Q
Increased limits 0.0080 $800 increased Limits 0.0080 3842
Expetience Mod 1.0800 $8,061 Experience Mod 0.9000 -610,613
Schedule Credit 0.2000 -520,676 Schedule Credit 0.2000 -$18,148
Premium DBiscount 0.1020 -$8.436 Premium Riscount 0.1.010' -57,332
Terrorism 0.0060 5234 Terrorism 0.0080 $326
Domestic Domestic
Terrorism 0.0120 $468 Terrorism 0.0200/ 5815
Expense Expense
Reduction Plan 0.0700 -$5,199 Reduction Plan 0.0700 -$4,568
Managed Care Managed Care
Credit 0.0500 -$5,441 Credit 0.0500 -$4,776
Total State $3,900,000 $69,771 Total State $4,073,000 | $61,830
MA Clerical $0 0.0700 30 MA Clerical $0 00700 $0
inereased Limits 0.0100 S0 increased Limits 0.0100 50
Loss Constant 520 Loss Constant 520
Expense Constant $338 Expense Constant $338
Totals State S0 3358| |Totals State $0 $358
Grand $3,900,000 $70,129 Grand $4,073,000 562,189
Totals Totals

Pease Development Authority and

Skyhaven Airport

Fred C. Church, Inc.

October7, 2019




Expereince Modification Worksheet

j WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPERIENCE RATING
‘N[fl; Risk Name: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Risk ID: 280173711
Rating Effective Date: 12/3112018 Production Date: 07/31:2019 State: NEW HAMPSHIRE
State | Wt Exp Excoss Eaxpecied Exp Prim Act Exc Losses | HBabawt Act inc Losses Act Prim
Losses Losses Losses Losses
NH 3 82 021 121 702 39 681 1,141 34 300 48 596 4T 555
(A)[{8) (C)Exp Excess | (D) Expectad (E) Exp Prim {F) Act Exc {G} Batlast (H) Act Inc {1} Act Prim
wi Losses (O -E) Losses Losses Losses (H -} Losses Losses
13 82021 121,707 35 681 1.141 34,300 35710 34 569
Primary Losses Stabitizing Value Ratable Excess Totals
i Co{t-A)+G (A) 7 {F) )
Acluat 34,569 105.658 148 140,375
{&; C {(1-A1+G (A TCy (K}
Expaaiod 39,681 105,658 10,663 156.002
ARAP FLARAP SARAP MAARAP Exp Mad
[RITRLY]
Factors .80

RATING REFLECTS A DECREASE OF 70% MEDICAL ONLY PRIMARY AND EXCESS LOSS
DOLLARS WHERE ERA IS APPLIED

© Cicpiget TERRESTE, M gt rmsenee T hin oo = comiffeas ol oomiatea w03 lamenn weish e e snariniey LS o2 oeery O e heliss Taosd ot Sompesiatan weaaatice
me NET Mo firther var, Sissameation, Ee Bonster a3sipemeet or dhsoslize of M crogult 1 etdle 0 = cart iPery B mace wWinOUt tHe Srizewrseas sevceni ol NCCL Tha Srodect wurnatee “is
A% iveiable” e Sefen a0 MocTes rRFTatcs g atie 2 te tme O Subecaton s OO e BN T sfzy -
SArEenE 073G B SEarEaA ATAS O 1P ST SRTRIT . Voueg e o7 3RS W Of Mena s ey, et b a canru e furmose ACSUfRSy, SoTTRE Sl SRR
DL o ST AT TS thars s TR STt ST e 1Tt STTIE Py min ane 13 Do usal seliovesy A LrSerar NG SET AR CRIL SRS BP0 DTV T IINATS PLAROSES 303 Ay S b
used ke amy cesse surscan |ncumeg BT ot inmars 20 efew Botring S 2 oAy SUCCEAL A sETnc e Sty (a0 RE ke O AR 1 Y B°F B9 LT SRTVT O SRR FIGgn T LS I ins trosut
273 fSematon 2ez e 2ol WesCs 278 MU0 shal P ot AX 2 a0 TRk ET saarse,

Page 1 0f 2

Pease Development Authority and 6
Skyhaven Airport
Fred C. Church, Inc.

QOctober 7, 2019



WORKERS COMPENSATION EXPERIENCE RATING
fo)': Risk Name: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY Risk 1D: 280173/11
Rating Effective Date: 12:21/2019 Production Bate: 07312019 State: NEW HAMPSHIRE
28-NEW HAMPSHIRE Firm {D: Firm Name: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Carrier: 38563 Policy No. 3102800857 Eff Date: 12312015 Exp Date:  12/31:2016
Code | ELR B- Payrolt Expected Exp Prim Claim Data 1) |OF| Act Inc Act Prim
Ratio Losses Losses Losses Losses
7408 ) 193 m 1826 544 36,252 10 828||NC. 2 06 | ° 1,074 t 074y
BR1D 28] 38 1,309,908 1.048 Q77| | 18202544 06 | F 2.504 2504
90610 189 39 BRG 177 7.185 2 B02|116213780 a6 | £ 6.313 6313
9807 (EMPLOYERS LIABWLIT 0 g
Subject Total Act inc
Palley Total: 3,795,628 Premium: 135,506/ |Losses: 9,886
28-NEW HAMPSHIRE Firm 1D: Firm Name; PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Carrier: 38563 Policy No. 3102800857 Eff Date: 12312016 Exp Date: 120312047
Code | ELR | D- Payrofl Expected Exp Prim Claim Data i |OF Act In¢ Act Prim
Ratio Losses Losses Losses Losses
7403 | 193 3 1289 897 24 895 77| 17214969 08 | & 1903 1903
HB10 08l 38 1.858 71 1,487 535|| 17200874 0% | F 10,099 mﬂpgi
3060 169 39 585 764 7.475 2918/117207392 a5 1 F 18 141 17 000,
Q07 |EMPLOYERS LIABILIT [ 0
Subject Total Act inc
Policy Totalr 3,834,442 Premium: 94,459 |Losses: 30,143
28-NEW HAMPSHIRE Firm tO: Firm Name: PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
Carrier: 38563 Policy No. 3102800887 Eff Date: 128302087 Exp Date:  12:31:2018
Code | ELR n- Payroil E xpected Exp Prim Ctlaim Data 1) [OF Act tnc Act Prim
Ratig) Losses Losses Losses Losses )
403 1.93 31 1 856 530 25 831 11 108|| 18215208 a6 | F 2 802 2 862
8810 08l 36 1.165 043 Q32 336 | NO. 4 pe | 5,855 5 855
4060 109 39 697 016 7547 2 963,
G807 |EMPLOYERS LIABILIT 4] (1]
Subject Total Act inc
Poticy Total: 3,718,589 Premium: 109,763| |Losses: B.657

© Coryrgr 19932010, ks ptes enservso. TS SECLC N S0 nanter of SoTodRtons 253 PR WhET HE T JTINESIY BN SRSl 3
NG IR N dartar e, SiasarTasisd, sale asefer axyigevin=f o0 Sossation 3f Mis tragudt,
"AS Beptgtor’ "t ol Defecn” BhE v dudes hTmats g Aalis SIS BaT o SuEaten Dy WD TRESE A rEiTRAsEtent o wanEStes = amy VS teaiing = T Smous

Ry f T Ml Coursd o COre i |Irance
" whlle o 6 2l Ty be W2 4RIl Te Snde wiTEes soeaest of WO, Tan sentam s s s As W0

"0 TerEhy Eaceesey

FITETmE ARy 4 »l SxIresy, SRy, & D sarmetes NOUSING INE ISt wanecfy of ST R Ey, freets for o et Susae: | COTietTIer, GUTR TR, oSS tiieds of 1y
::-:u:!arjm—rua ermme e Thig oo ans the tformaton coetaing tuerein g o be cten E2rlinh ey Rr URSENMTEE, et Lo TEUL BHTT 80T Sty esasaroe Suepcast 40T Mg v be
e fox aity Other purscse IEEteg DUt AOF INT AR 45 aeiesy acoring Sy mrnjee! Sess P ouETEes A mrsseoa ity iree we o ant T 4y 00 80 reliis sernes or chtamed FURuEh 12 Lse o ihe oYDOUTT
Acd mioraaten wo e wd vear & ass WED ShET oIt e Ay BTy taaret

*Toal oy Polioy Year e all comes $2000 or lexe. D) Dusmsas Lo X Ex-Vacoe' Covamge [FEIEE S
C Gt c Lusa T Tty Linkiy Loss &L busa Page Zof 2
Pease Development Authority and 7 October 7, 2019

Skyhaven Airport
Fred C. Church, Inc.






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 54 International Drive, Parisouth, M

ps
1Ay

D

E
A

VELOPMENT
UTHORITY

MEMORANDUM

A

To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director ‘

From: Maria J. Stowell, P.E., Manager, Engineering ) ‘QJ*\/
Date: October 10, 2019 o
Subject: Terminal Expansion Project Cost Report

Construction of the terminal expansion building continues to ramp up. As you know, the
award of contracts and start of work were delayed while we waited for word on FAA
funding opportunities. Construction began in the summer and the contractor is currently
working to relocate the checked baggage screening functions which will allow construction

of the main building to begin.

As the work has progressed, a number of issues have been identified that will impact the
cost of the project. At this time, I do not have all of the detail required to bring a request
to the Board. However, I would like to present the request on Thursday, the 17" as a late
ittem. This memo serves as an interim communication to provide the background
information to support the request for funds.

Passenger Boarding Bridee

In early 2018, PDA through its consultant, McFarland Johnson, advertised and bid the
procurement of a passenger boarding bridge (PBB). Due to the above-mentioned delay
caused by the uncertainties of the project funding, we were not able to award the PRBB
contract within the specified timeframe and the bid offers expired. This forced a re-bid held
on October 9™, and resulted in a higher cost for the product and additional consulting fees.

Explosive Detection System

To date, TSA has been inspecting checked baggage through a manual process. As reported
by Deputy Director Brean last month, TSA has notified the airport that it will be receiving
an Explosive Detection System, which allows much quicker automated inspections.
Facilitating the arrival and placement of the new machine has required a redesign of the
baggage building and the purchase of an additional length of conveyor belt.

TAKING YOU THERE

g

Ik G R N R R e T
GUL-427-0al3 SIVEWLIRERBICEY.GTY



Dynamic Glass

Terminal facilities typically are constructed with glass curtain walls to provide airfield
views. The glass walls also allow unpleasant heat and light and cause passenger discomfort
and high energy costs.

As a mitigation measure, the terminal building was designed with exterior “fins” to shade
the glass wall. The fins present problems of their own, including maintenance and
unsightliness. As an alternative, the design team has been researching the properties of
dynamic or electrochromic glass. This glass can be tinted by passing low voltage electric
charges across a film surface applied to the glass. The charges change the window tinting
from light to more opaque during different times of the day and as seasons change. This
appears to be a more sustainable and a more aesthetically pleasing solution.

Re-roofing Method

The construction contract calls for removing the existing roof of the existing terminal
building. This would provide the best possible product. However, substantial savings
could be realized by placing the new roof over the old roof. The design team has been
studying the pros and cons to help in our decision making.

Contingency

The original project budget did not include a contingency. Building construction,
especially when renovations of existing structures are involved, are always subject to
unforeseen changes. A reasonable contingency would cover future potential changes
without delaying the current schedule.

For next week’s meeting, I will be providing costs and further justifications for each of
these items.

NAENGINEER\Board Memos\20 [ 9\terminal CO| docex



X

» "

PSM DAW
AIRPORT 36 Adrline Ave. Portsmouth, NH 03801

603 433.6536

MANAGEMENT

Memorandum

To:  Paul Brean, Airport Director Q«Q,
From: Sandra McDonough, Airport Community Liaison <%m
Date: 10/10/2019

Subj: Noise Report for September 2019

The Portsmouth International Airport at Pease received a total of 12 noise inquiries in
September, 2019. The 12 inquiries were for fixed wing aircraft.

The 12 inquiries were all concerning military jets flying between 12:30 AM and 7:00 AM.
Eleven of the inquiries were concerning 6 F-16’s (2 calls from Eliot, Maine, 5 from Rye, New
Hampshire, 2 from Newington, New Hampshire and 2 from Portsmouth New Hampshire). The
F-16’s were not scheduled to come to Portsmouth. They diverted here due to unforeseen
circumstances. Two days later they departed and had to return again due to similar
circumstances. The last inquiry was from a Newington residence concerning two C-17’s arriving
and departing in the early morning hours.

All inquiries are reviewed and logged in the airport database. Individual inquiries are
researched and followed up on with phone calls where appropriate. Certain callers have
indicated that call backs are unnecessary.

OOO0OO TAKING YOU THERE






;: Y(

-
m
(o]
r4
>

U
> m
c<
M=
T |z
o%|>
9|
-=<
~m
<z

=l

MOTION

Director Bohenko:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors authorizes the
Executive Director to expend funds in the total amount of $5,695.78 for legal
services to the Pease Development Authority rendered as follows:

KutakRock

August 1, 2019 - August 30, 2019 $ 5,695.78*
$ 5,695.78

“*The balance will be paid by the City of Portsmouth.

N:ARESOLVES\2019\Legal Services 10-19.docx

TAKING YOU THERE






KUTAK ROCK LLP

WASHINGTON, D.C.
Telephone 202-828-2400
Facsimile 202-828-2488

Federal ID 47-0597598

September 20, 2019

Suzanne M. Woodland
Deputy City Attorney
City of Portsmouth

1 Junkins Ave.
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Lynn Hinchee

Pease Development Authority
55 International Drive
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Check Remit To:
Kutak Rock LLP

PO Box 30057

Omaha, NE 68103-1157

Wire Transfer Remit To:
ABA #104000016

First National Bank of Omaha
Kutak Rock LLP

A/C #24-690470

Reference: Invoice No. 2605067
Client Matter No. 294603-1

Invoice No. 2605067

294603-1

Re:  General

For Professional Legal Services Rendered

TOTAL HOURS [3.00

TOTAL FOR SERVICES RENDERED $5,330.00
DISBURSEMENTS

Meals 30.47

Travel Expenses 704.31

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 734.78
TOTAL CURRENT AMOUNT DUE $6,064.78
UNPAID INVOICES:

February [3, 2019 Invoice No. 2525039 205.00
June 26, 2019 Invoice No. 2569909 902.00
August 26, 2019 Invoice No. 2611582 1,722.00
TOTAL DUE $8,893.78






z
-
m

S/
m

(e}
z

oj—
P m

c<
- M|
T |z
od b
|~
)
-=
—m
<Z|y
= |-

MOTION

Director Lamson:

In accordance with the provisions of Section 3.11 of the Second
Amendment to By-Laws of the Pease Development Authority, the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby approves of and
authorizes the Executive Director to create and add a full-time, benefited,
exempt position of Manager of Airport Administration; and to fill said
position with an appropriately qualified candidate: all in accordance with a
memorandum from Paul E. Brean, PDA Deputy Director/PSM Airport
Director, dated October 9, 2019 attached hereto.

N:ARESOLVES\2019\Manager Airport Administration Position 10-17.docx

P TAKING YOU THERE

e B ESG e Yo






PEASE

AITRPORT 38 Airling Ave., Ports
MANAGEMENT

Memorandum
To: David R. Mullen, Executive Director “p#A— -
From: Paul Brean, Deputy Executive Director/PSM Airport Director /f;\%%
Date: September 23, 2019
Subj: Airport Position: Manager of Airport Administration
CC: Tanya Coppeta, Human Resources

In anticipation of the retirements of the Pease Development Authority’s (PDA) Executive
Director (ED) and its General Counsel (GC) in mid-2020, organizational changes involving key PDA
personnel have begun. One such change has been the recent transition of the Airport Director to the
position of Deputy Executive Director/PSM Airport Director (DED/AD). The DED/AD has begun
training with the current ED in order to gain first-hand experience in the management of the PDA.
These changes in combination with three upcoming major airport construction projects, increased
airport activity, and the hiring of additional airport staff to handle this activity, have revealed the need
for a transitional management position to assume day-to-day oversight of the airport.

It is anticipated that with this new position, the Manager of Airport Administration, the position
of Airport Director will ultimately not be needed, and the role would not be filled should the current
DED/AD assume the ED role. Until such time, rather than hire a new Airport Director at an estimated
salary of $125,000-$184,000, PDA staff is requesting the creation of a new, full-time, benefited
position of Manager of Airport Administration, at an estimated annual salary of $75,000-$100,000.
This position will assume the current DED/AD airport workload, which includes budgeting, marketing,
oversight of daily operations, and management of the Administrative Assistant, Maintenance,
Operations, and Security staff. We anticipate recruiting to fill this position beginning in November of
2019, with a target hire date of January, 2020, to allow for the recruitment and training this position
will require.

At the October 17, 2019, meeting of the Board of Directors, please request authorization to
create and add a full-time, benefited position called the Manager of Airport Administration. This
position is exempt, and will report initially to the DED/AD, but ultimately to the ED after the
anticipated retirement transition. The attached Job Description provides detailed information on
essential duties and responsibilities of this new position.

Thank you for your consideration.

PABOARDMTG\2019\Memo re-Manager Air Admin.docx

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATION

AL
DEVELOPMENT
AUTHORITY

Pease Development Authority
Job Description

Job Title: Manager of Airport Administration
Department: Airport Management

Reports to: Airport Director

Revision Date: September, 2019

Status: Exempt (salaried)
Employee Type: Regular Full Time

Job Summary

The Manager of Airport Administration is responsible for overseeing the safe and efficient daily
operations of Portsmouth International Airport at Pease and Skyhaven Airport.

Essential Duties and Responsibilities

* Coordinate, manage and maintain daily airport operations and administrative activities in
support of PSM’s mission

» Identify goals and objectives for staff; including training and work assignments, and staff
supervision

* Oversee the airport emergency program and respond to emergencies at both airports

¢ Coach, mentor, motivate, counsel and review performance for all direct reports; ensure
employee safety is maintained at all times, all accidents are investigated promptly, and
corrective actions are put in place for all accidents and near misses

* Coordinate with Maintenance, Security and Operations Agents to ensure airfield and airport are
maintained per legal, regulatory and safety standards

e Manage fiscal responsibilities of the airport; oversee the annual airport budgets and
recommend adjustments as necessary

» Oversee cleaning and housekeeping activities for interior and exterior facilities and grounds

e Contract administration

¢ Manage contracted services and concessionaire agreements. Coordinate the RFP process,
participate in bid review and serve on selection panel. Manage contracts and license
agreements in accordance with contracts.

e Approve and submit employee timecards to payroll, approve time off requests

® Oversee snow removal program and operations

» Create interdepartmental cohesiveness through strong communication and collaboration

¢ Build and maintain strong business and community relationships




Additional Duties

e Ensure that the Airport Certification Manual, Airport Security Program and other airport
related programs and documents are maintained in current status at all times

e Represent the PDA on airport related committees and organizations; meet with government
officials and public representatives as needed

e Promote public relations and noise abatement mitigation activities

e Plan for effective airport development through the Master Plan and the CIP; adhering to
departmental budget (s)

e Perform other duties as assigned

Essential Behavior Requirements

These behaviors are based on PDA cultures and values critical to support the mission of the
organization.

Service Quality: Exceeds the customer’s (both internal and external) needs in every interaction.
Teamwork: Ability to demonstrate cooperative spirit and capacity to work well as a team member.

Problem Solving: Recognizes and defines problems; analyzes relevant information; encourages
alternative solutions and plans to resolve situations; seeks additional assistance when needed.

Communication: Actively listens to customers (includes coworkers and the public) empathizes (sees
the situation from the customer’s perspective) and works together to solve the problem through
effective communication.

Supervisorv Responsibilities

Does this job have supervisory responsibilities? Yes

Choose an item.
If yes, positions directly supervised by this position? Maintenance Manager, Equipment Manager,

Operations Manager, Security Manager,
Administrative Assistant

Minimum Qualifications

Education/Experience
Bachelor’s degree in Aviation Management or related field and a minimum of 7 years’ relevant airport
experience or equivalent combination of education and/or experience.

Knowledge/Skills/Abilities

e Must be able to lead people to work toward the organization’s vision, mission and goals by
providing a work environment that fosters the development of others, facilitates cooperation
and teamwork, and supports constructive resolution of conflicts

¢ Thorough working knowledge of principles and practices of supervision

o Experience with Time and Attendance Systems

o~ Experience with Asset Management Systems

e Thorough working knowledge of federal and state construction and operations statutes and
codes, including, but not limited to fire codes, health codes, electrical codes, and OSHA/MIOSHA
rules and regulations




+ Thorough working knowledge of ADA accessibility requirements relating to public buildings
and the fixtures and furnishings therein

+ Working knowledge of snow removal practices, protocols and requirements for airfield
movement and non-movement areas in a cold weather station

» Working knowledge of building, grounds, and airfield maintenance principles and practices,
including preventative maintenance programs and practices

+  Working knowledge of security and safety protocols and procedures

»  Working knowledge of budget planning and administration

» Knowledge of applied mechanics, hydraulics, building mechanical systems, and electricity

» Ability to gather and analyze data from a variety of sources and make decisions accordingly

+ Ability to analyze complex issues and develop solutions

» Ability to instruct, direct, and evaluate employees

* Ability to read and interpret blueprints, engineering and architectural drawings and designs,
mechanical drawings, engineering, diagrams, and architectural specifications

o Thorough working knowledge of risk management practices and procedures for facilities and
facility operations

* Mustmeet the requirements of TSR1542 for a criminal history and/or background check and
security identification display area training (SIDA)

» Ability to read, understand, and apply best practices related to news and current events that
relate to aviation operations, procedures and required training.

e Ability to successfully complete all requisite training to maintain airfield driving
privileges for the entire Airport Operations Area (AOA)

¢ Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationship with PDA Board of Directors,
PDA employees, State, Federal and local agencies, PDA tenants, and the general public.

* Excellent verbal and written communication skills sufficient to prepare reports, reviews and
presentations for a variety of audiences

* Complete familiarity with FAR Parts, 77, 121, 139, 150 and 161, FAA grant assurances and TSA
1542 and 1544

* Demonstrated ability to prioritize and execute numerous projects simultaneously under tight
deadlines

* Knowledge of environmental protection programs and regulations

* Working knowledge of a variety of computer software applications in word processing,
spreadsheets, database and presentation software

e Ability to be on call when required.

Certificates, Licenses, Registrations

Must hold valid driver’s license from the current state of residence.

AAAE certification or the ability to obtain within six months of hire.







PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

PORT COMMITTEE MEETING Thursday April 4, 2019
MINUTES

Presiding: Peter Loughlin, Committee Chair

Present: Franklin G. Torr, Committee Member

John Bohenko, Committee Member

Attending: Geno J. Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors Director; David R. Mullen, PDA Executive
Director; Roger Groux, Port Advisory Council Chairman

I. Call to Order

Director Loughlin, Committee Chair, called the meeting to order at 8:00 a.m. in the conference room of
the Division of Ports and Harbors, 555 Market Street, Portsmouth, NH.

IL Acceptance of Committee Meeting Minutes: November 1, 2018

Director Bohenko moved and Director Torr seconded that the Pease Development Authority Port
Committee accept the Minutes of the November 1, 2018 Port Committee meeting. Discussion: None.
Disposition: Resolved by unanimous vote; motion carried.

1. Directors’ Comments

Port Director Marconi presented the proposal from Appledore Marine Engineering to complete the
National Environmental Protection Act (“NEPA”) clearance for the Main Wharf rehabilitation project. Director
Bohenko made a motion to recommend the PDA Board of Directors approve and accept the proposal for the
purpose of conducting a review under the NEPA as part of the U.S. Department of Transportation’s Better
Utilizing Investments to Leverage Development (*BUILD”) grant to the Division and to approve an expenditure
in the amount of $74,107 from the Port Expansion Fund for the NEPA review. Director Torr seconded, all were
in favor.

Port Director Marconi explained that the floating dock at the Hampton Harbor Marine Facility has been
damaged by storms, is beyond repair, and requires replacement. Director reported that three marine companies
were contacted to submit quotes to replace the float. After discussion and review of the two quotes that were
submitted, Director Bohenko made a motion to immediately award a contract to Riverside and Pickering Marine
Contractors in the amount of $14,300 to be funded by the Harbor Dredging and Pier Maintenance Fund. Director
Torr seconded the motion, all were in favor and the motion carried.

Iv. Public Comment
There were no members of the public present.

V. Press Questions
There were no members of the press at the meeting.

VI Adjournment
Director Torr made a motion to adjourn at 8:10 AM, which was seconded by Director Bohenko, all were
in favor.






o .
A enas. N
RO cgatti A N

: :*’\ $E §\ Division of Ports and Harbors Advisory Council 555 Market St.

i ji“ Portsmouth, NH 03801

{

S P Tel 603-436-8500
‘\sﬁg@?f Fax 603-436-2780

«
s 7

PORT ADVISORY COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, JUNE 12, 2019

PRESENT: Roger Groux, Chairman

Erik Anderson

Brad Cook

Jeff Gilbert

Chris Holt-excused at 7:35 PM

Chris Snow

Geno Marconi, Secretary, Director, DPH

CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 6:02 pm and commenced after a presentation by the
Newington Fire Department on its rescue and boom deployment boat. The presentation lasted
about 40 minutes.

APPROVE MINUTES
E. Anderson made a motion to accept the May 8, 2019 minutes, C. Holt 2nd, no further

discussion, the council voted and the motion carried.

FINANCE REPORT

J. Gilbert commented that the financial report is impressive. Revenue is up by about $.5 million,
and profits are tracking above forecast. G. Marconi commented that we did well with the recent
windmill ship. R. Groux mentioned that the windmills, once set up, will provide power for 14,000
homes. Conversation turned to the controversy surrounding alternative power sources. Back to
the financial report, E. Anderson asked for clarification regarding the association of the current
assets vs. total current liabilities. Geno gave examples of liabilities, which include the turning
basin and pension fund for past employees. J. Gilbert mentioned that the Port is still showing
improvement over prior years.

DIRECTOR’S REPORT
G. Marconi presented memos on the following items from the May 16, 2019 PDA board meeting

for the committee’s review and asked if there were any questions:

¢ Piscataqua Maritime Commission, Coast Guard Cutter “Eagle” waiver of fees

e Portsmouth Fish Pier, bait cooler users, right of entry renewal

e Juliet Marine, right of entry for the storage of the GHOST ship at the Market St. Terminal,
extended through Oct 31, 2019

¢ Swell Oyster Co., Hampton Harbor right of entry, shack for preparation and sale of oysters

* Smitty’s Lobster Pound, Hampton Harbor right of entry, placement of cooler in support of
its lobster pound shack

With no questions from the Council, Geno went on to update them on the Portsmouth
Commercial Fish Pier seawall failure. The wall was built in 1977 and about 3 weeks ago, the
sheet pile that holds back the landside of the facility has started to move. Geno went into great
detail, complete with sketching out the affected area, showing the facility blueprints, and
explaining what appears to be causing it. E. Anderson added that there is a sinkhole as well,

Page 1 of 3



which fills in with the tide and causes pressure on the wall. As safety precautions, one hoist and
the floating docks were removed and “no docking” signs were posted. The other hoist was shut
down which left 2 hoists available for the fishermen. Erik mentioned the 2 hoists that are now out
of service were the ones that were the most active. The fuel pumps were shut off and the
confractor will purge the lines and remove the fuel system tomorrow. The Division has been
trying to determine if there is anything that can be done to halt the deterioration and has talked to
several contractors. Anything along those lines would cost an exorbitant amount of money, which
the Division does not have. In the meantime, the Division will have a couple of test pits dug to
allow inspection of the tiebacks, evaluation of the failure, determine the level of deterioration,
and to develop repair alternatives. Along with that the loose concrete and pavement will be
removed and a poly cover will be placed to divert the water from entering the hole. The cost of
this is about $42,000. The good news is the steel is still good, and that is what is holding the wall
up now. The ideal plan would be to drive a new sheet pile wall, but money is the issue. Director
said that he has spoken to a couple of state senators and a couple of other folks up in Concord to
make them aware of the situation. If he had to guess, the cost will be about $1 mil to a $1.3 mil.
The Division is taking steps to mitigate the interruption of operations at PFP as best as possible
including installing a temporary hoist on the face of the pier so that there will be 3 working hoists
available. Director is asking for patience and for the pier users to work together to get in and out
to allow everyone time at the dock. Revenues will be lost due to the loss of the fuel pumps. There
are some funding possibilities that we will look into. The $5+ million that we have in the pier
expansion fund is dedicated as a match to the BUILD Grant Main Pier Rehabilitation Project.
Roger asked how this work fits in with the work that we would be doing at PFP pier that came out
of the concept study. Geno said that in the short term the first concept included clean-up of the
wall, put protection and a new top on the wall, so those pieces would be eliminated from this
work. As a user of the facility, Erik complimented Geno and his staff for their efforts to monitor
and assess the situation on a daily basis. Discussion ensued for a bit longer regarded funding and
permitting. Erik reported that some folks in Concord are aware, the Governor is aware, and Ruth
Griffin made a visit and will hopefully make some calls. Geno said right now there are folks that
want to help but we need to come up with a dollar value to present, he’s basing his estimate of
$1.3 mil on the replacement work that was done at Hampton (4 years ago). Erik reminded the
council that time is not on our side and don’t forget the cost includes loss of revenue. Geno said
we cannot get a dollar amount or plan for repair until the test pit has been done. Erik asked if the
group should put together a letter....Geno said if the time comes and he needs support he will
reach out to the Council.

COMMITTEE REPORTS

Fisheries-E. Anderson reported that NH has an allocation of 1.2 million pounds of Menhaden.
There are some boats coming in with Menhaden to the Market St. facility to help NH reach its
allocation for this year. Finalization of the rules for fixed gear fisheries for Right Whales has been
concluded, in-lines have to be reduced by 30% and each state will have to come up with their
own plans.

Government-N. Raynolds was not in attendance, No report.
Moorings- C. Snow, mooring permits are being mailed out and responded to.
PDA liaison- From the last PDA Board meeting, R. Groux reported that Wentworth Douglass is

spending $50 million on the expansion of their medical facility at PDA. The Town of Greenland
had some problems with traffic and that will be addressed in the 10 year plan.

Page 2 of 3



10.

Maritime/Public Affairs- The Coast Guard Cutter Eagle is coming, public tours will be Aug 2 to
Aug 4.

Dredging-C. Holt reported that the last dredge meeting was May 22nd. There is still no funding
for the turning basin project. Funding was not in the 2019 budget for the Army Corp but they will
submit another for 2020. NEPA is trying to add in the TYCO shoal into the turning basin funding
to make it look more attractive. There is an eel grass issue on the Maine side, the disposal site at
the Isles of Shoals had to be reconfigured so they need new approvals.

Hampton/Seabrook project: there was one property owner holding out, but that is taken care of,
Director confirmed that the wetlands permit has been submitted and accepted by DES. Dredging
will start by October.

Rye dredging: The letters went out for public comment on the environmental coordination, still
deciding whether to use Cape Arundel or the Isles of Shoals. Moving forward and hope to start
dredging in the fall of 2020.

Chris received notification from the American Pilot Association of a bill that has been introduced
to release the $1.7 billion in Harbor Maintenance Funding Tax. If the bill goes through it would
release funds back to the rivers and harbors where it belongs.

Recreational Piers- Weather has been bad, so financially the rec piers are way behind. Overall
outlook is positive.

NEW BUSINESS
R. Groux handed out a flyer on the Sea Bass Tournament on Sunday, June 23, 2019 at the

Wentworth. From his understanding, the money goes to a children’s charity.

OLD BUSINESS
No old business.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Peter Welch reported that Newington is working on their master plan and part of the plan
regarding transportation will include the Ports of Newington and Portsmouth. Peter asked if Geno
would mind reviewing the plan when the time comes, Geno agreed to help in any way he can.

PRESS QUESTIONS
There were no members of the press present.

ADJOURNMENT
B. Cook made a motion to adjourn for July and August with the understanding that there may
need to be an emergency meeting to discuss the fish pier. J. Gilbert seconded, there was no
discussion and all were in favor. Meeting was adjourned at 7:44 PM.

Page 3 of 3






PLANT:

227 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801
Phone: 603 = 436-8505

Fax: 603 = 436-2458

OFFice:

134 Middle Street, Suite 210
Lowell, MA 01852
Phone: 978 = 251-8553
Fax: 978 = 251-8244

- =

Granite State Minerals, Inc.

October 1, 2019

Mr. Geno J. Marconi, Division Director
Pease International Development Authority
55 International Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

Dear Geno,

Granite State Minerals, Inc. is notifying you that we would like to exercise our second option to renew
our lease for an additional one (1) year term per the contract signed November 17, 2017. All terms and
conditions are to remain the same.

Regards,

Ju% € Iahsmiry

Shelagh E. Mahoney
President






PARKING LOT USAGE/MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

The Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports and Harbors, (“Lessor” or
"Owner"), a state agency created by RSA 12-G:43, |, owner of a parking lot located at 315
Market Street, City of Portsmouth, New Hampshire, (Map 118, Lot 5) (hereinafter *Lof") and
the Isles of Shoals Steamship Company, Inc.,("Lessee”), lessee of 315 Market Street, hereby
enter into this agreement with the City of Portsmouth, a municipal corporation with an
address of 1 Junkins Avenue, Portsmouth, New Hampshire (hereinafter “City” or “Subleasor”)
with respect to certain designated parking spaces located in the Lot. Lessee and the City are
entering into this parking agreement (“Agreement”) for the purposes and under the terms and

conditions contained herein.

1.

This Agreement shall commence on November 1, 2019 and continue in effect
until April 30, 2020.

During the period in which this Agreement is in effect, the Fifty-One (51) parking
spaces in the Lot shown on the attached plan (hereinafter “Parking Lot”) shall
be available at the direction of the City for the purpose of allowing employees of
the downtown area who have purchased a parking pemit for the Parking Lot to
park (hereinafter “Employees™). (See plan attached and incorporated hereto as

Exhibit A).

The City agrees and represents that the parking permits issued by the City will
allow Employees to park in the Parking Lot from Monday through Sunday, but

will prohibit ovemight parking.

The City shall post and maintain signage in a manner to be approved by the
Owner and Lessee to designate the Fifty-One (51) parking spaces for
Employee parking. The signs shall include a prohibition against overnight
parking and information about days Employees are permitted to park in the

Parking Lot.

The City shall have the authority to provide regular and consistent enforcement
of its rules and regulations governing the use of these parking spaces during
the times stated to ensure that the parking spaces are only being used by
authorized permit holders.

The City shall plow snow, apply salt and sand, and remove snow as necessary
from the Parking Lot in accordance with its normal practices for City parking
fots. In April 2020, the City shall sweep the Parking Lot and remove any
accumuiated sand and debris resulting from its winter maintenance activities.



7. Except as described in this Agreement, the use of the Parking Lot shall be
under the control of the Owner and Lessee.

8. The City shall defend and indemnify the Owner and Lessee for claims caused
solely by the City's negligence, and which are within the scope of the City's
liability insurance to the extent and under the terms and conditions under which
the City itself is entitled to contractual indemnification coverage from the New
Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange, under the terms of its liability
coverage document as it may be in effect from time to time. The City shall
promptly repair any damage to the Owner’s property and equipment at the Lot,
including but not limited to the Parking Lot, resuiting from fts activities under this

Agreement.

9. The Parties agree that any compensation paid by the City to Lessee will be
determined at the expiration of the term of this Agreement and will be the net
parking permit revenues, the difference between gross parking permit revenues
less expenses incurred by the City for the following; snow removal operations,
parking permit production and administration and parking enforcement. The net
parking permit revenues will be paid to Lessee within 45 days after the
expiration of the term of this Agreement. The Parties anticipate that these
payments shall not exceed $1,000 per month.

10. This Agreement may be terminated with cause by either Party in the event that
either Party fails to maintain its obligations under this Agreement, after being
given written notice of such failure and a Thirty (30) day period to cure it. This
Agreement may be terminated without cause by either Party with Forty-Five
(45) days written notice to the other Party.

11. This Agreement may be renewed annually by agreement of the parties.

For the City of Portsmouth For Lesses
Isles of Shoals Steamship Company, inc

L
.

Jokh P. Bohenko, City Manager ~By:
Dated: ﬁ? - 5Ot ? Dated: ;?;/ﬁ ?—//?
. 7

Pursuant to vote of the City Councll
on November 17, 2014.

Pease Development Authority consents to this Parking Lot Usage / Maintenance Agreement
entered into between the Lessee and the City.

Pease Development Authority



D P

David F. Muilen, Executive Director

Dated: ¢/ 2¢ /oS

hyferrinfparkingusies of shoals\2018-2020\agr







z
-
m

N/
T

oi-
> m

|4
O
z

c<
R -
T |z
o0C|>
-=
—Im
b Ml

MOTION

Director Levesque:

The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors hereby
authorizes the Executive Director to agree to and execute the Proposal
dated October 8, 2019, submitted to the Division of Ports and Harbors
(“DPH") by Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC (“AME") of Portsmouth, New
Hampshire, for engineering and construction services related to the
replacement of the seawall at the Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier, in an
amount not to exceed $324,046.00; funding of this proposal to be
provided through general funds of the State of New Hampshire; all in
accordance with the Memorandum of Geno Marconi, Division Director,
dated October 8, 2019 attached hereto.

NARESOLVESV2019\DPH - Appledore (Ports. Fish Pier - eng & const services).docx

I TAKING YOU THERE






PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 wadisl Sirest, Zubis 1 Portamouth

PORTS AND HARBORS

To: Pease Development Authority (“PDA”) Board of Directors
From: Geno Marconi, Division Director 6 M ( %T)

Re: Seawall repair, Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier

Date: October 8, 2019

As has been previously reported to the PDA Board of Directors, the seawall at the
Portsmouth Commercial Fish Pier has failed and is in need of immediate replacement.
Based on a concept report provided by Appledore Marine Engineering, LL.C (“AME”),
the Division’s “On-Call Marine Engineers,” the New Hampshire Legislature, with
concurrence of the Governor, appropriated $3.25 million for the seawall replacement
project, which includes design, engineering, permitting and construction costs.

The Division of Ports and Harbors (“the Division”) requested and received a proposal
from AME, in the amount of $324,046.00, for engineering and construction services
related to the replacement of the seawall (“the Proposal™). As you will see in the attached
Proposal, the scope of work includes engineering investigations, design services, bidding
support, and quality assurance services through the completion of construction.

As stated above, the funds for this Proposal will be provided through General Funds of
the State of New Hampshire.

After review of the Proposal and based on its negotiations with AME, the Division
recommends that the PDA Board of Directors approve the Proposal and authorize the
Executive Director to execute the Proposal in order to begin this crucial project.

Y TAKING YOU THERE

Y fosl SO0 458-0780 W peesalay org






B Appledore Marine
S8 Engineering, LLC

600 State Street, Suite E | Portsmouth New Hampshire 03801

October 8, 2019

Captain Geno Marconi

PDA Division of Ports & Harbors
555 Market Street

Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801

Re: Proposal to Provide Marine Engineering Services
Repair Design - Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead
Portsmouth NH
Project No. 5245

Dear Captain Marconi;

Appledore Marine Engineering, LLC. (AME) is pleased to present this proposal for Marine Engineering services for
the above-referenced project. This proposal will outline the Background, Scope of Services, Schedule of Work and
Fees for Consulting Services to perform the work.

BACKGROUND

The Bulkhead at the Portsmouth Fish Pier facility has failed and requires rehabilitation. AME prepared a Concept
Report for the Pease Development Authority — Division of Ports and Harbors (Port Authority) in support of the
investigation of the Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead failure and the development conceptual rehabilitation alternatives.
The estimated cost range to replace the Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead as detailed in the Concept Report dated
July, 2019 is between $2,600,000 and $3,250,000.

SCOPE OF SERVICES

The scope of services is targeted to the tasks required in assisting the owner to replace the bulkhead and adjacent
infrastructure. These services include engineering investigations, design services, bidding support and quality
assurance services through the completion of construction.

TASK 1: ENGINEERING SERVICES

Archive Record Review

This task will include completing research on the facility and general area to identify available records on the
structure itself and local site specific conditions. This would include past engineering studies and public records. The
intent of this task is to leverage past available information to limit redundancy in effort.

Ph: 603-766-1870 | www.appledoremarine.com






Proposal for Marine Engineering Services AME Project Number: 5245
Repair Design — Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead October 8, 2019

Engineering Investigations

To support the preliminary design, engineering investigations will be completed to document the existing facility
conditions in the vicinity of the bulkhead. These investigations will include the collection of detailed design-level
measurements of the existing structures, utilities, subsurface soils and other features in the vicinity of the work. The
following investigations are anticipated to be required:

e Topographic survey
¢ Ultility investigation
e Geotechnical explorations

o Above and underwater engineering inspection

Meetings

Meetings and working sessions will be completed throughout the engineering investigation and design process to
provide updates and incorporate owner and facility user input. Meetings will be completed at owner or AME facilities
as desired and will be followed up with detailed meeting minutes and action item lists. The following meetings are
envisioned to support the project progression:

o Kick-off

» Presentation of data from engineering investigations
o Preliminary design submission

e  Construction phasing and operational coordination
e  Final Design submission

e Periodic status calls and meetings, as needed

TASK 2: DESIGN SERVICES

Preliminary Desian

This task will include the preparation of a preliminary design package to allow the Port Authority to review the general
configuration, major components, and features of the project. This submission will include preliminary design plans,
technical specifications and an opinion of the construction cost. The following tasks are included within the
preliminary design task:

e Development of a basis of design that documents the controlling environmental and operational load cases.
This document provides a narrative of the design approach including a list of applicable codes and specific
requirements of how the facility may be loaded. This document serves as a guide to assure a clear
understanding between the owner and engineer. As changes are made this document will be updated and
serve as part of the engineering record to support future changes and modifications to the facility.






Proposal for Marine Engineering Services AME Project Number: 5245
Repair Design — Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead October 8, 2019

o Preliminary engineering calculations of the primary load bearing members to identify the overall geometry of
the facility and size of primary structural members. The calculations will include the strength of existing
elements contemplated for reuse and proposed materials and structural members in relation to the
environmental and operational loading cases.

» Preliminary design plans depicting the bulkhead replacement to allow the development of construction cost
estimates.

»  Preliminary technical specifications for all major construction tasks.

Preliminary opinion of the probable construction costs based on a competitive bid environment by qualified
marine contractors, corresponding to the level of design progression.

Final Design

This task will include the preparation of a final design package to allow the Port Authority to review and validate the
status and direction of the bulkhead replacement project. This submission will include final design plans, technical
specifications and an opinion of the construction cost. Deliverables developed by AME for this task are considered
final in form and would serve as an opportunity for the Port Authority to provide review comments to be incorporated
into the bid package by AME. It is expected that at this stage no major changes in the program would occur and
changes would generally be minor adjustments. Activities included in this task consist of;

e Updating of the basis of design.
» Preparation of final engineering calculations.

e Preparation of final design plans including required details to allow bidding by qualified marine contractors.
Design plans will be completed in AutoCAD following AME's in-house drafting and electronic file
management standards.

» Preparation of final technical specifications completed using the standardized SPECSINTACT system,
saved to PDF format for reproduction.

» Preparation of AME’s opinion of the probable construction costs based on a competitive bid environment by
qualified marine contractors.

Construction Documents

This task will include the preparation of contract documents suitable for bidding. Deliverables associated with this
task consist of a submission that is essentially an update of the final design submission incorporating PDA-DPH
comments. Deliverables include:

o Contract Document design plans and specifications
» Updated opinion on the probable construction cost

¢ Bidding Documents






Proposal for Marine Engineering Services AME Project Number: 5245
Repair Design — Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead October 8, 2019

TASK 3: REGULATORY PERMITTING SUPPORT

In concert with the design progression, regulatory support activities will be completed to secure the necessary
environmental permits to allow the completion of the construction. The regulatory activities will include meeting and
coordinating with the various authorities to provide brief on the project and develop an understanding of any
regulatory requirements to support the development of required permit applications.

Permit applications will be submitted to the following pertinent federal, state, and local regulatory authorities:
o US Army Corps of Engineers
e New Hampshire Department of Environmental Services
e Town of Portsmouth Conservation Commission
o Coastal Zone Management Certification

o Water Quality Certification

Permit support will continue after submission of applications to provide additional information and respond to
questions.

TASK 4: CONSTRUCTION SERVICES
Solicitation

This task is intended to assist the owner in bidding and securing a qualified contractor to complete the construction.
The following tasks are included:

e Developing a list of qualified marine contractors and assisting the owner with outreach to contact qualified
contractors and encourage a competitive bid environment.

e Holding a pre-bid meeting onsite
o  Preparing responses to questions from prospective bidders in the form of addenda.

e Reviewing contractor bids, compiling a bid comparison including the base bids and options to assist the
owner in selecting a contractor for the project.

Construction Phase Services

Services under this task involve consulting with and advising the client during construction. The services under this
task are limited to the level of engagement and awareness that the engineer is only knowledgeable of the onsite
construction work based on submittals and RFI's from the contractor, and periodic site visits to assess the level of
completion and become generally familiar with the quality of work. During this phase the contractor is responsible for
notifying the owner of conflicts or issues with the construction that require engagement by the engineer, as well as
the construction means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures and site safety.

This task includes the following activities as requested by the owner, up to the hourly limits indicated:

» Reviewing for compliance with overall design intent, shop drawings, material certifications and other
submittals by the contractor. A total of 40 hours has been allocated for this task and may need to be
modified through Change Order if excessive resubmittals are required.






Proposal for Marine Engineering Services AME Project Number; 5245
Repair Design — Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead October 8, 2019

e Visiting the project site at appropriate intervals as construction proceeds to observe and report on the
progress and the overall quality of the completed work. The visits are anticipated to occur 2-3 times per
week depending on the activities occurring at the site. If additional visits are required as requested by the
owner due to quality of work concerns or delay in the progression of construction, a modification may be
processed to add additional visits.

» Assisting with office administration of the contract, including assisting the owner with the review of pay
requests by the contractor.

o Making a final visit and reporting on the level of completion. This final visit will be completed after the
contract is substantially complete and will serve to assist the owner in developing a punch list of work items
requiring completion or re-work.

DELIVERABLES

The deliverables for this project are further detailed in Tasks 1-4 and will be submitted electronically as PDFs and in
hard copy as necessary.

SUB-CONSULTANTS

The following sub-consultants are envisioned to be used to support AME's services and it is our understanding that
this is acceptable to the owner.

e Qak Point Associates to provide utility engineering services
e SW Cole to complete geotechnical explorations
¢ Doucet Survey to provide survey services

EXCLUSIONS AND CLARIFICATIONS

This proposal is based on the following considerations:

Construction duration is estimated to range between 6 and 8 months and if challenges during construction require a
substantial extension to the schedule a modification to our contract may be processed to provide additional
construction support services.

No specific environmental studies are known to be required such as underwater benthic surveys or other studies and
therefore not included within this proposal.

SCHEDULE

We have developed the following schedule based on our experience and a project progression allowing generous
owner engagement and reviews. If the below schedule is not tenable, we suggest meeting and evaluating
approaches to accelerate as needed.

Preliminary Design 60 days from NTP

Permitting 120 days from submission of permit applications

Final Design 75 days from receipt of preliminary design review comments
Contract Documents 14 days from receipt of comments on Final Design






Proposal for Marine Engineering Services AME Project Number: 5245
Repair Design — Portsmouth Fish Pier Bulkhead October 8, 2019

FEES FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

Fees for consulting services will be in accordance with the following schedule on a firm fixed fee basis. The fixed fee
includes all labor, reimbursable, and equipment expenses required to complete the work.

BASE SERVICES

Task 1 - Engineering Services $ 55,870
Task 2 - Design Services $ 29,513
Task 3 — Regulatory Permitting $ 146,136
Task 4 — Construction Support Services $ 92,527
TOTAL BASE FEES $324,046

Prompt payment of invoices is necessary for us to maintain a schedule and provide responsible service. We will
invoice monthly for our engineering services and reimbursable expenses. Payment is due within thirty (30) days of
date of invoice.

Thank you for giving us the opportunity to present a proposal for this work.

If you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to contact me.

Regards,

A
1/ Glmrk——
'//M/IL
Noah J. Elwood, P.E.

President

This Proposal is subject and subordinate to the Agreement for Marine Engineering Services between the Parties
dated July 1, 2017






A&E FEE PROPOSAL WORKSHEET

FIRM NAME: Appledore Marine E‘lgl.ﬁu.rlﬂg, LLC

Owner PDA Division of Ports & Harbors

Project Title Bulkhead Facility Replscement - Portsmouth Fish Pier

DATE: October 8, 2019

Engineering Services $55,870
Regulatory Permitting $29,513
Design Services $146,136
Construction Support Services $92,527

Page 1 0of 5 10/8/2019 (PDA Repair Design Fish Pier Fee Estimate 20191008)






Engineering Services

L
Archive Record Rev Design Level Inspection Survey Coord / QC
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $91.28 0 $0 0 30 0 $0
Project Manager/Diver $80.12 2 5160 8 641 4 $320
Sr. Engineer/Diver $72.16 4 5289 8 $577 3 “§577
|Engineer/Diver $52.03 0 $0 16 $832 0 50
Technician/Diver $45.66 2 $91 0 $0 0 0
CADD Tech/Diver $33.94 0 $0 0 $0 0 0
Clerical $26.03 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Subtotals: 8 $540 32 $2,051 12 $898
Utility investigation Geotechnical Coord/QC Meetings
Engineering Discipline Rate " Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $91.28 0 30 0 $0 0 $0
Project Manager/Diver $80.12 4 5320 4 $320 16 51,282
Sr. Engineer/Diver $72.16 8 5577 8 $577 32 $2,309
[Engineer/Diver $52.03 12 624 0 $0 0 50
Technician/Diver $45.66 0 $0 0 $0 Q 30
CADD Tech/Diver $33.94 9] 0 12 $407 16 $543
Clerical $26.03 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Subtotals: 24 $1,522 24 $1,305 64 $4,134
Subtotal for Labor: 164 $10,450
Overhead: 144.75% $15,126
Profit: 10.0% $2,558
Total Cost for Labor: $28,134
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM [DIRECT COSTS FOR FIELD WORK
ltem Expense Cost ltem Expense Cost
Per Diem: $0 Survey $11,567
Rate: 30 Doucet $10,515
# of Persons: 0 Geotechnical $16,170
# of Days: 0 SW Cole $14,700
Airfare: $0
Rate: $0
Excess Baggage: $0
# of Round Trips: 0
Vehicle Rental: $0
Rate: $0
Gas: $0
# of Days/wks: 0
Mileage $0
Rate: $0.00
Miles 0 Total for Direct Costs: | 927,737
Airport Parking $0
Rate; $0.000
# Days: 0
Total for Travel: $0
REPRODUCTION COSTS
item Unit Price/Unit Cost
Deliverable 0
Report (Color) 0 $1.00 b0
Specs, Reports (B&W) 0 $0.75 b0
Plans (11x17) 0 b1.50 $0
Plans (22x34) 0 $3.00 $0
CD-ROM: 0 54.00 0
0
50
Total Cost for Reproduction: $0
TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES: $55,870

Page 2 of 5 10/8/2019 (PDA Repair Design Fish Pier Fee Estimate 20191008)






Design Services

L
Design Calculations Preliminary Submission Final Submission
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
|Principal $91.28 3 $730 8 $730 8 $730
Project Manager/Diver 580.12 16 1,282 32 52,564 32 52,564
Sr. Enginesar/Diver $72.16 48 $3,464 104 $7,505 104 b7,505
Engineer/Diver $52.03 32 $1,665 96 4,995 96 $4,995
Technician/Diver $45.66 0] $0 80 3,653 80 $3,653
CADD Tech/Diver 533.94 3 $272 24 $815 24 $815
Clerical $26.03 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Subtotals: 112 $7,412 344 $20,261 344 $20,261
Bidding Documents QA/QC
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $91.28 4 5365 4 $365 0 0
|Project Manager/Diver $80.12 8 5641 0 $0 0 50
Sr. Enginear/Diver $72.16 32 $2,309 16 $1,155 0 $0
Enginesr/Diver 552.03 16 $832 9] 50 0 $0
Technician/Diver $45.66 0 $0 0 50 0 50
CADD Tech/Diver $33.94 12 $407 8 $272 0 50
Clerical $26.03 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Subtotals: 72 $4,555 28 $1,791 0 $0
Subtotal for Labor: 900 $54,280
Overhead: 144.75% $78,571
Profit: 10.0% $13,285
Total Cost for Labor: $146,136
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM [DIRECT COSTS FOR FIELD WORK
Item Expense Cost Item Expense Cost
Per Diem: $0
Rate: $0
# of Persons: 0
# of Days: 0
Airfare: $0
Rate: $0
Excess Baggage: $0
# of Round Trips: 0
Vehicle Rental: $0
Rate: $0
Gas: $0
# of Days/wks: 0
Mileage 30
Rate: $0.00
Miles Q Total for Direct Costs: 20
Airport Parking $0
Rate; $0.000
# Days: 0
otal for fravel: $0
EPRODUCTION COSTS
Item Unit Price/Unit Cost
Deliverable 0
Report (Color) 0 51.00 $0
Specs, Reports (B&W) 0 50.75 50
Plans (11x17) 0 $1.50 50
Plans (22x34) 0 $3.00 b0
CD-ROM: 0 $4.00 b0
b0
30
Total Cost for Reproduction: $0
TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES: $146,136

Page 3 of 5 10/8/2019 (PDA Repair Design Fish Pier Fee Estimate 20191008)






Regulatory Permitting

Agency Coordination Permit Research Permit Development
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $91.28 0 $0 0 0 g $91
Project Manager/Diver $80.12 4 $320 0 $0 [ 3641
Sr. Engineer/Diver $72.16 8 $577 4 5289 12 $866
Enginesr/Diver $52.03 0 $0 8 b416 32 $1,665
Technician/Diver $45.66 0 $0 0 30 0 $0
CADD Tech/Diver $33.94 2 $68 6 $204 16 5543
Clerical $26.03 0 $0 0 30 6 5156
Subtotals: 14 $966 18 $90Y 75 $3,962
Follow-up Meelings
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $91.28 1 $91 0 $0 0 $0
h'Proje(;t Manager/Diver $80.12 8 $641 12 $961 0 $0
Sr. Engineer/Diver $72.16 16 $1,155 24 $1,732 0 50
Engineer/Diver $52.03 0 $0 0 $0 0 0
Technician/Diver 545 .66 6 $274 0 $0 0 ol
CADD Tech/Diver $33.94 4 $136 4 $136 0 h0
Clerical $26.03 9] 30 8] $0 o] 50
Subtotals: 35 $2,297 40 $2,829 0 $0
Subtotal for Labor: 182 510,962
Overhead: 144.75% 515,868
Profit: 10.0% $2,683
Total Cost for Labor: $29,513
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM DIRECT COSTS FOR FIELD WORK
Item Expense Cost Item Expense Cost
Per Diem: $0
Rate: $0
# of Persons: 0
# of Days: 0
Airfare: $0
Rate: $0
Excess Baggage: $0
# of Round Trips: 0
Vehicle Rental: $0
Rate: $0
Gas: $0
# of Days/wks. 0
Mileage $0
Rate: $0.00
Miles 0 Total for Direct Costs: | 0
Airport Parking $0
Rate: $0.000
# Days: 0
Total for Travel: $0
REPRODUCTION COSTS
Item Unit Price/Unit Cost
Deliverable 0
Report (Color) 0 $1.00 $0
Specs, Reports (B&W) 0 $0.75 30
Plans (11x17) 0 51.50 0
Plans (22x34) 0 $3.00 $0
CD-ROM: [3] $4.00 $0
o)
$0
Total Cost for Reproduction: $0
TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES: $29,513

Paged4of5 10/8/2019 {(PDA Repair Design Fish Pier Fee Estimate 20191008)






Construction Su pport Services

EOR
Solicitation Support Construction Submittals Construction RFl's
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal 578.08 4 $312 3 $625 4 $312
Project ManageriDiver 566.09 8 $529 24 1,586 16 $1,057
Sr. Enginesr/Diver $53.42 16 $855 64 3,419 32 1,709
Engineer/Diver $43.55 24 $1,045 438 2,090 24 1,045
Engineer Tech $30.59 0 $0 0 $0 0 50
Clerical $24.80 4 $99 12 $298 3 $198
$0.00 0 $0 0 $0 0 $0
Subtotals: 56 32,840 156 38,078 34 $4,323
Construction Observation Administration
Engineering Discipline Rate Hours Salary Hours Salary Hours Salary
Principal $78.08 8 $625 4 $312 0 $0
Project Manager/Diver 566.09 24 51,586 24 51,586 0] $0
Sr. Engineer/Diver 553.42 124 6,624 48 b2,564 8] 50
Enginser/Diver 543.55 124 $5,400 0 $0 0 b0
Engineer Tech 530.59 0 0 0 50 0 $0
lerical $24.80 0 b0 24 $595 0 $0
$0.00 [9) 0 0 $0 0 50
Subtotals: 280 514,235 100 $5,058 0 $0
Subtotal for Labor: 676 534,474
Overhead: 144.0% 349,642
Profit: 10.0% $8,412
Total Cost for Labor: $92,527
TRAVEL AND PER DIEM DIRECT COSTS FOR FIELD WORK
Item Expense Cost Item Expense Cost
Per Diem: $0
Rate; $0
# of Persons: 0
# of Days: 0
Airfare: $0
Rate: $0
Excess Baggage: $0
# of Round Trips: 0
Vehicle Rental: $0
Rate: $0
Gas: $0
# of Days/wks: 0
Mileage $0
Rate: $0.00
Miles 0 Total for Direct Costs: 30
Airport Parking $0
Rate: $0.000
# Days: 0
Total for Travel: %0
REPRODUCTION COSTS
Item Unit Price/Unit Cost
Deliverable 0
Report (Color) 0 $1.00 b0
Specs, Reports (B&W) 0 $0.75 $0
Plans (11x17) 0 $1.50 $0
Plans (22x34) 0 $3.00 50
CD-ROM: 0 $4.00 0
0]
50
Total Cost for Reproduction: $0
TOTAL ENGINEERING SERVICES: $92,527

Page 5 of 5 10/8/2019 {PDA Repair Design Fish Pier Fee Estimate 20191008)






z
-
m
o
z

¢

=Y
m

oji—
> m

c<
—M|=
T |z
ol k=
T |-~
-=Z
—m
= |-

MOTION

Director Loughlin:

The Pease Development Board of Directors ratifies execution of and
approves the Agreement entered into by the Executive Director with
Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc. to perform mooring removal and re-
installation work in Hampton and Seabrook Harbors for the purpose of
facilitating the dredging work in connection with the Hampton/ Seabrook
Harbor dredge project, all in accordance with the memorandum of Geno J.
Marconi, Division of Ports and Harbors Director, dated October 9, 2019,
attached hereto.

N:/RESOLVES/2019/DPH-Pepperrell Cove mooring removal & reinstillation 10-17.docx

" TAKING YOU THERE

asedav,ory






—
PEASE

1 N T E RNATIONAL 555 Markel Strest, Buite 1 Fodgmouin M IR0

PORTS AND HARBORS

To: Pease Development Authority (PDA) Board of Directors
From: Geno J. Marconi, Division Director &M ( ‘E‘f)

Re: Pepperrell Cove Marine Services

Date: October 9, 2019

The dredging of Hampton/Seabrook Harbor is starting this month and expected to run through
this coming winter. In order for dredging to commence, the moorings in the harbor need to be
removed. PDA Division of Ports and Harbors solicited bids for the mooring removal and
replacement. Pepperrell Cove Marine Services of Newington was the lowest responsive
bidder. The contract with Pepperrell Cove is based on a per mooring removal charge and per
mooring replacement charge. Therefore, the contract total will ultimately depend on the total
number of moorings removed and replaced.

Given timing concerns with the commencement of the dredging project, there is a need to get
the mooring removal process started during the week of October 7th. As such, on October 8,
2019, Board Member Peter Loughlin approved work to commence under the attached contract
up to the $10,000.00 threshold amount.

Given total contract costs are expected to ultimately exceed the $10,000.00 level, I am
requesting that at the October 17, 2019, meeting the PDA Board of Directors ratify execution
of and approve the contract with Pepperrell Cove Marine Services for mooring removal and
replacement in Hampton/Seabrook Harbor in order to facilitate dredging operations.

Y TAKING YOU THERE

L-8500 face; 800-428-8780 W peasadev.org






AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT, made effective this ﬂ_ day of October, 2019, between the PEASE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY- DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS, an agency of the
State of New Hampshire established pursuant to N.H. RSA 12-G:1 et. seq. with a principal place
of business at 55 International Drive, Portsmouth, New Hampshire 03801 ("PDA-DPH" or
"Owner") and Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc. of 325 Gosling Road, Newington, NH 03801
("Contractor").

WITNESSETH:  That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements
hereinafter mentioned:

1. The Contractor will perform mooring removal and re-instillation work in Hampton
and Seabrook Harbors in accordance with the Owner’s specifications and requirements and
Contractor’s Bid Proposal which meet or exceed the requirements of the Contract Documents, as
that term is defined in Section 4 of this Agreement (the "Project™).

2. The Contractor will commence work in accordance with the Contract Documents
and shall commence work hereunder upon issuance of a Notice to Proceed from the Owner.

3. The Contractor agrees to comply with the terms of the Contract Documents and to
perform all of the work described in the Contract Documents and shall be paid for each mooring
which is removed and re-installed as well as any ghost moorings which are discovered based upon
and in accordance with the Owner’s Request for Bids and the Contractor’s Bid Proposal (the
“Contract Price™).

4. The term "Contract Documents" means and includes the following:

(A)  Agreement

(B)  Owner’s Request for Bids dated September 6, 2019 (attached hereto)
(C)  Contractor’s Bid Proposal dated September 17, 2019 (attached hereto)
(D) Notice to Proceed (may be given verbally or in writing)

(E)  Change Order(s) (if applicable)

0 Insurance Requirements (attached hereto)

(G)  Insurance Certificate(s) (attached hereto)

5. The Contractor will furnish all of the materials, supplies, tools, equipment, labor,
supervision and other items and services necessary for the completion of the Project, except as
otherwise set forth in the Contract Documents.

6. Upon satisfactory completion of each phase of the work under the terms of this
Agreement, (i.e., removal and re-installation) Contractor shall provide PDA-DPH with a bill for
services specifying the specific number of moorings removed and/or re-installed. PDA-DPH
agrees to pay Contractor within thirty (30) days of the receipt of a bill for services.



7. This Agreement is not assignable by the Contractor without the written consent of
the Owner and any attempt at assignment without such consent is void.

8. This Agreement shall be binding upon all parties hereto and their respective heirs,
executors, administrators, successors, and assigns.

9. This Agreement is executed in a number of counterparts, each of which is an
original and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. This Agreement shall be
construed according to the laws of the State of New Hampshire. No portion of this Agreement
shall be understood to waive the sovereign immunity of the State. This Agreement shall not be
amended or modified except by an agreement in writing signed by the parties.

10. Insurance.

During the term of this Agreement the Contractor shall maintain, at its expense, adequate
insurance coverage in an amount of $2,000,000 with an insurance company or companies
acceptable to the Owner to cover the liability accepted by the Contractor in the indemnity
provisions of this Agreement in accordance with the insurance requirements set forth herein and
attached to this Agreement as referenced in Section 4.F. above.

a. All such policies of insurance shall be effected under valid and enforceable
policies, in such forms and amounts as may, from time to time, be required
under this Agreement, issued by insurers of recognized responsibility which
are authorized to transact such insurance coverage in the State of New
Hampshire, and which have been approved in writing by the Owner which
approval shall not be withheld unreasonably.  All such policies of
insurance (other than workers' compensation insurance) shall name the
Owner and the State of New Hampshire as additional insureds. All such
policies of insurance shall contain a description of the Project. Upon the
execution of this Agreement (and thereafter not less than fifteen (15) days
prior to the expiration date of each policy pursuant to this clause) a
certificate of insurance, which delineates requisite coverages, reasonably
satisfactory to the Owner bearing a notation evidencing the payment of the
premium or accompanied by other evidence reasonably satisfactory to the
Owner of such payment shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Owner.

b. Each such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain:

(1) a provision that no act or omission of Contractor, or any
employee, officer or agent of the Contractor which would
otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance
therein provided shall affect or limit the obligation of the
insurance company to pay the amount of any loss sustained;

(i)  an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be
canceled without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice
by registered mail to the Owner;

2



(iii)  aprovision that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation
against Owner and the State of New Hampshire; and,

(iv)  a provision that the insurance shall be primary and non-
contributing with respect to any coverages carried by Owner,
whether self-insured or otherwise.

c. The Contractor shall observe and comply with the requirements of all
policies of insurance at any time in force with respect to this Agreement and
shall also perform and satisfy the requirements of the companies writing
such policies so that at all times companies of good standing reasonably
satisfactory to the Owner shal] be willing to write or to continue such

insurance.
d. The Contractor shall eithey:

(1) require each of its subcontractors to procure and to maintain

_ during the life of his subcontract the type and amounts of
insurance specified above; or

(i) insure the activities of its subcontractor in the Contractor's

policy.

11. Indemnification.

The Contractor shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend the Owner and the State of
New Hampshire, their officers, board members, agents and employees (the "Indemnitees") from
and against all losses, suits, claims, liabilities, penalties, fines, judgments, costs and expenses,
including without limitation attorneys' fees, consultants' fees and experts' fees arising out of, or
in any manner predicated upon personal injury, death or property damage resulting from, related
to, caused by or arising out of (or which may be claimed to arise out of) the Contractor's
performance of its obligations under this Agreement; and is caused in whole or in part by any
negligent or willful act or omission of the Contractor, its subcontractors, anyone directly or
indirectly employed by either the Contractor or its subcontractors, or anyone for whose acts any
of the foregoing may be liable. The agreements contained in the preceding sentence do not
extend to claims for damages caused by gross negligence or willful misconduct of the
Indemnitees without contributory fault on the part of any person, firm or corporation.

In any and all claims against the Indemnitees or any one of the Indemnitees by any
employee of the Contractor, its subcontractors, anyone directly or indirectly employed by an
employee or subcontractor of the Contractor, or anyone for whose acts of such employees and
subcontractors may be liable, the indemnification obligation shall not be limited in any way by a
limitation on the amount of damages, compensation or benefits payable by or for the Contractor
or any subcontractor under workers' compensation acts, disability benefit acts or other employee
benefits acts.



In the event that any action or proceeding is brought against the Indemnitees or any one of
the Indemnitees by reason of any matter for which the Contractor has hereby agreed to indemnify,
hold harmless and defend, the Contractor, upon notice from the Indemnitees or any one of them,
covenants to resist or defend such action or proceeding with counsel acceptable to the Indemnitees
or any one of them as the case may be.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of

the sovereign immunity of the State of New Hampshire which is hereby reserved to the State of
New Hampshire.

The provisions of this indemnification shall survive the expiration or termination of this
Agreement, and the Contractor's obligations hereunder shall apply whenever any one of the
Indemnitees incur costs or liabilities described above.

12, Default and Termination.

If the Contractor:

a. fails to begin work under this Agreement within the time specified in the
notice to proceed,;

b. fails to perform the work with sufficient workers and equipment or with
sufficient materials to assume prompt completion of said work;

c. performs the work unsuitably, or neglects or refuses to remove material or
to perform anew such work as may be rejected as unacceptable or
unsuitable;

d. discontinues the prosecution of the work;

e. fails to resume work which has been discontinued, within a reasonable time
after notice to do so;

f. becomes insolvent or is declared bankrupt, or commits any act of
bankruptey or insolvency;

g. makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors; or

h. for any other cause whatsoever, fails to carry on the work in an acceptable
manner;

the Owner may give notice in writing to the Contractor of such delay, neglect or default. If the
Contractor does not proceed in accordance with said notice, then the Owner will, upon written
notification from its Representative of the fact of such delay, neglect or default and the Contractor's
failure to comply with such notice, have full power and authority without violating this Agreement,
to take the delivery of services out of the hands of the Contractor. The Owner may enter into an
agreement for the completion of this Agreement according to the terms and conditions hereof, or
use such other methods as in its opinion will be required for the completion of said Agreement in
an acceptable manner.

All extra costs and charges incurred by the Owner as a result of such delay, neglect or default,
together with the cost of completing the services under this Agreement will be deducted from any
monies due or which may become due to Contractor. If such expense exceeds the sum which

4



would have been payable under this Agreement then the Contractor shall be liable and shal] pay
to the Owner the amount of such excess within thirty (30) days of notice from Qwner.

13. Termination Without Fault.

Notwithstanding the default provisions of Section 12, the Owner, for any cause, including
but not limited to an order of any federal authority or petition of the Contractor due to
circumstances beyond its control, may by written notice to the Contractor terminate this
Agreement or any portion thereof subject to condition (a) provided below.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in these conditions, it is understood
and agreed by the parties hereto that all obligations of the Owner hereunder, including the
continuance of payments, are contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation of State
funds, and in no event shall Owner be liable for payments hereunder in excess of such available or
appropriated funds. In the event of a reduction, termination or failure to appropriate any or all
such available funds or appropriations or a reduction of expenditure of State funds, the Owner
may, by written notice to the Contractor, immediately terminate this Agreement in whole or in part
in accordance with the following conditions:

a. When this Agreement, or any portion thereof, is terminated before
completion of all items of work therein, payment will be made for the actual
items of work completed. No claim for loss of anticipated profits on items
or units of work not completed will be allowed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed, or caused to be executed by
their duly authorized officials, this Contract, effective on the.date first above written.

Pease Development Authority

Date: /0/7'// 1 By A
’ David R. Mullen \

Executive Director

Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc.

Date: OC}Y (/( l .:)10(01 By /Z/// @

. g _
PrintName: ©echS (o Yorvellpy
Print Title:  Di—ecter of Operohions
Duly Authorized




I1.

PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
DIVISION OF PORTS & HARBORS

REQUEST FOR BIDS

REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF APPROXIMATELY 100
MOORINGS IN HAMPTON AND SEABROOK HARBORS

Specifications

September 6, 2019

GENERAL

These Specifications spell out the requirements of the Pease Development Authority,
Division of Ports & Harbors (PDA-DPH or Division) for the removal and replacement of
approximately 100 moorings (to include the block, chain, buoy, and any pick-up line or
pennants) in Hampton and Seabrook Harbors in the Fall/Winter of 2019 and
Winter/Spring of 2020, in order to facilitate the dredging of Hampton/Seabrook Harbor.

CONSTRUCTION REQUIREMENTS

A. Removal of Mooring Blocks and Hardware: The Division will provide the Contractor
with a sketch map of the approximate location of the moorings that will need to be
removed. The Division will notify all permit holders that their moorings will be
removed to allow dredging activities to proceed. At the time of removal and
replacement the Hampton and Seabrook Harbormasters will be present and observe
the operation. Damage to any mooring and the source of said damage will be
identified by the Harbormasters, in their sole discretion, at the time of
removal/replacement.

The mooring blocks and hardware will be stored by the Contractor on land at the
Yankee Cooperative in Seabrook (for Seabrook moorings), and at the State Pier in
Hampton (for Hampton moorings) as indicated on the attached diagram. A written
inventory of all moorings (including their removal and replacement dates) and their
storage location shall be maintained by the Contractor throughout the removal and
replacement process, a copy of which shall be made available to the Division upon
request. Any changes to mooring storage location must be agreed upon by the
Division.

The removal and replacement of moorings shall be scheduled in a manner to
minimize impacts and delays to the dredging operations and the use of moorings.
The removal and replacement of moorings will be phased so that the use of moorings
is reasonably maintained during dredging. The Contractor will coordinate with the

!



Iv.

Division and Harbormasters on the project timetable and mooring
removal/replacement phasing. Time is of the essence in performing the removal and
replacement work pursuant to the Division’s schedule.

The Contractor must be able to respond on-site within 24 hours in the event that an
unidentified mooring is discovered during the dredge, weekends and holidays
included.

B. Replacement of Mooring Blocks and Hardware: Upen completion of dredging and
after an area has been finally accepted the Contractor will promptly replace the
moorings within the anchorages at coordinate points to be provided by the Division.
The Contractor will be responsible for locating the moorings in accordance with the
layout provided by the Division, subject to the approval of the Harbormasters.

C. Repairs: The Contractor will be required to exercise reasonable care in handling the
. moorings during both their removal and replacement. The Contractor will be
responsible for repairing any damage incurred during removal/replacement that was
the fault of Contractor, as determined by the Harbormasters at the time of
removal/replacement in their sole discretion. Repairs are to be made to the
satisfaction of the Harbormasters.

INSURANCE

A. Contractor shall maintain

1. Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, on an occurrence basis
(including vendor’s coverage) in an amount of not less than $2,000,000
each occurrence, $2,000,000 products aggregate, and $2,000,000 general
aggregate.

2. Workers Compensation coverage for all personnel performing work under
the Contract consistent with the requirements of State Law (state law
exclusion from coverage for proprietors/partners/executive officers not
permitted).

All policies of insurance shall be effected under valid and enforceable policies, issued by
insurers of recognized responsibility which are authorized to transact such insurance
coverage in the State of New Hampshire.

The general liability policies of insurance required shall be for the mutual benefit of
Contractor and the PDA-DPH with the PDA-DPH named as additional insured. Each
such policy or certificate therefor issued by the insurer shall contain: (i) a provision that
no act or omission of Contractor, or any employee, officer or agent of Contractor, which
would otherwise result in forfeiture or reduction of the insurance therein provided shall
affect or limit the obligation of the insurance company to pay the amount of any loss



sustained, (ii) an agreement by the insurer that such policy shall not be canceled without
at least thirty (30) days prior written notice by registered mail to PDA-DPH, (iii) provide
that the insurer shall have no right of subrogation against PDA-DPH, and (iv) a provision
that any liability coverage required to be carried shall be primary and noncontributing
with respect to any insurance carried by the PDA-DPH.

V. BID SUBMITTAL

The attached bid form is required for this bid and must be delivered to the following
address not later than 3:00 PM local time on Friday. September 27, 2019, at which time
they will be opened publicly and read aloud.

Pease Development Authority
Division of Ports & Harbors
REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF APPROXIMATELY 100 MOORINGS IN
. HAMPTON AND SEABROOK HARBORS
555 Market Street
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Bids must be enclosed in sealed envelopes (inner and outer) both of which must be clearly
labeled “Bid Documents Submitted by (vendor’s name) for the removal and replacement of
approximately 100 moorings in Hampton and Seabrook Harbors.

Before preparing the bid vendors should carefully examine the Removal/ Replacement
Requirements. Any/all Contractor charges shall be included in the proposed per mooring
removal/replacement cost.

In the event the Contractor discovers discrepancies or omissions in the requirements, or is
in doubt as to the intent, the Contractor should contact the Chief Harbormaster or his/her
designee at (603) 436-8500. Any discrepancies or omissions discovered will be
immediately forwarded to all persons who have received the specifications directly from
the PDA-DPH.



PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF APPROXIMATELY 100
MOORINGS IN HAMPTON AND SEABROOK HARBORS

BID FORM

09/6/19

The UNDERSIGNED does hereby certify that the work to be performed for
the Pease Development Authority — Division of Ports and Harbors (PDA-
DPH) meets all of the specifications and requirements.

The UNDERSIGNED hereby certifies that no employee, officer, or agent of
the PDA-DPH, nor any member of their immediate family, has any interest
in the award of a contract herein; nor is any such employee, officer, or agent
employed by or about to become an officer or employee of any person, firm,
partnership or corporation which may benefit from the award of the contract
herein.

This certification is based on the foregoing issued before execution of this
bid form, and any amendments hereafter to be made.

The PDA will award a contract for the: REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT OF
APPROXIMATELY 100 MOORINGS IN HAMPTON AND SEABROOK
HARBORS to the lowest qualified bidder.

The PDA reserves the right to reject any and all bids or to waive any
informalities.

------------------------------

NOTE: Bids must be enclosed in sealed envelopes (inner and outer) both of
which must be clearly labeled “Bid Documents Submitted by (vendor’s name)
for the Removal And Replacement Of Approximately 100 Moorings In
Hampton And Seabrook Harbors.”




ITEM 1:  Unit price for Removal And Replacement Of Approximately 100

Moorings In Hampton And Seabrook Harbors according to the specifications
contained herein:

Dollars: $

/Mooring (Removal)

$ /Mooring (Replacement)

(Unit price must be shown in both words and figures. In case of
discrepancy the unit price shown in words will govern.)

Note: Bids must bear the - CONTRACTOR:
handwritten signature of a duly
authorized member of the By:
organization making the bid.
(Its)
DATE:
Address:
Phone:
Fax:




FROJECT WORK OVERVIEW

N
i
%
£f ?
i
o
w .
\
. \
- o
v G
o )
5 ¢ G
'E :
-
=~
wn
> i o
1 & r; PEALE DEVEL OPEAENT ALTHORITY =
S n H : _mwmwwumwum.:wmm
o | © [ LT RATERFRDNT RErASILITATION™ ™
a2 H 5 _-n—(-'




PEASE DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY
REMOVAYL AND REPLACEMENT OF APPROXIMAT ELY 100

MOORINGS IN HAMPTON AND SEABROOK HARBORS
BID FORM

09/6/19

The UNDERSIGNED does hereby certify that the work to be performed to
the Pease Development Authority (PDA) meet all of the specifications and
requirements.

The UNDERSIGNED hereby certifies that no employee, officer, or agent of
the PDA, nor any member of their immediate family, has any interest in the

* ‘award of a contract herein; nor is any such employee, officer, or agent '
employed by or about to become an officer or employee of any person, firm,
partnership or corporation which may benefit from the award of the contract
herein.

This certification is based on the foregoing issued before execution of this
bid form, and any amendments hereafter to be made.

The PDA will award the contract for the REMIOVAT AND
REPLACEMENT OF APPROXIMATELY 100 MOORINGS IN HAMPTON
AND SEABROOK HARBORS
to the lowest qualified bidder. The PDA. reserves the right to reject any
and all bids or to waive any informalities.

-------------------------------------------------------

NOTE: Bids must be enclosed in scaled envelopes (inner and outer) both of
which must be clearly Iabeled “Bid Documents Submitted by (vendor’s name) for the
Removal And Replacement Of Approximately 100 Moorings In Hampton And Seabrook
Harbors




ITEM 1: Unit price for Removal And Replacement Of Approximately 100
Moorings In Hampton And Seabrook Harbors according to the specifications

contained herein:

Dollars:  § HT0.00 ue Woad, ed Sevenby Dollars /Mooring (Removal)

$ 329,00 Tharee Hundpd ey ighy 9““7ﬁoon'n2 (Replacement)

(Unit price must be shown in both words and figures. In case of

discrepancy the unit price shown in words will govern. )

Note: Bids must bear the

‘handwritten signature of a duly

authorized member of the
organization making the bid.

DATE: ‘1/ 1 /(C(

{

CONTRACTOR.: Zpeete\ (sve Morin Servier

s

1 Dicacker ok Opa."ci““for\.s

Address: 333 Q’)GS(!‘/\\C]; Ro.

l\fﬂu\jinﬁ{-cr\ N
v

O3R6 |
Phone: Gg@) 3713~ 6312

Fax:




PEASE

INTERNATIONAL 555 Markat Streel, Suile 1 Porismouth, NH 03301
PORTS AND HARBORS
LXHIBIT A

TO:

ALL CONTRACTORS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND/OR AGENTS

MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS OF CERTIFICATES OF INSURANCE FOR
CONTRACTORS/SUBCONTRACTORS WORKING ON PROPERTY OF PEASE
DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY-DIVISION OF PORTS AND HARBORS

All contractors, subcontractors and/or any agents thereof are required to provide proof of insurance to the
Pease Development Authority-Division of Ports and Harbors (PDA-DPH) before the commencement of
any work on PDA-DPH property. The following are the minimum requirements for insurance coverage:

1.

.

Commercial General Lnablhty Two (2) mllllon dollars commercial genelal liability coverage per
occurrence; and Two (2) million dollars per project aggregate.

Automobile Liability: One (1) million dollars automobile liability coverage.

Workers Compensation: Coverage equal to minimum statutory levels as required by New
Hampshire State [aw.

Longshore and Harbor Workers Compensation Act Insurance: To the extent applicable and to
limits as required by Federal and State law,

Envirenmental/Pollution Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for
such coverage and in such amounts as determined by PDA-DPH from time to time.

Additional Insureds: Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors and the State
of New Hampshire must be named as additional insureds under all liability coverages.

Certificate Holder:  Pease Development Authority, Division of Ports of Harbors
555 Market St.
Portsmouth, NH 03801

Professional Liability: As required by activities which give rise to the necessity for such coverage
and in a minimum amount of One (1) million dollars,

Notice of Cancellation: A 30 day notice of cancellation (with the exception of a 10 day notice for
non-payment of premium) must be provided.

. Waiver of Subrogation: With the exception of workers compensation coverage, a statement that

a waiver of subrogation is included with respect to applicable coverage.

Primary Insurance: A provision that any liability coverage required to be carried shall be primary
and noncontributing with respect to any insurance carried by the PDA.

For questions, please contact the Pease Development Authority Legal Department at (603) 433-6348.

Updated 8/8/2019

OO0 TAKING YOU THERE

ph: 603-436-8500 fox: B03-436-2780 www.peasedev.org



DATE (MMDDIYYYY)

y ) ]
ACORD
CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 7/2/2018

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER, THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW, THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must be endorsed, If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lleu of such ondorsement(s).

PRODUCER Napie, | Jami Marad
International Special Riska m.ﬁm' (781)295-0270 | F5X or: (701) 2467230
50 Salem Street hohzss: Jmarad@isr-insurance.com
Building B, 3rd Floor INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Lynnfield MA 01540 INSURER A :GTeat American Insurance Company 22136
INSURED ISURER B :New York Marine and General 16608
Pepperrell Cove Marine Services, Inc. insureRc Manufacturers Alllance Insurance Co | 36897
105 Bartlett Strest - Rear INSURER D :Maxrkel International Insurance

INSURER E:American Longshore Mutual Agmoc
Portsmouth NH 03801 INSURERF :Endurance American Insurance Co 10641
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:Blanket 18-20 REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANGCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN 1S SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS,

(TRER ADDLIEUBA; LICY EFF LICY
LTR, TYPE OF INSURANCE NSOl wvn POLICY NUMBER (RDE Ty Y1 | DR er] LIMITS
x | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EAGH OCCURRENGE s 1,000,000
DAMAGE TO RENTED
A _] CLAIMS-MADE E 0ccur PHEM?SFES (Ea occurrencel S 100,000
X | ¥ |om g91-56-81 7/1/2018% 7/1/2020 | MED £XP (Any one person) s 10,000
__J PERSCNAL 8 ADV INJURY | 5 1,000,000
GEN'LAGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE S 2,000,000
0-
roucy [ %] 58% [ ioc PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG | § 1,000,000
X | OTHER. Protection & Indamnity P&l Limit 3 1,000,000
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
_AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY | o s
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) | §
"] ALLOWNED SCHEDULED
AUTOS AgLOS o BOOILY INJURY (Per accident) | §
NON-OWN PROFPERTY DAMAGE
HIRED AUTOS AUTOS (PHer accidc‘;l) $
S
P UMBRELLA LiaB X | 0OCCUR 0OMX10013381601 7/1/2018 7/1/2020 | EAGH OCCURRENCE b 5,000,000
w% | EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE ML201500001832 7/1/2018 | 7/1/2020 | A\GGREGATE $ 5,000,000
DED ' I RETENTION S 10,000
WORKERS GOMPENSATION 487165Y 7/1/2019 | 7/1/2020 | % | PER TR
¢ AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY . 0 /2 2y StAture | ER
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNERIEXECUTIVE WC covarage E.L EACH ACCIDENT 5 1,000,000
OFFICER/IMEMBER EXCLUDED? N/A
E |{Mandatory In NH) ALMAD1208-D6 7/1/2019 | 7/1/2029 | EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEH § 1,000,000
If yes, deseribe under
DESERIPTION OF OPERATIONS below USL&H coverage £.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT I H 1,000,000
D |Maritime Employers B180620~039-19 7/1/2019 T/1/2020 | any ono accident/diseass $1,000,000
Liability (Jones Act)

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIGLES {ACORD 101, Additlonal Remarks Schedule, may be attached it more space [s required)

30 day notice of cancellation except 10 days for non payment of premium,

<C: WC Officer Exclusion applies only to State Act coveraga. Officers are inecluded under USL&R. >

Pease Development Authority Division of Ports and Harbors and the State of New Hampehire are Additional
Insured with Waiver of Subrogation on a Primary & Non-Contributory basis as raspects GL coverage as
their interests may appear subject to the terms, conditions, exclusions and endorsements set forth in the
policy and as required by written contract.

Excegs Coverage is Follow Form.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

(603)433-6317

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
Pease Development Authority ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

Division of Ports and Harbors
55 Internmational Drive

Portsmouth, NH 03801

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Steve Macguarrie/JAMI s et LR S e
© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD

INS025 (201401) REC E|V ED JUL 02 2019







MOTION

RIGHT TO KNOW UPDATE: Effective January 1, 2018, RSA 91-A, the Right to Know Law was modified to include that “If a
member of the public body believes that any discussion in a meeting of the body, including in a nonpublic session,
violates this chapter, the member may object to the discussion. If the public body continues the discussion despite the
objection, the objecting member may request that his or her objection be recorded in the minutes and may then continue
to participate in the discussion without being subject to the penalties of RSA 92-A:8, IV or V. Upon such request, the
public body shall record the member's objection in its minutes of the meeting. If the objection is to a discussion in
nonpublic session, the objection shall also be recorded in the public minutes, but the notation in the public minutes shall
include only the members name, a statement that he or she objected to the discussion in nonpublic session, and a
reference to the provision of RSA 91-A:3, I, that was the basis for the discussion.”

Director Torr:
The Pease Development Authority Board of Directors will enter non-

public session pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3 for the purpose of discussing
Security Matters.

Note: Roll Call Vote

NARESOLVES 2019 \Non-Public (Security) 10-17.docx







»,L_
ASE

10

4

NTE

= |-

A
N
Y

2] I

A
OPM
ORI

o
Rl

R
VE
Ut

-m

E
A

Director Allard:

Resolved, pursuant to NH RSA 91-A:3, Paragraph I, the Pease
Development Authority Board of Directors hereby determines that the
divulgence of information discussed at the non-public session related to
Security matters would, if disclosed publically, compromise the emergency
functions pertaining to security; and agrees that the minutes of said
meeting be held confidential until, in the opinion of a majority of the Board

of Directors, the aforesaid circumstances no longer apply.

MOTION

Note: This motion requires 5 Affirmative Votes

NI RESOLVES 2O\ Confidentiality 1017 doox

Ty TAKING YO

U

THERE






